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wOHdmkfha ksoyi                                                                                                                             
úêu;a Wiia wOHdmk wOHhk wjia:d wysñj fiajfha 
kshqla;j isák l<ukdldß fkdjk fiajd kshqla;slhska 
Wfoid ksoyia wOHdmkh wLKavj iïmdokh lrk 
w;ru" Wiia wOHdmksl wjia:d mQrKh lr .ekSug 
fkdyelsjQ l<ukdldß fiajd kshqla;slhka" iy jD;a;slhka 
ixj¾Okh lsÍu wms w.h lruq'

wNsj¾OkSh Ñka;kh                                                                                                                                       
tlsfkldf.a ld¾hNdrh Wmßu lemùulska isÿ lrñka 
wmf.a iduQysl m%h;akfha m%;sM, idOdrKd;aulj fnod 
.ksñka iy wm <Õd lr.;a foa udkj iïm;a 
wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh ;=< yd bka msg; wkd.; 
mrmqrg ;sridrj mj;ajd .ksñka iy oshqKq lrñka 
iudcfha wNsj¾Okh i|yd iduQyslj lghq;= lsÍu wms 
w.h lruq'

úúO;ajh yd wka;¾.;h                                                                                                                                       
wm úúO;ajh w.h lrkjd muKla fkdj" wmf.a 
wdh;kh iy iudch úiska úúO;ajhka m%;s,dN ,nd 
.ekSu iy;sl lsÍu Wfoid wmf.a idrO¾u" úYajdi" 
miq;," l=i,;d iy ld¾h osYdk;sfhys fjkialï 
ms<sf.k m%j¾Okh lrk wka;¾.%yKSh ld¾h 
ixialD;shla wms w.h lruq'

m%cdjf.a cSj .=Kh                                                                                                                                       
tlu wruqKla fmroeß fldg talSh wNs,dIhka uqÿka 
muqKqjd .ekSu fjkqfjka talSh m%cdjla f,i ’uu¶ 
fkdj ’wm¶ hk .=Kh f.dv ke.Sug fya;= mdol 
jk wNs,dIhkaf.ka hqla;jkakd jQ udkj m%cdjla 
njg m;aùug lghq;= lsÍu wms w.h lruq'

wm isÿ lrk oE mjrd Èu                                                                                                                                    
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;ksl m%cdjf.a iy bka 
mßndysr m%cdjf.ao iodpdrd;aul ksjereos meje;au 
wm osß.kajkq ,nk w;r oekqu iy f;dr;=re tla 
/ia lsÍfï wiSudka;sl whs;sh Wiia wOHdmk 
bf.kqï iïmdok wdh;khla mj;ajd .; hq;= 
ryiHNdjh ;yjqre lrñka mj;ajdf.k hdu wms 
w.h lruq'

jákdlu 

01

jákdlu

02

jákdlu 
03

jákdlu 
04

jákdlu 
05



iv

wmf.a iudch m%.;shg yd bosßhg hd hq;= nj wms úYajdi lruq. 
tfukau m%.;sh l%udkql+,j os.ska os.gu mj;ajd .ekSug wms W;aidy 
lrkafkuq. tu m%.;sh wmf.a wd¾Ól, iudcSh, ixialD;sl iy 
foaYmd,ksl wNs,dIhka idl,Hj je<| .ekSu wms b,lal lruq.  
m%.;sYS,s iudchla hkq tys cSj;a jk ck;djf.a iudc, ixialD;sl 
iy foaYmd,k wNs,dIhka h:d¾:hla njg m;a lrkakd jQ ixiohla 
nj wms úYajdi lrkafkuq.

2019 j¾Ih i|yd jd¾Isl jd¾;dj ud úiska bÈßm;a lrkafka 
buy;a mS%;shlsks. tlS j¾Ih ;=< udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh 
úIh lafIa;% .Kkdjl yd mYapd;a Wmdê, m%:u Wmdê, ämaf,daud iy 
iy;slm;a f,i úúO uÜgï olajd mq¿,a mrdihl wOHhk mdGud,d 
iïmdokh lrñka m%uqL fmf<a wOHhk wdh;khla f,i wLKavj 
cd;shg fiajh iïmdokh lrk ,oS. jif¾ ie,lsh hq;= úfYaI;u 
lreKla jQfha wm úiska wdrïN lrk ,o uQ,sl fjkia lsÍï bÈßhg 
mj;ajdf.k hdug wmf.a lemùu, wmf.a udkj iïm;a ixj¾Okfhys 
,d lrk ,o wdfhdackfhka ukdj meyeÈ,s ùuhs.

2019 j¾IfhaoS o udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha wkd.;hg uqyqK 
oSug we;s iQodkïnj fmkakqï lrkq ,nk wLKav j¾Okfha iqúfYaI 
ch.%yK .Kkdjla w;a lr .ekSug yelsúh. m<uqj, wdh;kh 
m%;sjHqy.; lrk ,o mYapd;a Wmdê, úOdhl$ Wiia ämaf,daud iy 
ämaf,daud jeks wOHhk jevigyka wdrïN lrk ,oS. fojekqj, kj 
tall wdrïN lrñka fiajlhka mqyqKq lrñka iy wdh;k kshudj,sh 
ixfYdaOkh lsÍu i|yd wkque;sh ,nd .ekSu msKsi ndysr md¾Yjhka 
yd lghq;= lrñka wdh;kh m%;sjHqy.; lsÍfï lghq;= ;j ÿrg;a 
isÿ lrk ,oS. ;jo, fmr j¾IfhaoS wdrïN lrk ,o fN!;sl jeä 
ÈhqKq lsÍfï jHdmD;s .Kkdjla iïmQ¾K lsÍug o wmg yels úh.

2019 j¾IfhaoS o wdh;kfha cd;Hka;rlrKh jeä ÈhqKq lsÍug 
wm úiska wjOdkh fhduq flreKq w;r úfoaY úYajúoHd, yd 
iómj lghq;= lrñka YsIH yqjudre jevigyka, f;jk md¾Yj 
mqyqKq jevigyka  wLKavj ls%hd;aul lsÍug lghq;= flßK. wmf.a 
cHd;Hka;rlrK ls%hdldrlï iïnkaëlrKh lsÍu i|yd ia:dms; 
lrk ,o tallh f;dard .;a úfoaY úYajúoHd, iu. wjfndaO;d 
.súiqï w;aika lsÍu i|yd o uQ,sl;ajh f.k lghq;= lrk ,oS.

udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha m%uqL;u jevigyk jk Y%u 
wOHdmkfõoS Wmdê mdGud,dj i|yd 2019 j¾IfhaoS kjl úoHd¾Óka 
211la ,shdmÈxÑ jQ w;r wdikak jYfhka úoHd¾Óka 589la muK fuu 
mdGud,dj yodrkq ,nhs. ;jo, fcHaIaG l<ukdlrK uÜgfï fyda 
jD;a;sl uÜgfï úoHd¾Óka 887la muK mYapd;a Wmdê wOHhkfha 
ksr; jQ w;r tu jevigyka kï( jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s 
Wmdê mdGud,dj, udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrKdêm;s Wmdê mdGud,dj, 
fiajd l<ukdlrK úoHdm;s Wmdê mdGud,dj, N+ f;dr;=re úoHdm;s 
mdGud,dj iy wdmod úYaf,aIK l<ukdlrKh iy md,k úoHdm;s 
mdGud,dj fõ.

2019 wOHhk j¾Ih ;=< ;uka i;= úIhdkqnoaO oekqu jeä ÈhqKq 
lr .ekSu i|yd ämaf,daud mdGud,djkays wOHdmkh ,o iuia; 
YsIH ixLHdj 372la jQ w;r iy;slm;a mdGud,djka i|yd wOHhk 
lghq;=j, ksr; jQ iuia; YsIH ixLHdj 5,065la  úh. j¾Ih ;=< 
oS udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh jevuq¿ 11la mj;ajk ,o w;r 

wOHlaI;=udf.a 
iudf,dapkh
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;u bf.kqï w;aoelSï jeä ÈhqKq lr .ekSu msKsi YsIH YsIHdfjda 
664la fuu jevuq¿ i|yd iyNd.S jQy.

fld<U úYajúoHd,hSh udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha wms m%.;sYS,s 
iudchl cSj;a jk ckhd fjkqfjka W;=ï b,lal follA osh;a lr 
we;af;uq. tkï, wjYH lrkakd jQ m%udKfhka iy .=Kd;aulNdjfhka 
udkj l=i,;d ixj¾Okh, iduQysl f;dard .ekSï iy iduQysl m%h;akhka 
<Õd lr .ekSu fjkqfjka fiajlhka iy l<ukdlrejka oekqj;a lsÍu 
jYfhks. m%.;sYS,s iudchl cSj;a ùfï isyskhla we;s iy wfkla 
mqoa.,hka tys cSj;ajkq oelSug leu;s ieug tu isyskh h:d¾:hla 
njg m;a lr .ekSug wms fld<U úYajúoHd,hSh udkj iïm;a 
wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh yd tla jk fuka wdrdOkd lruq.

uydpd¾h fÊ.ta.tia.fla.chfldä
wOHlaI iy Ydia;S%h lñgq iNdm;s
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh
fld<U úYajúoHd,h
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udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha b;sydih oYl y;rlg jvd 
Wreulï lshk w;r tys mQ¾jl wdh;kh jQ fiajl wOHdmk 
wdh;kh 1979 wxl 11 ork kshudj,sh hgf;a 1975 j¾Ifha oS 
ia:dmkh lrk ,oS. 2006 j¾Ifha oS fiajl wOHdmk wdh;kh, udkj 
iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh f,i kï lrk ,o w;r th 2006 wxl 
01 ork kshudj,sh uÕska ixfYdaOkh lrkq ,eìK. 2017 wf.daia;= 
22 Èke;s wxl 2033$10 ork w;s úfYaI .eiÜ m;%fha m< lrk 
,o ixfYdaê; kshudj,sh uÕska udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;khg 
Wmdê, ämaf,daud, iy;slm;a iy wfkl=;a wOHhk úYsIaG;d iy;sl 
msßkeóug wjYH wkque;sh ,nd .kakd ,oS. udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 
wdh;kh rfÜ merKs;u úYajúoHd,h jk fld<U úYajúoHd,hg 
wh;a wdh;khls.

jir y;rlg wêl b;sydih ;=< udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh 
tys mßiaÓ;sh ;=< fjkialï iy kj ixj¾Okhka /ila w;aoel 
we;s w;r fm!oa.,sl wxYfha j¾Okh, oekqï wd¾Ólfha u;=úu yd 
Y%u n,ldfha f.da,ShlrKh fï w;ßka ie,lsh hq;= lSmhls. fuu 
ixj¾Okhka je<| .ekSug ork m%h;akfhaoS udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 
wdh;kh wLKavj mßKduh ù we;s w;r ’fiajd lKavdhï¶ i|yd 
wOHdmkh ,nd oSfï tys uq,a wNsu;d¾:h kj w¾:hla f.k we;. 
j¾;udkfhaoS ’fiajd lKavdhï¶ f,i ’l<ukdlrK$ jD;a;Suh fiajd 
lKavdhï¶ w¾: .kajk w;r udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh fuu 
udkj l=i,;d ixj¾Okh i|yd lem ù isáhs. 

fld<U úYajúoHd,hSh wdh;khla ùu ;=< wdh;kfha wOHhk lghq;= 
fld<U úYajúoHd,fha oeä wëlaIKhg ,la fõ. ́ kEu Wiia wOHdmk 
wdh;khla mj;ajd .; hq;= wOHhk lghq;=j, Wiia m%ñ;Ska mj;ajd 
.ekSu iy hym;a iïm%odhka bÈßhg;a mj;ajdf.k hdu i|yd 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh ne|S isà.

udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh uQ,slju wdrïN lrk ,oafoa 
ish¨u ldKavj, fiajlhkag Tjqkaf.a l=i,;d kdhl;aj .=Kdx. iy 
Y%ñlhka f,i Tjqkaf.a j.lSï ms<sn| ms<s.kakd .=Kd;aulNdjfhka 
hq;a mD:q, Wiia uÜgfï wOHdmkhla ,nd oSu i|yd myiqlï 
ie,iSugh. tuÕska Tjqkag ;u fiajd ia:dkhkays M,odhS odhl;ajhla 
,nd oSug yelsjk w;r 1983 jk f;lau m%odkh lrk ,oafoa 
Y%dia;%fõoS Wmdêhla jYfhks. flfia jqjo 1986 j¾IfhaoS udkj 
iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh Y%u wOHdmkfõoS Wmdêh msßkeóu 
wdrïN lrk ,o w;r 2007 j¾Ifha oS udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 
wdh;kh ish wOHhk ls%hdldrlï jHdma; lrñka mYapd;a Wmdê 
msßkeóu o wdrïN lrk ,oS.

1.1. udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh .ek fláfhka 
2019 j¾Ifha oS udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh mYapd;a Wmdê 
úoHd¾Óka 850la iy m%:u Wmdêh ydodrk úoHd¾Óka 550la we;=¿j 
isiq isiqúhka 7,000lg wdikak ixLHdjlg wOHdmkh ,nd oS we;.
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh, th msysgqjd we;s wruqK ie,ls,a,g 
f.k .;sl wOHhk jevigyka msßkukq ,nhs. wmf.a m%:u Wmdê 
jevigyfka jir ;=k ;=< m%Odk jYfhkau jevlrk m%cdjg Tjqkaf.a 
jev mßirhg .e<fmk mßÈ ish l=i,;d, yelshdjka iy kdhl;aj 
l=i,;d ÈhqKq lr .ekSu b,lal fldg we;.

2019 j¾IfhaoS mdGud,d ldKav 04la hgf;a wOHhk lghq;= ie,iSug 

udkj iïm;a 
wNsj¾Ok 
wdh;kfha 
b;sydih
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wmg yels jQ w;r, 2018-2022 ld, mßÉfÊoh i|yd jQ wdh;ksl ie,eiaug wkq.;j mYapd;a Wmdê 
mdGud,d 05la tla m%:u Wmdê mdGud,djla, úOdhl$Wiia ämaf,daud iy ämaf,daud mdGud,d 07la iy 
iy;slm;a mdGud,d 08la meje;aùug wdh;khg yels úh.

by; olajd we;s mßÈ 2019 j¾Ih ;=< úúO wOHhk mdGud,d yodrk ,o iuia; isiq isiqúhka 
ixLHdj 6,913la úh.

uQ,dY%h - /ia l< o;a; 2019, ud.i.w.wd. 

1.2. 2019 j¾Ih ;=< udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh úiska mj;ajk ,o wOHhk mdGud,d

 mYapd;a Wmdê mdGud,d

•	fiajd l<ukdlrK úoHdm;s Wmdê mdGud,dj 

•	N+ f;dr;=re úoHdm;s Wmdê mdGud,dj
•	jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s Wmdê mdGud,dj

•	udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrKdêm;s Wmdê mdGud,dj

•	wdmod úYaf,aIK, l<ukdlrK iy md,kh úoHdm;s mdGud,dj

•	 Y%u wOHdmkfõoS Wmdê mdGud,dj
 m%:u Wmdê mdGud,dj

•	udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrK úOdhl ämaf,daud mdGud,dj

•	ixpdrl, isÿùï iy wd.ka;=l i;aldr fiajd l<ukdlrK úOdhl ämaf,daud mdGud,dj

•	WmfoaYkh iy ufkdaúoHdj Wiia ämaf,daud mdGud,dj
•	u;aøjH ÿ¾Ndú; l<ukdlrK ämaf,daud mdGud,dj

•	WmfoaYkh iy ufkdaúoHdj ämaf,daud mdGud,dj
•	w;sf¾l NdIdjla f,i oñ< NdId ämaf,daud mdGud,dj 
•	Y%u wOHdmk ämaf,daud mdGud,dj

úOdhl$Wiia 
ämaf,daud iy ämaf,daud 

mdGud,d

•	mß.Kl fhojqï iy;slm;a mdGud,dj 

•	bx.S%is NdId iy;slm;a mdGud,dj
•	.=rejreka i|yd bx.%Sis NdId iy;slm;a mdGud,dj 
•	mdi,a yerhkakka ioyd jQ fláld,Sk bx.S%is NdId mdGud,dj 
•	l:k bx.S%is NdId mdGud,dj
•	bx.S%is NdId mokï iy;slm;a mdGud,dj  
•	oñ< NdId iy;slm;a mdGud,dj - uQ,sl
•	oñ< NdId iy;slm;a mdGud,dj - wka;¾uOHu

iy;slm;a 
mdGud,d

13%

5%

9%

73%

YsIH ,shdmÈxÑh - 2019

mYapd;a Wmdê mdGud,d

m%:u Wmdê mdGud,d

úOdhl$Wiia 
ämaf,daud mdGud,d

iy;slm;a mdGud,d
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wNsfhda.d;aul f.da,Sh ;;ajhka yuqfõ uqyqK oSug fukau wmf.a cd;sl ixj¾Okfha udkj moku Yla;su;a mßK;, 
nqoaêu;a ’oekqu Ndú; lrkakka¶ f,i udkj iïm; wNsj¾Okh lsÍug iïmQ¾Kfhka lem jQ úYsIag wdh;khla 
njg m;a ùug udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh n,dfmdfrd;a;= fõ. fuu wruqK uqÿka muqKqjd .ekSu i|yd udkj 
iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh, fld<U úYajúoHd,fhka Wreu ù we;s Okd;aul Ydia;S%h iïm%odhka iy Wiia wOHhk 
m%ñ;Ska ;yjqre lr .ksñka úYd, mßj¾;khlg n÷ka fjñka mj;S. hy md,kfha m%ñ;Ska imqrd,Su, wdh;k wOHhk 
jevigyka i|yd foaYSh yd f.da,Sh m%;S;khka ,nd .ekSu iy tuÕska iudcSh j.lSulska hq;a by<u b,a¨ula we;s 
fiajl ikakduhla iys; rdcH wdh;khla njg m;a ùu fuu mßj¾;kfha wruqK fõ.

1.3. udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha l<ukdldß;ajh
mQ¾K ld,Sk ks,Odßfhl= f,i fiajh lrk wdh;kfha mßmd,kuh iy wOHhk m%Odkshd jk wdh;kfha wOHlaIjrhd, 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha Ydia;S%h lñgqfõ ks¾foaYh u; fld<U úYajúoHd,fha md,l iNdfõ tlÕ;dj 
iys;j Wm l=,m;s úiska m;a lrkq ,efí. wOHlaIjrhd Y%dia;S%h lñgqfõ iNdm;sjrhd jk w;r wOHhk lñgq 
i|yd ks,n,fhka m;a jQ idudðlfhl=o fõ. Tyq wdh;kfha m%Odk .sKqï ks,Odßhd o jk w;r wdh;kh ;=< úkh 
mj;ajdf.k hdfï j.lSu orkakd o fõ. 2018 ckjdß 25 Èk isg ls%hd;aul jk mßÈ jir ;=kl ld,hla i|yd 
iaÓr wOHlaIjrhd jYfhka fld<U úYajúoHd,fha l<ukdlrK yd uQ,H mSGfha l<ukdlrK yd ixúOdk wOHhk 
wxYhg wkqhqla;j isá uydpd¾h fÊ.ta.tia.fla. chfldä uy;d fiajh lrkq ,nhs.

wdh;kfha ixúOdk jHqyh my; olajd we;.

1.4. udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha mßmd,kuh ixúOdk jHqyh ^2019&

 jHdma;s jevigyka 

wOHhk uKav,h

mYapd;a Wmdê 

wOHhk yd 

m¾fhaIK uKav,h

m%:u Wmdê mdGud,d 

wOHhk uKav,h 

NdId bf.kqï 

jevigyka 

wOHhk uKav,h

wOHlaI

úNd. yd we.hSï 

lñgqj 
;;a;aj wdrlaIK 

lñgqj ú.Kk lñgqjuQ,H lñgqj 

wOHhk 

ld¾huKav,h mqia;ld,htall
md,k yd 

uQ,H wxYh

ksfhdacH f,aLldêldÍ 

ld¾hd,h

fcHIaG iyldr uQ,HdêldÍ 

ld¾hd,h

fcHIaG iyldr f,aLldêldÍ 

ld¾hd,h

iyldr uQ,HdêldÍ ld¾hd,h

mYapd;a Wmdê tallh

m¾fhaIK tallh  

Y%u wOHdmk tallh

YsIH iydh tallh 

 úOdhl ixj¾Ok tallh 

NdId mqyqKq tallh

mß.Kl úoHd.drh

Ydia;S%h lñgqj

iyldr f,aLldêldÍ ld¾hd,h

fuu kj jHqyh wdh;ksl ie,eiau yd l%shdldß ie,eiaug wkql+,jk mßos ilia fldg we;.
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jd¾Isl jd¾;dj iy jd¾Isl uQ,H m%ldYk - 2019 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh   fld<U úYajúoHd,h

1.5. udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha Ydia;%Sh lñgqj
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha mßmd,kuh ixúOdk jHqyhg wkqj tys wOHhk uKav, y;r ^04& 
Ydia;%Sh lñgqfõ wkque;sh iys;j msysgqjd we;. wOHhk úIh lafIa;% yd wod< tall y;^07& wOHlaIjrhdf.a 
ud¾f.damfoaYkh hgf;a msysgqjd we;.

1.5.1. Ydia;%sh lñgq idudðlhka ^/iaùï jdr 09la mj;ajd we;&

ku m;a lrk ,o wêldßh

uydpd¾h fÊ'ta'tia'fla' chfldä uy;d iNdm;s

uydpd¾h fm%aul=udr o is,ajd uy;d ks, n,fhka m;a jQ idudðl

uydpd¾h fla'wd¾'wd¾' uydkdu uy;d ks, n,fhka m;a jQ idudðl

uydpd¾h tï'ù' úodKm;srK ñh ks, n,fhka m;a jQ idudðl

uydpd¾h flkä .=Kj¾Ok uy;d ú'm%'fld' úiska m;a lrk ,o idudðl

uydpd¾h chfoaj Whkaf.dv uy;d ú'm%'fld' úiska m;a lrk ,o idudðl

uydpd¾h khks fu,f.dv ñh ú'm%'fld' úiska m;a lrk ,o idudðl

uydpd¾h uyskao fidau;s,l uy;d 
^2019∙05∙12 olajd&

ú'm%'fld' úiska m;a lrk ,o idudðl

uydpd¾h ´'tï'tia' fidhsid uy;d 
^2018∙05∙13 isg& 

ú'm%'fld' úiska m;a lrk ,o idudðl

wdpd¾h Èkqld úfÊ;=x. ñh ú'm%'fld' úiska m;a lrk ,o idudðl

ã'tï'tia' oikdhl uy;d ú'm%'fld' úiska m;a lrk ,o idudðl

tka' fi,ajl=udrka uy;d ú'm%'fld' úiska m;a lrk ,o idudðl

tï'tÉ'tka' jrldW,a, uy;d ú'm%'fld' úiska m;a lrk ,o idudðl

fla'ta' úuf,akaørdcd uy;d uyd NdKavd.dr ksfhdað;

uydpd¾h ta'ta' wiSia uy;d wOHhk uKav, ksfhdað;

wdpd¾h tï'Ô'Ô' fyaul=udr uy;d wOHhk uKav, ksfhdað;

fla'mS' udf;dgwdrÉÑ ñh wOHhk uKav, ksfhdað;

î'fla'mS' wfíiQßh ñh wOHhk uKav, ksfhdað;

1.5.2. udkj iïm;aa wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha wOHhk uKav, u.ska mj;ajk ,o /iaùï jdr .Kk

wOHhk uKav,h mj;ajk ,o /iaùï ixLHdj

mYapd;a Wmdê wOHhk yd m¾fhaIK uKav,h 09

m%:u Wmdê mdGud,d wOHhk uKav,h 10

NdId bf.kqï jevigyka wOHhk uKav,h 09

jHdma;s jevigyka wOHhk uKav,h 10

Ydia;%Sh lñgqjg iDcqj j. lshkq ,nk lñgq y;r ^04& lska wdh;ksl jHqyh iukaú; fõ. tu lñgqj, úia;r 
my; olajd we;.

lñgqj mj;ajk ,o /iaùï ixLdj

ú.Kk lñgqj ^iajdëk lñgqjls'& 04

uQ,H lñgqj 11

mqia;ld, lñgqj 02

;;a;aj wdrlaIK lñgqj 01
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2.1. ixj¾Okhka 
–	 2006 wxl 01 u.sska ixfYdaOkh flreKq 1979 wxl 11 ork udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 

wdh;k kshudj,sh m%;sixfYdaOkh lsÍug lghq;= lrk ,oS.

–	 Y%u wOHdmkfõos Wmdê mdGud,dfõ kduh Y%u l<ukdlrKfõos ^f.!rj& iy Y%u 
l<ukdlrKfõos ^idudkH& Wmdê f,i fjkia lsÍu i|yd uQ,sl wkque;sh ,nd 
.ekSug l%shdud¾. .kakd ,o. ta wkqj, úoHd¾Óka i|yd mq¿,a wjia:d újD; lrñka 
úIhud,d fjkia flfrkq we;.

–	 kùlrKh lrk ,o wOHÌ ld¾hd,h, /iaùï Yd,dj iy úNd. wxYh kej; 
ia:dk.; lrk ,oS.

–	 fhdacs; mßos merKs uQ,H wxYh kùk, wx. iïmQQ¾K myiqlï iys; foaYk Yd,djla 
njg mßj¾;kh flßK.

 
–	 by< uágfï i¾jrhla, kùk *h¾fjda,a moaO;shla iy wLKav n, iemhqï ^USP& 

tallhla ia:dmkh lr we;.
 
–	 kj úNd. wxYh, wOHÌ ld¾hd,h, /iaùï Yd,dj, kj fiajd ia:dkh iy 

lÓldpd¾hjrekaf.a ish¨u ldur o;a; cd, myiqlï iys;j iïnkaO lsÍug fuu 
jir ;=< udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;khg yels úh.

2.2. ch.%yKhka
2.2.1. wOHdmksl ch.%yKhka
–	 cd;sl wka;rdhlr T!IO md,l uKav,h iu. we;s lr.;a yjq,aldß;ajh fya;=fjka 

tu wdh;kh yd tlaj u;aøjH ksjdrK l<ukdlrK ämaf,daud mdGud,dj wdrïN 
lsÍug yelsùu.

–	 ixpdrl isÿùï iy wd.ka;=l i;aldr fiajd l<ukdlrK úOdhl ämaf,daud 
jevigyfka jvd;a fyd| iyfhda.s;djla fjkqfjka .,alsiai ujqkaá ,eúkshd fydag,h 
iu. yjq,aldß;ajhla f.dv kÕd .ekSu fjkqfjka wjfndaO;d .súiqï w;aika lsÍfï 
jev lghq;= isÿ fjñka mj;S.

–	 Y%u wOHdmkfõos Wmdê jevigyk, ish¨u mYapd;a Wmdê jevigyka, úOdhl$ 
Wiia ämaf,daud yd ämaf,daud jevigyka fukau iy;slm;a mdGud,djka hk iEu 
jevigyklu w;ak¾l%shdldß bf.kqï-b.ekaùï l%uhla id¾:lj Wmfhdackh flf¾.

–	 wOHhk lghq;= i|yd iy;slm;am;a jevigyka yer wfkla ish¨u wOHhk 
jevigyka bf.kqï l<ukdlrK moaO;sh ^LMS& id¾:lj Ndú; lrhs. tuÕska 
lvodis rys; mßirhla ukd f,i ks¾udKh lsÍug fukau uqøK lghq;= i|yd fjka 
fldg ;snQ úYd, uqo,la b;sß lr .ekSug yelshdj ,eìK.

–	 úoHd¾Óka i|yd mq¿,a wjia:d újD; lrñka Y%u wOHdmkfõos Wmdê mdGud,dj Y%u 
l<ukdlrKfõos ^f.!rj& iy Y%u l<ukdlrKfõos ^idudkH& Wmdê f,i fjkia 
lsÍug lghq;= flßK.

 
–	 ämaf,daud jevigyka i|yd o ñY% bf.kqï-b.ekaùï ^BTL& l%ufõoh y÷kajd fok 

,oS.
–	 úOdhl$ Wiia ämaf,daud yd ämaf,daud jevigyka i|yd úIhud,d iudf,dapkh 

lsÍfï lghq;= fuu jif¾oS wdrïN lrk ,o w;r tu ld¾h id¾:lj isÿfjñka 
mj;SS.

my; i|yka jevuq¿ mj;ajk ,oS 
•	 WmfoaYkh iy ufkdaúoHd Wiia ämaf,daudj, WmfoaYkh iy ufkdaúoHd 

ämaf,daudj, ixpdrl isÿùï iy wd.ka;=l i;aldr fiajd l<ukdlrK 
úOdhl ämaf,daudj, u;aøjH ksjdrK l<ukdlrK ämaf,daudj, udkj iïm;a 

2019 
j¾Ih 
;=< 
ixj¾Okh 
iy 
,nd 
.;a 
ch.%yK
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jd¾Isl jd¾;dj iy jd¾Isl uQ,H m%ldYk - 2019 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh   fld<U úYajúoHd,h

l<ukdlrK úOdhl ämaf,daudj, fiajd 
l<ukdlrK úOdhl ämaf,daudj iy 
fiajd l<ukdlrK ämaf,daudj hk ish¨u 
ämaf,daud mdGud,djkays úIhud,d ixj¾Ok 
jevuq¿. 

•	 udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha wOHhk 
ld¾h uKav,hg iy ndysr lÓldpd¾h 
uKav,hg m¾fhaIK ud;Dld ixj¾Ok 
ms<sn| jevuq¿j.

•	 bx.%Sis NdId b.ekaùfï jevigyfka ndysr 
WmfoaYlhska i|yd .=re ixj¾Ok jevuq¿j.

•	 oñ< NdId b.ekaùfï jevigyfka uQ,sl 
uÜgfï b.ekaùï lghq;= isÿ lrk ndysr 
WmfoaYlhska i|yd .=re ixj¾Ok jevuq¿j.

–	 wOHhk mdGud,dj, wfmalaIs; bf.kqï m%;sM, 
(ILO) bf.kqï-b.ekaùï l%shdldrlï ^TLA& 
yd bf.kqï ;lafiare lsÍfï ld¾hhkag (AT) 
wkql+,jk mßos WmdêOdÍ .=Kdx. y÷kajd oSug 
lghq;= lsÍu.

• udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrKdêm;s, udkj 
iïm;a l<ukdlrK úoHdm;s, jHdmdr 
l<ukdlrKdêm;s, jHdmdr l<ukdlrK 
úoHdm;s, fiajd l<ukdlrKdêm;s, iy 
fiajd l<ukdlrK úoHdm;s mYapd;a Wmdê 
mdGud,dj,g WmdêOdÍ .=Kdx. y÷kajd 
oSug lghq;= lsÍu.

•  Y%u l<ukdlrKfõoS ^f.!rj& iy Y%u 
l<ukdlrKfõoS Wmdê mdGud,dj,g 
WmdêOdÍ .=Kdx. y÷kajd oSug lghq;= 
lsÍu.

•	úOdhl$ Wiia ämaf,daud yd ämaf,daud 
jevigyka i|yd WmdêOdÍ .=Kdx. y÷kajd 
oSu id¾:lj isÿfjñka mj;S. fuu .=Kdx. 
j¾Okh lsÍu fld<U úYajúoHd,fha 
iy wdpd¾h uKav, iy l¾udka;fha 
jD;a;slhkaf.a iyfhda.fhka isÿ lrk ,oS.

–    iudf,dapkh lrk ,o bx.%Sis iy oñ< NdId 
b.ekaùï jevigykaj,g wod<j Wiia yd uQ,sl 
uÜgfï fm<fmd;a m%ldYhg m;a lrk ,oS.

–   mqia;ld, f;dr;=re moaO;sh iy ã-wjldY 
uDÿldx.h ia:dmkh lsÍu.

cd;Hka;r iyNd.s;ajh
•	 u,hdishdfõ u,hd úYajúoHd,h u.ska 

mj;ajk ,o mia osk fkajdisl wka;¾cd;sl 
YsIH yqjudre jevigykla i|yd wdh;kfha 
fiajfha kshqla; idudcslhka miafofkla ^5& 
iyNd.s úh.

•	 iamd[a[fha mej;s jevuq¿jlgo ld¾h 
uKav, idudcslfhla iyNd.s úh.

•	 ud,osjhsfka mej;s cd;Hka;r wOHdmk  

yd jD;a;sh m%o¾Ykh i|yd wdh;k 
idudcslhka ;sfofkla wdh;kh ksfhdackh 

lrñka iyNd.s úh.
2.2.2. mßmd,kuh ch.%yK
–	 .=Kd;aul fiajd m%ñ;sh by< kexùfï 

wruqKska ld¾h uKav,fha idudcslhka i|yd 
tla cd;Hka;r jevuq¿jla o we;=¿j jevuq¿ 
09la udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh 
úiska ixúOkh lrk ,oS. fuu jevuq¿j,g 
wu;rj wOHhk iy wkOHhk ld¾h uKav, 
idudcslhka cd;Hka;r jevuq¿ lsysmhla i|yd 
iyNd.s úh. tfukau, wOHhk iy wkOHhk 
ld¾h uKAv, idudcslhka lsysmfofkla Tjqkaf.a 
jD;a;sh ixj¾Okh Wfoid jevuq¿ 05la i|yd 
iyNd.s úh.

-	 ia:djr j;alï f,aLkh mß.Kl.; lsÍfï 
lghq;= fï jk úg wjika fldg we;. ;jo, 
fï jk úg wxY wkqj NdKav f,aLk ieliSuo 
iïmQ¾K fldg we;.

-	 ish¨u wxY i|yd /lshd msßú;r ks¾udKh 
flßK.

-	 frfmd ^REPO& moaO;sh y÷kajd fok ,oS.
-	 2019 j¾IfhaoS udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 

wdh;kh ish wOHhk n,ldh Yla;su;a lrñka 
lÓldpd¾hjrfhla ^mßjdi& n|jd .ekSug 
lghq;= flßK.

-	 tfukau u,hdishdfõ u,hd úYajúoHd,h yd 
tlaj udKav,sl yqjudre yd mqyqKq jevigykla 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh úiska wdrïN 
lrk ,oS.

2.2.3 fN!;sl myiqlï <Õd lr .ekSï
2019 jif¾oS, YsIHhskaf.a Ndú;h úYd, f,i 
Yla;su;a lrñka Wiia uÜgfï fN!;sl há;, 
myiqlï m%udKhla <Õd lr .ekSug udkj iïm;a 
wNsj¾Ok wdh;khg yels úh.

•	 merKs uQ,H wxYh ish¨ kùk myiqlïj,ska 
iukaú;j kùlrKh lrñka isiqka 77 
fofkl=g m%udKj;ajk foaYk Yd,djla idod 
ksu flßK.

•	 merKs úNd. wxYfha fldgila 
lÓldpd¾hjrfhl=f.a ldurhla f,ig 
mßj¾;kh flreKq w;r b;sß bv m%udKh 
fiajd ia:dkfha os.=jla f,i tys m%udKh jeä 
lsÍu i|yd fhdod .kakd ,os.

•	 /iaùï Yd,dj kùk l,d;aul wx.hkaf.ka hq;a 
/iaùï Yd,djla f,i m%;sia:dmkh flreKq w;r 
wOHÌ ld¾hd,h, f,aLï ld¾hd,h o iu.ska 
f.dv keÕsK.

•	 irma ljqkagrh iy .nvd ldurh m%;sia:dmkh 
flßK.

•	 tfukau, udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh 
rcfha l%shd;aul fmd,s;Skaj,ska f;dr 
mßirhla wdh;kh mßY%h ;=< f.dv keÕSu 
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fjkqfjka ish¨ l%shdud¾. f.k we;.	
2.3. YsIH l=i,;d ixj¾Okh
cd;Hka;r iyNd.s;ajh
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh u,hdishdfõ u,hd úYajúoHd,h yd tlaj wdh;kfha 
wOHhk m%ñ;Ska jeä oshqKq lsÍfï wNsm%dh we;sj YsIH yqjudre jevigykla wdrïN 
lrk ,oS.
l<ukdlrK iy uOH l<ukdlrK uÜgfï l=i,;d ixj¾Okh 
2019 jif¾oS, udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;khg my; olajd we;s jevuq¿ iy fÌa;% 
pdßld uÕska wdh;kfha mYapd;a Wmdê wOHhk jevigykaj, úoHd¾Ókaf.a m¾fhaIK 
ld¾h idOkh Yla;su;a lsÍug yels úh.
fiajd l<ukdlrK úoHdm;s jevigyk

•  m¾fhaIK ,sms bosßm;a lsÍu iy wOHhk ,sùfï l=i,;d

•    iudc úoHd i|yd jQ ixLHdk úoHd;aul meflach ^SPSS& mqyqKq jevuq¿j 1 fldgi

•    iudc úoHd i|yd jQ ixLHdk úoHd;aul meflach ^SPSS& mqyqKq jevuq¿j 2 fldgi

udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrKdêm;s iy jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s jevigyk
•   l<ukdlrK uq,O¾u iy Ndú;hka - jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s mdGud,dj - wxl 7

•    l<ukdlrK uq,O¾u iy Ndú;hka - udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrKdêm;s mdGud,dj - wxl 9

•   l<ukdlrK uq,O¾u iy Ndú;hka - jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s mdGud,dj - wxl 7î 1

wOHhk fÌa;% pdßld
•   iyNd.s;aj wdmod wëÌKh

•    wdmod wjodkï ;lafiarelrKh

2.4. udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;k YsIHhskaf.a iy ld¾h uKav,fha  
    úIh ndysr l%shdldrlï ^ixúOdkh l< iy iyNd.s jQ&
–  Y%u wOHdmkfõos m%:u jir isiqka úiska ‘Talent Show’ kñka úoHd¾Ókaf.a l=i,;d 

m%o¾Ykhla ixúOdkh l< w;r th fld<U úYajúoHd,fha kj l,d.drfhaoS id¾:lj 
meje;aúK. 

– bkaoshdfõ mj;ajk ,o neâñkagka ;r.dj,shla i|yd wdh;kfha fiajfha kshqla; tla 
ld¾h uKav, idudcslfhla iyNd.s úh.

2.5. udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;ksl iyNd.s;aj iudc j.lSï
–	 Y%u wOHdmkfõos mdGud,dfõ f;jk jir úoHd¾Óka úiska ixúOdkh lrk ,o me< 

isgqùfï jevigykla ’;=reúukg iúhla¶ bx.sßh le,E fomd¾;fïka;= mßY%fhaoS 

id¾:lj l%shd;aul lrk ,oS.   
	

–	 jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s mdGud,dfõ wxl 06 lKavdhfï úoHd¾Óka iy ld¾h 
uKav,h tlaj ixúOdkh lrk ,o fmd;a iy w;HjYH mdi,a ,smsøjH fnod oSfï 
jevigykla ’uf.ka ;E.a.la¶ kñka ud;f,a r;af;dg oslal=Uqr úoHd,fha isiqka i|yd 
id¾:lj l%shdjg kexúKS. 212la jQ tu mdif,a iuia; YsIH m%cdjg fuu jevigyk 
uÕska myiqlï iemhsKs.

–	 .=re Wmydr jevigyka folla o id¾:lj meje;aúK. 

2019 jir ;=< udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh úiska ld¾hd, WmlrK tlish 
yeg y;la ^167& rcfha mdi,a, Y%S ,xld hqO yuqodj, uKavm iy ixialD;sl 
uOHia:dk fj; mß;Hd. lrk ,oS. tu f,aLkh my; oelafõ.

wdh;kh	 								        ld¾hd, WmlrK

fld$ rdcisxy uyd úoHd,h, fld<U 09							       13

Y%S md,s uKavmh, fld<U úYajúoHd,h							       48

15jk fiakdxlh, hqO yuqod l|jqr, ;siaimqr, fud,a,sfmd;dk					    84

osh;,dj hqO yuqod l|jqr								        10

lvqfj, ixialD;sl uOHia:dkh, w;=re.sßh							      12

uQ,dY%h - /ia l< o;a; 2019, ud.i.w.wd. 						      tl;=j		 167
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jd¾Isl jd¾;dj iy jd¾Isl uQ,H m%ldYk - 2019 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh   fld<U úYajúoHd,h

3.1 wOHhk jevigyka
2019 j¾IfhaoS udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh ldKav myla hgf;a wOHhk 
jevigyka 21la mj;ajk ,È.
	 - mYapd;a Wmdê jevigyka
	 - m%:u Wmdê jevigyk 
	 - úOdhl/ Wiia ämaf,daud jevigyka
	 - ämaf,daud jevigyka
	 - iy;slm;% jevigyka

3.1.1 mYapd;a Wmdê jevigyka 
2019 j¾IfhaoS udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh úúO úIh lafIa;%hkays b;d 

jeo.;a mYapd;a Wmdê mdGud,d myla msßkuk ,È. fuu mdGud,dj, m%Odk 
wruqK jkafka jD;a;slhkag Tjqkaf.a wod< úIh lafIa;%hkays oekqu, l=i,;d, 
iy wdl,am jeä ÈhqKq lsÍuhs.

wmgu wdfõKsl jQ b.ekaùï ffY,sh, wLKav, we.hSï, jevuq¿ iy fÌa;% 
wOHhk fya;=fjka úoHd¾Ókag Tjqka bf.k .kakd úIhkag wjYH oekqu 
,nd .ekSug yels úh. ;jo, úoHd¾Ókaf.ka ,nd .kakd m%;sfmdaIKhkaf.ka 
mdGud,d úIh ks¾foaY iy úoHd¾Ókaf.a wjYH;d wkqj mdGud,djkays wkd.; 
ixj¾Okhg jeäÿr wjfndaOhla udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;khg ,nd .; 
yel. tfukau, fuu úoHd¾Óka cd;sl wd¾Ólhg o ukd odhl;ajhla ,nd foa.

udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh l<ukdlrK úIh lafIa;%hg wod<j mYapd;a 
Wmdê wOHhk mdGud,d ;=kla úúO jQ l<ukdlrK uÜgïj, rdcldß isÿ 
lrk úoHd¾Ókag Tjqkaf.a  wjYH;d b,lal fldg f.k mj;ajdf.k hkq 
,nhs. tu jevigyka jkafka·

•	 jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s Wmdê mdGud,dj
•	 udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrKdêm;s Wmdê mdGud,dj
•	 fiajd l<ukdlrK úoHdm;s Wmdê mdGud,dj

tfukau, l<ukdlrK jD;a;Skaj, ksr;j isák úoHd¾Ókag m%Odk 
l<ukdlrK úIh lafIa;%hkays oekqu yd wjfndaOh ,nd .ekSug yelsh. 
;jo fuu mYapd;a Wmdê mdGud,d uÕska b;d úYajdifhka hq;=j jHdmdr 
.eg¨ ÿIalr;d yuqfõ uqyqK oSug wjYH ixl,amuh iy úYaf,aIKd;aul 
fuj,ï iïmdokh lsÍu isÿ flf¾.

N+ f;dr;=re iy wdmod úYaf,aIK, l<ukdlrK iy md,kh hk 
úIh lafIa;%hkays úoHdm;s mdGud,djka folla udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 
wdh;kh úiska mj;ajdf.k hkq ,nhs. fuu mdGud,d ie,iqï lr we;af;a 
N+ f;dr;=re iy wdmod úYaf,aIK, l<ukdlrK iy md,kh hk 
úIh lafIa;%hkays úfYaISlrKh wjYH úoHd¾Ókag tu wxYj, iïm;a 
;lafiare lsÍu, wëlaIKh, we.hSu iy iïm;a l<ukdlrKh wdoS jQ  
oekqï ixj¾Okh b,lal fldgf.kh.
 
flfia jqjo, udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;khg meje;aùug kshñ;  
mYapd;a Wmdê mdGud,d ixLHdj myla ^05& la jqjo 2019 j¾IfhaoS kj 
YsIH ,shdmosxÑ isÿjQfha jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s iy udkj iïm;a 
l<ukdlrKdêm;s hk mdGud,d fol i|yd muKs. bka jeäu YsIH 
,shdmosxÑh jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s Wmdê mdGud,dj i|yd isÿ úh.

jd¾Isl 
iudf,dapkh 
2019
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3.1.2. m%:u Wmdê jevigyk
3.1.2.1 Y%u wOHdmkfõoS Wmdê mdGud,dj

udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha m%Odk wNsu;d¾: w;ßka tlla 
jkqfha ’wjYH lrk m%udKfhka iy .=K;ajfhka udkj l=i,;d 
ixj¾Okh lsÍu;a iduQysl jrKhka iy m%h;akhka  oeÍu i|yd 
fiajlhka iy l<ukdlrejkag wOHdmkh ,ndoSu;a fõ.¶ ta wkqj, 
Y%u wOHdmkfõoS Wmdê mdGud,dj wdrïN lrk ,È.

Y%u wOHdmkfõoS Wmdê mdGud,dj, udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 
wdh;kh uÕska mj;ajdf.k hkq ,nk jir 40la mqrd rcfha 
wruqo,aj,ska wkq.%yh ,nk tlu Wmdê mdGud,dj fõ.

Y%u wOHdmkfõoS Wmdê mdGud,dfõ ld,h iudisl 06lska iukaú; 
jir ;=kls. Y%u wOHdmk ämaf,daud mdGud,dfõ ld, iSudj jirls. 
Wmdê mdGud,dj i|yd iDcqj ,shdmÈxÑ ùug iqÿiqlï fkd,nk 
wfmalaIlhkag jirl ämaf,daud mdGud,dj yeoEÍu i|yd bv ,nd 
fokq ,efí. we;=<;a ùfï ks¾Kdhl f,i mdGud,d fol i|ydu 
f;dard .ekSfï mÍlaIKhla iy iïuqL mÍlaIKhla hk folu 
wod< fõ.

2019 j¾IfhaoS, wfmalaIlhska 677la f;dard .ekSfï mÍlaIKh 
i|yd whÿï lrk ,o w;r ish¨ wfmalaIlhka w;=ßka mdGud,dj 
yeoEÍu i|yd f;dard .kq ,enqfõ wfmalaIlhka 31]l m%udKhla 
muKs. tkï, m%:u Wmdê mdGud,dj i|yd whÿïlrejka foish 
tfldf<diafofkla ^211& mdGud,dj yeoEÍu i|yd ,shdmÈxÑ jQy.

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017
jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s 
Wmdê mdGud,dj 172 61 95 115 96 87 0 127
udkj iïm;a 
l<ukdlrKdêm;s Wmdê 
mdGud,dj

135 67 54 67 65 85 93 135

fiajd l<ukdlrK úoHdm;s 
Wmdê mdGud,dj 121 66 0 77 0 43 88 54
N+ f;dr;=re úoHdm;s Wmdê 
mdGud,dj 0 83 0 0 0 7 62 54
wdmod úYaf,aIK" 
l<ukdlrK iy md,kh 
úoHdm;s Wmdê mdGud,dj

0 0 0 48 0 25 26 38

jd¾Isl we;=<;a lr.ekSu Wmdê,dNS

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

jd¾Isl we;=<;a lr.ekSu Wmdê,dNS

jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s Wmdê
mdGud,dj 172 61 95 115 96 87 0 127 125 64

udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrKdêm;s
Wmdê mdGud,dj 135 67 54 67 65 85 93 135 96 44

fiajd l<ukdlrK úoHdm;s Wmdê
mdGud,dj 121 66 0 77 0 43 88 54 62 73

N+ f;dr;=re úoHdm;s Wmdê
mdGud,dj 0 83 0 0 0 7 62 54 5 55

wdmod úYaf,aIK" l<ukdlrK iy
md,kh úoHdm;s Wmdê mdGud,dj 0 0 0 48 0 25 26 38 11 3
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jd¾Isl jd¾;dj iy jd¾Isl uQ,H m%ldYk - 2019 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh   fld<U úYajúoHd,h

tfukau, Y%u wOHdmk ämaf,daud mdGud,dj i|yd udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 
wdh;khg whÿïm;a 152la ,enqKs. wfmaÌlhka 146 fofkla f;dard .ekSfï 
mÍÌKhg fmkS isá w;r Y%u wOHdmk ämaf,daud mdGud,djg ,shdmosxÑ jQ 
ixLHdj wiQ kjhls ^89&.

mdGud,d iudrïNl W;aijh 2019 cQ,s ;sia-tlajk osk fld<U úYajúoHd,hSh 
kj l,d.drfhaoS meje;aúKs. 2019 j¾Ih ;=< fuu jevigyfka úúO uÜgïj,g 
,shdmÈxÑ jQ iuia; úoHd¾Óka ixLHdj 589ls. 2015 isg miq.sh j¾I 05l 
ld,hg wod<j WmdêOdÍ ksuejqï iuia; idudkHh 2019 j¾Ifha oS 67] la 
f,i fmkakqï flf¾.

úoHd¾Óka i|yd mq¿,a wjia:d újD; lrñka Y%u wOHdmkfõos Wmdê mdGud,dfõ 
kduh fjkia lsÍug fhdackd flßK. kj Wmdê mdGud,djka Y%u l<ukdlrKfõos 
jir ;=kl ^idudkH& Wmdêh$ Y%u l<ukdlrKfõos, jir y;rl ^f.!rj& 
Wmdêh f,i fjkia flfrkq we;. fuu mdGud,djka isxy, yd bx.%Sis hk 
udOHj,ska msßkefuk w;r kj YsIH n|jd .ekSï 2020 jif¾os isÿ lsÍug 
kshñ;h. 

3.1.3. úOdhl$Wiia ämaf,daud jevigyka 

úOdhl$Wiia ämaf,daud jevigyka wod< fiajd lafIa;%fha kshe,S isák jD;a;slhska 
i|yd iqúfYaIS jQ iqÿiqluls. fuu jevigykays m%Odk mrud¾:h jkafka 
l<ukdlrejkag jev lsÍfïoS mjrd we;s lafIa;%hkays Tjqkaf.a oekqu jeä ÈhqKq 
lsÍug iy hdj;ald,Sk lsÍug wjia:d ie,iSuhs. fuu mdGud,d oekqu ;jÿrg;a 
j¾Okh lr .; hq;= uOHu uÜgfï úOdhlhska i|yd ie,iqï lr we;.

ish¨u úOdhl ämaf,daud jevigyka mqoa., ixj¾Okh flakaø fldg we;af;a  
mdGud,d yodrkakkag Tjqkaf.au yeisÍfï pd¾hd rgdjkag wNsfhda. lrñka 
fm!oa.,sl w;aoelSula f,i f.k ;u fiajdodhlhska iu. M,odhs f,i lghq;= 
lsÍfï mokug th b;d jeo.;a fõhehs iaÓr úYajdifha uq,a neif.kh.

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017
Y%u wOHdmkfõoS 
Wmdêh 157 194 184 221 211 119 124 137
Y%u wOHdmk 
ämaf,daudj 51 54 48 66 89 42 32 30

Wmdê,dNS ixLHdjjd¾Isl we;=<;a lr .ekSu

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

jd¾Isl we;=<;a lr .ekSu Wmdê,dNS ixLHdj

Y%u wOHdmkfõoS Wmdêh 157 194 184 221 211 119 124 137 137 119

Y%u wOHdmk ämaf,daudj 51 54 48 66 89 42 32 30 36 35
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fuu mdGud,djka tla jd¾Isl mdGud,djka fõ. udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh Bgu 
wdfõKsl jQ b.ekaùï ffY,sh, wLKav we.hSï, jevuq¿ iy fÌa;% wOHhk fya;=fjka 
YsIHhskag Tjqka jD;a;shNdjh ixj¾Okh lr .ekSug fõosldj iïmdokh lrhs.
  
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha mdGud,d úêu;a lsÍfï wruqKska we;eï úOdhl$Wiia 
ämaf,daud mdGud,d w;aysgqjk ,È.

w;aysgqjk ,o mdGud,d kej; wdrïNh 2018 j¾Ifha oS kej;;a wdrïN lrk ,o 
w;r 2019 j¾IfhaoS ixpdrl, isÿùï iy wd.ka;=l i;aldr fiajd l<ukdlrK úOdhl 
ämaf,daud mdGud,dj w¿;ska wdrïN lrk ,os. ta wkqj 2019 jk úg, udkj iïm;a 
l<ukdlrK úOdhl ämaf,daud mdGud,dj iy ufkda úoHd WmfoaYk Wiia ämaf,daud 
mdGud,djo we;=¿j úOdhl$ Wiia ämaf,daud mdGud,d ;=kla wdh;kh mj;ajdf.k f.k 
hkq ,eìK. flfia jqjo, fkdis;+ f,i isÿ jQ mdial= m%ydrh fya;=fjka mdGud,djkays 
wOHhk lghq;= bosßhg f.k hdu fya;=fjka mdGud,d ld,h oS¾> ùu ksid iqÿiqlï,dNska 

msßila ìys lsÍug 2019 j¾IfhaoS fkdyels úh.

3.1.4 ämaf,daud mdGud,d

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016

udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrKh úOdhl ämaf,daudj 113 35 - 17 0 61 81

jHdmD;s l<ukdlrKh úOdhl ämaf,daudj 31 - - - - 13 -

fiajd l<ukdlrK úOdhl ämaf,daudj 94 107 - - - 59 51

ixpdrl" isÿùï iy wd.ka;=l i;aldr fiajd l<ukdlrK úOdhl 
ämaf,daud mdGud,dj

35 - - - 30 - 34

WmfoaYk ufkdaúoHdj Wiia ämaf,daudj - - - 49 0 - -

cd;Hka;r fj<|du úOdhl ämaf,daudj - - - - - - -

jd¾Isl we;=<;a lr .ekSu iqÿiqlï,;a ixLHdj

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

jd¾Isl we;=<;a lr .ekSu iqÿiqlï,;a ixLHdj

udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrKh
úOdhl ämaf,daudj 113 35 0 17 0 61 81 0 35 0

jHdmD;s l<ukdlrKh úOdhl
ämaf,daudj 31 0 0 0 0 13 0 17 0 0

fiajd l<ukdlrK úOdhl
ämaf,daudj 94 107 0 0 0 59 51 0 115 0

ixpdrl" isÿùï iy wd.ka;=l
i;aldr fiajd l<ukdlrK úOdhl

ämaf,daud mdGud,dj
35 0 0 0 30 0 34 0 0 0

WmfoaYk ufkdaúoHdj Wiia
ämaf,daudj 0 0 0 49 0 0 0 0 0 0

cd;Hka;r fj<|du úOdhl
ämaf,daudj 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
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j¾IfhaoS lsisÿ iqÿiqlï,dNsfhl= ìys lsÍug fkdyels úh.
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jd¾Isl jd¾;dj iy jd¾Isl uQ,H m%ldYk - 2019 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh   fld<U úYajúoHd,h

udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh u.ska msßkukq ,nk ämaf,daud j¾. 03ls. tajd 
l<ukdlrK, udkj Ydia;% iy NdId mdGud,dj,ska iukaú; fõ. fuu mdGud,d uQ,sl 
uÜgfï /lshd kshqla;slhkag ;ukaf.a wod< lafIa;%h ;=< oekqu, úYaf,aIKd;aul 
Ñka;kh, yelshdjka f.dvke.Su, iodpdrd;aul m%ñ;Ska, kdhl;ajh iy j.lSï oeÍu 
ÈhqKq lsÍu i|yd iydh ùug ie,iqï lr we;. isiqkag Tjqkaf.a úúO wjYH;djka 
imqrd .ekSug fuu ämaf,daud mdGud,d ufydamldÍ fõ. we;eï wjia:dj, oS tajd 
wOHdmk lghq;=j, úúO wjëka w;r we;s mr;rh mqrjd,Su i|yd fyda wu;r 
jD;a;Sh mqyqKqjla iy iqÿiqlï iemhSu i|yd WmldÍ fõ. ;jo ämaf,daud mdGud,djla 
u.ska jeo.;a úfYaIs; l=i,;d, oekqu iy w;aoelSï iïmdokh lrhs.

wOHhk mdGud,d úêu;a lsÍu msKsi jir ;=< oS ndysr md¾Yjhka mj;ajdf.k hkq 
,enQ we;eï iyfhda.d;aul jevigyka w;aysgqjk ,È. flfia jqjo, 2019 j¾IfhaoS 
ämaf,daud mdGud,d folla i|yd isiqka we;=<;a lr .;a w;r, tajd kï, u;aøjH 
ÿ¾Ndú; l<ukdlrK ämaf,daud mdGud,dj iy w;sf¾l NdIdjla f,i oñ< NdId 
ämaf,daud mdGud,j fõ.

by; i|yka l< mdGud,d i|yd isiqka 138 la n|jd .kakd ,o w;r 2019 j¾Ih 
;=< iqÿiqlï ,;a ämaf,daud,dNska ixLHdj tlish ;sia tlls ^131&.

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015
fiajd l<ukdlrK ämaf,daudj 58 20 - - 0 23
u;aøjH ÿ¾Ndú; l<ukdlrKh ämaf,daudj50 - - - 46 -

WmfoaYk ufkdaúoHdj ämaf,daudj
34 - - 49 0 36

w;sf¾l NdIdjla f,i oñ< NdId 
ämaf,daudj

163 124 96 90 92 124

l<ukdlrK ämaf,daudj 22 34 - - 0 11
cd;Hka;r fj<odu äma,fdaudj - - - - - -
f;dr;=re ;dlaIK l<ukdlrK 
ämaf,daudj

- - - - - -

jd¾Isl we;=<;a lr .ekSu iqiqiqlï,;a ixLHdj

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

jd¾Isl we;=<;a lr .ekSu iqiqiqlï,;a ixLHdj

fiajd l<ukdlrK ämaf,daudj 58 20 0 0 0 23 37 0 27 11

u;aøjH ÿ¾Ndú; l<ukdlrKh
ämaf,daudj 50 0 0 0 46 0 0 0 27 0

WmfoaYk ufkdaúoHdj ämaf,daudj 34 0 0 49 0 36 23 55 29 29

w;sf¾l NdIdjla f,i oñ< NdId
ämaf,daudj 163 124 96 90 92 124 123 100 74 73

l<ukdlrK ämaf,daudj 22 34 0 0 0 11 10 0 27 9

cd;Hka;r fj<odu äma,fdaudj 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4

f;dr;=re ;dlaIK l<ukdlrK
ämaf,daudj 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
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ämaf,daud mdGud,djkays YsIH ld¾hidOkh
2015 - 2019

mdial= m%ydrh fya;=fjka mdGud,djkays wOHhk lghq;= bosßhg f.k hdu ksid mdGud,d ld,h oS¾> ùfuka 2019 
j¾IfhaoS lsisÿ iqÿiqlï,dNsfhl= ìys lsÍug fkdyels úh.

**
uQ,dY%h - /ia l< o;a; 2019, ud.i.w.wd. 
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3.1.5. iy;slm;a mdGud,d
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh jD;a;suh ixj¾Okhla lrd 
wOHhkfha kshq;= isiq isiqúhka i|yd úúO úIh lafIa;%hkays 
iy;slm;a mdGud,d msßkukq ,nhs. 2019 j¾Ifha oS iy;slm;a 
mdGud,d wgla ̂08& mj;ajkq ,eìK. udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh 
bx.%Sis NdId iy;slm;a mdGud,dj  jir 30lg wêl ld,hla mqrd 
msßkud we;. udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh úúO  jQ ldKAvj, 
isiqkag bx.%Sis NdId iy;slm;a mdGud,d myla ^05& mj;ajkq ,nhs. 
thg fojk NdIdjla jYfhka bx.%Sis W.kajkq ,nk .=rejreka i|yd 
jk mdGud,djla o we;=<;ah.

flfiafj;;a, 2019 wfm%a,a ui isg ieme;eïn¾ ui olajd ld,fhaoS 
mdial= m%ydrh fya;=fjka udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;khg bx.%Sis 
NdId iy;slm;a mdGud,dj, bx.%Sis NdId mokï mdGud,dj iy l:k 
bx.%Sis NdId mdGud,dj hk mdGud,djkays wOHhk lghq;= ;djld,slj 
keje;aùug isÿ úh. 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

bx.%Sis NdId iy;slm;a mdGud,dj 2149 1321 1321 2283 1938

bx.%Sis NdId mokï mdGud,dj 187 217 - 413 429

.=rejreka i|yd bx.%Sis NdId iy;slm;a 
mdGud,dj

99 67 - 48 52

l:k bx.%Sis iy;slm;a mdGud,dj 1705 3637 1933 580 383

mdi,a yerhkakka bx.%Sis NdId fláld,Sk 
mdGud,dj

251 130 54 342 507

mß.Kl fhojqï iy;slm;a mdGud,dj 354 452 - 412 423

oñ< NdId iy;slm;a mdGud,dj - uQ,sl 316 341 405 327 427

oñ< NdId iy;slm;a mdGud,dj - 
wka;¾uOHu

262 160 145 157 110

jd¾Isl we;=<;a lr .ekSu

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

jd¾Isl we;=<;a lr .ekSu iqÿiqlï ,nd.;a ixLHdj

bx.%Sis NdId iy;slm;a mdGud,dj 2149 1321 1321 2283 1938 1688 0 986 1523 0

bx.%Sis NdId mokï mdGud,dj 187 217 0 413 429 120 0 143 269 0

.=rejreka i|yd bx.%Sis NdId
iy;slm;a mdGud,dj 99 67 0 48 52 62 0 55 25 0

l:k bx.%Sis iy;slm;a mdGud,dj 1705 3637 1933 580 383 1261 2706 1471 0 391

mdi,a yerhkakka bx.%Sis NdId
fláld,Sk mdGud,dj 251 130 54 342 507 314 0 45 101 390

mß.Kl fhojqï iy;slm;a
mdGud,dj 354 452 0 412 423 246 320 336 275 347

oñ< NdId iy;slm;a mdGud,dj -
uQ,sl 316 341 405 327 427 411 242 203 0 196

oñ< NdId iy;slm;a mdGud,dj -
wka;¾uOHu 262 160 145 157 110 200 159 109 104 115
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iy;slm;a mdGud,djkays YsIH ld¾hidOkh
2015-2019

mdial= m%ydrh fya;=fjka mdGud,djkays wOHhk lghq;= bosßhg f.k hdu ksid mdGud,d ld,h oS¾> ùfuka 2019 
j¾IfhaoS lsisÿ iqÿiqlï,dNsfhl= ìys lsÍug fkdyels úh.

**
uQ,dY%h - /ia l< o;a; 2019, ud.i.w.wd. 
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jd¾Isl jd¾;dj iy jd¾Isl uQ,H m%ldYk - 2019 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh   fld<U úYajúoHd,h

3.2. 2019 j¾Ifha mqyqKq jevigyka ms<sn| f;dr;=re
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh ;=<, mYapd;a Wmdê, Wmdê iy ämaf,daud yodrk YsIHhska Tjqka wod< 
wOHhk mdGud,dfõ wksjd¾h wx.hla f,i jevu¿j,g iyNd.S úh hq;=h. fuu jevigykaj, wruqK 
YsIHhskaf.a jD;a;Sh ixj¾Okhhs. foaYk fuka fkdj, jevuq¿ uÕska jD;a;sh f,dalhg wjYH ud;Dld 
ms<sn| újD;j idlÉPd lsÍug iy kj woyia bÈßm;a lsÍug ixjdod;aul idlÉPd i|yd Èß .kajkq 
,nhs. iyNd.Sjkakkag .eg¨ yuqfõ uqyqK oSfï oS .eg¨ ksrdlrKhg Tjqkaf.a oDIaáh wkqj .eg¨ 
úi|d .kafka flfia o hkak ms<sn| woyia yqjudre lr .; yel. kj l=i,;d ÈhqKq lr .ekSug 
jevuq¿ WmldÍ jk w;r th YsIHhskaf.a m%.;sh flfrys WmldÍ fõ. YsIHhskag Tjqkaf.a bÈßm;a lsÍfï, 
kdhl;ajfha, ikaksfõokfha lKavdhula f,i lghq;= lsÍfï l=i,;d jeä ÈhqKq lr .; yelsh.

fuu jevigykaj, b,lalh jQfha ikaksfõokfhka wdrïN fldg úúO mßirj, uDÿ l=i,;d ixj¾Okh 
Ñ;a; ixfõoS;dj ixj¾Okh lsÍu, ks¾udKYS,S iy wjodkï ;SrK .ekSï bf.kqu, tlaj jev lrkafka 
flfiao hkak ms<sn| we;s oekqj;anj, iy ñksiqka iuÕ idlÉPd lsÍu ÈhqKq lsÍu, wkHhkaf.ka iy 
Tjqka ;=<u we;sjk wd;;sh iy .egqï ÿr,Su jeks mq¿,a mrdihl me;sr we;s uDÿ l=i,;d j¾Okh 
lsÍuhs.

2019 j¾Ih ;=< udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh, YsIHhskaf.a, rdcH$fm!oa.,sl wxYj, fiajd 
kshqla;slhkaf.a oekqu, l=i,;d, wdl,am, jeä ÈhqKq lsÍfï wruqKska mYapd;a Wmdê, m%:u Wmdê, iy 
ämaf,daud mdGud,dj, ,shdmÈxÑj isák isiqkg mqyqKq jevuq¿ 11la ^cd;Hka;r jevuq¿ o we;=<;aj& 
mj;ajk ,È. 

j¾.h jevuq¿j iyNd.s jQ 
ixLHdj

b,lal lKAvdhu

jevuq¿ m¾fhaIK ,sms bosßm;a lsÍu iy 
wOHhk ,sùfï l=i,;d

72 fiajd l<ukdlrK úoHdm;s Wmdêh - 
wxl 04

m¾fhaIK ,sms bosßm;a lsÍu 71

.=re ixj¾Ok jevuq¿j 36
bx.%Sis NdId b.ekaùfï jevigyfka 
ndysr WmfoaYlhska 

oekqj;a lsÍfï jevuq¿j - bf.kqï 
l<ukdlrK moaO;sh

102 ixpdrl" isÿùï iy wd.ka;=l i;aldr 
fiajd l<ukdlrK úOdhl ämaf,daudj" 
u;aøjH ÿ¾Ndú; l<ukdlrKh 
ämaf,daudj" WmfoaYkh iy ufkdaúoHdj 
ämaf,daudj iy WmfoaYkh iy 
ufkdaúoHdj Wiia ämaf,daudj hk 
mdGud,dj, isiqka

l<ukdlrK uq,O¾u iy Ndú;hka 50 jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s  mdGud,dj 
- wxl 07

l<ukdlrK uq,O¾u iy Ndú;hka 53 udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrKdêm;s 
mdGud,dj - wxl 09

l<ukdlrK uq,O¾u iy Ndú;hka 55 jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s  mdGud,dj 
- wxl 07$î$2018

iudc úoHd i|yd jQ ixLHdk úoHd;aul 
meflach ^spss)mqyqKq jevuq¿j 1 fldgi

71 fiajd l<ukdlrK úoHdm;s Wmdêh - 
wxl 04

iudc úoHd i|yd jQ ixLHdk úoHd;aul 
meflach ^spss) mqyqKq jevuq¿j 2 
fldgi

71

fÌa;% wOHhk iyNd.s;aj wdmod wëÌKh 41 wdmod úYaf,aIK l<ukdlrKh iy 
md,k úoHdm;s mdGud,dj - wxl 03

wdmod wjodkï ;lafiarelrKh 42
uQ,dY%h - /ia l< o;a; 2019, ud.i.w.wd. 
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jevigyk
jD;a;suh ;;ajh$ 

iyNd.s;ajh
oskh ia:dkh

l%shdldß ie,eiau -2019 
f.dvkexùfï jevuq¿j

tla tla tallfha$ 
YdLdfõ$ uOHia:dkfha$ 
l=áfha m%OdkSka

2019$01$04 udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 
wdh;k Y%jKd.drh

fm!oa.,sl yevùu iy 
ikSmdrÌdj jevuq¿j

ish¨u ld¾h uKav,h 2019$02$08 udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 
wdh;k Y%jKd.drh

l%shdldß ie,eiau -2019 
oekqj;a lsÍfï jevuq¿j

ish¨u ld¾h uKav,h 2019$02$26 ys,agka fld<ïUq 
frisvkaiSia fydag,h

ld¾hd,hSh nexl= .sKQï 
iy fplam;a ms<sno 
jevuq¿j

ví'ta'tia'ã' chr;ak 
uy;añh$ l<ukdlrK 
iyldr

2019$3$14 .%Ekaâ Tßhkag,a 
fydag,h

m%iïmdok ls%hdj,sh 
ms<sno jevuq¿j

m%iïmdok l%shdj,sh 
yiqrjk ks,Odßka

2019$06$19 udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 
wdh;k Y%jKd.drh

uQ,H m%jdy m%ldYk iy 
md,l .sKQï

fla't,a'ã'c'S ßÉukaä 
uy;d$ fmd;a ;nkakd

2019$6$21 .%Ekaâ Tßhkag,a 
fydag,h

oekqj;a lsÍfï jevuq¿j 
- bf.kqï l<ukdlrK 
moaO;sh

ämaf,daud mdGud,djkays 
jev lghq;= lrk 
ks,Odßka

2019$06$30 iy 
2019$07$06

l<ukdlrK yd uQ,H 
msG mß.Kl úoHd.drh" 
fld<U úYajúoHd,h

l%shdldß ie,eiau -2019 
m%.;s iudf,dapkh 
jevuq¿j 1

tla tla tallfha$ 
YdLdfõ$ uOHia:dkfha$ 
l=áfha m%OdkS

2019$7$17 udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 
wdh;k Y%jKd.drh

mqia;ld, .Dymd,kh 
iy fufyhqï iydh 
ms<sno jevuq¿j

tï'ã'tï'hQ' iurfialr 
uy;d$ mqia;ld, iydhl

2019$07$22 iy 23 mqia;ld,h" le,Ksh 
úYajúoHd,h

oekqï iudch ;=< 
mqia;ld,j, ld¾hNdrh 
- iïuka;%Kh

tia'whs' udrisxy$ 
mqia;ld, f;dr;=re 
iydhl

2019$08$07 cd;Hka;r iïnkaO;d 
wOHhk uOHia:dkh

cd,lrKh iy uqøK 
hka;% yqjudrefõ uQ,sl 
l=i,;d jevquq¿j

ish¨u ld¾h uKav,h 2019$8$26 udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 
wdh;k mß.Kl 
úoHd.drh

l%shdldß ie,eiau -2019 
wjika m%.;s iudf,dapkh 
jevuq¿j 

ish¨u ld¾h uKav,h 2019$12$09 udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 
wdh;k Y%jKd.drh

3.3. m¾fhaIK, kfjda;amdok iy m%ldYk ms<sn| úia;r

m¾fhaIlhdf.a ku ud;Dldj
m%ldYs; 
oskh

ia:dkh$ m%ldYkh

wdpd¾h tï'cS'cS' 
fyaul=udr uy;d

Organizational Citizenship Behaviour Among 
Public Management Assistants in the 
Divisional Secretariasts of Colombo District 
in Sri Lanka

2019
kjHckk m¾fhaIK 
iy oekqu cd;Hka;r 
c¾k,h 

wdpd¾h tï'cS'cS' 
fyaul=udr uy;d  †iu 
l;D) wdpd¾h Ldgì 
ta'ta'" udydpd¾h vdfgda" 
wdpd¾h ueä.m¾ tï'ã' 
fcdyd¾‡  

Organizational Citizenship Behaviour Among 
Administrative Staff of State Universities in 
Sri Lanka

2019 l,d iy jdKsc 
cd;Hka;r c¾k,h

3.2.1. udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha ld¾h uKav,h i|yd mqyqKq jevigyka

uQ,dY%h - /ia l< o;a; 2019, ud.i.w.wd. 



16

jd¾Isl jd¾;dj iy jd¾Isl uQ,H m%ldYk - 2019 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh   fld<U úYajúoHd,h

wdpd¾h tï'cS'cS' 
fyaul=udr uy;d  

Work Life Balance Among Employed 
Undergraduate Students of the University of 
Colombo

2019 l,d iy jdKsc 
cd;Hka;r c¾k,h

wdpd¾h ví'tia' 
pkaøfialr uy;d

Relationship Among Big Five Personality 
Traits, Job Performance & Job Satisfaction: A 
Case of School Teachers in Sri Lanka

2019
f;dr;=re" jHdmdr iy 
l<ukdlrK cd;Hka;r 
c¾k,h 

wdpd¾h ví'tia' 
pkaøfialr uy;d

The Effect of Transformational Leadership 
Style on Employees Job Satisfaction and 
Job Performance: A Case of Apparel 
Manufacturing Industry in Sri Lanka

2019
wd¾Ól úoHd" jdKsc 
iy l<ukdlrK 
c¾k,h 

wdpd¾h ví'tia' 
pkaøfialr uy;d

Preceived Life Stress Among Tsunami 
Resettles in Sri Lanka: Alchol Addiction Prone 
Personality and Alchol Addiction

2019

cd;Hka;r m¾fhaIK 
iïuka;%Kh" Ökfha 
úoHd yd ;dÌKfõoh 
yqwdfYdka.a 
úYajúoHd,h

iS't,a' tosßisxy fukúh

Training and Development Practices & its 
Impact on Employee Performance: A Case 
Study on Horana Industrial Estate, Sri Lanka

2019 m¾fhaIK m%ldYk 
cd;Hka;r  c¾k,h 

wd¾'tï'tia'tka' 
r;akdhl ñh

Impact of Electronic Media on Reading 
Habits of Teenagers 2019

f;dr;=re úoHd yd 
;dÌKfõo cd;Hka;r 
c¾k,h

wd¾'tï'tia'tka' 
r;akdhl ñh

wjrg fmr 2019 f.dvf.a m%ldYlfhda" Y%S 
,xldj

fla'ã'tka' fyajf.a 
uy;d

Analysis of Lighting Strike Variations in 
Sweden from 2000 - 2014 2019

kj ;dÌKfõo yd 
m¾fhaIK  cd;Hka;r 
c¾k,h

ã'tÉ'ã' koSId ñh

An Empirical Study on Corporate Governance 
Structure and Performance of Sri Lankan 
Listed Financial Services Copmanies

2019
úoHd;aul m¾fhaIK 
iy m%ldYk cd;Hka;r 
c¾k,h 

fla'ta'ta'tka' ;s,lr;ak 
uy;d

Recognition of States: The Matters Still 
Unresolved 2019

m¾fhaIK iy iudcSh 
úoHd kjHckk 
cd;Hka;r c¾k,h

fla'ta'ta'tka' ;s,lr;ak 
uy;d

Environmental Protection through Judicial 
Review: The Sri Lankan Experience 2019 iUr.uq úYajúo,hSh 

c¾k,h

fla'ta'ta'tka' ;s,lr;ak 
uy;d

A Critique on the Durkheimain Concept of 
Solidarity 2019

m¾fhaIK iy iudcSh 
úoHd kjHckk 
cd;Hka;r c¾k,h

fla'ta'ta'tka' ;s,lr;ak 
uy;d

Naturalistic and Positivistic Debates on 
Implementing the Capital Punishment 2019 f,laia fjdßh¾ - 

ud¾..; kS;s iÕrdj

fla'ta'ta'tka' ;s,lr;ak 
uy;d

Rights of Shareholders under the Companies 
Act No. 07 of 2007 2019 ud'i'w'wdh;k c¾k,h 

fla'ta'ta'tka' ;s,lr;ak 
uy;d

Finnis and Religion a Critical View of Religion 
as a Basic Good: Does it have a hierachy? 2019

ukqrdj kS;s iÕrdj" 
Y%S ,xld kS;s úoHd,hSh 
udkj ysñlï YsIH 
ix.uh

fla'ta'ta'tka' ;s,lr;ak 
uy;d

The Paradox of Diplomatic Immunity: A 
Comparative Approach with Practices from 
Sri Lanka, South Africa and India

2019
rcrg cd;Hka;r 
m¾fhaIK iïuka;%Kh" 
rcrg úYajúoHd,h

fla'ta'ta'tka' ;s,lr;ak 
uy;d

Classical School of Criminology and Its 
Application in the Sri Lankan Criminal Justice 
System

2019 tlai;a ckmo - Ök 
kS;s iudf,dapkh

fla'ta'ta'tka' ;s,lr;ak 
uy;d

Right to Strike: A Critical Appraisal of the Sri 
Lankan Law 2019 lksIaG kS;s iÕrdj" 

kS;s{hskaf.a ix.uh 

uQ,dY%h - /ia l< o;a; 2019, ud.i.w.wd. 
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3.4. wOHhk, mßmd,k, wOHhk iyh iy wkOHhk ld¾huKav, f;dr;=re

fiajd ldKavh ;k;=re kduh
wkqu; fiajl ixLHdj ;;H 

iaÓr fldka;%d;a iaÓr fldka;%d;a

wOHhk

wOHlaI 01 –  01 –  

uydpd¾h

11 –  08 –  iydh uydpd¾h

fcHIaG lÓldpd¾h$ lÓldpd¾h$ lÓldpd¾h ^wdOqksl&

fcHIaG iyldr mqia;ld,dêm;s 01 –  01 –  

mßmd,kuh yd uQ,H

ksfhdacH f,aLldêldÍ 01 –  01 –  

fcHIaG iyldr uQ,HdêldÍ 01 –  01 –  

fcHIaG iyldr f,aLldêldÍ 01 –  01 –  

iyldr uQ,HdêldÍ 01 –  01 –  

iyldr f,aLldêldÍ 01 –  01 –  

wOHhk iyh
úoHd;aul iyldr 01 –  01 –  

f;dr;=re ;dlaIK WmfoaYl 01 –  – –  

;dlaIKsl fiajd ;dlaIK ks,OdÍ ^f;dr;=re yd ikaksfõok ;dlaIK& 06 –  - –  

wkOHhk

l<ukdlrK iyldr 25 –  21 –  

l<ukdlrK iyldr ^fmd;a ;eîï& 01 –  01 –  

l<ukdlrK iyldr ^irma& 01 –  01 –  

l<ukdlrK iyldr ^.nvd Ndrlre& 01 –  01 –  

mqia;ld, f;dr;=re iyldr 03 –  02 –  

fomd¾;fïka;=.; ld¾hd, hka;% l%shdlre 01 –  01 –  

ßhÿre ßhÿre 03 –  03 –  

fomd¾;fïka;=.; nhsisl,a mKsúvlre 01 –  01 –  

ld¾h iydhl fiajh ld¾h iydhl 07 –  06 –  

fomd¾;fïka;=.; mqia;ld, iydhl 02 –  01 –  

fldka;%d;a

;djld,sl úoHd;aul iyldr –  01 – -

jevigyka iyldr –  25 – 18

ld¾h iydhl –  03 – 01

tl;=j 71 29 53 19

3.5. mqia;ld,h
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha mqia;ld,h, Y%u 
wOHdmkfõoS Wmdê mdGud,dj, udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrK 
mYapd;a Wmdê mdGud,dj, jHdmdr l<ukdlrK mYapd;a 
Wmdê mdGud,dj iy fiajd l<ukdlrK úoHdm;s 
Wmdê mdGud,dj^isxy,$bx.%Sis& yodrk úoHd¾Óka i|yd 
m%Odk;u iïm;ls. tys .%ka: 6,400 la muK fõ. udkj 
iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha ld¾h uKav,hg o Tjqkaf.a 
oekqu j¾Okh lr .ekSu i|yd mqia;ld, myiqlï ,nd 
oS we;.

j¾Ih ;=< mqia;ld,h Ndú; lsÍfï udisl idudkH 
idudðlhka .Kk 89la muK úh. ^th miq.sh jif¾oS 
138la úh& udisl fmd;am;a ixirKfha idudkH fmd;a 70ls. 
^th miq.sh jif¾oS 95la úh& ta wkqj, 2018 j¾Ih yd 
ii|k úg idudðlhka mqia;ld,h Ndú; lsÍfï 35]l 
wvqùula o fmd;am;a ixirKfha 26]l wvqùulao 2019 
jif¾oS fmkakqï lrk ,È.

mdial= breosk m%ydrfhka miq 2019 wfm%a,a ui isg cQ,s 
ui olajd rg ;=< mej;s ;;a;ajh mqia;ld, Ndú;fha 

úYd, jYfhka my; jeàug fya;= úh. rdcH úYajúoHd, 
wkOHhk ld¾h uKav, jev j¾ckh fya;=fjka udi 
folla ^iema;eïn¾ iy Tlaf;dan¾& mqia;ld,h jid oud 
;sìK. ;jo mqia;ld, iajhxl%SlrK lghq;= fya;=fjka o 
foieïn¾ ui oS fmd;a ksl=;a lSÍu isÿ fklrk ,oS. fuu 
fya;= mqia;ld, Ndú;fha wvqùug iDcqju n,mdk ,oS. 

uQ,dY%h - /ia l< o;a; 2019, ud.i.w.wd. 
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jd¾Isl jd¾;dj iy jd¾Isl uQ,H m%ldYk - 2019 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh   fld<U úYajúoHd,h

 wdh;ksl f;dr;=re
	
1.1 jd¾;d lsÍfï wdh;kh - ks;H yd ffk;sl wdlD;sh
fld<U úYajúoHd,hSh udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh 1978 wxl 16 ork 
úYajúoHd, mk; yd 1979 wxl 11 ork kshudj,sh hgf;a ia:dmkh lrkq ,enQ 
rch i;= Wiia wOHdmk wdh;khls. wdh;kh fld<U 07, fn!oaOdf,dal udjf;a 
wxl 275 ys msysgqjd we;.

1.2. m%Odk l%shdldrlï yd fufyhqïj, iajNdjh
rcfha iy fm!oa.,sl wxYfha hk wxY foflau fiajd kshqla;shkag Tjqkaf.a 
j¾;udk yd wkd.; /lshd wjYH;d flfrys jvd hym;a odhl;ajhla ,nd 
fokq msKsi Wiia wOHdmk wjia:d ie,iSu.

1.3. uQ,H ld,mßÉfþoh
wdh;kfha uQ,H ld,mßÉfþoh 2019 ckjdß ui m<uqjeksod isg 2019 foieïn¾ 
ui 31 olajd udi fod<yl ld, mßÉfþohla ksfhdackh lrhs.

2. ms<sfh, lsÍfï moku

2.1. ms<sfh, lsÍfï moku
fjk;a wdldrhlska i|yka fkdlr we;s úg wdh;kfha uQ,H m%ldYk WmÑ; 
moku u; yd ft;sydisl msßjeh iïuq;sh hgf;a ms<sfh, lr we;.

2.2. bÈßm;a lsÍu iy lD;Hd;aul uqo,a
uQ,H m%ldYk bÈßm;a lrkafka wdh;kfha ls%hdldÍ uqo,a tallh jk Y%S ,xld 
remsh,aj,ska jk w;r ish¨ w.hka wdikak;u remshf,a w.hg jghd we;.

2.3. wkql+,;d m%ldYh
uQ,H ;;a;ajh ms<sn| m%ldYh, ,dNh fyda w,dNh ms<sn| m%ldYh iy fjk;a 
úia;SrK wdodhu, ysñlï fjkiaùu ms<sn| m%ldYh,  iy uQ,H m%jdy m%ldYh 
iu. udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha .KldêlrK m%;sm;a;s iy igyka 
^uQ,H m%ldYk& ms<sfh, lr we;af;a idudkHfhka ms<s.;a uQ,O¾u iy Y%S ,xld 
jr,;a .KldêlrK wdh;kh úiska y÷kajd fokq ,enQ .sKqïlrK  m%ñ;s 
yd wkql+,jhs. wdh;kfha .Kqfokq iy .sKqï fYaI iïnkaOfhka lghq;= 
lsÍug rdcH wxYfha .sKqïlrK m%ñ;Ska y÷kajd oS fkdue;s úg Y%S ,xld 
uQ,H jd¾;dlrK m%ñ;Skaaa ^Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Standards& iy ,xld 
.sKqïlrK m%ñ;Skays ^Lanka Accounting Standards& wod< úêúodkhka uQ,H 
m%ldYk ms<sfh, lsÍfï oS iy bÈßm;a lsÍfï oS tu fYaIhka iïnkaOfhka 
fhdod f.k we;.

2.4. uQ,H m%ldYk i|yd j.lSu
uQ,H m%ldYk ms<sfh, lsÍu iy bÈßm;a lsÍu i|yd udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 
wdh;kfha l<ukdldÍ;ajh j.lSu orhs.

2.5. wLKav meje;au
uQ,H m%ldYk ms<sfh, lsÍfïoS, l<ukdldÍ;ajh wdh;kh jHdmdrhla jYfhka 
bÈßhg hdfï yelshdj we.hSug ,la fldg we;. udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 
wdh;khg ksYaÑ; wkd.;hla i|yd l%shdldÍj meje;au i|yd m%udKj;a 
iïm;a we;ehs hk idOdrK wfmalaIdj l<ukdldÍ;ajhg we;. wkd.;h 
iïnkaOfhka we;s ish¨u f;dr;=re ie,ls,a,g f.k, wEjr lsÍfï wjYH;djla 
fyda l%shdldÍ;ajh k;r lsÍfï wjYH;djla udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh 
fkdolshs. ta wkqj, udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh uQ,H m%ldYk ms<sfh, 
lsÍfï oS wLKav meje;au moku fhdod f.k we;.

jd¾Isl uQ,H 
m%ldYk
2019
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2.6. jd¾;dlrK Èkg miq isÿùï
uQ,H m%ldYkj, fjkia lsÍug fyda wkdjrKh lsÍug wjYH jeo.;a lreKq jd¾;dlrK oskhg miqj 
jd¾;d ù fkdue;.
         
2.7. ixikaokd;aul w.hka
j¾;udk bÈßm;a lsÍu ikd: lsÍu i|yd, wjYH wjia:djkays ixikaokd;aul ixLHd kej; ilia lr 
we;.

2.8. øjHuhNdjh yd iuqÉph lsÍu
iEu øjH ldKavhlu iudk øjHd;aul whs;uhka uQ,H m%ldYkj, fjk fjku bÈßm;a lrkq ,efí. 
tlsfklg fjkia iajNdjfha whs;u fyda ld¾hhka, tajd øjHd;aul kï muKla fjk fjku bÈßm;a lrkq 
,efí.

2.9. ie,lsh hq;= .sKqïlrK úksYaphka, weia;fïka;= iy Wml,amk
wdh;kfha uQ,H m%ldYk ms<sfh, lsÍug, l<ukdlrKh úiska uQ,H j¾Ih wjidkfha oS wdodhu, úhoï, 
j;alï yd j.lSïj, m%udKhg n,mdk úksYaphka, weia;fïka;= iy Wml,amk isÿ lsÍu wjYH fõ. 
.sKqïlrK m%;sm;a;s fhdod .ekSfï oS wkd.; weia;fïka;= yd wod< m%Odk Wml,amkhka iy fjk;a wxY, 
ie,lsh hq;= .sKqïlrK m%;sm;a;Ska ys idrdxYh hgf;a idlÉPd fldg we;.

3. ie,lsh hq;= .sKqïlrK m%;sm;a;Ska ys idrdxYh

3.1. nÿ
w. wdodhï nÿ

mj;akd nÿ fr.=,disj,g wkqj idudkH jHdmdr lghq;=j,ska ,efnk wdodhu u; wdodhï nÿ f.ùug 
wdh;kh hg;a fkdfõ.

wd. Wmhk úg f.ùfï noao
úYajúoHd, úhofuka fldgila fkdjk, wdodhï nÿ f.ùu i|yd hg;a jk fiajd kshqla;slhkaf.a 
udisl jegqfmka wvq lrkq ,nk Wmhk úg f.jqï noao úYajúoHd,fha .sKqïj, .sKqï.; fkdlrhs.

we. cd;sh f.dvke.Sfï noao
2009 wxl 09 ork cd;sh f.dvke.Sfï nÿ mk; hgf;a iajhx uQ,H l%shdldrlïj,ska ,efnk wdodhï 
u; mokïj wdh;kh úiska oekg cd;sh f.dvke.S fï noao f.jkq ,nhs.

 

3.2. ia:djr j;alï
•     foam< msßh; iy WmlrK 
	 2017 j¾Ifha oS wdh;kfha foam< msßh; iy WmlrK úYajúoHd, m%;smdok fldñIka iNdj úuid, 

kej; ;lafiare lr 2017 uQ,H m%ldYkj, olajk ,È. wdh;kfha foam< msßh; iy WmlrK kej; 
;lafiare l< Èkfha mej;s idOdrK jákdlu wkqj kej; ;lafiare lr we;. tu j;alïj, kej; 
;lafiare lsÍfï Y=oaO j¾;udk jákdlu uQ,H ;;a;aj m%ldYfha kej; ;lafiare lsÍfï ixÑ;hg 
iDcqju ner lrkq ,efí.

•     laIhùï
	 laIhùï, uQ,H ld¾hidOk m%ldYfha foam< msßh; iy WmlrKj, weia;fïka;=.; iM, wdhq ld,h 

u; ir, f¾Çhj y÷kd .efka. j;alul laIhùu th Ndú;hg .;a Èk isg werfUk kuq;a j;alul 
laIhùu th úlsKSug r|jd .;a Èkfha fyda neyer lsÍu i|yd jQ ldKavhg we;=<;a l< Èk isg 
k;r fõ. 
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jd¾Isl jd¾;dj iy jd¾Isl uQ,H m%ldYk - 2019 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh   fld<U úYajúoHd,h

		

3.3. flá ld,Sk wdfhdack
wdh;kh wdodhï f,i ,enQ ish m%fhdackhg fkd.;a wruqo,a rdcH nexl=j, ld,Sk ;ekam;= f,i 
;djld,slj ;ekam;a lr we;. ,efnk fmd<sh wod< f,c¾ .sKqïj, .,md we;s w;r uQ,H ld¾hidOk 
m%ldYfha wdodhï f,i olajd we;s.

3.4. f;dr;=re ;dlaIKh yd iïnkaO j;alï
   uDÿldx.
	 wdh;kh u.ska ñ,g .;a uDÿldx.,  Y%Ss.,.rd.w..ss.m 20 wkqj wiamDYH j;alï f,i y÷kdf.k fjku 

j;alï whs;uhla f,i fmkajd we;.

3.5. fj<| yd wfkl=;a whúh hq;= oE
w;a;sldrï, l,ska l, f.ùï, iy wfkl=;a whúh hq;= uqo,a Y%S.,.rd.w..s.m% 01 m%ldrj jd¾;d lrk Èkfha 
isg udi fod<yl ld,hla ;=< whlr.; hq;= nj weia;fïka;= .; uqo,a fõ. fnd,a yd wvudk Kh ioyd 

fjka lsÍï isÿ lr fkdue;. 

3.6. mdßf;daIsl	
uQ,H ;;a;aj m%ldYkfha y÷kdf.k we;s j.lSu jkqfha uQ,H ;;ajh m%ldY lrk Èkg 1983 wxl 12 ork 
mdßf;daIsl mkf;a úêúOdkj,g wkql+,j w¾: olajd we;s m%;s,dN, yd j.lSïj, .Kkh l< w.fha 
j¾;udk jákdluhs.

3.7. úYajúoHd, w¾:idOl wruqo, yd fiajl Ndrldr wruqo,
wdh;kfha fiajd kshqla;slfhda úYajúoHd, w¾:idol wruqo,a (UPF) iy fiajl w¾:idOl wruqo,a (ETF) 
odhl;ajhg ysñlï ,n;s. wdh;khg ndysr wdh;k uÕska ls%hd;aul jk úYajúoHd, w¾:idol wruqo,g 
(UPF) g iy fiajl w¾:idol wruqo,g (ETF) fiajlhkaf.a o< jegqm u; wkqms<sfj,ska ^15]&l iy 
^3]&l ksYaÑ; m%;sY;j,ska odhl;ajh olajhs.

3.8. úhoï yÿkd .ekSu
wdodhï iy úhoï m%ldYfha ork ,o úhou iy úfYaIs; whs;uhl wdodhu iDcq iïnkaOh u; mokïj 
wdodhï y÷kd .efka. ld¾hlaIu ;;ajfhka wdh;kh iy foam< mj;ajd .ekSfï oS ork ish¨ úhoï 
wdodhï iy úhoï m%ldYfha ioyka lr we;.

3.9. cx.u j.lSï
uQ,H ;;aj m%ldrk Èkfha isg j¾Ihla ;=< mshúh hq;= j.lSï cx.u j.lSï hgf;a olajd we;. ish¨ 
y÷kd.;a j.lSï uQ,H m%ldY ms<sfh, lsÍfïÈS .Kkh lr we;.

j;alï ldKavh weia;fïka;=.; iM, wdhq ld,h

f.dvke.s,s j¾I 20

msßh; hkaf;%damlrK iy fuj,ï j¾I 10

fudg¾ jdyk j¾I 5

.Dy NdKav iy Wmdx. j¾I 10

ld¾hd, iy fjk;a WmlrK j¾I 5

úÿ,s whs;u j¾I 5

mqia;ld, .%ka: jdr iÕrd j¾I 5

Wmdê f,da.= j¾I 5 
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3.10. Kh ysñhka iy f.úh hq;= úhoï
Kh ysñhka iy f.úh hq;= úhoï idOrK w.h  u; .Kkh lrkq ,nk w;r idudkHfhka fmd<S 
fkdork j.lSïh.

3.11. wúksYaÑ; j.lSï
kvq mejÍfuka mek k.sk ;=re j.lSï iïnkaOfhka .sKqïj, lsisÿ m%;smdokhla ,nd oS fkdue;. 
YS%.,.rd.w..s.m% 08 wkqj wúksYaÑ; j.lSï wkdjrKh lrkq ,efí.

3.12. m%d.aOk m%odk
rcfhka ,efnk m%d.aOk m%odk tajdfha idOdrK jákdlñka y÷kdf.k we;s w;r tysoS m%odkhka ,efnkq 
we;s njg;a, n,mdk ish¨q fldkafoais iïmdokh lrk njg;a idOdrK iy;slhla we;. wdh;khg ,efnk 
m%d.aOk m%odk y÷kdf.k jeh l< yd jeh fkdl< m%d.aOk .sKqïj, .sKqï.; flfrk w;r tys n,mEu 
iDcqj uQ,H ;;a;aj m%ldYfha we;=<;a flf¾.

3.13. mqkrdj¾;k m%odk
uqo,a moku u; uQ,H ld¾h idOk m%ldYfha mqkrdj¾;k m%odk y÷kd .efka.

3.14. iSud lrk ,o wruqo,
iSud lrk ,o wruqo,a úfYaIs; fyda lem jQ ld¾hhlg fjka lr we;s w;r tu ld¾h ioyd muKla 
Ndú; lrhs.
	
3.15. wdodhï y÷kd .ekSu
wdh;khg wd¾Ól m%Ó,dN .,d tau iudk jk úg iy wdodhu iy ork ,o fyda oeÍug we;s wdYs%; 
úhou úYajikShj ueksh yels úg f.ùu ,oafoa ljodo hkak fkdi,ld wdodhu y÷kd .efka. ,o iy 
,eìh hq;= wdodhfï idOdrK w.h u; wdodhï y÷kd .kq ,efí.

wdodhï y÷kd .ekSfï ld¾hh ioyd my; úfYaIs; ks¾Kdhl Ndú; flf¾.

• fiajh imhkq ,nk wOHhk j¾Ihg wod< mdGud,d .dia;= y÷kd .kq ,nk w;r b;sß mdGud,d 
.dia;= ú,ïnkh lrkq ,efí.
	

• ,shdmÈxÑ lsÍfï .dia;=, úNd. .dia;=, mqia;ld, .dia;=, Wmdê m%odfkda;aij .dia;= hkdoS isiq 
 isiqúhkaf.ka ,efnk .dia;= uqo,a moku u; y÷kd .efka.

• wdodhu fyda úhou ioyd tl;= jk neúka iM, fmd<S l%uh Ndú; lrñka fmd<S wdodhu y÷kd .efka.

3.16. uQ,H m%jdy m%ldYh
uQ,H m%jdy m%ldYh ms<sno YS%.,.rd.w..s.m% 02 wkqj uqo,a ixjrK m%ldYh ms<sfh, lr we;. uqo,a iy 
uqo,a yd iudk oE wjYH úg hï uqo,a m%udKhlg m;a lr .; yels iy jákdlu fjkiaùfï fkdie,lsh 
yels wjodkulg hg;a jk, w; we;s uqo,a iy nexl=fõ we;s uqo,a j,ska iukaú; fõ. 
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jd¾Isl jd¾;dj iy jd¾Isl uQ,H m%ldYk - 2019 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh   fld<U úYajúoHd,h

igyk

uqo,a iy uqo,a iu;=,khka 04             14,200,040             42,600,104 
úúO w;a;sldrï iy ,eìï                     78,248                     24,467 
fiajl Kh 05               1,613,800               1,358,901 
W;aij w;a;sldrï                       6,250                       6,250 
l,ska lrk ,o f.ùï               1,073,309                  898,046 
fmd<s ,eìï             11,176,656               8,470,257 
;ekam;= ^,eìh hq;=&                  223,750                  226,750 
NdKav$ f;d.               1,888,046               1,530,156 
úlsKSï i|yd we;s j;alï                               -             30,260,099                  960,000             56,074,931 

wdfhdack 06           389,712,858           316,916,252 
fiajl Kh 5               4,087,179               4,258,419 
wiamDYH j;alï 7                  276,000                  511,212 
foam< msßh; iy WmlrK 8             98,191,396           492,267,433             87,662,204           409,348,087 

          522,527,532           465,423,019 

ú,ïNS; wdodhu 12             99,738,314             93,884,328 
úúO f.ùï 09               2,815,932                  791,966 
f.úh hq;= úhoï 10               7,299,820               3,703,720 
;ekam;= ^f.úh hq;=& 11               4,443,033               2,521,768 
r|jd .ekSï                  766,107           115,063,206                  112,962           101,014,744 

ú.Kk .dia;= f.ùï i|yd fjka lsÍï 13                  784,080               1,527,670 
mdßf;daIsl i|yd fjka lsÍï 14             27,872,960             28,657,040             13,900,587             15,428,257 

          143,720,245           116,443,002 
          378,807,287           348,980,017 

úhoï l< m%d.aOk m%;smdok           112,940,447           112,940,447             97,264,936             97,264,936 

fmdÿ ixÑ;           162,402,659           146,858,380 
m%;Hd.K ixÑ;             10,431,390             10,431,390 
;Hd. iy mß;Hd.                  240,000           173,074,049           157,289,769 

          286,014,496           254,554,705 
ixÑ; yd iSudlrk ,o wruqo,a

ixj¾Ok wruqo,             88,367,628             91,775,570 
iSud lrk ,o wruqo, 15               4,425,163             92,792,791               2,649,742             94,425,312 

          378,807,287           348,980,017 

                              - 

……………………………………… ………………………………………
ã'tia' wur;=x. uy;d fla'mS' udf;dgwdrÉÑ ñh

Ydia;S% lñgq idudðl Ydia;S%h lñgq idudðl

wxl 1 isg 21 olajd bÈßm;a lr we;s .sKqïlrK m%;sm;a;s iy igyka uQ,H m%ldYkj, fldgila fõ'

j;alï 

cx.u fkdjk j;alï

m%d.aOkh

cx.u j;alï

uq¿ j;alï

j.lSï
cx.u j.lSï

cx.u fkdjk j.lSï

uq¿ j.lSï

2019 foieïn¾ ui 31 jk oskg uQ,H ;;a;ajh ms<sno m%ldYh
^w.hka wdikak;u remsh,g jghd we;&

foieïn¾ ui 31 jk oskg 2018   re'2019   re'

fld<U úYajúoHd,hSh udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha Ydia;S%h lñgqfõ idudðlhska uQ,H m%ldYk ms<ssfh, lr bÈßm;a lsÍfï 
j.lSu orkq ,efí'

……………………………………………………….
udydpd¾h fca'ta'tia'fla' chfldä

wOHlaI$ ud'i'w'wd'

uq¿ Y=oaaO j;alï

iuqÉÑ; wruqo,a

uq¿ Y=oaO j;alï$ ysñlu

1971 wxl 38 ork uqo,a mkf;a úÈúOdkhkag wkql+, jk mßÈ fuu uQ,H m%ldYkh ms<sfh, lr we;s njg iy;sl lrñ'

……………………………………………………….

iyldr uQ,Hdêldß

uq¿ Y=oaO j;alï$ ysñlu

ã'Ô'iS'tka' nkavdr
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igyk 2019   re' 2018   re'

fufyhqï wdodhu

mqkrdj¾;k m%;smdok 80,000,000        42,500,000        
rcfha m%;smdok l%ulaIh 9,333,429          5,053,522          
jHdma;s jevigyka ;=<ska ,o wdodhu 16 77,234,155        116,528,947      
fjk;a wdodhï 17 47,262,663        43,047,391        
wNHka;r wruqo,aj,ska ,o wdodhu 17,166,624        21,304,295        
j;alï bj;a lsÍfuka ,o wdodhu 1,552,000          -                          
iuia; fufyhqï wdodhu 232,548,872      228,434,156      

fufyhqï úhoï

jegqma iy fõ;k 18 99,476,737        64,232,208        
fjk;a mqkrdj¾:k úhoï

.ukd.uk úhoï 18 -                          21,764               
iemhqï iy mßfNdack 18 6,985,701          5,047,739          
kv;a;= ld¾hhka 18 2,390,423          3,536,454          
.súiqï.; fiajd 18 7,765,072          4,980,841          
ixj¾Ok wruqof,ka mqkrdj¾;k úhoï 17,166,624        21,304,295        
fjk;a fufyhqï úhoï 18 7,243,469          6,589,712          
laIhùu 15,419,348        12,435,846        
jHdma; jevigyka i|yd úhoï 19 61,309,441        80,155,964        
,shd yeÍï yd j;alï bj;a lsÍu u; w,dNh 941,629             793,453             
uq¿ fufyhqï úhoï 218,698,444      199,098,276      

j¾Ih i|yd Y+oaO w;sßla;h$ ^ysÕh& 13,850,428        29,335,880        

tl;= l,d 

bosßhg f.k wd fYaIh 148,552,231      117,522,500      
162,402,659      146,858,380      

2019 foieïn¾ ui 31 jk osfkka wjikajk uqo,a j¾Ih ioyd uQ,H ld¾hidOk m%ldYh
^w.hka wdikak;u remsh,g jghd we;&
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  m%d.aOk 
m%odk  

 fjk;a 
wruqo,aj,ska 
m%d.aOk m%odk 

 ;Hd. 
iy 

mß;Hd. 
 fmdÿ ixÉ;  

  
m%;Hd.Kk 

ixÉ;  

 ixj¾Ok 
wruqo, 

 mqyqKq yd 
ixj¾Ok 
wruqo, 

 m¾fhaIK 
m%;smdok 
wruqo, 

 iqNidOk yd 
iudc j.lSï 

wruqo, 
tl;=j

2018'12'31 oskg fYaIh 97,264,936    -                          146,858,380   10,431,390  91,775,570       622,532       700,737          1,326,474            348,980,017  
yqjudre (44,772,390)  44,772,390       300,000       (300,000)        -                        
j¾Ih i|yd odhl;ajh 6,000,000      19,673,315       300,000    (22,756,557)     981,032       700,737          1,401,474            6,300,000       
fmr j¾Ifha Ìh wj m%;smdok (3,214)          (3,214)             
j¾Ih i|yd ,o wruqo, 36,515,239    
fmr j¾Ifha Ìh wê m%;smdok 984,856        -                    -                  -                     -                          984,856          
wj m%;smdok (724,375)     724,375        
j¾Ih  i|yd l%uÌh (9,273,429)  (60,000)   -                   -                 -                    -                  -                     -                          (9,333,429)      
f;d. .sKqu  i|yd .e,mSï (12,165)        (12,165)           
mqkrdj¾:k úhoï (17,166,624)   
j¾Ih ;=< Ndú;d lrk ,o -                  -                   -                 -                    (1,142,750)  (53,070)          (112,000)              (1,307,820)      
ld, mßÉfPaoh i|yd w;sßla;h$ ysÕh -                  13,850,428   -                 -                    -                  -                     -                          13,850,428     
2019'12'31 oskg fYaIh 48,494,742    64,445,705       240,000    162,402,659   10,431,390  88,367,628       760,813         1,048,403          2,615,947                 378,807,288  

2019'12'31 osfkka wjika j¾Ih ioyd ysñlï$ Y=oaO j;alï fjkiaùï ms<sn| m%ldYh
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2019   re' 2018   re'
fufyhqï l%shdlrlï uÕska cks; jQ uqo,a m%jdyh

idudkH l%shdlrlï uÕska cks; jQ uqo,a w;sßla;h$^ysÕh& 13,850,428             29,335,880            

uq,H fkdjk ixp,k$ .e,mSï

laIhùï 15,419,348             12,435,846            
mdßf;daIsl i|yd fjka lsÍï 18,168,565             884,353                  
ú.Kk .dia;= i|yd m%;smdok 834,440                  280,000                  
wdfhdackj,ska ,efnk fmd<s (38,672,302)            (31,270,563)           
rdcH m%;smdok l%ulaIh (9,333,429)              (5,053,522)             
bosßhg f.k tk ,o wdodhu -                              (19,518,875)           
f;d. .sKqug fmr j¾Ifha .e,mSï (12,165)                   -                              
j;alï bj;a lsÍu ^,dNh&$w,dNh (610,371)                 793,453                  

ldrl m%d.aOk fjkaiaùug fmr fufyhqï w;sßla;h$ ^ysÕh& (355,486)                 (12,113,430)           

ldrl m%d.aOk fjkiaùï

úúO w;a;sldrï ^jeäùu&$ wvqùu (53,781)                   218,332                  
ld¾h uKav,h i|yd Kh ^jeäùu&$ wvqùu (83,659)                   (1,383,834)             
W;aij w;a;sldrï ^jeäùu&$ wvqùu -                              -                              
bosßhg l< f.ùï ^jeäùu&$ wvqùu (175,263)                 (531,078)                
fmd<s ,eìï ^jeäùu&$ wvqùu -                              -                              
;ekam;= ^jeäùu&$ wvqùu 3,000                      -                              
NdKav fyda f;d. ^jeäùu&$ wvqùu (357,890)                 129,054                  
WmÉ; úhoï jeäùu$ ^wvqùu& 3,596,100               (11,628)                  
f.úh hq;= ;ekam;= jeä ùï$^wvq ùï& 1,921,265               398,603                  
r|jd .ekSï jeäùu$ ^wvqùu& 653,144                  554,581                  
f.úh hq;= jegqma jeäùu$ ^wvqùu& -                              (15,280,616)           
mqia;ld, ;ekam;= jeä ùï$^wvqùï& -                              -                              
úúO f.úh hq;= uqo,a jeä ùï$^wvqùï& 2,023,966               (347,319)                
ú,ïNS; wdodhu jeä ùï$ ^wvq ùï& 5,853,986               
ldrl m%d.aOk fjkaiaùïj,ska miq fufyhqï l%shdldrlïj,ska 
cks; jQ Y+oaO uqo,a m%jdyh

             13,025,382            (28,367,335)

ú.Kk .dia;= f.ùu (1,578,030)              (527,850)                
mdßf;daIsl f.ùï (4,196,193)              (366,195)                
fufyhqï l%shdldrlï uÕska cks; jQ Y=oaO uqo,a m%jdyh 7,251,159               (29,261,380)           
wdfhdack l%shdldrlï uÕska ckkh jQ $^Ndú; lrk ,o& uqo,a 
m%jdyh

ia:djr j;alï wvq ùï$jeä ùï (25,673,315)            (37,693,250)           
wdfhdack ;ekam;a lsßu$wdmiq .ekSu (56,000,000)            (9,905,914)             
wdfhdack fmd<sh 19,169,297             18,508,556            
úlsKSfuka j;alï neyer lsÍu 2,512,000               
wdfhdack ls%hdldrlï j,skaa ,o Y=oaO uqo,a m%jdyh (59,992,018)           (29,090,608)           
uq,H ls%hdldrlï j,ska ckkh jQ $^Ndú;lrk& uqo,a m%jdy

m%d.aOkh i|yd rcfha m%odk 6,300,000               17,400,000            
úhoï fkdl< m%odk j,ska Ndú;d lsÍï -                              (6,303,980)             
ixj¾Ok wruqof,ka ,efnk odhl;ajh 19,348,615             29,884,573            
fmdÿ ixÑ;fhka ,efnk odhl;ajh -                              (1,754,610)             
mqyqKq yd ixj¾Ok wruqo,               (1,142,750)                  (358,500)
 iqNidOk yd iudc j.lSï wruqo,                  (112,000)                    (75,000)
 m¾fhaIK wruqo,                    (53,070)
uQ,H lghq;= j,ska ckkh jQ ^Ndú; lrk ,o& Y=oaO uqo,a m%jdyh

24,340,795             38,792,483            

uqo,a yd iu;=,khkays Y=oaO jeäùu (28,400,064)            (19,559,506)           
j¾Ih wdrïNfhaoS uqo,a yd uqo,a  iu;=,khka 42,600,104             62,159,610            

j¾Ih wjidkfhaoS uqo,a yd uqo,a  iu;=,khka 14,200,040             42,600,104            

2019 foieïn¾ ui 31 jk osfkka wjika j¾Ih i|yd uqo,a m%jdy m%ldYh
^w.hka wdikak;u remsh,g jghd we;&
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jd¾Isl jd¾;dj iy jd¾Isl uQ,H m%ldYk - 2019 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh   fld<U úYajúoHd,h

uqo,a m%ldYk i|yd igyk

igyk 04 - uqo,a iy uqo,a iu;=,khka  

úia;rh 2019   re' 2018   re'

uqo,a fmdf;a fYaIh - 086-1-001-3-1189652 8,094                    323,850               
uqo,a fmdf;a fYaIh - 086-1-001-4-1189680 2,637,434            4,258,401            
uqo,a fmdf;a fYaIh - 086-1-001-2-1191306 7,199,046            1,317,555            
uqo,a fmdf;a fYaIh - 086-1-002-3-1189680 800,110               (426,328)             
uqo,a fmdf;a fYaIh - 086-1-001-4-0010037 1,779,717            (1,251,321)          
uqo,a fmdf;a fYaIh - 086-1-002-2-1189652 1,424,139            971,033               
uqo,a fmdf;a fYaIh - 086-1-003-2-1189680 351,500               37,406,915         
tl;=j 14,200,040          42,600,104         

igyk 05 - fiajl Kh ^cx.u j;alï&

úia;rh 2019   re' 2018   re'

wdmod Kh 4,837,666            4,770,886            
fiajl Kh 11,050                 17,170                 
jdyk Kh 523,691               463,868               
mß.Kl Kh 209,000               240,500               
jegqma w;a;sldrï 35,000                 -                           
.xj;=r iykdOdr w;a;sldrï 119,572               124,896               
tl;=j 5,735,979            5,617,320           

igyk 06 - wdfhdack

úia;rh 2019   re' 2018   re'

uyck nexl=j - ;sôß.iahdh 344,214,557        310,574,007       
cd;sl b;sß lsÍfï nexl=j - nïn,msáh 45,498,301          6,342,245            
tl;=j 389,712,858        316,916,252       

igyk 09 - úúO f.ùï

úia;rh 2019   re' 2018   re'

úúO Khysñhka 1,442,018            -                           
kvq .dia;= f.ùï 268,219               268,219               
f.úh hq;= nÿ 250,364               374,293               
irma iy nexl= fodaI 838,732               132,085               
wka whg f.ùï i|yd ,enqKq uqo,a 7,200                    7,200                   
f.úh hq;= uqoaor .dia;= 8,475                            75                        
r|jd .;a nÿ 925                               10,095                 
tl;=j 2,815,933            791,966               

igyk 10 -  f.úh hq;= úhoï

úia;rh 2019   re' 2018   re'

jegqma yd fõ;k 301,264               102,143               
iemhqï 58,594                 181,327               
.súiqï.; fiajd 665,698               250,749               
úNd. f.ùï 15,040                 231,681               
fjk;a fufyhqï úhoï 111,825               1,349                   
flá ld,Sk mdGud,d f.ùï 2,026,599            1,173,262            

igyk 07 - wiamDYH j;alï - uDÿldx.

úia;rh
N+ f;dr;=re 
moaO;sh

 f;d. md,k moaO;sh 
.sKQïlrK 
moaO;sh

ia:djr j;alï tl;=j

2019'12'31 oskg fYaIh               980,000                    531,229           730,056         345,000         2,586,285 

2019'12'31 oskg fYaIh               980,000                    531,229           730,056         345,000        2,586,285 

wvq l<d(

Ìhùï

2019'12'31 oskg fYaIh               980,000                    467,294           627,780                     -         2,075,074 

tl;= l<d(                        - 
fmr j¾Ih ioyd .e,mSï                        - 

jir i|yd Ìh ùï                           -                       63,935           102,277           69,000            235,212 

2019'12'31 oskg fYaIh               980,000                    531,229           730,057           69,000        2,310,286 

2019'12'31 oskg Y=oaO fmd;a w.h -                          -                               -                      276,000       276,000          
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úia;rh
f.dvke.s,s

 ld¾hd, 
WmlrK 

mqia;ld, 
fmd;a

r:jdyk kdu mqjre Wmdê f,da.= .DyNdKav úÿ,s WmlrK tl;=j

2019'01'01 oskg fYaIh 64,971,218        23,978,831        4,107,082       7,845,000       262,980         2,560,140         10,885,808       13,160,750        127,771,809     

ñ,oS .ekSï 11,416,914        6,928,140          2,011,931          5,316,331           25,673,315       

bj;a lrk ,o j;alïj, msßjeh (706,056)            (143,190)           (359,728)           (1,184,807)         (2,393,781)        

2019'01'01 oskg fYaIh 76,388,132        30,200,914        4,107,082       7,845,000       262,980         2,416,950         12,538,011       17,292,273        151,051,343     

wvq l<d(

Ìhùï

2019'12'31 oskg fYaIh 18,514,780        6,160,829          3,782,479       3,643,625       185,177         1,266,868         1,779,648          4,776,199           40,109,604       

tl;= l<d(

fmr j¾Ih i|yd .e,mSï (984,856)            (486,816)            139                 3,075             (1,468,457)        

j¾Ih i|yd Ìh ùï 3,388,654           5,394,240          215,546          724,375          19,950           476,381            1,614,859          3,350,130           15,184,136       

wvq l<d(
m%;Hd.Kkh l< j;alï u; 
Ìhùï

-                        

bj;a l< j;alï u; Ìhùï (102,103)           (143,206)           (720,027)            (965,336)           

2019'12'31 oskg fYaIh 20,918,579        11,068,253        3,998,164       4,368,000       208,202         1,641,146         3,251,301          7,406,301           52,859,946       

2019'12'31 oskg Y=oaO jákdlu 55,469,554        19,132,661        108,918          3,477,000      54,778           775,804            9,286,710         9,885,972          98,191,397       

igyk 09 - úúO f.ùï

úia;rh 2019   re' 2018   re'

úúO Khysñhka 1,442,018            -                           
kvq .dia;= f.ùï 268,219               268,219               
f.úh hq;= nÿ 250,364               374,293               
irma iy nexl= fodaI 838,732               132,085               
wka whg f.ùï i|yd ,enqKq uqo,a 7,200                    7,200                   
f.úh hq;= uqoaor .dia;= 8,475                            75                        
r|jd .;a nÿ 925                               10,095                 
tl;=j 2,815,933            791,966               

igyk 10 -  f.úh hq;= úhoï

úia;rh 2019   re' 2018   re'

jegqma yd fõ;k 301,264               102,143               
iemhqï 58,594                 181,327               
.súiqï.; fiajd 665,698               250,749               
úNd. f.ùï 15,040                 231,681               
fjk;a fufyhqï úhoï 111,825               1,349                   
flá ld,Sk mdGud,d f.ùï 2,026,599            1,173,262            
mYapd;a Wmdê mdGud,d f.ùï 3,435,787            1,518,172            
ämaf,daud mdGud,d f.ùï 685,013               245,039               
tl;=j 7,299,820            3,703,720           

igyk 11 - ;ekam;= ^f.úh hq;=&

úia;rh 2019   re' 2018   re'

fgkav¾ ;ekam;= 60,000                 30,000                 
Wmdê f,da.= i|yd ;ekam;= -                            170,400               
mqia;ld, ;ekam;= 4,035,000            1,874,400            
wdmk Yd,dj i|yd wdrÌK ;ekam;=j 25,000                 25,000                 
wj,x.= lrk ,o fplam;a ;ekam;=j 323,033               421,968               
tl;=j 4,443,033            2,521,768           
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jd¾Isl jd¾;dj iy jd¾Isl uQ,H m%ldYk - 2019 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh   fld<U úYajúoHd,h

igyk 09 - úúO f.ùï

úia;rh 2019   re' 2018   re'

úúO Khysñhka 1,442,018            -                           
kvq .dia;= f.ùï 268,219               268,219               
f.úh hq;= nÿ 250,364               374,293               
irma iy nexl= fodaI 838,732               132,085               
wka whg f.ùï i|yd ,enqKq uqo,a 7,200                    7,200                   
f.úh hq;= uqoaor .dia;= 8,475                            75                        
r|jd .;a nÿ 925                               10,095                 
tl;=j 2,815,933            791,966               

igyk 10 -  f.úh hq;= úhoï

úia;rh 2019   re' 2018   re'

jegqma yd fõ;k 301,264               102,143               
iemhqï 58,594                 181,327               
.súiqï.; fiajd 665,698               250,749               
úNd. f.ùï 15,040                 231,681               
fjk;a fufyhqï úhoï 111,825               1,349                   
flá ld,Sk mdGud,d f.ùï 2,026,599            1,173,262            
mYapd;a Wmdê mdGud,d f.ùï 3,435,787            1,518,172            
ämaf,daud mdGud,d f.ùï 685,013               245,039               
tl;=j 7,299,820            3,703,720           

igyk 11 - ;ekam;= ^f.úh hq;=&

úia;rh 2019   re' 2018   re'

fgkav¾ ;ekam;= 60,000                 30,000                 
Wmdê f,da.= i|yd ;ekam;= -                            170,400               
mqia;ld, ;ekam;= 4,035,000            1,874,400            
wdmk Yd,dj i|yd wdrÌK ;ekam;=j 25,000                 25,000                 
wj,x.= lrk ,o fplam;a ;ekam;=j 323,033               421,968               
tl;=j 4,443,033            2,521,768           

w.h

1,704,590             
442,500                
450,000                
551,830                
904,250                

16,519,528           
8,821,139             
1,220,196             

892,003                
87,184                  

6,891,480             
606,098                
936,481                
639,715                

2,710,158             
14,358,672           

405,615                
u;aøjH ÿ¾Ndú; l<ukdlrK ämaf,daudj - 2018 1,122,328             

8,266,611             
5,363,047             
3,696,357             

mß.Kl fhojqï iy;slm;a mdGud,dj 1,500                    
1,518,000             
2,969,008             

mß.Kl fhojqï iy;slm;a mdGud,dj - wxl 11 10,176,475           
574,400                
590,850                
513,700                
670,800                

2,165,000             
1,620,000             

234,000                
1,048,800             
1,003,200             

2,000                    
60,800                  

99,738,314          
ú,ïNS; wdodhu hgf;a we;s cx.u j.lSï fldgi øjHd;aul neúka 2019 jif¾ isg 
ú,ïNS; wdodhu cx.u j.lSï hgf;a j¾.SlrKh lr we;  

tl;=j

úia;rh

jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s mdGud,dj - wxl 06

jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s mdGud,dj - wxl 07

udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrKdêm;s mdGud,dj wxl - 09

udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrK úOdhl ämaf,daudj - wxl 07

ixpdrl" isÿùï iy wd.ka;=l i;aldr fiajd l<ukdlrK úOdhl ämaf,daud 
mdGud,dj - 2018
bx.%sis NdId iy;slm;% mdGud,dj - wxl 39

.=rejreka i|yd bx.%sis NdId iy;slm;% mdGud,dj - wxl 17

jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s mdGud,dj - wxl 08

mdi,a yerhkakka ioyd jQ fláld,Sk bx.S%is NdId mdGud,dj - wxl 26

igyk 12 - bosßhg ,o wdodhu 

N+f;dr;=re úoHdm;s mdGud,dj ^2016$2017&

jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s mdGud,dj - wxl 05 

fiajd l<uKdlrK úoHdm;s mdGud,dj - wxl 04 ^bx.%sis udOH&

udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrKdêm;s mdGud,dj wxl - 08

udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrKdêm;s mdGud,dj wxl - 10

wdmod l<ukdlrK yd md,k úoHdm;s mdGud,dj 

oñ< NdId ämaf,daud mdGud,dj - wxl 13

oñ< NdId ämaf,daud mdGud,dj - wxl 13

fiajd l<uKdlrK úoHdm;s mdGud,dj - wxl 05

WmfoaYkh iy ufkdaúoHdj ämaf,daudj - wxl 06

WmfoaYkh iy ufkdaúoHdj Wiia ämaf,daudj - 2018

l:k bx.%sis NdId iy;slm;% mdGud,dj - wxl 08

oñ< NdId ämaf,daud mdGud,dj - wxl 14 ^Wiia&

fiajd l<uKdlrK úoHdm;s mdGud,dj - wxl 06

mdi,a yerhkakka ioyd jQ fláld,Sk bx.S%is NdId mdGud,dj - wxl 21

mdi,a yerhkakka ioyd jQ fláld,Sk bx.S%is NdId mdGud,dj - wxl 22

mdi,a yerhkakka ioyd jQ fláld,Sk bx.S%is NdId mdGud,dj - wxl 23

mdi,a yerhkakka ioyd jQ fláld,Sk bx.S%is NdId mdGud,dj - wxl 24

WmfoaYkh iy ufkdaúoHdj ämaf,daudj - wxl 07

WmfoaYkh iy ufkdaúoHdj Wiia ämaf,daudj - 2019

oñ< NdId ämaf,daud mdGud,dj - wxl 15 ^uQ,sl&

mdi,a yerhkakka ioyd jQ fláld,Sk bx.S%is NdId mdGud,dj - wxl 25

mdi,a yerhkakka ioyd jQ fláld,Sk bx.S%is NdId mdGud,dj - wxl 27

wdmod úYaf,aIK l<ukdlrK yd md,k úoHdm;s mdGud,dj 
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w.h

1,704,590             
442,500                
450,000                
551,830                
904,250                

16,519,528           
8,821,139             
1,220,196             

892,003                
87,184                  

6,891,480             
606,098                
936,481                
639,715                

2,710,158             
14,358,672           

405,615                
u;aøjH ÿ¾Ndú; l<ukdlrKh ämaf,daudj - 2018 1,122,328             

8,266,611             
5,363,047             
3,696,357             

mß.Kl fhojqï iy;slm;a mdGud,dj 1,500                    
1,518,000             
2,969,008             

mß.Kl fhojqï iy;slm;a mdGud,dj - wxl 11 10,176,475           
574,400                
590,850                
513,700                
670,800                

2,165,000             
1,620,000             

234,000                
1,048,800             
1,003,200             

2,000                    
60,800                  

99,738,314          
ú,ïNS; wdodhu hgf;a we;s cx.u j.lSï fldgi øjHd;aul neúka 2019 jif¾ isg 
ú,ïNS; wdodhu cx.u j.lSï hgf;a j¾.SlrKh lr we;  

tl;=j

úia;rh

jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s mdGud,dj - wxl 06

jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s mdGud,dj - wxl 07

udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrKdêm;s mdGud,dj wxl - 09

udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrK úOdhl ämaf,daudj - wxl 07

ixpdrl" isÿùï iy wd.ka;=l i;aldr fiajd l<ukdlrK úOdhl ämaf,daud 
mdGud,dj - 2018
bx.%sis NdId iy;slm;% mdGud,dj - wxl 39

.=rejreka i|yd bx.%sis NdId iy;slm;% mdGud,dj - wxl 17

jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s mdGud,dj - wxl 08

mdi,a yerhkakka ioyd jQ fláld,Sk bx.S%is NdId mdGud,dj - wxl 26

igyk 12 - bosßhg ,o wdodhu 

N+f;dr;=re úoHdm;s mdGud,dj ^2016$2017&

jHdmdr l<ukdlrKdêm;s mdGud,dj - wxl 05 

fiajd l<uKdlrK úoHdm;s mdGud,dj - wxl 04 ^bx.%sis udOH&

udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrKdêm;s mdGud,dj wxl - 08

udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrKdêm;s mdGud,dj wxl - 10

wdmod l<ukdlrK yd md,k úoHdm;s mdGud,dj 

oñ< NdId ämaf,daud mdGud,dj - wxl 13

oñ< NdId ämaf,daud mdGud,dj - wxl 13

fiajd l<uKdlrK úoHdm;s mdGud,dj - wxl 05

WmfoaYk ufkdaúoHdj ämaf,daudj - wxl 06

WmfoaYk ufkdaúoHdj Wiia ämaf,daudj - 2018

l:k bx.%sis NdId iy;slm;% mdGud,dj - wxl 08

oñ< NdId ämaf,daud mdGud,dj - wxl 14 ^Wiia&

fiajd l<uKdlrK úoHdm;s mdGud,dj - wxl 06

mdi,a yerhkakka ioyd jQ fláld,Sk bx.S%is NdId mdGud,dj - wxl 21

mdi,a yerhkakka ioyd jQ fláld,Sk bx.S%is NdId mdGud,dj - wxl 22

mdi,a yerhkakka ioyd jQ fláld,Sk bx.S%is NdId mdGud,dj - wxl 23

mdi,a yerhkakka ioyd jQ fláld,Sk bx.S%is NdId mdGud,dj - wxl 24

WmfoaYk ufkdaúoHdj ämaf,daudj - wxl 07

WmfoaYk ufkdaúoHdj Wiia ämaf,daudj - 2019

oñ< NdId ämaf,daud mdGud,dj - wxl 15 ^uQ,sl&

mdi,a yerhkakka ioyd jQ fláld,Sk bx.S%is NdId mdGud,dj - wxl 25

mdi,a yerhkakka ioyd jQ fláld,Sk bx.S%is NdId mdGud,dj - wxl 27

wdmod úYaf,aIK l<ukdlrK yd md,k úoHdm;s mdGud,dj 

igyk 13 - ú.Kk f.ùï i|yd fjka lsÍï

w.h

01.01.2019 1,527,670           
(1,578,030)          

834,440              
31.12.2019 784,080              

igyk 14 - mdßf;daIsl i|yd fjka lsÍï

wOHhk  wkOHhk tl;=j

01.01.2019 wdrïNl fYaIh 4,617,710             9,282,877           13,900,587        
jir ;=< f.ùï (4,196,193)            -                            (4,196,193)         
jir i|yd fjka lsÍï 9,558,598             8,609,968           18,168,565        

31.12.2019 wjika fYaIh 9,980,115             17,892,845        27,872,960       

igyk 15 iSud lrk ,o wruqo,a

w.h

760,813              
1,048,403           
2,615,947           
4,425,163           

úia;rh

wdrïNl fYaIh

jir ;=< f.ùï

tl;=j

jir i|yd fjka lsÍï

wjika fYaIh

úia;rh

 iqNidOk yd iudc j.lSï wruqo, 

úia;rh

 mqyqKq yd ixj¾Ok wruqo, 

 m¾fhaIK m%;smdok wruqo, 

igyk 16 - jHdma;s jevigykaj,ska ,o wdodhï m%ldYh - 2019

úia;rh w.h
whÿïm;a .dia;= 1,946,300                     
mdGud,d .dia;= 63,403,855                   
,shdmosxÑ .dia;= 4,850,000                     
úNd. .dia;= 4,611,500                     
mqia;ld, .dia;= 1,141,000                     
fjk;a wdodhï 1,281,500                     

tl;=j 77,234,155                  

igyk 17 - fjk;a wdodhï m%ldYh

úia;rh w.h
,shdmÈxÑ .dia;= - Wmdê wfmalaIl 2,407,000                     
úNd. .dia;= - Wmdê wfmalaIl 15,300                           
Kh iy w;a;sldrïj,ska ,o fmd<ssh 245,766                        
flá ld,Sk ;ekam;a fmd<ssh 38,672,302                   
foam< l=<s wdodhï .sKqu 62,500                           
ටෙන්ඩර් ගාස්තු 34,000                           
mqia;ld, ov 3,626                             
úúO ,eíï 3,240,644                     
f;dr;=re ;dÌKfõo myiqlï Ndú; lsÍfï .dia;= 964,000                        
Wmdê f,da.= l=<shg oSï 362,525                        
Wmdê m%odfkda;aijh 1,255,000                     

tl;=j 47,262,663                    
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jd¾Isl jd¾;dj iy jd¾Isl uQ,H m%ldYk - 2019 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh   fld<U úYajúoHd,higyk 18 - úhoï m%ldYh - 2019

w.h tl;=j
mqoa.,sl oSukd ^wOHhk&

jegqma yd fõ;k 9,521,108                       
fiajl w¾:idOl wruqo,a 2,488,775                       
úY%du 1,155,963                       
fiajl Ndrldr wruqo,a 766,243                           
wOHhk oSukd 14,170,185                     
ndysr foaYk .dia;= 797,908                           
mdßf;daYsl 9,558,598                       
cSjk úhoï oSukdj 908,826                           
m¾fhaIK oSukdj 3,094,072                       
úfYaI oSukd 20] 1,822,114                       

mqoa.,sl oSukd ^wkOHhk&
jegqma yd fõ;k 20,210,807                     
fiajl w¾:idOl wruqo,a 2,913,940                       
úY%du 2,140,019                       
fiajl Ndrldr wruqo,a 973,813                           
;djld,sl oSukd 565,053                           
tï'iS'ta' 8,690,174                       
fjk;a oSukd 60,000                             
mdßf;daYsl 8,609,968                       
cSjk úhoï oSukdj 4,113,724                       
ysÕh - tï'iS'ta' 272,615                           
m¾fhaIK oSukdj 682,697                           
úfYaI oSukd 20] 3,986,196                       
w;sld, 1,973,938                       99,476,737        

iemhqï
,smsøjH iy ld¾h,hSh wjYH;d 3,988,342                       
bkaOk iy ,sysis f;,a 1,108,774                       
ks, we÷ï iy ueiSfï oSukd f.ùï 73,405                             
fjk;a iemhqï 1,815,180                       6,985,701           

kv;a;=
r:jdyk 492,047                           
hkaf;%damlrK iy WmlrK 747,100                           
f.dvke.s,s iy jHqyh 863,750                           
fjk;a 287,525                           2,390,423           

.súiqï.; fiajd
m%jdyk 33,462                             
ikaksfõok ;dÌKh 1,558,991                       
;eme,a .dia;= 205,500                           
úÿ,sh 2,292,421                       
wdrÌl fiajd 1,165,518                       
c,h 88,047                             
msßisÿ lsÍfï fiajdj 852,463                           
l=<s iy l=<shg .ekqï 155,479                           
foaYSh wêldß i|yd wkqmd; iy nÿ 498,960                           
uqøK m%pdrK fjk;a 914,232                           7,765,072           

fjk;a mqkrdj¾:k úhoï
úfYaI fiajd - md,l iNdj iy lñgq 837,370                           
fiajl ixj¾Ok 28,000                             
ksjdvq jjqp¾m;a iy jdr m%fõYm;% 195,430                           
ix.%y úhoï 759,117                           
Wmdê m%odfkda;aijh 344,660                           
úNd. úhoï 1,622,227                       
fjk;a úhoï ^mqj;am;a iÕrd& 2,541,921                       
iqNidOk rÌKh 877,053                           
foam< Kh fmd<sh 37,692                             7,243,469           

Ìhùï .sKQu - bvï iy f.dvke.s,s
bvï iy f.dvke.s,s 3,388,654                       
ld¾hd, WmlrK 5,394,240                       
mqia;ld, fmd;a iy iÕrd 215,546                           
r:jdyk 724,375                           
kdumqjre 19,950                             
Wmdê f,da.= 476,381                           
.DyNdKav 1,614,859                       
úÿ,s WmlrK 3,350,130                       
uDÿldx. 235,212                           15,419,348        

139,280,749      tl;=j

úia;rh
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igyk 19 - jHdma; jevigykaj, úhoï m%ldYh 2019
úia;rh w.h

uQ,sl úhoï 4,924,364                    
f;dard.ekSï úhoï 1,086,705                    
iudrïNl W;aij úhoï 1,180,107                    
b.ekaùï úhoï 27,237,055                 
úNd. úhoï 6,347,324                    
mdGud,d l<ukdlrKh 15,528,440                 
iemhqï iy fmdÿ ld¾h 1,935,808                    
ixj¾Ok wruqo, 181,080                       
wúksYaÑ;;d 2,888,558                    

tl;=j 61,309,441               

igyk 20 - wúksYaÑ; j.lSï

wKdjrK

kvq wxl. 08/177/2017
wdh;khg úreoaOj ù'tka'mS' ,shkf.a uy;d lïlre úksYaph iNdj fj; kvqjla f.dkq lr we;'

igyk 21 - iïnkaê; md¾Yj wKdjrKh
tia't,a'mS'tia'ta'tia' 14 g wkqj - iïnkaê; md¾Yj wkdjrKh lsÍu( m%Odk l<ukdlrK ks,Odßka hkq wdh;kfha 
l%shdldrlï ie,iqï lsÍu" fufyhùu iy md,kh lsÍu i|yd n,h iy j.lSu we;s whhs' ta wkqj wOHhk iNd 
idudcslhska wdh;kfha m%Odk l<ukdlrK msßia f,i j¾.slrKh lr we;' j¾Ih ;=< m%Odk l<ukdlrK msrsia 
iu. lsisÿ .kqfokjla isÿ fkdùh'
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jd¾Isl jd¾;dj iy jd¾Isl uQ,H m%ldYk - 2019 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh   fld<U úYajúoHd,h

1. ye|skaùu
oYl y;rlg wdikak os.= b;sydihlg Wreulï lshk udkj iïm;a 
wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh, 1979 wxl 11 kshudj,sh uÕska fiajl wOHdmk wdh;kh 
kñka ia:dms; lrk ,o w;r th j¾I 2006 wxl 01 kshudj,sh uÕska 
ixfYdaOkh lrkq ,eìK. 2006 jif¾oS fiajl wOHdmk wdh;kh udkj 
iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh f,i kï lrk ,oS. udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 
wdh;kh rfÜ merKs;u úYajúoHd,h jk fld<U úYajúoHd,hg wh;a 
wOHhkdh;khls. fld<U úYajúoHd,hSh wOHhk wdh;khla ùu ;=< 
wdh;kfha wOHhk lghq;= fld<U úYajúoHd,fha oeä wëlaIKhg ,lafõ. 
´kEu Wiia wOHdmk wdh;khla mj;ajd .; hq;= wOHhk lghq;=j, Wiia 
m%ñ;Ska mj;ajd .ekSu iy hym;a iïm%odhka bosßhg;a mj;ajdf.k hdu 
i|yd udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh ne|S isà.

rdcH úYajúoHd, wkqnoaO wOHhkdh;khla f,i, udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 
wdh;kho 2018 - 2022 ld, mrdih i|yd wdh;k ixhqla; ie,eiau 
ieliSfï isg l%shdldrS ie,eiqï ;=<ska wfmalaIs; wruqKq b,lal lrd .uka 
lrñka isà. 2019 l%shdldß ie,eiau wdh;kfha wruqKq, mrud¾: iy Wmdh 
ud¾. flakaø fldgf.k ks¾udKh lr ;sfí. iEu rdcH wdh;khla fukau 
tlai;a cd;Skaf.a 2030 kHdh m;%h wkqj, ;srir ixj¾Ok wruqKq <Õd 
lr .ekSu fjkqfjka wmf.a wdh;ksl wruqKq iy b,lalo flakaø.; fldg 
we;s nj i;=áka oekqï oSug leue;af;uq. 

m¾fhaIK myiqlï Yla;su;a lrñka iy úfoaYSh úYajúoHd, iu. 
iïnkaO;d j¾Okh lr .ksñka udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh, .=Kd;aul 
wOHdmkh flakaø fldgf.k wruqKq kjhla ^09& ixj¾Okh fldg we;.
 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha 2018 - 2022 hk mia jirl ld,h 
i|yd wdh;ksl ie,eiau ilia lsÍfïoS wOHdmk wdh;khla f,i m%Odk 
jYfhka ;srir ixj¾Ok wruqKqj,ska wfmalaId flfrk .=Kd;aul 
wOHdmkh, mßirh iq/lSu iy fi!LH yd ikSmdrlaIdj hk wx.hka fj; 
wmf.a uQ,sl wjOdkh fhduq fldg we;. 

ta wkqj miq.sh 2019 jir ;=< wdh;k l%shdldÍ ie,eiau u.ska n,d;aul 
flreKq mßirh wdrlaId lr .ekSu i|yd isÿ lrk ,o l%shdldrlï iy 
mßirhg hï iDKd;aul n,mEula isÿjkafka kï th wju lr .ekSu 
ms<sn| úia;r iy wjYH wjia:dj,oS, mdßißl iy wdmod n,mEï we.hSï 
we;=<;a úh yels ;srir ixj¾Okh u; mokï jQ wkd.; wfmalaIs; 

jd¾;dj fufia t<s olajuq.

2. udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kfha 2018-2022 ld, mrdih i|yd 
jQ wdh;ksl ie,eiaug wkqj wdh;ksl wruqKq

2018 wxl 19 
ork cd;sl 
ú.Kk mkf;a III 
jk fldgfia wxl 
17 ^we& hgf;a 
olajd we;s ;srir 
ixj¾Okh u; 
mokï jQ wkd.; 

wfmalaIs; jd¾;dj 
- 2019

 
wruqK 01 - Wiia wOHdmkhg iudk m%fõYhla iy mq¿,a iyNd.s;ajh

wruqK 02 - wOHhk jevigykaj, .=Kd;aulNdjh iy wod<;ajh jeä oshqKq  
lsÍu

wruqK 03 - m¾fhaIK" kfjda;amdok iy jHjidhl;ajh Yla;su;a lsÍu

wruqK 04 - iudc wd¾Ól ixj¾OkfhaoS Wmdh ud¾.sl yjq,aldß;ajh jeä lsÍu 

wruqK 05 - cd;Hka;r iyfhda.S;dj iy ;r.ldß;ajh jeä lsÍu 

wruqK 06 - fN!;sl yd fi!kao¾h mßirh jeä oshqKq lsÍu ;=<ska 
md¾Yjlrejkaf.a ix;Dma;sh

wruqK 07 - mßmd,k moaO;sh iy l%shdj,sh jeä oshqKq lsÍu

wruqK 08 - uQ,H l<ukdlrKh iy ;sridrnj jeä oshqKq lsÍu

wruqK 09 - hymd,kh mq¿,a lsÍu
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2019 jir ;=< wdh;k l%shdldÍ ie,eiafï wruqKq ;%s;ajhl Wmdh ud¾. ;=<ska mßirh wdrlaId lr 
.ekSu, iy mßirhg hï iDKd;aul n,mEula isÿjkafka kï th wju lr .ekSug .; hq;= l%shdud¾. 
ms<sn|j wjOdkh fhduq fldg we;s wruqKq jkafka,
wruqK 03 -	m¾fhaIK, kfjda;amdok iy jHjidhl;ajh Yla;su;a lsÍu
wruqK 06 -	fN!;sl yd fi!kao¾h mßirh jeä oshqKq lsÍu ;=<ska 	md¾Yjlrejkaf.a ix;Dma;sh
wruqK 07 -	mßmd,k moaO;sh iy l%shdj,sh jeä oshqKq lsÍu

2019 j¾IfhaoS wdh;kfha ld¾h uKav, idudcslhkaf.a ;sridr ixj¾Ok wruqKq ms<sn| oekqj;aNdjh jeä 
oshqKq lsÍug mshjr f.k ;sfí. tys m%;sM,hla f,i wdh;kfha iuia; ld¾h uKav,h i|yd ;sridr 
ixj¾Ok b,lal ms<sn| oekqj;a lsÍfï jevuq¿jla mj;ajd we;. th 2020 ckjdß ui 23 jk osk wdh;k 
Y%jKd.drfhaoS meje;aúK. tys wdrdê; foaYkh u,hdishdfõ u,hd úYajúoHd, wOHdmk msGfha uydpd¾h 
úYd,ÉÑ nd,l%sIAKka ue;sKsh úiska id¾:lj mj;ajk ,oS.

3. m¾fhaIK, kfjda;amdok iy jHjidhl;ajh Yla;su;a lsÍu
m¾fhaIK, kfjda;amdok iy jHjidhl;ajh Yla;su;a lsÍfï b,lalh imqrd .ekSu i|yd 2019 j¾IfhaoS 
úoaj;=ka iy isiqka ;=< m¾fhaIK ixialD;sh m%j¾Okh lsÍu iy m¾fhaIK iy ixj¾Okh fjkqfjka 
há;, myiqlï ixj¾Okh hk wruqKq oaú;ajh m%Odk ld¾h idOk o¾Yl 09la Tiafia idlaYd;a lr 
.ekSug lghq;= isÿ flßK. tys m%.;sh my; olajd we;·
	

Wmdh l%shdldrlu m%Odk ld¾h idOk 
o¾Ylh

m%.;sh

YsIH m¾fhaIK 
.=Kd;aulNdjh jeä 
oshqKq lsÍu

m¾fhaIK i|yd 
ud¾f.damfoaYkh iy iydh 
iïmdokh lsÍu

mj;ajk ,o iydh ieis 
ixLHdj

Y%u wOHdmkfõos Wmdê 
mdGud,dfõ úoHd¾Óka i|yd 
iydh ieis folla ^02& 
mj;ajk ,oS.

fiajd l<ukdlrK úoHdm;s 
mdGud,dfõ úoHd¾Óka i|yd 
iudc úoHd i|yd jQ ixLHdk 
úoHd;aul meflac (SPSS) myqKq 
jevuq¿ 02la mj;ajk ,o 
w;r tys fojk jevuq¿fõos 
úoHd¾Ókag m¾fhaIK ,sms 
,sùug Wmfoia ,nd oSu isÿ 
lrk ,oS. tysoS m¾fhaIK ,sms 
13 la bosßm;a lrk ,oS.

fiajd l<ukdlrK úoHdm;s 
mdGud,dfõ úoHd¾Óka i|yd 
ksnkaO ,sùfï oskhla mj;ajk 
,oS.

 
wruqK 01 - Wiia wOHdmkhg iudk m%fõYhla iy mq¿,a iyNd.s;ajh

wruqK 02 - wOHhk jevigykaj, .=Kd;aulNdjh iy wod<;ajh jeä oshqKq  
lsÍu

wruqK 03 - m¾fhaIK" kfjda;amdok iy jHjidhl;ajh Yla;su;a lsÍu

wruqK 04 - iudc wd¾Ól ixj¾OkfhaoS Wmdh ud¾.sl yjq,aldß;ajh jeä lsÍu 

wruqK 05 - cd;Hka;r iyfhda.S;dj iy ;r.ldß;ajh jeä lsÍu 

wruqK 06 - fN!;sl yd fi!kao¾h mßirh jeä oshqKq lsÍu ;=<ska 
md¾Yjlrejkaf.a ix;Dma;sh

wruqK 07 - mßmd,k moaO;sh iy l%shdj,sh jeä oshqKq lsÍu

wruqK 08 - uQ,H l<ukdlrKh iy ;sridrnj jeä oshqKq lsÍu

wruqK 09 - hymd,kh mq¿,a lsÍu
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jd¾Isl jd¾;dj iy jd¾Isl uQ,H m%ldYk - 2019 
udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;kh   fld<U úYajúoHd,h

úoHd¾Óka m¾fhaIK 
uOHia:dkh fj; m%úYaG ùfï 
m%;sY;h

m¾fhaIK uOHia:dkh 
ia:dmkh lsÍfï lghq;= isÿ 
flfrñka mj;s.

.=re-isiq ksnkaO iydh 
ieis meje;aùu 

YsIHfhla i|yd mj;ajk 
,o ksnkaO iydh ieis 
.Kk

wdh;k ksnkaO 
ud¾f.damfoaYkhg wkqj, 
ksnkaO iqmÍÌljrhd 
iy YsIHhd w;r wju 
jYfhka ieis 10la mj;ajd 
;sìh hq;=h. 

tfia fkdue;s kï wod< 
úoHd¾Óhdg ksnkaOh 
bosßm;a lsÍu i|yd 
ksnkaO iqmÍÌljrhdf.
ka wkque;sh fkd,efí. 
ta wkqj, 2019 jif¾oS 
úoHd¾Óka 246 la ;u 
m¾fhaIK ksnkaOh kshñ; 
mßos bosßm;a fldg we;.

úoHq;a iïm;a$ M,odhs;ajh 
jeä flfrK Wmdx. 
ms<sn| YsIH oekqj;aNdjh 
jeä lsÍfï jevigyka 

mj;ajk ,o jevigyka 
ixLHdj

2019 iema;eïn¾ ui 
09 jk osk iy 2019 
Tlaf;dan¾ ui 11 jk 
osk wdh;k mqia;ld, 
mßY%fhaoS Y%u wOHdmkfõos 
Wmdê mdGud,dfõ m%:u 
jir iy Y%u wOHdmk 
ämaf,daud mdGud,dfõ isiqka 
i|yd jevigyka 02la 
id¾:lj mj;ajk ,oS. ta 
i|yd isiqka 116la iyNd.s 
ù we;.

mYapd;a Wmdê jevigyka 
osh;a lsÍu ^m¾fhaIK 
iys;&

m¾fhaIK iys; mYapd;a 
Wmdê mdGud,d meje;aùu 

y÷kajd fok ,o 
jevigyka ixLHdj

fuu mdGud,djka 
meje;aùu i|yd fld<U 
úYajúoHd,fha md,l 
iNdfjka wkque;sh ,nd 
.ekSfuka miqj úYajúoHd, 
m%;smdok fldñIka iNdfõ 
wkque;sh ,nd .ekSu 
i|yd fhduq lr we;' 

m%:u Wmdê yd mYapd;a 
Wmdê jevigykaj, 
úIh ud,dfõ wksjd¾h 
wx.hla f,i m¾fhaIK 
ksnkaO iy jHdmD;s jd¾;d 
ieliSu taldnoaO lsÍu 

m¾fhaIK ksnkaO iy 
jHdmD;s jd¾;d we;s 
jevigyka .Kk

m%:u Wmdê yd mYapd;a 
Wmdê jevigykaj, 
úIh ud,dfõ wksjd¾h 
wx.hla f,i m¾fhaIK 
ksnkaO iy jHdmD;s jd¾;d 
we;=<;a lsÍug wod< 
wkque;sh úYajúoHd, 
m%;smdok fldñIka 
iNdfjka ,nd .ekSu i|yd 
fhduq lr we;.

m¾fhaIK i|yd 
m%;sm;a;s rduqjla 
ieliSu

úfoaYsh mSGhka iu. 
iïuka;%K$ taldnoaO 
m¾fhaIK m%ldY m%ldYhg 
m;a lsÍu i|yd ld¾h 
uKav,hg iïm;a 
osß.ekaùï ,nd foñka 
m¾fhaIK i|yd osßu;a 
lsÍu 

j¾Ihlg fjka fldg we;s 
m¾fhaIK m%odkfha w.h 

2019 j¾IfhaoS tla 
lÓldpd¾fhla i|yd     
re'25" 000 l uqo,la 
Ndú; fldg we;'
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m¾fhaIK ksuejqfï mq¿,a 
jHdma;sh iy;sl lsÍu 

;Srl iÕrdj, m%ldYhg 
m;a lrk ,o m¾fhaIK 
,sms .Kk

2019 oS, wdh;kfha 
lÓldpd¾hjreka 4 fofkla 
m¾fhaIK ,sms 11la ;Srl 
iÕrdj, m%ldYhg m;a 
fldg we;.

udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok 
wdh;k c~k,h m%ldYhg 
m;a lsÍu

m%ldYhg m;a lrk ,o 
fj¿ï ixLHdj 

2019 j¾IfhaoS udkj 
iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;k 
c~k,fha tla fj¿ula 
m%ldYhg m;a lsÍu 
id¾:lj isÿ lrk ,oS.

m%Odk jYfhka ixj¾Okh fjkqfjka há;, myiqlï ixj¾Okh hk wruqK <Õd lr .ekSfïoS ;srir 
ixj¾Ok b,lalj,g wkqj mßirhg úh yels iDKd;aul n,mEu wju lr .ekSug iy iïm;a Ndú;fha 
ld¾hlaIu;dj iy msßisÿ yd mdßißl jYfhka fyd| ;dlaIKhka Ndú; lsÍug my; Wmdh ud¾. ;s%;ajh 
l%shdjg kxjk ,oS.

m¾fhaIK ksnkaO i|yd úoHq;a .nvdlrK moaO;shla ixj¾Okh lsÍu
mqia;ld, fiajd ,nd oSfïoS úoHq;a .nvdlrKh iy úoHq;a myiqlï Ndú;h jeä oshqKq lsÍu
mqia;ld, iajhxl%ShlrKh

Wla; l%shdldrlïj, m%.;sh my; mßos fõ.
Wmdh l%shdldrlu m%Odk ld¾h 

idOk o¾Ylh
m%.;sh

úoHq;a .nvdj we;=¿ 
úoHq;a myiqlï jeä 
oshqKq lsÍu

úoHq;a iïm;a 
moaO;shla ixj¾Okh 
lsÍu

úoHq;a iïm;a 
moaO;sh

úoHq;a iïm;a moaO;shg wod< mqia;ld, øjH 
äcsg,alrKh lsÍu i|yd ie,iqï ilia lsÍu iy 
ixúOdkh lsÍu;a Bg wod< wkque;sh ;dÌKsl 
we.hSï lñgqfjka fukau m%iïmdok lñgqfjka 
ks¾foaYh ,nd .ekSu. wdh;k Ydia;%sh lñgqfõ 
wkque;sh ,nd .ekSu, f;dard.;a iemhqïlrejka 
iu. .súiqï w;aika lsÍu, f;dard.;a iud.fï 
WmfoaYl iu. fN!;sl iïm;a y÷kd .ekSu, 
fN!;sl iïm;a ,nd .ekSu iy ld¾hhg iqÿiq 
bvla mqia;ld, ìfuka ,nd .ekSu hk ld¾hhka 
fïjk úg iïmQ¾K fldg we;.

mqia;ld,h 
iajhxl%SlrKh lsÍu

mqia;ld, 
iajhxl%slrK 
moaO;shla ixj¾Okh 
lsÍu

mqia;ld, 
iajhxl%slrK 
moaO;sh

fN!;sl iïm;a ,eîfuka miq ld¾hhg iqÿiq bvla 
ilia lr .;a w;r fla; idokakd ^Barcode 
Maker& uDÿldx.h ia:dmkh lsÍu" mqia;ld, 
ld¾h uKav,h ta i|yd mqyqKq lsÍu" ;Sre 
fla;j, fmkaúh hq;= f;dr;=re y÷kd .ekSu" 
;Sre fla; we;=<;a lsÍu iy uqøK hka;% ,nd 
.ekSfuka miq tajd kshñ; øjH u; we,ùfï 
lghq;= fïjk úg ksu fldg we;' 

m%Odk jYfhka iÕrd 
i|yd úfYaI jQ 
úYsIaG c~k, tl;=jla 
ia:dmkh lsÍu 

äcsg,a c~k, 
tl;=jla ia:dmkh 
lsÍu

c~k, ixLHdj fïjk úg äcsg,a c~k, 08 la we;s w;r 
Ndú;h i|yd ,emafgdma mß.Kl 04la o ñ<oS 
.ekSug lghq;= fldg we;.

mßYS,l-ñ;=re 
mqia;ld, mßirhla 
mqia;ld, mßY%h ;=< 
iïmdokh lsÍu

mßYS,l-ñ;=re 
mqia;ld, mßirhla 
we;s lsÍu

mßYS,l 
;Dma;su;a 
wkqmd;h

mßYS,l-ñ;=re mßirh osh;a lsÍu b,lal 
lr.;a Wm l%shdldrlïj,ska úoHq;a-iïm;aj,g 
m%fõYh iemhSug yelsùu.

.%ka: 20,000lg wêl ixLHdjla mej;s udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok mqia;ld,fha merKs fmd;a-m;a, iÕrd, 
iy m¾fhaIK ksnkaO wdosh úoHq;a .nvdlrK l%shdj,shg fhduq lrùu fya;=fjka wdh;k mßY%fhka 
bj;a lrùug yels jQ w;r Ndú;hg .; yels fmd;a-m;a rdYshla Y%S ,xldfõ mdi,a, wOHdmk wdh;kj, 
b,a,Sï u; kej; Ndú;h fjkqfjka ,nd oSug wdh;khg yels úh. ;jo wdh;k mßY%fha Ndú;fhka 
bj;a lrk ,o mqia;ld, YDyNdKav rdYshlao Wla; l%ufõohg Ndú; fldg kej; Ndú;hg ,nd oSug 
lghq;= lsÍug yels úh.
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4. fN!;sl yd fi!kao¾h mßirh jeä oshqKq lsÍu ;=<ska md¾Yjlrejkaf.a ix;Dma;sh
fN!;sl yd fi!kao¾h mßirh jeä oshqKq lsÍu ;=<ska md¾Yjlrejkaf.a ix;Dma;sh we;s lsÍu Wfoid 
wdh;kh úiska 2019 jif¾oS l%shdud¾. rdYshla wkq.ukh lsÍug mshjr f.k we;. ta w;r 2019 j¾Ih 
i|yd jQ l%shdldß ie,eiafuys we;=<;a my; Wmdh ud¾.hka jeo.;a fõ.

mj;akd f.dke.s,s myiqlï mq¿,a lsÍu
mßir ys;ldñ mßirhla ks¾udKh lsÍu
fi!LH-ikSmdrlaIK ;;a;ajhka jeä oshqKq lsÍu

2019 jif¾oS udkj iïm;a wNsj¾Ok wdh;k mßY%hg kj os.=jla f,iska wdh;k tall myiqlï jeä 
oshqKq lsÍfï iy wdh;k ixúOkd;aul jHqyh m%;sie,iqï lsÍulg ,la lsÍug lghq;= flßK. fuys 
m%;sM,hka f,i wdh;k N+ñfhka úYd, NdKAv m%udKhla kej; Ndú;hg .; yels jk f,iska wdh;k 
ix.%yhg wkqj wkque;sh ,;a md¾Yj fj; uqod yeÍug lghq;= lsÍug yelsúh. ksis mßos wdh;k N+ñfhka 
bj;a lsÍu ksid mßirhg úh yelsj ;snQ ydksh b;du;a wju lr .ekSug wdh;khg yelsúh.
 
mßir ys;ldñ mßirhla ks¾udKh lsÍu Wfoid wdh;k úiska .kakd ,o l%shdud¾. w;r, wdh;k mßY%h 
;=< ma,diaála iy fmd,s;ska Ndú;h wju lsÍug mshjr .ekSu, fuysoS wdydr /f.k tafïoS fmd,s;ska ljr 
fjkqjg wdydr n÷ka /f.k taug wdh;ksl Y%ñl m%cdj os.ska os.gu oekqj;a lrk ,o w;r tys jvd;a 
m%dfhda.sl W;aidyhla f,i wdh;k fiajl iqNidOl ix.ufha odhl;ajfhka iEu fiajlfhlau i|ydu osjd 
wdydr n÷kla fkdñ,fha ,nd oSug lghq;= flßK.
 
;jo foaYljreka i|yd fuf;la Ndú; lsÍug fhÿkq ma,diaála fnda;,a Ndú;h fjkqjg os.=l,la Ndú; 
l, yels c, fnda;,a Ndú;hg lghq;= iïmdokh flßK. wdh;kh ;=< uqøK lghq;=j,os isÿjk ydksh 
wju lr .ekSu i|yd tajd md,kh lsÍug iajhx md,k osß.ekaùï fukau uyd mßudK uqøK lghq;=j,oS 
tajd úOdhl ld¾h uKav,fha kshdukhg hg;aj isÿ lsÍug mshjr .ekSu.

fuf;la mej;s úÿ,s mßyrK moaO;sh ms<silr lrñka iy wdh;khg úÿ,s nqnq¿, jdhqiólrK hka;% 
wdosh ñ,oS .ekSfïoS úÿ,sh msßuefik úoHq;a Wmdx.hka ñ,oS .ekSfï l%ufõohla ilia lsÍu. wdh;kh 
;=< úÿ,s mßfNdackh wju lsÍu fjkqfjka wdh;k m%cdj oekqj;a lsÍu fukau Tjqka ta i|yd osß.ekaùug 
lghq;= flßK.

mdkSh c, kdia;sh wju lr .ekSu i|yd msßmyÿ lrk ,o mdkSh c, n÷ka Ndú;hg lghq;= l< w;r 
ksis mßos c, Ndú;hg fiajl m%cdj osßu;a lsÍug lghq;= lsÍu wdosh jeo.;a fõ.
  
fi!LH-ikSmdrlaIK ;;a;ajhka jeä oshqKq lsÍu i|yd wdh;kh úiska wkq.ukh l< mshjr w;r fiajl 
m%cdj iy wdh;kh ;=< wOHhk lghq;=j, kshqla; jk YsIHhkag Ndú; lsÍug msßisÿ mdkSh c,h ,nd 
oSug lghq;= lsÍu tla jeo.;a l%shdud¾.hls.
 
wdh;k m%;sjHqy.; lsÍfïoS wdh;kfha Ndú;hg jeisls<s moaO;shla ilia lrk ,oS. kùk udod,sfha 
Wmdx.hkaf.ka hqla;j ksu lrk ,o fuu jeisls<s moaO;sh fya;=fjka wdh;k fiajlhkaf.a ikSmdrlaIK 
.=Kd;aulNdjh Wiia lsÍug yelshdj ,enqKq w;r tu.ska ld¾hlaIu fiajdjdjla fukau fi!LH iïmkak 
cSú;hlg fuu myiqlu msájy,la úh. ikSmdrlaIdj ;jÿrg;a jeä oshqKq lrñka w;a msiakd” w;afiaÿï 
oshr wdoS wx.hkaf.ao myiqlï ,nd oSug lghq;= flfrñka mj;S.
 
fi!LH yd ikSmdrlaIdj ;jÿrg;a ;yjqre lrñka wdh;k wmøjH neyer lsÍfïoS tajd ksis mßos fjkafldg 
mßirh fj; uqod yeÍfï l%ufõohla y÷kajd fok ,oS. ta wkqj osrk, fkdosrk f,i fjka fldg li< 
bj;a lsÍug wdh;k Y%ñl m%cdj oekqj;a lr we;.

5 mßmd,k moaO;sh iy l%shdj,sh jeä oshqKq lsÍu
;srir ixj¾Okh fjkqfjka wdh;ksl mßmd,k moaO;sh iy tys l%shdj,sh jeä oshqKq lsÍug lghq;= 
wdrïN flßK. ta wkqj wdh;ksl mßmd,k, úNd., YsIH bf.kqï l<ukdlrK moaO;s Wmfhdackhg 
lghq;= ie,iqï lrk ,o w;r fï jk úg YsIH bf.kqï l<ukdlrK moaO;sh id¾:lj Ndú;hg .efka. 
mßmd,k iy úNd. l<ukdlrK moaO;s Ndú;hg .ekSug lghq;= ilia lrñka mj;s. fuu moaO;s u.ska 
wdh;kh ;=< lvodis Ndú;h wju lr .; yels w;r ld¾hd, bvmyiqlï l<ukdlrKhgo th b;d 
jeo.;a fõ. l%shdldrlïj,g wod< m%.;sh my; olajd we;.
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Wmdh l%shdldrlu m%Odk ld¾h 
idOk o¾Ylh

m%.;sh

úoHq;a uqo,a f.ùï 
myiqlï iys;j 
úoHq;a YsIH ,shdmosxÑ 
lsÍfï moaO;sh 
y÷kajd oSu 

úoHq;a uqo,a f.ùï 
myiqlï iys;j úoHq;a 
YsIH ,shdmosxÑ lsÍfï 
moaO;sh ia:dmkh 
lsÍu

ld¾h 
iïmQ¾K 
lsÍfï 
m%;sY;h

;dÌKsl we.hSï lñgqfjka iy 
m%iïmdok lñgqfjka wod< ks¾foaY 
,nd .ekSu isÿ flfrñka mj;S'

kjl isiqkag yd 
leue;a;la olajk 
wfkl=;a md¾Yjhkag 
úoHq;a l%ufõoh 
Ndú;fhka m%;spdr 
oelaùfï l%uh 
y÷kajd oSu

úoHq;a m%;spdr oelaùfï 
l%uh ia:dmkh lsÍu

ld¾h 
iïmQ¾K 
lsÍfï 
m%;sY;h

id¾:lj Wmfhdackh flf¾' 

mß.Kl.; úNd. 
f;dr;=re moaO;shla 
y÷kajd oSu

úNd. f;dr;=re 
moaO;sh ia:dmkh 
lsÍu

ld¾h 
iïmQ¾K 
lsÍfï 
m%;sY;h

Wmfhdackh isÿ flfrñka mj;S' 
úNd. whÿïm;a ud¾..; l%ufõoh 
Tiafia ,nd .ekSu wdrïN fldg 
we;'

NdKav f,aLkh, 
ia:djr j;alï 
f,aLkh iy udkj 
iïm;a l<ukdlrK 
moaO;s we;=<;aj 
wdh;k mßmd,k 
wx. i|yd f;dr;=re 
moaO;shla ia:dms; 
lsÍu

mßmd,k f;dr;=re 
moaO;sh ia:dmkh 
lsÍu

ld¾h 
iïmQ¾K 
lsÍfï 
m%;sY;h

Wmfhdackh fldg we;. 
ia:djr j;alï f,aLkh mß.Kl.; 
fldg wjikah.
wxY wkqj NdKav f,aLko ilia 
fldg wjikah.
ish¨u wxY i|yd /lshd 
msßú;rhka ilia fldg wjika lrk 
,oS.
;dÌKsl we.hSï lñgq yd 
fomd¾;fïka;= m%iïmdok lñgq 
ia:djr lsÍug lghq;= lsÍu.

úOdhl$ wkOHhk 
ld¾h uKav, i|yd 
jevuq¿ meje;aùu

iyNd.s jQ 
ixLHdj

j¾Ih ;=< wdikak jYfhka jevuq¿ 
06la id¾:lj meje;aùug yelshdj 
,eîK' 

6. iudf,dapkh
iuia;hla f,i wdh;kfha ixhqla; ie,eiafuys we;s b,lalhka .=Kd;aul wOHdmkhla  uÕska Y%S ,xldfõ 
’oekQï-wd¾Ólh¶ i|yd n,mEula we;s l< yels odhlFjhla oelaùug by< fmf<a ñksia iïm;a iuQyhla 
f,i ’oekqï-fiajd-ldKav¶ W;amdokh lsÍu mokï fldg f.k we;. ;srir ixj¾Ok b,lalhkays m%Odk 
b,lalhla jk ieug .=K;ajfhka hq;a wOHdmkhla ,nd oSfï j.lSu b;du;a uefkúka wdh;k ixhqla; 
ie,eiau iy l%shdldß ie,eiau ;=<ska l%ñl j¾Okfhka hq;=j bosßhg f.k hdug yels ish¨u ls%hdud¾.
hka .ekSug wdh;kh hqyqiq¿j lghq;= lrñka isà. tu b,lalhka idlaYd;a lr .ekSug hk .ukau. 
;=< rgg ys;e;s wOHdmk wdh;khla f,i fï olajd mßirh wdrlaId lr .ekSu iy mßirhg úh yels 
iDKd;aul n,mEï ms<sn| úia;r iy wjYH wjia:dj,oS, mdßißl iy wdmod n,mEï we.hSï we;=<;aj 
fuu ;srir ixj¾Okh u; mokï jQ fuu jd¾;dj fufia bosßm;a lSÍug lghq;= flßK. 	
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අනුමැතියට ඉදිරිපත්  රන ලදි. ඒ අතරින් 
ප්‍රකයෝජනවත් ආයු ොලයක් සහිත භොණ්ඩ කම් 
වන විට ස්ථොවර වත් ම් කේඛනයට ඇතුළත් 
 ර ඇත. ඇති වු වොතොවරණය මත අකනකුත් 
වත් ම් සමොකලෝචන  ටයුතු සැළසුම්  ර ගත් 
පරිදි කිරීමට කනොහැකි වු බැවින් ඉදිරිකේදී එම 
 ටයුතු කිරීමට අකේක්ෂො  රමි.

2020 වර්ෂකේදී අද්‍ොළ 
සියලුම වත් ම්වල 
අවකශ්ෂ වටිනො ම සහ
ප්‍රකයෝජනවත් වන 
ආයු ොලය සමොකලෝචනය 
 ර ගිණුම්වල ඉදිරිපත්   
කිරීමට  ටයුතු කයොද්‍ො 
ඇත.

ආ 2019 ජුනි 04 දිනැති අං  5/2019 ද්‍රන 
විශ්වවිද්‍යොල ප්‍රතිපොද්‍න ක ොමිෂන් 
සභො චක්‍රකේඛය අනුව කස්ව  
පොරිකතෝිත ගණනය කිරීකම් දී 
මොසි  හිලේ දීමනොව නිවැරදිව 
ගැලපිම්  ර කනොතිබීකමන් වොර්ි  
පොරිකතෝිත කවන් කිරිම රු 1 481 462 
ක් වැඩිකයන් ගිණුම්ගත  ර තිබුණි.

මීළඟ ගිණුම් වර්ෂකේදී කමයනිවැරදි කිරීමට
 ටයුතු රනු ලැකේ

නිවැරදි අගය 2020 
වර්ෂකේ ගිණුම්වලට 
ගැනිමට  ටයුතු  ර 
ඇත.



46

j
d¾
I
sl
 
j
d¾
;
dj
 
i
y
 
j
d¾
I
sl
 
u
Q,
H
 
m
%l
dY
k
 
- 
2
0
19
 

u
dk
j
 
i
ï
m
;
a 
w
N
sj
¾
O
k
 
w
dh
;
k
h

   fl
d<
U
 ú

Y
aj
ú
o
Hd,

h

 

ඇ 2019 වර්ෂකේ වැඩ නිම  රන ලද්‍ 
ඉදිකිරීම් කක්‍රොන්රොත් 2 ක් සහ 
කගොඩනැගිලි නවී රණ  ටයුතු 2 ක් 
කවනුකවන් කගවිය යුතු එ තුව රු  
3 422 067 ක් ගිණුම්ගත  ර 
කනොතිබුණි.

          කමම වියද්‍ම්වලට අද්‍ොළ ඉන්කවොයිස් 2019 වර්ෂකේ 
දිනයන්කගන් ඉදීරිපත්  ර තිබුනද්‍ දිනය 
අනුව අද්‍ොල භොණ්ඩ හො කස්වො ආයතනයට ලැබී 
ඇත්කත් 2020 වර්ෂකේදී වන බැවින් අද්‍ොළ වියද්‍ම් 
2020 වර්ෂකේදී ද්‍රන ලද්‍ වියද්‍මක් කලස සල ො 
ගිණුම් ගත  ර ඇත.

උපචිත වියද්‍ම් 
හඳුනොකගන       ගිණුම් 
තුළ ඉදිරිපත් කිරිමට  
අවශය  ටයුතු කයොද්‍ො 
ඇත.

2.

(අ)

කවනත් නනති  හො 
නියොමන අවශයතො 
පිළිබඳ වොර්තොව

නීතිරීති/විධොනයට 
කයොමුව

� ලං ො ප්‍රජොතන්ි 
සමොජවොදී ජනරජකේ
මුද්‍ේ කරගුලොසි සංග්‍රහය

මුද්‍ේ කරගුලොසි  
තත් ොර්ය අතුරු අග්‍රිම අද්‍ොළ 
 ොර්යය අවසන් වීකමන් අනතුරුව 
වහොම පියවිම යුතු වුවද්‍ අවස්ථො 46 
 දී ලබො දී තිබු එ තුව රු.4 789 867 
ක් වු අත්ති ොරම් පියවීම සඳහො දින 
30 ත් දින 180 ත් අතර  ොල ප්‍රමොද්‍යක් 
වී තිබුණි.

භොණ්ඩොගොර අරමුද්‍ල
 

ලබො ගත් කමම අත්ති ොරම 
2019.03.22 දින රිසිට්පත් අං 1910319 යටකත් 
පියවො ඇත. 

 69
 
 50 7 5
 694 6 9
 692 ,6
 908 20

ඉහත සඳහන් අත්ති ොරම් පියවූ නිලධොරින්ට 
මුද්‍ේ කරගුලොසි අනුව නිවැරදිව  ටයුතු  රන 
කමන් උපකද්‍ස් කද්‍න ලදී.තව ද්‍, නැවත කමම වැරදි 
සිදු කනොවීමට  ටයුතු  රන කලස උපකද්‍ස් ලබො 
දුනි.

අතුරු අග්‍රිම නියමිත පරිදි 
පියවිමට උපකද්‍ස් ලබො දී 
ඇත.
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අනෙකුත් අත්ිකාරම්  න ාන ෝමයක් 
කාර්යය අවසන් වී දිෙ 14 ක් ඇතුළත 
පියවා ඇත. 

සංවර්ධන අරමුද්‍ල
 රු. 140,000.00  කචක් අත්ති ොරම 
2019.02.08 (දින 08 ක් ඇතුළත කගවීම සිදු  ර 
ඇත) ලං ො විදුලි බල මණ්ඩලයට කගවො 
ඇත.

 Voucher No. DF-0025, Amount: 344,400.00 
කමම කචක් අත්ති ොරම 2019.02.2  දින එම 
ආයතනයට කගවො ඇති අතර, උක්ත කේඛනය 
ප්‍රමොද්‍ වී මුද්‍ේ අංශයට භොර දී ඇත.

 Voucher No. DF-0071, Amount: 3,550.00 
ඉහත අත්ති ොරම පියවූ නිලධොරින්ට මුද්‍ේ 
කරගුලොසි අනුව නිවැරදිව  ටයුතු  රන කමන් 
උපකද්‍ස් කද්‍න ලදී. තව ද්‍, නැවත කමම වැරදි සිදු 
කනොවීමට  ටයුතු  රන කලස උපකද්‍ස් ලබො දුනි.

මුද්‍ේ කරගුලොසි වර්ෂකේ නද්‍නි  ධොවන සටහන් 
විගණනය කවත ඉදිරිපත්  ර 
කනොතිබුණි.

  මොසි  සොරොංශකේ මුේ පිටපතද්‍ සමග අද්‍ොල 
මොසකේ නද්‍නි  ධොවන සටහන් 
කද්‍පොර්තකම්න්තු ප්‍රධොනියො මොර්ගකයන් 
විගණ ොිපති කවත ඉදිරිපත් කිරීමට සටහන් 
 රගත් අතර පහත සඳහන්  ොල පරොස සඳහො 
ධොවන සටහන් කපොත් ඇත.
 පහත සඳහන් පරිදි ධොවන සටහන් කපොත් ඇත.
වොහන අං ය  ොලය

AAI - 1137 

2019.05.22-2019.06.29 
2019.07.01-2019.08.15 

2019.08.16-2019.11.03 
2019.11.04-2019.12.19 
2019.12.20-2020.01.25 

CAM – 8246 
2019.08.16-2019.11.19 
2019.11.21-2020.01.09 

ඉදිරිපත්  ර ඇත.
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2019.11.21-2020.01.09 

NC- 9806 

2019.02.14 - 2019.05.10 
2019.05.13 - 2019.07.25 
2019.07.26 -2019.11.20 
2019.11.21-2020.01.24 

GD- 8862 
2019.01.21 - 2019.05.17 
2019.05.22-2019.09.05 

කම් වන විට රියදුරු මහතුන් විසින් අද්‍ොළ 
නද්‍නි  ධොවන සටහන් කපොත් භොවිත  රනු 
ලබයි. 

(ආ) විශ්ව විද්‍යොල ආයතන
සංග්‍රහ කේ වන 
පරිච්කෙද්‍ය 7 කේද්‍ය

අති ොල දීමනො කගවීකම්දී එක් එක් 
නිලධොරියොකේ මුලි  වැටුප මත 
පද්‍නම්ව කගවිය යුතු වුවත් ඊට 
පටහැනිව ආයතනය විසින් පිහිටුවො 
ගත් නිශ්චිත වු කර්ටයන්ට අනුව 2019 
මුේ අර්ධ වර්ෂය තුළ රු 140 977   
අති ොල වැඩිුර කගවො තිබුණි.

ම  කමහි සඳහන් කගවීම් අති ොල දීමනො කලස  රනු 
ලබන කගවීම් කනොවන අතර ඒවො පොඨමොලොවන් 
වල අමතර රොජ ොරි සඳහො කගවනු ලබන දීමනො 
කේ කමහි සඳහන්ව ඇත්කත් අප විසින් පිහිටුවො 
ගත් යම් නිශ්චිත කර්ටයන්ට අනුකූලව සිදු ර 
ඇති කගවීම් බව ද්‍න්වනු  ැමැත්කතමු එම 
විකශ්ිත වූ කර්ටයන්ට අනුව දීමනො කගවො 
ඇත්කත් ආයතනය විසින් පවත්වො කගන යනු 
ලබන මුද්‍ේ උපයන පොඨමොලොවල අති ොල 
කස්වොවන්හි නිරත  ොර්යය මණ්ඩලය සඳහොය
කමම කර්ටයන් මුද්‍ේ  මිටුකේ හො ශොස්ීය 
 මිටුකේ අනුමැතියට යටත්ව කගවීම්  ර ඇත
තවද්‍ භොණ්ඩොගොර අරමුද්‍ේ යටකත් කගවීම්  රන 
ලද්‍ සියලුම අති ොල දීමනො කගවො ඇත්කත් 
ආයතන සංග්‍රහයට සහ මුද්‍ේ කරගුලොසිවලට 
අනුකූල කර්ටයන්ට බව වැඩි දුරටත් ද්‍න්වො සිටිමි

විකශ්ිත රොජ ොරි සඳහො 
අධයයන සභොකේ අනුමත 
කර්ටයන් මත පමණක් 
කගවිම්  රනු ලබයි.

ඇ ජුලි 14 දිනැති අං  
03/2015 ද්‍රන රොජය මුද්‍ේ 
චක්‍රකේඛය                

අත්ති ොරම් මුද්‍ේ ලබො දිය හැකි 
උපරිම සීමොව වු රු.100 000 ඉක්මවො
රු  152 280   අත්ති ොරමක් ලබො දී 
තිබුණි.

එක් අවස්ථොව දී පමණක් රු.100 000 ට වැඩි 
අත්ති ොරමක් ලබො දී ඇති අතර සියලු මුලය 
අත්ති ොරම් රු.100 00  ට පමණක් කම් වන විට 
සිමො  ර ලබො කද්‍නු ලබයි.

අත්ති ොරම් ලබො දිය 
හැකි උපරිම සිමොවට 
පමණක් අත්ති ොරම් ලබො 
දිම සිදු  රයි.
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3.

(අ)

අකනකුත් විගණන 
නිරීක්ෂණ

2018 වර්ෂකේ  කභෞති  කතොග 
සමික්ෂණ වොර්තොව අනුව 
රු.138 887 ක් වටිනො අයිතම 11ක් 
ඉවත් කිරීමට නිර්කද්ධශ ලබො දී 
තිබුණද්‍ 2019 වර්ෂකේ භොණ්ඩ 
සමීක්ෂණය සිදු ර අවස්ථොව වන 
විටත් එම කතොග ඉවත් කිරීමට 
 ටයුතු  ර කනොතිබුණි. 2014 
වර්ෂකේ දී අස්ථොනගත වී තිබුණු 
ලැේකටොේ යන්රය සම්බන්ධව 
මුලි  විමර්ශන  ටයුතු විිමත්ව 
සිදු ර අද්‍ොළ අලොභයන් 
සම්බන්ධකයන් ගිණුම්වල වොර්තො 
කිරීමට සහ අලොභයන් අය ර 
ගැනීමට  ටයුතු  ර කනොතිබුණි.

අද්‍ොල කතොග ඉවත්කිරීමට අවශය  ටයුතු 
ඉදිරිකේ දී සිදු රනු ලැ කේ.

      අස්ථොන ගත වු ලැේකටොේ පරිගණ  
යන්රය සම්බන්ධකයන් මුලි  විමර්ශනයන් 
සඳහො  මිටු කිහිපයක් වරින් වර පත් රන 
ලදි. එම  මිටු විසින් ඉදිරිපත්  රන ලද්‍ 
නිර්කද්ධශයන් අධයයන සභොව විසින් අනුමත 
 ර කනොමැත. 

  තවදුරටත් කම් සම්බන්ධව විමර්ශනයක් 
සිදු කිරිමට ඒ  ුද්ධගල  මිටුවක් පත් 
 රත් ඇතත් එම නිර්කද්ධශ කමකතක් ලැබි 
කනොමැත.

      කමම තත්ත්වය සල ො බැලු අධයයන 
 මිටුව සල ො බලො කමම  ොරණය 
සම්බන්ධව නිර්කද්ධශ ඉදිරිපත් කිරිම සඳහො 
විගණන  මිටුව කවත කයොමු  ර ඇත.
විගණන  මිටුව විසින් අස්ථොනගත වූ 
ලැේකටොේ පරිගණ  යන්රය සම්බන්ධව 
රැස්විම් වොර කද්‍  දි සො ච්ෙො  ල ද්‍ 
අවසන් නිගමනයකින් කතොරව සො ච්ෙො 
නිම විය.
තවදුරටත් කම් සම්බන්ධව ගත යුතු 
�යොමොර්ග සම්බන්ධකයන් විගණන 
 මිටුව සො ච්ෙො සිදු රමින් පවති. කමම 
�යොමොර්ග මුලය කර්ගුලොසි තුළ �යොත්ම  
 ල යුතු බව ඔවුන්කේ හැඟිමයි.

අද්‍ොළ කතොග ඉවත් 
කිරීමට  ටයුත් 
සිදු රමින් පවතින 
අතර ලැේකටොේ 
පරිගණ ය 
සම්බන්ධකයන් අවශය 
 ටයුතු සිදු රමින් 
පවතී.
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(ආ)    2019 වර්ෂකේ දී ආයතනය විසින් 
 ොණ්ඩ 05 ක් යටකත් උපොි 
පශ්චොත් උපොි ඩිේකලෝමො සහ 
සහති  පර වැඩසටහන් 28 ක් 
�යොත්ම   ර තිබුණද්‍ 
වැඩසටහන් 13 ක් සඳහො ශිෂයයින් 
ලියොපදිංචි වී කනොතිබුණු අතර 
වැඩසටහන් 04 ක් සම්බන්ධකයන් 
ශිෂය ලියොපදිංචිය පසුගිය වර්ෂයට 
සොකේක්ෂව අඩු වී තිබුණි.

1  ොණ්ඩය - උපොි අධයයන වැඩසටහන 

  Y%u wOHdmkfõ§ Wmdêh i|yd fujr whÿïm;a 677la 

,enqKq w;r th miq.sh jirg jvd jeä m%udKhla úh' 

thska whÿï lrejka 618l සංඛයොව ට f;dard.ekSï 

úNd.fha iqÿiqlï imqrd,Su u; ,shdmÈxÑh i|yd 

werhqï lrk ,o w;r thska ,shdmÈxÑ jQ ixLHdj 211la 

fõ' fuu ixLHdj ;j;a jeä lr .ekSu i|yd ;j;a 

msßilg ,shdmÈxÑ ùug bv i<id ;j;a whÿïlrejka 

ixLHdjlg ,shdmÈxÑ ùu i|yd whÿï lsÍug bv 

i<id Èh yelsj  ;sìKs' tkuq;a ixLHdjla iudk 

,l=Kq ,ndf.k ;snqKq w;r ta ish,a,guo bv i,id 

Èh hq;=j ;snqKs' tfia jQfha kï foaYk mj;ajdf.k hkq 

,nk Yd,dj, bvlv ms<sn| .eg¨ u;= úh yelsh' 

;jo tu msßig bv ie,iSu i|yd wm idudkHfhka 

f;dard .ekSug fhdod.kq ,nk mdßidOk uÜgfuka 

my< hd hq;=j ;snqKs' 

 

ämaf,daud mdGud,dj i|yd 152l ixLHdjlg 

,shdmÈxÑh i|yd bv lv i<id § ;snQ w;r" 

Tjqkaf.ka 65l ixLHdjla ,shdmÈxÑ úh'  

 

fuu lreKq folu ie,ls,a,hg .;a l< fuu jif¾ 

Y%u wOHdmkfõoS mdGud,d i|yd ,shdmÈxÑ jQ ixLHdj 

300la muK jk w;r th miq.sh jirg jvd jeä fõ' 

 

wm wdh;kh fuu mdGud,dj,g n|jd .kakd ixLHdj 

jev lsÍug ±ä leue;a;la ;snqK o tu mdGud,djka 

mj;ajdf.k hEug fuu wdh;khg foaYk Yd,d 

fkdue;s w;r foaYk mj;ajdf.k hkq ,nkafka fjk;a 

mSGj, foaYk Yd,d තුළ කේ. tu mSGj,g 

foaYkYd,dj, wjYH;djhka mekke.=K úg Tjqka tu 

Yd,d Ndú; lsÍug wmg ,nd fkdfokq neúka YsIH 

ixLHdj jeä lsÍu ms<sn|j .eg¨ mj;S' 

 ද්‍ැනට පශ්චොත් උපොි 
පොඨමොලො 4 ක් 

 ප්‍රථම උපොි 
පොඨමොලොවක්

 විධොය  උසස් 
ඩිේකලෝමො පොඨමොලො 3 
ක්

 ඩිේකලෝමො පොඨමොලො 4 
ක්

 සහති  පර පොඨමොලො 
8 ක් පවත්වකගන යනු 
ලබයි
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 11   ොණ්ඩය - පශ්චොත් උපොි වැඩසටහන් 

 

          fuu j¾Ifha fuu mdGud,dj,g ,shdmÈxÑ ùfï hï 

wvq ùula olakg ,efnk w;r w;r thg rfgys 

we;sjQ ;;ajhka fukau thska we;s lrk ,o wd¾Ól 

ÿIalr;djhka o n,md we;s nj fmkS hhs' óg wu;rj 

ú.Kk  Èkh jk úg mdGud,d folla muKla 

wdrïN lr ;snQ neúka Tn úiska isÿ lrk ,o iei§u 

t;rï fhda.H fkdfõ'  

 

   ii fiajd l<ukdlrK mdGud,dj i|yd 2019'06'23 Èk 

whÿïm;a le|jk ,o w;r wdmod l<ukdlrK 

mdGud,dj i|yd o 2019'12'25 Èk whÿï m;a 

le|jk ,§' 

 

   iii N+ úoHd mdGud,dj i|yd wjikajrg 2016'03'13 

n|jd .kq ,enQ w;r th mj;ajdf.k  hEug wjYH 

lÓldpd¾hjreka wdh;kh ;=< fkdue;s neúka b;d 

ÿIalr ;;ajhka ;=< wjika lrkq ,eîh' fï i|yd 

wjYH iyfhda.h fjkla mSGhlska ,nd .ekSug 

n,dfmdfrd;a;= jqjo" ta i|yd Tjqkaf.a m%;spdrh 

hym;a fkdùh' tu mdGud,dfõ jeo.;alu i<ld 

,nk jir ;=<§ kej; jrla mSGhla iu. lghq;= 

lsÍug n,dfmdfrd;a;= fõ'  

 

flfia jqjo ufkdaúoHd WmfoaYන mdGud,dj i|yd 

isiqka 2019 jif¾§ n|jdf.k we;' tfukau by; 

mdGud,d ;=k iy ixpdrl jHdmdr isÿùï i;aldr 

l<ukdlrK úOdhl ämaf,daud mdGud,djka 2019 

jir i|yd ±kgu;a whÿïm;a le|ùug wjYH 

mshjr f.k we;'  
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III  ොණ්ඩය - විධොය  ඩිේකලෝමො වැඩසටහන් 

 fuu jif¾§ wOHk lghq;= i|yd fhdod .; yels 

ld,fhka udi foll muK wfm%a,a udifha § we;s jQ 

;;ajh;a" úYajúoHd,h ;=< mej;s jevj¾ck;a ksid 

wysñ úh' tneúka mej;s mdGud,d wjika lsÍug 

ie<iqï l< Èkg mdGud,d wjika lsÍug fkdyels 

jQ w;r mdGud,d i|yd n|jd .ekSï o l< fkdyels 

úh'  

 

  ii fiajd l<ukdlrK úOdhl ämaf,daud mdGud,dj yd 

udkj iïm;a l<ukdlrK úOdhl ämaf,daud 

mdGud,dj hdj;ald,Sk lsÍfï wjYH;djh ;snqKq 

w;r ta i|yd wkque;sh ,nd .ekSug 2019'02'19 Èk 

meje;afjk ,o Ydia;%Sh lñgqj fj; bosrsm;a lsrSu 

;=<ska wrUk ,o w;r" thg wjYH wkque;sh 

2019'05'06 osk meje;afjk ,o 439 jk fld<U 

úYaúoHd,fha md,l iNdj fj; bÈßm;a lr we;s 

w;r ta wkqj bÈßfha § whÿïm;a le|jkq we;' 

 

iii ixpdrl jHdmdr isÿùï i;aldr l<ukdlrK 

úOdhl ämaf,daud mdGud,dj 2019 j¾Ifha§ n|jd 

.ekSï isÿ lrk ,oS'  

   wdmod úYaf,aIK úOdhl ämaf,daud mdGud,dj 

i|yd mdGud,dj iïnkaëlrKh i|yd iy foaYk 

i|yd wjYH iqÿiq lÓldpd¾hjreka wdh;kh ;=< 

fkdue;s neúka tu mdGud,dj i|yd kej; n|jd 

.ekSï kj;ajk ,§'  

 

  WmfoaYkh iy ufkdaúoHd Wiia ämaf,daud mdGud,dj 

2019 j¾Ih i|yd 2019'09'08 jk osk whÿïm;a  

leojk ,o w;r i|yd ±kg isiqka ,shdmÈxÑ 

fjñka isà'  
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iv Y%jH oDIH ksIamdok yd udOH ;dlaIK Wiia 

ämaf,daud mdGud,dj i|yd mdGud,dj 

iïnkaëlrKh i|yd iy foaYk i|yd wjYH iqÿiq 

lÓldpd¾hjreka wdh;kh ;=< fkdue;s neúka tu 

mdGud,dj i|yd kej; n|jd .ekSï kj;ajk ,§'  

 

IV  ොණ්ඩය - ඩිේකලෝමො වැඩසටහන් 

wdh;kh úiska mj;ajdf.k hkq ,nk ämaf,daud 

mdGud,djkaf.ka¦  

 

I u;aøjH ksjdrK ämaf,daud mdGud,dj i|yd 2019 

j¾Ifha§ n|jd .ekSï isÿ lrk ,oS.  

ii. ufkdaúoHd WmfoaYk ämaf,daud mdGud,dj 2019 

j¾Ih i|yd 2019'09'08 jk Èk whÿïm;a leoùu 

wdrïN lrk ,o w;r ±kg isiqka ,shdmÈxÑ fjñka 

isà'  

 iii fiajd l<ukdlrK ämaf,daud mdGud,dj yd 

hdj;ald,Sk lsÍfï wjYH;djh ;snqKq w;r ta i|yd 

wkque;sh ,nd .ekSug 2019'02'19 Èk meje;afjk ,o 

Ydia;%Sh lñgqj fj; bosrsm;a lsrSu ;=<ska wrUk ,o 

w;r" thg wjYH wkque;sh 2019'05'06 osk 

meje;afjk ,o 439 jk fld<U úYaúoHd,fha md,l 

iNdj fj; bÈßm;a lr we;s w;r ta wkqj bÈßfha § 

whÿïm;a le|jkq we;' 

 

V  ොණ්ඩය - සහති පර වැඩසටහන් 

bx.%Sis NdId iy;sl m;% mdGud,dj 2018 jir i|yd 

isiqka we;=<;a lr .ekSu fjkqfjka 2017'06'25 jk osk 

whÿïm;a le|jd we;s w;r ta i|yd isiqka 2"283l 

ixLHdjla ,shdmÈxÑ ù we;' 2019 jir i|yd 

2018'09'16 Èk whÿïm;a le|jQ w;r ta i|yd isiqka 

1935l ixLHdjla ,shdmÈxÑ úh' 2018 jif¾ 
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,shdmÈxÑ jQ isiqka ixLHdjg jvd 2019 jif¾§ 

,shdmÈxÑ jQ ixLHdfõ 348l fjkila isÿ ù we;' 

2018 jif¾§ úYajúoHd,h ;=< 2018'02'28 Èk isg 

2018'04'16 olajd udi 1½ l muK ld,hla mej;s 

jevj¾ck ;;ajh fya;=fjka mdGud,dj wjika 

lsÍug kshñ;j ;snQ ld,fha§ wjika lr .ekSug 

fkdyels ùu fuf,I wvqùug tla fya;=jla jk w;r 

bx.%Sis mdGud,djka yqfolau whÿï m;a le|jkqfha 

Wiiafm< úNd.h i|yd fmkS isák isiqka wruqKq 

lrf.k neúka mdGud,dj kshñ; ld,hg wdrïN 

lsÍug fkdyels jQ úg isiqka fjk;a mdGud,dj,g 

fhduq fõ'  

oñ< NdId mdGud,dj i|yd jeä m%udKhla whÿï 

lrkqfha ;u /lshdfõ Wiia ùï i|yd bÈßm;a 

lsÍug NdId m%ùK;d iy;slhla ,nd .ekSug wjYH 

jk wh neúka fndfyda fokd oñ< NdId iy;slm;% 

mdGud,dfjka miqj mdGud,dj wjika lrk w;r 

wka;¾ iy;sl m;% mdG,dj iy ämaf,daud mdGud,dj 

olajd /|S isák m%udKfha wvqùula isÿfõ' .=re 

jD;a;sh i|yd whÿïlsÍu wruqKq fldgf.k oñ< 

NdId mdGud,dj i|yd whÿïlrk whÿïlrejka yd 

ämaf,daud iy;slhla n,dfmdfrd;a;=fjka meñfKk 

whÿïlrejka muKla ämaf,daud mdGud,dj olajdu 

re|S isàu olakg ,efí. 

(ඇ) 2015 වර්ෂකේ දී ජොති  දුම්රිය පද්ධධති
වයොපෘතිය සඳහො උපකද්ධශන කස්වො 
සැපයීම කවනුකවන් ප්‍රවොහන හො සිවිේ 
ගුවන් කස්වො අමොතයොංශකයන් අයවිය යුතු 
රු  4 710 900   මුද්‍ල සමොකලෝචිත වර්ෂකේ 
කද්‍සැම්බර් 31 දින ද්‍ක්වොම අය ර ගැනීමට 
 ටයුතු  ර කනොතිබුණි.

පිළිගනිමි  2020 වර්ෂකේ දී විගණන මග කපන්වීම අනුව 
අද්‍ොළ මුද්‍ල ලැබිය යුතු මුද්‍ලක් කලස අවසොන ගිණුම්වල
සටහන් තුළ කහලිද්‍රේ කිරීමට  ටයුතු  රනු ඇත

අද්‍ොළ මුද්‍ේ අය ර ගැනීමට 
 ටයුතු සිදු රමින් පවතී.
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Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; 
tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs;

kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk;
nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

2019



 

 

     
"cyfshtpa #oypy; Kw;Nghf;fhd r%fj;-

jpd; mgptpUj;jpapd; epkpj;jk; kdpj tsj;-

jpid Nkk;gLj;Jtjw;F fw;wy;> fw;gpj;jy; 

kw;Wk; Muha;r;rp vd;gtw;Wf;fhd kpfr; 

rpwe;j epiyakhfg; gupzkpj;jy;;”.

Nehf;ff; $w;W

gzpf; $w;W
'jiyikj;Jtk;> njhopy; Kaw;rpfs; kw;Wk; 

tpku;rd uPjpapyhd rpe;jidj; jpwid tpUj;jp 

nra;tjd; kPJ ftdj;ijr; nrYj;jp cau; r%f 

kw;Wk; xOf;f newpKiwfSlhd mu;g;gzpg;Gld; 

mYty; Nkw;nfhs;Sk; gzpahl;njhFjp kw;Wk; 

mjp etPd njhopy;El;gk; kw;Wk; kdpj tsq;fs; 

mgptpUj;jp nraw;ghLfspd; Clhf Kfhikj;-

Jtk;> Kfhikj;Jtk; rhuhj Copau;fs; kw;Wk; 

njhopy; Kaw;rpahsu;fSf;F fw;wy;> Muha;r;rp 

kw;Wk; mgptpUj;jpf;fhf Njrpa uPjpapy; Ngh-

l;bj; jd;ik kw;Wk; ru;tNjr mq;fPfhuj;jpw;fhd 

tha;g;igg; ngw;Wf;nfhLj;jy;"

ix



x

Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

fy;tpf;fhd Rje;jpuk;

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

Kw;Nghf;Fr; rpe;jid 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

gy;tifik kw;Wk; 

cs;slf;fk;

r%f Md;kPfk;  

   
   

   
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

ehk; Nkw;nfhs;gitfis 

xg;gilj;jy;    
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

tpOkpak; 
01

tpOkpak; 
02

03

04

05

tpOkpak;

tpOkpak;

tpOkpak;

jdJ Kiwahd cau;fy;tp eltbf;iffs; ,ileLtpy; 

jilg;gl;l Kfhikahsu;fs; my;yhj Copau;fspd; ,ytrf; 

fy;tpf;fhd tha;g;ig njhlu;e;J Vw;gLj;jpf;nfhLg;gJld;> 

cau; fy;tpiag; ngw;Wf;nfhs;s KbahJNghd Kfhikj;Jt 

Copau;fs; kw;Wk; njhopy; ty;Ydu;fis tpUj;jp nra;tjid 

ehk; ghuhl;Lfpd;Nwhk;.

xt;nthUtUila flikfisAk; cau; mu;g;gzpg;Gld; 

Nkw;nfhz;L vkJ $l;L Kaw;rpapd; ngWNgWfis epahakhd 

Kiwapy; gfpu;e;Jnfhz;lthW kw;Wk; ehk; 

ngw;Wf;nfhz;ltw;iw kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpDs; 

kw;Wk; mjw;F ntspapy; vjpu;fhy re;jjpf;fhf epiyNgwhd 

tifapy; NgzpathW kw;Wk; Kd;Ndw;wpathW r%f 

Nkk;ghl;bw;fhf mYty; Nkw;nfhs;tjid ehk; kjpf;fpd;Nwhk;.

ehk; gy;tifikia kjpj;jy; khj;jpukd;wp vkJ epWtdk; 

kw;Wk; r%fk; gy;tifikapd; Clhf ed;ikfisg; 

ngw;Wf;nfhs;tjid cWjp nra;tjw;fhf vkJ gz;ghLfs;> 

ek;gpf;iffs;> gpd;dzp> jpwikfs; kw;Wk; mYty; 

Nehf;Fepiyapd; khw;wq;fis Vw;W tpUj;jpnra;Ak; 

cs;sPu;g;G fyhrhuj;ij ehk; kjpf;fpd;Nwhk;.

cl;nghUshf kw;Wk; Md;kPfkhf mgpyhirfisg; 

gupkhwpf;nfhs;Sk; gpuptpduhf 'FOthf" khWtjid 'ehk;" 

kjpg;gJld; mt;thW ehNk r%fnkhd;whff; 

fl;bnaOg;Gtjid ehk; kjpf;fpd;Nwhk;.

cau;fy;tp epWtdnkhd;whf ehk; Ngzptu Ntz;ba 

,ufrpaj;jd;ik kPwg;glhj msTf;F mwpT kw;Wk; 

jfty;fSf;fhf tiuaWf;fg;glhj gpuNtrj;ij 

nraY}f;fj;Jld; Cf;fg;gLj;JtJld; epWtdj;ijr; 

Nru;e;jtu;fspilNa kw;Wk; mjidAk; jhz;b 

gz;ghl;Lldhd rupahd elj;ijia ehk; Cf;Ftpf;fpd;Nwhk;.



xi

vkJ r%fk; Kd;Ndw Ntz;Lk; kw;Wk; Kd;Ndw 

KbAnkd ehk; ek;Gfpd;Nwhk;. ehk; vjpu;ghu;f;fpd;w 

Kd;Ndw;wk; njhlu;r;rpahdJk; gbg;gbahdJkhFk;. 

vkJ ,yf;fhfpa Kd;Ndw;wk; vkJ nghUshjhu> 

r%f> fyhrhu mgpyhirfspd; G+uz jOtyhFk;. 

Kw;Nghf;fhd r%fk; vd;gJ me;j r%fj;jpy; thOk; 

gpui[fspd; r%f> fyhrhu kw;Wk; murpay; mgpyhir 

fis ajhu;j;jkhf;fpf; nfhs;Sk; mikg;ghFnkd ehk; 

ek;Gfpd;Nwhk;.

2019 Mk; Mz;bw;fhd tUlhe;j mwpf;ifia 

rku;g;gpg;gjpy; ngU kfpor;rpailfpd;Nwd;. ,e;j Mz;by; 

kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; fy;tpapd; midj;Jg; 

gug;GfspYk; gl;lg;gpd; gbg;G> ,skhzpg; gl;lk;> bg;Nshkh 

kw;Wk; rhd;wpjo; kl;lq;fspy; gue;j mstpyhd epfo;r;rpj; 

jpl;lq;fis toq;fp tUk; xU Kd;dzp fy;tprhu; 

epWtdkhf Njrj;jpw;Fj; njhlu;e;J Nritahw;wp 

tUfpd;wJ. Fwpg;gpl;l Mz;by; Fwpg;gplj;jf;f tpNrl 

tplak; vd;dntdpy; khw;wj;jpw;fhd vkJ Muk;gj;ij 

njhlu;e;J Ngzp tUtjw;fhd vkJ mu;g;gzpg;ig 

kdpj ts mgptpUj;jpf;fhd KjyPl;bd; Clhf 

njspthFtjhFk;.

2019 Mk; Mz;by; kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpd; 

njhlu;r;rpahd tsu;r;rpia vLj;jpak;Gk; jdpr; rpwg;ghd 

gy ntw;wpfisg; ngw;Wf;nfhs;tjw;F KbAkhf 

,Ue;jJld; mJ vjpu;fhyj;jpw;F Kfq;nfhLg;gjw;fhd 

Maj;jk; vd;gjid czu;j;Jfpd;wJ.  Kjypy; 

epWtdk; gl;lg;gpd; gbg;G> epiwNtw;W / cau; bg;Nshkh 

kw;Wk; bg;Nshkh Nghd;w kWrPuikf;fg;gl;l fy;tprhu; 

jpl;lq;fis Muk;gpj;jJ. ,uz;lhtjhf> Gjpa gpupTfis 

Muk;gpj;J Copau;fisg; gapw;Wtpj;J kw;Wk; mjd; 

newpKiwfisj; jpUj;jpaikg;gjw;fhd mq;fPfhuj;ijg; 

ngw;Wf;nfhs;tjw;fhf ntspj;jug;gpdUld; eltbf;if 

Nkw;nfhz;L epWtdk; kWrPuikf;fg;gl;lJ. NkYk;> 

Kd;ida Mz;by; Muk;gpf;fg;gl;l ngsjPf Nkk;gLj;jy; 

jpl;lq;fis G+u;j;jp nra;tjw;F KbAkhfpaJ.

khztu; gupkhw;wy; Ntiyj; jpl;lq;fs; kw;Wk; 2019 

,Yk; njhlu;r;rpahf eilKiwg;gLj;jg;glTs;s %d;whk; 

jug;G gapw;rpj; jpl;lq;fisg; ngw;Wf;nfhs;tjw;fhf 

ntspehl;Lg; gy;fiyf;fofq;fSld; neUq;fpa 

tifapy; eltbf;if Nkw;nfhz;L epWtdj;jpd; 

ru;tNjrkag;gLj;jiy Nkk;gLj;Jtjw;F 2019 

Mk; Mz;by; ehk; ftdk; nrYj;jpNdhk;. vkJ 

ru;tNjrkag;gLj;jy; nraw;ghLfis xUq;fpizg;Gr; 

nra;tjw;fhf jdpahd xU gpupit ehk; jhgpj;Js;sJld 

njupT nra;ag;gl;l ntspehl;Lg; gy;fiyf;fofq;fSld; 

Gupe;Jzu;T cld;gbf;iffspy; ifr;rhj;jpLtjw;Fk; 

Kd;dpd;W eltbf;if Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;lJ.

nkhj;jkhf Rkhu; 589 khzt> khztpfs; fy;tp 

gapYk; kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpd; Kd;dzpj; 

jpl;lkhd njhopyhsu; fy;tpapay; gl;lg; ghlnewpf;fhf 

2019 Mk; Mz;by; Rkhu; 211 Gjpa khztu;fs; gjpT 

gzpg;ghsupd; 

kjpg;gha;twpf;if



xii

Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

nra;Jnfhz;Ls;sdu;. NkYk; rpNu\;l Kfhikj;Jt kl;lj;jpd; 

my;yJ njhoprhu; kl;lj;jpd; Rkhu; 887 khztu;fs; gl;lg;gpd 

gbg;G ghlnewpfisg; gapd;wJld; mg;ghlnewpfshtd>  tzpf 

Kfhikj;Jt gl;lg;gpd; gbg;G ghlnewp> kdpj tsq;fs; 

Kfhikj;Jt gl;lg;gpd; gbg;G ghlnewp> Nritfs; Kfhikj;Jt 

gl;lg;gpd; gbg;G ghlnewp> Gtpapay;rhu; jfty;fs;  tpQ;Qhdkhzp 

ghlnewp> kw;Wk; mdu;j;jg; gFg;gha;T> Kfhikj;Jtk; kw;Wk; 

epu;thfk; gw;wpa tpQ;Qhdkhzpg; ghlnewp vd;gdthFk;.

 

2019 fy;tpahz;by;  nkhj;jkhf 372 khztu;fs; mtu;fsJ tplak; 

njhlu;ghd mwpitg; ngUf;Ftjw;fhf bg;GNshkh fw;ifnewpfspy; 

gjpT nra;jpUg;gJld;> ,e;j Mz;L fhyg;gFjpapy; rhd;wpjo; 

fw;ifnewpfspw;Ff; $l nkhj;jkhf 5,065 khztu;fs; gjpTnra;J 

nfhz;Ls;sdu;. Mz;bDs; kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk; 11 

nrayku;Tfs; elhj;jpapUe;jJld; nkhj;jkhf 664 khztu;fs; jkJ 

mwpT mDgtj;ij Nkk;gLj;Jk; nghUl;L ,e;j nrayku;Tfspy; 

gq;Nfw;wpUe;jdu;.

kf;fs; xU Kw;Nghf;F r%fj;jpy; tho Ntz;Lk; vd;w tplaj;jpd; 

kPJ ftdk; nrYj;Jk; nfhOk;G gy;fiyf;fofj;jpd; kdpjts 

Nkk;ghl;L epWtdkhd ehk;> ,uz;L cd;dj ,yf;Ffis 

nraw;gLj;jpAs;Nshk;. mjhtJ>  Njitahd msT kw;Wk; juj;jpy; 

khdpl Mw;wy;fis tsu;j;jy; kw;Wk; $l;Lj; njupTfs; kw;Wk; 

xU $l;L Kaw;rpia Nkw;nfhs;SkhW gzpahsu; kw;Wk; Nkyhsu; 

Mfpa ,Ujg;gpdUf;Fk; fy;tpawpit mspj;jy; vd;gdthFk;. 

nfhOk;G gy;fiyf;fofj;jpd; kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdkhd 

ehk;> xU Kw;Nghf;fhd rKjhaj;jpy; tho;tjw;fhd fditf; 

nfhz;Ls;s kw;Wk; VidNahUf;Fk; tho;tjw;F ,lkspf;Fk; cq;fs; 

midtiuAk; me;j fdtpid xU ajhu;j;jkhf;fpf; nfhs;tjw;fhf 

kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdkhd vk;Kld; ,ize;Jnfhs;SkhW 

miog;G tpLf;fpd;Nwhk;.

Nguhrpupau; N[.V.v];.Nf. [anfhb

gzpg;ghsu; kw;Wk; fy;tprhu; FOtpd; jiytu;



xiii

 cs;slf;fk;

56 - 59

60 - 62

63 - 72

73 - 88

1. kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpd; tuyhW kw;Wk; mwpKfk;

1.1 kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk; gw;wp RUf;fkhf.
1.2. 2019 Mk; Mz;by; kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpdhy; elhj;jg;gl;l fy;tprhu; 

   ghlnewpfs;   

1.3. kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpd; Kfhikj;Jtk; 

1.4. kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpd; epu;thfk;rhu; epWtdf; fl;likg;G (2019)

1.5. kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpd; fy;tprhu; FO 

1.5.1. k.Nk. epWtdj;jpd; fy;tprhu; FO mq;fj;jtu;fs;  

1.5.2. k.Nk. epWtdj;jpd; fy;tprhu; FOtpdhy; elhj;jg;gl;l $l;lq;fspd; vz;zpf;if

2. 2019 ,y; epWtdj;jpd; mgptpUj;jp kw;Wk; milTfs;

2.1. mgptpUj;jpfs;

2.2. milTfs;

2.2.1. fy;tprhu; milTfs;

2.2.2. epu;thf milTfs;

2.2.3 ngsjPf trjpfisg; ngw;Wf;nfhs;sy;

2.3. khztu;fspd; Mw;wy; tpUj;jp

2.4. gzpahsu;fs; kw;Wk; khztu;fspd; ,izg; ghltpjhd nraw;ghLfs;

2.5. kdpjts Kfhikj;Jtk; epWtdj;jpd; $l;lhz;ik r%fg; nghWg;G

3. 2019 Mk; Mz;bd; kPsha;T

3.1 fw;ifg; ghlnewpfs;

3.1.1 gl;lg;gpd; gbg;G ghlnewpfs;

3.1.2. ,skhzp fw;if epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk;

3.1.2.1 njhopyhsu; fy;tpapy; ,skhzp (BLE) gl;l epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk;
3.1.3. epiwNtw;W  kw;wk; cau;; bg;Nshkh ghlnewpfs;

3.1.4 bg;Nshkh ghlnewpfs;

3.1.5. rhd;wpjo; ghlnewpfs;

3.2. 2019 Mk; Mz;by; gapw;rp nrayku;Tfs; gw;wpa tpguq;fs;

3.2.1. kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpd; gzpahl;njhFjpf;fhd gapw;rp

3.3. Muha;r;rp> Gj;jhf;fk; kw;Wk; ntspaPLfs; gw;wpa tpguq;fs;

3.4. fy;tprhu; gzpahl;njhFjpapd;> epu;thfk; kw;Wk; epu;thfk; rhuhj gzpahl;njhFjp 

   gw;wpa tpguq;fs;

3.5. E}yfk;

tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

1. epWtdk;rhu; jfty;fs;
1.1. mwpf;ifg;gLj;Jk; epWtdk; - epiyahd kw;Wk; rl;l uPjpahd gbtk;

1.2. gpujhd nraw;ghLfs; kw;Wk; eltbf;iffspd; jd;ik

1.3. epjp eltbf;if fhyg;gFjp

2. jahupg;gjw;fhd mbg;gil

2.1. jahupg;gjw;fhd mbg;gil

2.2. Kd;dpiyg;gLj;jy; kw;Wk; nraw;ghl;L ehazk; 

2.3. ,zf;f mwpf;if

2.4. epjpf; $w;Wf;fhd nghWg;Gf;fs; 

2.5. epfo;fhy tplak;

2.6. mwpf;ifg;gLj;Jk; jpfjpf;Fg; gpd;duhd epfo;Tfs;

2.7. xg;gPl;L vz;zpf;if 



xiv

Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

89 - 95

96 - 101

102 - 111

2.8. nghUl;fs;rhu; kw;Wk; jpul;Ljy;

2.9. ftdj;jpw;nfhs;s Ntz;ba fzf;fpay; KbTfs;> kjpg;gPLfs; kw;Wk; 
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3. ftdj;jpw;nfhs;s Ntz;ba fzf;fPl;Lf; nfhs;iffs; gw;wpa nghopg;G 
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3.2. epiyahd nrhj;Jf;fs;
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3.4. jfty; njhopy;El;gj;Jld; rk;ge;jkhd nrhj;Jf;fs; 

3.5. tu;j;jfk; kw;Wk; Vida mwplg;gl Ntz;bait 

3.6. gzpf;nfhil

3.7. gy;fiyf;fof Nrkyhg epjpak; kw;Wk; Copau; ek;gpf;if epjpak; 

3.8. nryTfis ,dq;fhzy; 

3.9. epfo;fhyg; nghWg;Gf;fs;

3.10. fldhspfs; kw;Wk; rhd;wspf;fg;gl;l nryTfs;

3.11. vjpu;ghuh nghWg;Gf;fs;

3.12. %yjd khdpak;

3.13. kPz;nlOk; khdpak;

3.14. tiuaWf;fg;gl;l epjpak;

3.15. tUkhdj;ij ,dq;fhzy;

3.16. fhRg; gha;r;ry; $w;Wf;fs;

2019 brk;gu; 31 jpfjpAld; Kbtile;j Mz;bw;fhd epjpr; nrayhw;Wif gw;wpa 

$w;W 

2019 brk;gu; 31 jpfjpAld; Kbtile;j Mz;bw;fhd epjp epiyikf; $w;W

2019 brk;gu; 31 jpfjpAld; Kbtile;j Mz;bw;fhd cupikfs; / Njwpa nrhj;Jf;fspd; 
khw;wq;fs; gw;wpa $w;W

2019 brk;gu; 31 jpfjpAld; Kbtile;j Mz;bw;fhd fhRg; gha;r;ry; $w;W

epjpf; $w;Wf;fSf;fhd Fwpg;Gf;fs; 

2018 ,d; 19 Mk; ,yf;f Njrpa fzf;fha;Tr; rl;lj;jpd;  III Mk; gpuptpd; ,yf;fk; 

17 (,) ,d; fPo; Fwpg;gplg;gl;Ls;s Ngz;jF mgptpUj;jpia mbg;gilahff;nfhz;l 

vjpu;fhy vjpu;ghu;g;Gf;fs; njhlu;ghd mwpf;if - 2019

fzf;fha;T mwpf;if

2019k; Mz;;Lf;fhd fzf;fha;T rk;ge;jkhd fUj;Jf;fs;
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kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpd; tuyhW fpl;lj;jl;l ehd;F 

jrhg;jq;fspYk; mjpfkhf ,Ug;gJld; mjd; Kd;Ndhbahd; 1979 Mk; 

Mz;L 11 Mk; ,yf;f fl;lisr; rl;lj;jpd; fPo;> mJ 2006 Mk; Mz;L 

01 Mk; ,yf;f fl;lisr; rl;lj;jpdhy; jpUj;jg;gl;lJ> 1975 Mk; Mz;L 

jhgpf;fg;gl;l njhopyhsu; fy;tp epWtdk; tiu gpd; nry;fpd;wJ. 2006 

Mk; Mz;by;> njhopyhsu; fy;tp epWtdk; kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; 

vd ngauplg;gl;lJ. gl;lk;, bg;Nshkhf;fs;, rhd;wpjo;, kw;Wk; Vida 
fy;tprhh; gl;lq;fis toq;f kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpw;F mjpfhuk; 

toq;f mjd; fl;lisr; rl;lk; 2017 Mk; Mz;by; jpUj;jpaikf;fg;gl;lJ.

 

mjd; Rkhu; ehd;F jrhg;j tuyhw;Wf; fhyg; gFjpapy;> kdpjts 

Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk; mjd; Rw;Wr;#oypDs; gy khw;wq;fisAk; Gjpa 

Nkk;ghLfisAk; fz;bUf;fpd;wJ> mtw;Ws; rpytw;iwf; Fwpg;gpLtjhapd; 

jdpahu;j; Jiwapd; tsu;r;rp> mwpTrhu; nghUshjhuj;jpd; Njhw;wk; kw;Wk; 

njhopyhsu; gilapd; G+Nfhskakhf;fy; Fwpg;gplj;jf;fdthf cs;sd. 

,e;j mgptpUj;jpfis jOTk; mjd; Kaw;rpapy;> kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L 

epWtdk; njhlu;r;rpahf gupzhk tsu;r;rpaile;J ,Ug;gJld; mjd; 

mry; Nehf;fk; "NtiyFOf;fis fw;gpj;jy;" xU Gjpa fUj;jpidg; 

ngw;wpUf;fpd;wJ. jw;nghOJ cs;sthW 'Ntiy-FO" vdf; fUjg;gLtJ 

'Kfhikj;Jtk;rhu;/ njhopy;rhu; Ntiy-FOf;fs;"> kw;Wk;> kdpjts 

Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk; 'Kfhikj;Jtk;rhu;/ njhopy;rhu; Ntiy-FOf;fspd;" 

kdpj jpwidAk; $l Nkk;gLj;Jtjw;F mu;g;gzpj;Js;sJ.

nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofj;jpd; fPo; ,aq;Fk; epWtdkhf> mjd; 

fy;tprhu; nraw;ghLfs; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofj;jpd; jPtpu 

fz;fhzpg;Gf;Fl;gLfpd;wJ. Mifahy; kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk; 

mjd; midj;J fy;tprhu; mYty;fspYk; cau; juq;fisg; NgZtjw;F 

fl;Lg;gl;bUg;gJld; ve;j cau; fw;wy; epWtdKk; Ngz Ntz;bAs;s 

ey;y ghuk;gupaq;fis njhlu;e;Jk; Kd;ndLj;Jr; nry;tjw;F kdpjts 

Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk; flikg;gl;Ls;sJ.

 

njhopyhsu; fy;tp epWtdk; njhlf;fj;jpy; midj;J tifahd 

Ntiyahl;fSf;Fk; xU gzpahsuhf mtu;fSila Ntiyj; jyj;jpy; 

gaDWjpahd gq;fspg;gpid toq;FkhW mtu;fSila nghWg;Gf;fis 

Gupe;Jnfhs;Sjy; kw;Wk; mtu;fSila jpwd;fs;> jiyikj;Jtg; 

gz;Gfis Nkk;gLj;Jjw; nghUl;L Vw;Wf; nfhs;sj;jf;f jukhd 

tpupthd cau; jukhd fy;tp trjpfis toq;Fk; Nehf;fj;Jld; 

Muk;gpf;fg;gl;lJld; Kf;fpakhf 1983 Mk; Mz;L tiu fiy ,skhzp 

gl;lj;jpid toq;fpaJ. vt;thwhapDk;> 1986 Mk; Mz;by; njhopyhsu; 

fy;tp epWtdk; njhopyhsu; fy;tpapy; ,skhzpg; (BLE) gl;lj;ij 

toq;fj; njhlq;fpaJ. 2007 Mk; Mz;L fhyg; gFjpapy; kdpjts 

Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk; mjd; fy;tprhu; eltbf;iffis tpupthf;fpaJld; 

KJkhzpg; gl;lq;fisAk; $l toq;f Muk;gpj;jJ.

1.1. kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; gw;wpr; RUf;fkhf
2019 Mk; Mz;by; kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk; 800 gl;lg;gpd; gbg;G 

khztu;fs; cl;gl 6,000 ,w;Fk; mjpfkhd khzt khztpfSf;F 

fy;tpia toq;fpAs;sJ. kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk;> mJ 

mikf;fg;gl;ljd; Nehf;fj;ij ftdj;jpw;nfhz;L khw;wkilAk; fy;tpj; 

jpl;lq;fis toq;Ffpd;wJ. kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk;  gpujhdkhf 

njhopy; Gupgtu;fSf;F mtu;fs; njhopy; GupAk; #oYf;F nghUe;Jk; 

tifapy; jkJ Mw;wy;fs;> jpwikfs; kw;Wk; jiyikj;Jt Mw;wy;fis 

tpUj;jp nra;J nfhs;tjw;fhfNt jdJ Nritia toq;Ffpd;wJ. 

2019 Mk; Mz;by; 04 ghlnewpfspd; fPo; 6,000 ,w;Fk; mjpfkhd khzt 

khztpfSf;F Nritia toq;f KbAkhfpaJ. khzt khztpfs; 

fPNo Fwpg;gplg;gLk; gpufhuk; ghlnewpfspy; ,izj;Jf;nfhs;sg;gl;ldu; 

:2018 - 2022 fhyg; gFjpf;fhd %Nyhghaj; jpl;lj;jpw;F gq;fspg;ig 

toq;fpathW 05 gl;lg;gpd; gbg;Gg; ghlnewpfs;> 01 ,skhzpg; gl;lg; 

kdpjts 
Nkk;ghl;L 
epWtdj;jpd; 
tuyhW



57

Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

ghlnewp> 04 bg;Nshkh ghlnewpfs; kw;Wk;  08 rhd;wpjo; ghlnewpfs; elhj;jg;gl;ld.

13%

5%

9%

73%

khztu; gjpTfs; - 2019

gl;lg;gpd; 

ghlnewpfs;

,skhzpg; gl;lg; 

ghlnewpfs;

epiwNtw;W / cau; 

bg;Nshkh 

ghlnewpfs;

rhd;wpjo; 

ghlnewpfs;

2019 Mk; Mz;by; NkNy Fwpg;gplg;gl;ljd; gpufhuk; nkhj;jkhf 6,913 khzt khztpfs; 

gy;NtW ghlnewpfisg; gapd;Ws;sdu;.

%yk; - Nrfupf;fg;gl;l juTfs; 2019> k.t.Nk.ep.  

1.2. 2019 Mk; Mz;by; kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfj;jpdhy; elhj;jg;gl;l 

   fy;tprhu; ghlnewpfs;

 gl;lg;gpd; gbg;G ghlnewp

•	Nrit Kfhikj;Jt tpQ;Qhd KJkhzpg; gl;lg; ghlnewp

•	Gtpapay; jfty; El;gj;jpy; tpQ;Qhd KJkhzpg; ghlnewp

•	tzpf Kfhikj;Jt KJkhzpg; gl;lg; ghlnewp  

•	kdpj ts Kfhikj;Jt KJkhzpg; gl;lg; ghlnewp

•	mdu;j;jg; gFg;gha;T> Kfhikj;Jtk; kw;Wk; fl;Lg;ghL 

 rk;ge;jkhd tpQ;Qhd KJkhzpg; ghlnewp

•	 njhopyhsu; fy;tpapay; gl;lg; ghlnewp  ,skhzpg; gl;lg; ghlnewp

•	 kdpj ts Kfhikj;Jtj;jpy; epiwNtw;W bg;GNshkh 

• Rw;Wyh epfo;r;rpfs; kw;Wk; tpUe;Njhk;gy; Kfhikj;Jtj;jpy; epiwNtw;W 

 bg;GNshkh

• MNyhrid kw;Wk; cstpaypy; cau; bg;GNshkh 

• Nghijg;nghUs; J\;gpuNahf Kfhikj;Jtf; fw;iffspy; bg;GNshkh

• MNyhrid kw;Wk; cstpaypy; bg;GNshkh 

• Nkyjpf nkhopahf jkpo; nkhop bg;GNshkh
• njhopyhsu; fy;tp bg;GNshkh

epiwNtw;W/ cau; 

bg;Nshkh kw;Wk; 

bg;Nshkh ghlnewp 

•	fzpzp gad;ghLfspy; rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp

•	Mq;fpy nkhopapy; rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp

•	Mrpupau;fSf;fhd Mq;fpy nkhopapy; rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp

•	ghlrhiyia tpl;Lr; nry;gtu;fSf;fhd FWfpa fhy Mq;fpyg; ghlnewp

•	Ngr;R Mq;fpyj;jpy; rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp

•	Mq;fpy nkhopapy; mbg;gilf; ghlnewp

•	jkpo; nkhop rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp - mbg;gil kl;lk;

•	jkpo; nkhop rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp - ,ilepiy kl;lk;

rhd;wpjo; 

ghlnewpfs; 
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rthy;kpf;f cyfshtpa epiyikfSf;F Kfk; nfhLg;gjw;Fg;Nghd;Nw vkJ Njrpa mgptpUj;jpapy; khdpl 

mbj;jsk;  tYT+l;Lk; Kjpu;e;j> tpNtfKs;s "mwpitg; gad;gLj;Jgtu;fs;” kdpj tsj;jpid Nkk;gLj;Jtjw;F 
KOtJkhf mu;gzpf;fg;gl;l rhy;GkpF epWtdkhfj; jpfo;tjw;F kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk; vjpu;ghu;f;fpd;wJ. 

,e;j Nehf;fj;ij mile;Jnfhs;tjw;fhf kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofj;jpy; ,Ue;J 

kuGupikahfg; ngwg;gl;l tskhd fy;tprhu; ghuk;gupak; kw;Wk; cau; fy;tprhu; juq;fis  cWjpnra;jthW 

ghupa gupzhkj;jpw;F cl;gl;L tUfpd;wJ. mjd; fw;ifnewpfSf;fhf cs;ehl;L kw;Wk; cyfshtpa 

jug;gLj;jy;fisg; ngw;Wf;nfhs;sy; kw;Wk; epu;thfj;jpd; juq;fis G+u;j;jpnra;jy;> cau; Nfs;tpiaf;nfhz;l 

milahskhf kw;Wk; r%fk; rhu;e;j nghWg;Gf;fisf;nfhz;l mur epWtdkhf gupzkpj;jy; ,e;jg; gupzhkj;jpd; 

,yf;fhFk;.

1.3. kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfj;jpd; Kfhikj;Jtk;
xU KONeu cj;jpNahfj;juhfg; gzpahw;Wk;  epWtdj;jpd; epu;thf kw;Wk; fy;tprhu; jiytuhd gzpg;ghsu;> 

kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpd; fy;tprhu; FOtpd; gupe;Jiuapd; Ngupy; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofj;jpd; 

Nguitapd; mDkjpAld; JizNte;juhy; epakpf;fg;gLthu;. gzpg;ghsu; fy;tprhu; FOtpd; jiytuhf> fw;iffs; 

rigfspd; xU gjtptop cWg;gpduhf ,Uf;fpd;whu;. mtu; epWtdj;jpd; gpujhd nghWg;Gf; $Wk; mYtyu; 

MfTk; epWtdj;jpDs; xOf;fhw;wpw;Fg; nghWg;ghd mYtyuhfTk; cs;shu;. Nguhrpupau; N[.V.v];.Nf. [anfhb> 

nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fof Kfhikj;Jt kw;Wk; epjpg; gPlj;jpy; Kfhikj;Jtk; kw;Wk; epWtd fw;iffs; 

Jiwapy; ,izg; Nguhrpupauhf ,Ug;ggtuhthu;. 2018 [dtup> 25 Mk; jpfjpapypUe;J mKYf;F tUk; tifapy; 

%d;W tUlq;fSf;F epue;j gzpg;ghsuhf epakpf;fg;gl;Ls;shu;.

epWtdj;jpd; epWtdf; fl;likg;G fPNo Fwpg;gplg;gl;Ls;sJ.

1.4. kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfj;jpd; epu;thfk;rhu; epWtdf; fl;likg;G (2019)

tpupthf;fy; epfo;r;rpj; 

jpl;lq;fs; fw;if 

rig 

gl;lg;gpd; gbg;G 

fy;tp kw;Wk; 

Muha;r;rp fw;if 

rig

,skhzpg; gl;lg; 

ghlnewpfs; fw;if 

rig 

nkhopf; fw;if 

jpl;lq;fs; fw;if 

rig

gzpg;ghsu;

guPl;ir kw;Wk; 

kjpg;gPl;Lf; FO 
jug; ghJfhg;Gf; 

FO
fzf;fha;Tf; 

FO 
epjpf; FO 

fy;tprhu; Mszp E}yfkgpupTfs;
epu;thfk; kw;Wk; 

epjpg; gpupT

gpujpg; gjpthsu; mYtyfk

rpNu\;l cjtp epjpg; 

nghWg;ghsu; mYtyfk

rpNu\;l cjtpg; gjpthsu; 

mYtyfk;

cjtp epjpg; nghWg;ghsu; 

mYtyfk

gl;lg;gpd; gbg;G gpupT 

Muha;r;rpg; gpupT  

njhopyhsu; fy;tp gpupT 

khztu; cjtp gpupT 

 epiNtw;W mgptpUj;jpg; gpupT 

nkhopg; gapw;rp gpupT 

fzdp Ma;T$lk

fy;tprhu; FO

cjtpg; gjpthsu; mYtyfk

mJ epWtdj;jpd; ePz;lfhy jpl;lj;jpw;F ,zq;f tbtikf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ.
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1.5. kdpjts Kfhikj;Jt epWtdj;jpd; fy;tprhu; FO
NkNy Fwpg;gplg;gl;Ls;sjd; gpufhuk; ehd;F (4) fw;if rigfSk;  fy;tprhu; FOtpd; mq;fPfhuj;Jld; 

mikf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ. fw;if tplaj; Jiw kw;Wk; Fwpg;gpl;l VO (7) gpupTfSk; gzpg;ghsupd; topfhl;lypd; fPo; 

mikf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ.

1.5.1. fy;tprhu; FO mq;fj;jtu;fs; (09 $l;lq;fs; elhj;jg;gl;Ls;sJ)

ngau; epakd mjpfhuk

Nguh. N[.V.v];.Nf. [af;nfhb jiytu; 

Nguh. gpNukFkhu b rpy;th gjtptop epakd mq;fj;jtu;

Nguh. Nf.Mu;.Mu;. kfhdhk gjtptop epakd mq;fj;jtu;

Nguh. (jpUkjp) vk;.tP. tpjhzgj;jpuz gjtptop epakd mq;fj;jtu;

Nguh. nfdb Fztu;jd g.kh.M. FOtpdhy; epakpf;fg;gl;l mq;fj;jtu;

Nguh. [aNjt cad;nfhl g.kh.M. FOtpdhy; epakpf;fg;gl;l mq;fj;jtu;

Nguh. (jpUkjp) eadp nkhynfhl g.kh.M. FOtpdhy; epakpf;fg;gl;l mq;fj;jtu;

Nguh. k`pe;j Nrhkjpyf;f (2019.05.12 

tiu) 
g.kh.M. FOtpdhy; epakpf;fg;gl;l mq;fj;jtu;

Nguh. X.vk;.v];. nrha;rh (2018.05.13 

Kjy;) 
g.kh.M. FOtpdhy; epakpf;fg;gl;l mq;fj;jtu;

fyhepjp (jpUkjp)jpDfh tpN[Jq;f g.kh.M. FOtpdhy; epakpf;fg;gl;l mq;fj;jtu;

jpU. B.vk;.v];. jrehaf;f g.kh.M. FOtpdhy; epakpf;fg;gl;l mq;fj;jtu;

jpU. vd;. nry;tFkhud; g.kh.M. FOtpdhy; epakpf;fg;gl;l mq;fj;jtu;

jpU. Vr;.vk;.vd.; tuf;fhcy;y g.kh.M. FOtpdhy; epakpf;fg;gl;l mq;fj;jtu;

jpU. Nf.V. tpkNye;jpuuh[hh jpiwNrup gpujpepjp

Nguh. V.V. mrP]; fw;ifr; rig gpujpepjp

fyhepjp vk;.[P.[P. N`kFkhu fw;ifr; rig gpujpepjp

jpUkjp Nf.gP. khj;njhl;lMur;rp fw;ifr; rig gpujpepjp

jpUkjp gP.Nf.gp. mNg#upa fw;ifr; rig gpujpepjp

1.5.2. kdpjts Kfhikj;Jt epWtdj;jpd; fw;ifr; rigfspdhy; elhj;jg;gl;l 

    $l;lq;fs;

fw;ifr; rig elhj;jg;gl;l $l;lq;fspd; vz;zpf;if

gl;lg;gpd; fw;iffs; kw;Wk; Muha;r;rp fw;ifr;rig  09

,skhzpg; gl;l fw;iffs; njhlHghd fw;ifr;rig 10

nkhopfs; fw;gpj;jy; njhlHghd fw;ifr;rig 09

tpupthf;fy; epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fs; njhlHghd 

fw;ifr;rig 
10

fy;tprhu; FOTf;F Neubahf nghWg;Gf;$Wk; 04 FOf;fis epWtdf; fl;likg;G nfhz;Ls;sJ. me;jf; 

FOf;fs; gw;wpa tpguk; fPNo Fwpg;gplg;gl;Ls;sJ.

FO elhj;jg;gl;l $l;lq;fspd; vz;zpf;if 

fzf;fha;Tf; FO (xU RahjPdf; FOthFk;) 04
epjpf; FO 11
E}yf FO 02
jug; ghJfhg;Gf; FO 01
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2.1. mgptpUj;jpfs;
–	 2006 ,d; 01 Mk; ,yf;f jpUj;jg;gl;l jw;NghJ mKy;gLj;jg;gLk; 

1979 ,d; 11 Mk; ,yf;f kdpj ts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpd; 

fl;lisia jpUj;jpaikf;f eltbf;if Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;lJ.

–	 njhopyhsu; fy;tpapay; gl;lg; ghlnewpapid njhopyhsu; 

Kfhikj;Jt rpwg;G gl;lg; ghlnewp kw;Wk; njhopyhsu; 

Kfhikj;Jt nghJ gl;lg; ghlnewpahfTk; ngah; khw;w 

Njitahd Muk;g mDkjpapid ngwWtfjw;fhd eltbf;iffs; 

Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;ld. mjd;gb khzth;fSf;F tpupthd tha;g;ig 

toq;Ftjw;fhf ghlj;jpl;lk; khw;wpaikf;fg;gLk;.

–	 Gzpg;ghsu; mYtyfk;, $l;l miw kw;Wk ghuPl;irfs; gpupT 

Nghd;wit ,lkhw;wg;gl;L etPd kag;gLj;jg;gl;lJ.

–	 gupe;Jiuf;fg;gl;ljjw;jpzq;f epjpg; gpupthdJ Kw;wpYk; etPd 

kag;gLj;jg;gl;l tpupTiu kz;lgkhf khw;wg;gl;lJ.

–	 midj;J etPd kag;gLj;jg;gl;l trjpfis nfhz;l juT 

ikak; cUthf;fg;gl;lJ.

–	 Gzpg;ghsu; mYtyfk;, $l;l miw, ghuPl;irfs; gpupT 

kw;Wk; Ntiyj; jsq;fs; Nghdwtw;wpw;F jfty; njhlu;ghly; 

tiyaikg;G G+uzg;gLj;jg;gl;lJ. rfy tpupTiu kz;lgq;fs; 

kw;Wk; epUthf gpupTk; Fwpj;j Mz;by; g+udg;gLj;jg;gl;lJ. 

–	 epiyahd nrhj;Jf;fs; gjpNtL midj;J nghUl;fs; 

gl;baYlDk; fzdpkag;gLj;jg;l;lJ.

2.2. milTfs;

2.2.1. fy;tprhu; milTfs;

–   Njrpa Mgj;jhd kUe;J fl;Lg;ghl;L rigAld; ,ize;J 

Nghijg; nghUl;fs; ghtid Kfhikj;Jtk; gw;wpa bg;Nshkh 

ghlnewp cUf;fg;gl;lJ.

–       kTz;l; yhtpdpah Nfhl;lYld; ,ize;J Rw;Wyh, epfo;Tfs;, 
kw;Wk; cgrupg;G Kfhikj;Jt epiwNtw;W bg;Nshkh ghlnewpia 

cUthf;Ftjw;fhf ,Ujug;Gf;Fkpilapyhd Gupe;Jzh;T 

xg;ge;jk; njhlu;ghd Kz;NdLg;Gfs; Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;Ls;sJ. 

–    ClhLk; fw;gpj;jy; fw;wy; Kiw njhopyhsu; fy;tpapay; gl;lg; 

ghlnewp, gl;lg;gpd; fw;ifnewp,  epiwNtw;W/ cau; bg;Nshkh 

fw;ifnewp/ bg;Nshkh kw;Wk; rhd;wpjo; fw;ifnewpfSf;F 

mwpKfg;gLj;jg;gl;lJ.

–   rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp jtpu;e;j midj;J ghlnewpfSk; fw;wy; 

Kfhikj;Jt KiwikapDhlhf (LMS) fw;gpf;fg;gl;;lJ. (LMS) 
Clhf fljhrpfs; ,y;yhj #oy; cUthf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ.

–    njhopyhsu; fy;tpapay; gl;lg; ghlnewp MdJ khztu;fSf;F 

gue;j re;ju;g;gq;fis Vw;gLj;jp njhopyhsu; Kfhikj;Jt 

rpwg;G gl;lg; ghlnewp kw;Wk; njhopyhsu; Kfhikj;Jt nghJ 

gl;lg; ghlnewpahf ngah; kw;wg;gl;lJ. 

–    bg;Nshkh ghlnewpfSf;F fyg;G fw;gpj;jy; kw;Wk; fw;wy; (BTL) 
Kiw mwpKfk; nra;ag;gl;lJ. 

2019 ,y ; 

epWtdj ;jpd ; 

mg pt pUj ;jp kw ;Wk ; 

milTfs ;
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– bg;Nshkh / cau; bg;Nshkh ghlnewpfspd; 

ghlj;jpl;lk; kWrPuikf;fg;gl;lJ.

elhj;jg;gl;l gapw;rpg;gl;liwfs;

•	 cstpay; MNyhrid cau; bg;Nshkh 

kw;Wk; bg;Nshkh ghlnewp ghlj;jpl;l Nkk;ghL 

njhlu;ghd gapw;rp gl;liwfs;.

•	 kdpjts Nkk;ghlL epWtdj;jpd; fy;tprhu; 

Copau;fs; kw;Wk; tUifjU fy;tprhu; 

Copau;fSf;fhf Ma;T jiyg;ig 

mgptpUj;jpnra;jy; njhlu;ghd gapw;rp 

gl;liw.

•	 Mq;fpy nkhop fw;gpj;jy; ghlnewpf;fhf 

tUifjUk; gapw;Wtpg;ghsu;fSf;fhd 

Mrpupau; Nkk;ghL gapw;rp gl;liw.

•	 mbg;gil jkpo; nkhopia fw;gpf;Fk; 

tUifjUk; gapw;Wtpg;ghsu;fSf;fhf gapw;rp 

mspg;gjw;fhd Mrpupah; Nkk;ghl;L gapw;rp 

gl;liwf.

–	 gl;ljhup gz;Gfspd; gug;ig mwpKfk; nra;jik.

•	 ,U gl;l ghlnewpfshd njhopyhsu;; 

Kfhikj;Jt ,skhdp gl;l ghlnewp kw;Wk; 

njhopyhsu;; Kfhikj;Jt ,skhdp rpwg;G 

gl;l ghlnewp gl;l ghlnewpfSf;F gl;ljhup 

gz;Gfspd; gug;G mwpKfk; nra;jik.

•	 tpUe;Jgrhu Kfhikj;Jt kw;Wk; Rw;Wyh 

epfo;r;rp epiwNtw;W bg;Nshkh mj;Jld; 

Nrit Kfhikj;Jt bg;Nshkh kw;Wk; 

epiwNtw;W bg;Nshkh vd;gd gl;ljhupfspd; 

gz;GfSld;; ,izf;fg;gl;lJ.

•	 Nkw;Fwpg;gplg;gl;l gz;Gfs;; njhopy; kw;Wk; 

gy;fiyf;fofj;jpd; epGzu;fSld; ,ize;J 

cUthf;fg;gl;lJ.

–	 Mq;fpyk; kw;Wk; jkpo; ghl epfo;r;rpfspd; 

ghlj;jpl;lq;fis kjpg;gha;T nra;aJ mj;Jld; 

cau; kw;Wk; Muk;g epiy Mq;fpy kw;Wk; jkpo; ghl 

epfo;r;rpfSf;F ghlE}y;fs; ntspaplg;gl;Ls;sJ.

– E}yf jfty; Kiwik kw;Wk; “B ,];Ng];” 
nkd;nghUs;fs; epWtg;gl;lJ.

ru;tNjr tpUJfspy; gq;Nfw;wy;

•	 kNyrpahtpd; kyhahg; gy;fiyf;fofj;jpy; 

elhj;jg;gl;l  tUifjU FbapUg;G 

khztu; ghlnewpapy;  gq;Nfw;wik. (Ie;J 

cWg;gpdu;fs;)

•	 ];ngapdpy; elhj;jg;gl;l jpwd;Nkd;ghL gapw;rp 

gl;liwapy; fye;J gq;Nfw;wik.

•	 khiyjPtpy; ,lk;ngw;w ru;tNjr fy;tpf; 

fz;fhl;rpapy; gpujpepjpj;Jtk; nra;jik.  

(ru;tNjr fy;tp kw;Wk; njhopy; ntspg;ghL).

2.2.2. epu;thf milTfs;

–	 07 cs;Sh; kw;Wk; rh;tNjr fUj;juq;Ffs; 

cs;slq;fyhf 2019 Mk; Mz;by; Mszpapd; 

Nritj; juj;ij mjpfupf;Fk; Nehf;fpy; 09 

fUj;juq;Ffs;; (nrayku;Tfs;) ntw;wpfukhf 

elhj;jpaJ. ,J jtpu fy;tprhh; kw;Wk; fy;tprhuh 

cj;jpNahfj;jh;fs; gy rh;tNjr fUj;juq;Ffspy; 

fye;Jnfhz;ldu;. mj;Jld; fy;tprhh; 

cjtjp kw;Wk; fy;tprhuh cj;jpNahfj;jh;fs; 

njhopy;uPjpahf jq;fis mgptpUj;jpnra;tjw;fhf 

05 fUj;juq;FfspYk; fye;Jnfhz;ldu;.

–	 epiyahd nrhj;J gjpNtl;bid fzpdpkakhf;fy; 

Kbe;jJ. mNj Neuj;jpy; gpupTuPjpahd epiyahd 

nrhj;J gjpTfSk; epiwtile;jd.

–	 midj;J gpupTfspYk; cj;jpNahfj;jh;fSf;fhd 

Ntiy tpsf;fq;fSk; tbtikf;fg;gl;ld.

–	 nug;Ngh (REPO) rp];lk; mwpKfg;gLj;jg;gl;lJ. 

–	 I.vr;.Mu;.V jdJ fy;tpf; nraw;ghLfis 

tYg;gLj;j 2019 Mk; Mz;by; xU tpupTiuahsiu 

(ed;dlj;ij) epakpj;jJ.	

–	 NkYk;> kNyrpahtpy; mike;Js;s kNy 

gy;fiyf;fofj;Jld; gzpahsu; gupkhw;wk; kw;Wk; 

gapw;rpj; toq;Fjy; nray;ghl;il I.vr;.Mu;.V 

njhlq;fpaJ.

2.2.3 ngsjPf trjpfisg; ngw;Wf;nfhs;sy;

2019 Mk; Mz;by;> I.vr;.Mu;.V cah;e;j kl;l 

cs;fl;likg;G trjpfis mile;jJ.

•	 gioa epjpf; fpis tshfk; midj;J etPd 

trjpfSld; $ba tpupTiu kz;lgkhf 

kWrPuikf;fg;gl;lJ> ,J 77 khztu;fSf;F 

,lkspf;Fk;.

•	 gioa guPl;ir fpisia tpupTiuahsu; 

kz;lgkhf khw;wpaJld; kw;Wk; kPjKs;s 

gFjpapy; gzpepiyaj;ij tpupTgLj;jpaik

•	 gioa $l;l miwia xU etPd $l;l 

miwahf khw;wpaJld;; ,af;Feupd; miwia 

fl;baJ.

•	 fhrhsh;; fTz;lu; kw;Wk; gz;lfrhiyfis 

kWfl;likj;jik

 

•  NkYk;> nghypjPd; ,y;yhj R+oiy cUthf;Fk; 

murhq;ff; nfhs;ifia tshfj;jpw;Fs; 

mKy;gLj;j I.vr;.Mu;.V midj;J 

eltbf;iffisAk; vLj;jJ.
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2.3. khztu;fspd; Mw;wy; tpUj;jp
ntspehl;L ,izthf;fk; 
kNyrpahtpd; kyhah gy;fiyf;fofj;Jld; I.vr;.Mu;.V jdJ fy;tpj; juq;fis 

Nkk;gLj;Jtjw;fhf khztu; gupkhw;wy; jpl;lj;ijj; Muk;gpj;jJ.

Kfhikj;Jt kw;Wk; eLj;ju Kfhikj;Jt jpwd; mgptpUj;jp  
gpd;tUk; nrayku;T kw;Wk; fsk; nrd;W ghu;itaply;  %yk; 2019 Mk; Mz;by; 

IHRA jdJ KJfiy khztu;fspd; Muha;r;rp nray;jpwid tYg;gLj;j Kbe;jJ

Nrit Kfhikj;Jt tpQ;QhdKJkhzpapy; nrayku;T kw;Wk; fs nrd;W 

ghu;itaply;

• Muha;r;rp fl;Liu rku;g;gpj;jy;  kw;Wk; fy;tp rhu;e;j VOj;J jpwd;

• r%f mwptpaYf;fhd Gs;sptptu njhFg;G (SPSS) gapw;rp nrayku;T gFjp 1.
• SPSS gapw;rp nrayku;T gFjp 11

tzpf Kfhikj;Jt KJkhzpg; gl;lg; ghlnewp kw;Wk; kdpj ts Kfhikj;Jt 

KJkhzpg; gl;lg; ghlnewpfSf;fhd  nrayku;T kw;Wk; fsk; nrd;W ghu;itaply;

•  Kfhikj;Jt Nfhl;ghLfs; kw;Wk; eilKiwfs; - MBM ghlnewp ,y.07 
•  Kfhikj;Jt Nfhl;ghLfs; kw;Wk; eilKiwfs; - MHRM ghlnewp ,y.09 
•  Kfhikj;Jt Nfhl;ghLfs; kw;Wk; eilKiwfs; - MBM  ghlnewp ,y. 7/B1

fy;tprhh; fsk; nrd;W ghu;itaply

        •   gq;Nfw;G NguopT fz;fhzpj;jy; 

        •   NguopT ,lu; kjpg;gPL.

2.4. gzpahsu;fs; kw;Wk; khztu;fspd; ,izg; ghltpjhd   

   nraw;ghLfs; (Vw;ghL nra;j kw;Wk; gq;Fgw;wpa)
–            njhopyhsu; fy;tpapay; gl;lg; ghlnewpapd; Kjyhk; tUl khztu;fs;; 

jpwikia ntspf;fhl;Lk; epfo;r;rpia nfhOk;G gy;fiyf;fofj;jpd; Gjpa 

fiy muq;fpy; Vw;ghLnra;jJ.

–	 gzpahsu; xUtu; ,e;jpahtpy; ,lk;ngw;w G+g;ge;J Nghl;bapy; gq;Nfw;whu;.

2.5. kdpjts Kfhikj;Jtk; epWtdj;jpd; $l;lhz;ik r%fg; 

   nghWg;G
–           njhopyhsu; fy;tpapay; gl;lg;  ghlnewpapd; %d;whk; tUl khztu;fshy; 

jhtuq;fs; toq;fy; epfo;r;rp  ‘JUtp khel rtpaf;’ ,q;fpupahtpy; cs;s 

td guhkupg;G jpizf;fs tshfj;jpDs; xOq;F nra;ag;gl;lJ.

–         kdpjts Kfhikj;Jt gzpahsu;fSk;  njhopyhsu; fy;tpapay; gl;lg;  

ghlnewpapd; khztu;fSk; xUq;fpize;J Gj;jf md;gspg;G epfo;r;rpia 

mk;ghiwapy; cs;s jPfthgp kfh tpj;jpahyaj;jpy; xOq;F nra;ag;gl;lJ. 

mj;NjhL E}yf jsthlq;fs;, cgfuzq;fs; kw;Wk; E}yf Gj;jfq;fisAk; 

md;gspg;G nra;a eltbf;if vLf;;fg;gl;lJ.

	    •	 mj;Jld; mNj ghlrhiyapd; gpujhd kz;lgk; Gdu;epu;khzpf;fgl;lJ.

	    •	 tpisahl;L ikjhdk; kw;Wk; rpWtu; tpisahl;L ikjhdKk;   	

		  Gdu;epu;khzk; nra;ag;gl;lJ.

–     KJkhdp gl;lg;ghlnewp (06 k; gpupT) khztu;fs; cj;jpNahfj;jh;fSld; 

Nrh;e;J “kfhd; njf;ff;” vd;w ngaupy; Gj;jfq;fs; kw;Wk; mj;jpatrpa 

ghlrhiy mYtyf cgfuzq;fs; md;gspg;G nra;Ak; epfo;T jpfFk;Gu 

tpj;jpahyak;, uj;Njhl;l, khj;jisapy; xOq;F  nra;ag;gl;lJ. ,e;j 

epfo;tpd; Clhf  nkhj;jkhf 212 khztu;fs;  gadile;jhu;fs;.

2019Mk; Mz;L  kdpjts Kfhikj;Jtk;  epWtdj;jpdhy; murhq;f 

epWtdq;fSf;Fk; ghlrhiyfSf;Fk; cgfuzq;fs; md;gspg;G nra;ag;gl;lJ 

,jpy; 167 mYtyf cgfuzq;fs; cs;slq;fg;gLfpwJ. ,jw;fhd ml;ltiz 

epWtdk;								        mYtyf cgfuzq;fs

rp / uh[rpq;f kfh tpj;ahyak;> nfhOk;G 09						      13

rpup ghyp tshfk;> nfhOk;G gy;fiyf;fofk						      48

15 tJ gl;lhypad; ,yq;if iyl; fhyhl;gil> uhZt Kfhk; jprhGuh> Nkhy;ypNghjdh	 84

SL uhZt Kfhk;> jpajyhth								        10

fLNtyh fyhr;rhu ikak;> mJUfpupah							       12

									         nkhj;jk;		 167 %yk; - Nrfupf;fg;gl;l juTfs; 2019> k.t.Nk.ep.
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Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

3.1 fw;ifg; ghlnewpfs;
2019 Mk; Mz;by; kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk; Ie;J (05) gpupTfspd; 

fPo; 21 fw;ifg; ghlnewpfis elhj;jpaJ. 

-	 gl;lg;gpd; gbg;G ghlnewpfs;

-	 ,skhzpg; gl;lg; ghlnewpfs;

-	 epiwNtw;W/ cah; bg;Nshkh ghlnewpfs;

-	 bg;Nshkh ghlnewpfs;

-	 rhd;wpjo; ghlnewpfs;

3.1.1 gl;lg;gpd; gbg;G ghlnewpfs;
2019 Mk; Mz;by; kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk; gy;NtW Jiwfspy; 

Ie;J gl;lg;gpd; gbg;G ghlnewpfis toq;fpaJ. ,e;j epfo;r;rpj; 

jpl;lq;fspd; Fwpf;Nfhshf njhopy; thz;ikahsu;fspd; mwpT> jpwd;fs; 

kw;Wk; kdg;ghd;ikfis mtu;fSila Jiwfspy Nkk;gLj;Jtjhf 

,Ue;jJ.

vq;fs; nrhe;j fw;gpj;jy; ghzpfs;> njhlu;r;rpahd kjpg;gPLfs;> fsg;gzpfs; 

kw;Wk; nrayku;Ts; %yk;  khztu;fs; mtu;fs; fw;Wf; nfhs;Sk; 

ghlq;fspy; mwpitg; ngw Kbe;jJ. NkYk;> khztu;fsplkpUe;J 

tUk; gpd;D}l;lj;jpd; %yk;> ghlj;jpl;lj;jpd; vjpu;fhy tsu;r;rp kw;Wk; 

khztu;fspd; Njitfs; Fwpj;j Mo;e;j mwptitAk;  I.vr;.Mu;.V 

f;F cUthf;f KbAk;. mNj Neuj;jpy; ,e;j khztu;fSk; Njrpa 

nghUshjhuj;jpy; Fwpg;gplj;jf;f gq;fspg;ig toq;Ffpwhu;fs;.

gy;NtW epu;thf kl;lq;fspy; jq;fs; flikfisr; nra;Ak; khztu;fspd; 

Njitfis ikakhff; nfhz;L Kfhikj;Jtk; njhlu;ghd ehd;F 

tifahd KJfiy fw;ifj; jpl;lq;fis I.vr;.Mu;.V toq;fpaJ. ,e;j 

jpl;lq;fs; tUkhW:

    -	 tzpf Kfhikj;Jtj;jpy; KJfiy gl;lk; (MBM)

    -	 kdpjts Kfhikj;Jtj;jpy; KJfiy gl;lk; (MHRM)

    -	 Nrit Kfhikj;Jtj;jpy; KJfiy gl;lk; (MSc. in SMGT)

,it Kfhikj;Jt njhopy;fspy; <Lgl;Ls;s khztu;fs; midj;J 

Kf;fpa Kfhikj;Jt gpupTfspYk; mwptpidg; ngw;Wf; nfhs;s KbAk;. 

mj;Jld; ,jD}lhf mjpf ek;gpf;ifAld; tpahghu gpur;rpidfs; kw;Wk; 

rpf;fy;fSf;F Kfq;nfhLg;gjw;F Njitahd vz;zf;fUj;jpay; kw;Wk; 

gFg;gha;T fUtpfs; cUthf;fg;gLfpd;wd.

 
Gtpj;jftypay; kw;Wk; mdu;j;jg; gFg;gha;T> Kfhikj;Jtk; kw;Wk; 

fl;Lg;ghL Nghd;w tplaj; Jiwfspy; tpQ;Qhd KJkhzpg; ghlnewpfs; 

,uz;il epWtdk; elhj;jpaJ. ,e;j ghlnewpfs;> Gtpj;jftypaypy; 

kw;Wk; mdu;j;jg; gFg;gha;T> Kfhikj;Jtk; kw;Wk; fl;Lg;ghL  Nghd;w 

Jiwfspy; rpwg;Gj; Nju;r;rp Njitahd khzt khztpfSf;F  me;jg; 

gpupTfspy; tsq;fis kjpg;gPL nra;jy;> Nkw;ghu;it> kjpg;gPL kw;Wk; 

tsq;fs; Kfhikj;Jtk; vd;gtw;Wf;fhf jpl;lkplg;gl;Ls;sJ.

2019 Mk; Mz;by; ehd;F gl;lg;gpd; gbg;G ghlnewpfis elhj;j 

jpl;lkplg;gl;bUe;jhYk;> tzpf Kfhikj;Jtk gl;lg;gpd; gbg;G kw;Wk; 

kdpjts Kfhikj;Jt gl;lg;gpd; gbg;G Mfpa ,uz;L jpl;lq;fSf;F 

kl;LNk khztu;fis mDkjpf;f Kbe;jJ. Vnddpy; me;j Neuj;jpy; 

Nkw;fz;l ,uz;L gbg;GfSf;F kl;LNk mjpfhupfs; mDkjp mspj;jdu;.

2019 
Mk; 
Mz;bd; 
kPsha;T
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3.1.2. ,skhzp fw;if epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk;

3.1.2.1 njhopyhsu; fy;tpapy; ,skhzp (BLE) gl;l 
epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk;

IHRA ,d; Kf;fpa Fwpf;Nfhs;fspy; xd;W Njitahd msT kw;Wk; 

juj;jpy; kdpj jpwikfis tsu;j;Jf; nfhs;tJ kw;Wk; $l;Lj; 

Nju;Tfs; kw;Wk; $l;L Kaw;rpfis Nkw;nfhs;s njhopyhsu;fs; 

kw;Wk; Kfhikahsh;;fs; Mfpa ,UtUf;Fk; fy;tp fw;gpj;jy;. 

mjd;gb 3.1.2.1 njhopyhsu; fy;tpapy; ,skhzp (BLE) gl;l 

epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk; njhlq;fg;gl;lJ.

njhopyhsu; fy;tpapy; ,skhzp (BLE) gl;l epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk; 

khj;jpuNk mur epjpfspdhy; Mjutspf;fg;gl;L kdpj ts Nkk;ghl;L 

epWtdj;jpdhy; 39 tUlq;fSf;F Nkyhf elhj;jg;gl;L tUfpd;wJ.

 

njhopyhsu; fy;tpapy; ,skhzp (BLE)  epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lj;jpd; fw;iff; 
fhyk; MW (06) miuahz;Lfis cs;slf;fpa 3 tUlq;fshf 

,Uf;fpd;wJ. gl;l epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lj;jpw;F Neubahfg; gjpT nra;J 

nfhs;tjw;F jFjp ,y;yhj tpz;zg;gjhupfs; xU tUl bg;GNskh 

epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lj;jpidj; njhlu;tjw;F mDkjpf;fg;gl;l KbAk;. 

,uz;L epfo;r;rpj; jpl;lq;fSf;Fk; Ntiy tha;g;Gr; Nrhjid kw;Wk; 

Neu;Kfg; guPl;ir ,uz;Lk; EioT msTNfhyhf gpuNahfkhFk;.

2019 Mk; Mz;by;> 677 tpz;zg;gjhupfs; njupTg; guPl;irf;F 

tpz;zg;gpj;jpUe;jhu;fs; mth;fspy; 31% guPl;rhu;j;jpfs; 

khj;jpuNk epfo;r;rpj; jpl;lj;jpidj; njhluj; jFjp ngw;wpUe;jdu;.                   

E}w;wp njhd;Dw;W ehd;F (211) ,skhzpg; gl;l tpz;zg;gjhupfs; 

gjpTnra;jdh;.

NkYk;> njhopyhsu; fy;tpapy; bg;Nshkh epfo;r;rpj; jpl;lj;jpidj; 

njhlu 152 tpz;zg;gq;fis I.vr;.Mu;.V f;F rkh;g;gpf;fg;gl;lJ. 

,tu;fspy; 146 Ngu; Nju;Tg; guPl;irf;F Njhw;wpaJld;> 89 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016
tzpf Kfhikj;Jtj;jpy; 
KJfiy gl;lk;

172 61 95 115 96 87 0

 kdpj ts Kfhikj;Jtj;jpy; KJfiy gl;lk; 135 67 54 67 65 85 93
 Nrit Kfhikj;Jtj;jpy; KJfiy gl;lk;121 66 0 77 0 43 88
 Gtpj;jftypay; KJfiy gl;lk; 0 83 0 0 0 7 62
mdu;j;jg; gFg;gha;T> Kfhikj;Jtk; kw;Wk; fl;Lg;ghL KJfiy gl;lk;0 0 0 48 0 25 26

tUlhe;j mDkjp gl;ljhupfs;

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
tUlhe;j mDkjp gl;ljhupfs;

tzpf Kfhikj;Jtj;jpy; KJfiy
gl;lk; 172 61 95 115 96 87 0 127 125 64

 kdpj ts Kfhikj;Jtj;jpy;
KJfiy gl;lk; 135 67 54 67 65 85 93 135 96 44

 Nrit Kfhikj;Jtj;jpy; KJfiy
gl;lk; 121 66 0 77 0 43 88 54 62 73

 Gtpj;jftypay; KJfiy gl;lk; 0 83 0 0 0 7 62 54 5 55

mdu;j;jg; gFg;gha;T> Kfhikj;Jtk;
kw;Wk; fl;Lg;ghL KJfiy gl;lk; 0 0 0 48 0 25 26 38 11 3
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Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

tpz;zg;gjhupfs; ,f; fw;if newpf;F gjpT nra;ag;gl;ldu;.

njhlf;f tpoh 31.07.2019 md;W nfhOk;G gy;fiyf;fofj;jpd; Gjpa fiy muq;fpy; 

eilngw;wJ. Fwpj;j Mz;by; ntt;NtW kl;lj;jpy; nkhj;j ,sq;fiy fw;iff;F 

gjpTnra;j khzth;fspd; vz;zpf;if 589 MFk;. 2019 Mk; Mz;Llstpy;> 2015 Kjy; 

njhlq;fp fle;j Ie;J Mz;Lfspy; xl;Lnkhj;j gl;ljhupfspd; ntspaPL 67% My; 

mjpfupj;Js;sJ.

njhopyhsu; fy;tpapy; ,skhzp (BLE) gl;lj;jpd; ngaiuAk; mjd; fhy msitAk; 

khztu;fSf;F gue;j tha;g;gpid toq;Fk;Kfkhf khw;wTk; Kd;nkhopag;gl;lJ. mf; 

fw;ifnewpapd;; ngaiu “njhopyhsu; Kfhikj;Jt ,skhzp"> 3 Mz;L gl;lk; kw;Wk;/ 
my;yJ njhopyhsu; Kfhikj;Jt ,skhzp (rpwg;;G) gl;lk;> 4 Mz;L fshf khw;wg;gLk;. 

,f; fw;ifnewpfis rpq;fs my;yJ Mq;fpy nkhopapy;; fw;gpf;fg;gLk;. NkYk; Gjpa 

njhFjp khztu;fs; 2020 Mk; Mz;by; ,e;j epWtdj;jpy; mDkjpf;fg;gLthu;fs;.

3.1.3. epiwNtw;W  kw;wk; cau;; bg;Nshkh ghlnewpfs;

epiwNtw;W bg;Nshkh vd;gJ njhlu;Gila njhopy; Jiwapy; <LgLk; xU 

epGzu;fSf;fhd jdpj;Jtkhd jFjpahFk;. Kfhikahsu;fs; mth;fSf;F 

xJf;fg;gl;l Jiwfspy; mtu;fspd; mwpit Nkk;gLj;jTk; GJg;gpf;fTk; 

tha;g;Gfis toq;FtNj jpl;lj;jpd; Kf;fpa Nehf;fk;. ,e;j jpl;lq;fs; 

jq;fs; mwpit Nkk;gLj;j Ntz;ba eLj;ju kl;l Kfhikahsu;fSf;fhf 

tbtikf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ.

midj;J epiwNtw;W bg;Nshkh ghlnewpfisg; gapYgtu;fs; mtu;fSila 

thbf;ifahsu;fSld; eltbf;if Nkw;nfhs;Sk;NghJ mbg;gilahf jkJ 

elj;ij KiwfSf;F rthy;tpLk; nrhe;j mDgtq;fis nfhz;bUg;gJ 

mj;jpahtrpakhf ,Uf;fpd;wJ vd;w cWjpahd ek;gpf;ifapy; Nt&d;wpAs;sjd; 

mbg;gilapy; jdp egu; mgptpUj;jpia ikakhff; nfhz;Ls;sJ. 

,e;j jpl;lq;fspd; fhyk; xU tUlk;. vdNt> njhlu;r;rpahd kjpg;gPLfs;> 

fsg;gzpfs;> khztu;fs; jq;fs; njhopy; jpwid tsu;g;gjw;fhd jsj;ij 

toq;Ftij Nehf;fkhff; nfhz;l nraykh;Tfs; %yk; I.vr;.Mu;.V jdJ 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017
njhopyhsu; fy;tp ,skhzpg; gl;lk;157 194 184 221 211 119 124 137
njhopyhsu; fy;tp bg;GNshkh51 54 48 66 89 42 32 30

gl;ljhupfs;tUlhe;j mDkjp

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
tUlhe;j mDkjp gl;ljhupfs;

njhopyhsu; fy;tp ,skhzpg; gl;lk; 157 194 184 221 211 119 124 137 137 119

njhopyhsu; fy;tp bg;GNshkh 51 54 48 66 89 42 32 30 36 35
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nrhe;j fw;gpj;jy; ghzpia gpd;gw;WfpwJ.

rpy epiwNtw;W kw;Wk; cau; bg;Nshkhf;fis newpg;gLj;Jk; 

Nehf;fj;Jld;; ,ilepWj;jg;gl;Ls;sd.

2019 Mk; Mz;by; I.vr;.Mu;.V %d;W ntt;NtW tifahd epiwNtw;W 

my;yJ cau; bg;Nshkh jpl;lq;fSf;F khztu;fis mDkjpj;jJ> 

mjhtJ kdpjts Kfhifj;Jt epiwNtw;W bg;Nshkh> Rw;Wyhj;Jiw 

epfo;T kw;Wk; tpUe;Njhk;gy; Kfhifj;Jt epiwNtw;W bg;Nshkh> kw;Wk; 

cs ts MNyhrid kw;Wk; cstpay; gw;wpa cau; bg;Nshkh.  <];lu; 

QhapW jhf;FjYf;Fg; gpd;du; ehl;by;  epytpa epr;rakw;w jd;ikapdhy; 

2019 Mk; Mz;by; gl;ljhup ntspaPL vJTk; rhj;jpag;gltpy;iy. 

,jd; tpisthf> ghlnewpfspd;;; fhyk; ePl;bf;fg;gl;lJ.

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016

 kdpjts Kfhifj;Jt epiwNtw;W bg;Nshkh 113 35 - 17 0 61 81

jpl;l Kfhifj;Jt epiwNtw;W bg;Nshkh 31 - - - - 13 -

 Nritfs; Kfhifj;Jt epiwNtw;W bg;Nshkh 94 107 - - - 59 51

Rw;Wyhj;Jiw epfo;T kw;Wk; tpUe;Njhk;gy; Kfhifj;Jt epiwNtw;W bg;Nshkh35 - - - 30 - 34

 cs ts MNyhrid kw;Wk; cstpay; gw;wpa cau; bg;Nshkh- - - 49 0 - -

ru;tNjr tu;j;jfj;jpy; epiwNtw;W bg;Nshkh - - - - - - -

khztu;fspd; mDkjp  jFjp ngw;w khztu;fspd; vz;zpf;if

**<];lu; QhapW jhf;FjYf;Fg; gpd;du; epytpa R+o;epiy fhuzkhf 2019 Mk; Mz;by; 
ntspaPL vJTk; ,y;iy> ghlnewpapd; fhyk; ePl;bf;fg;gl;lJ

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

khztu;fspd; mDkjp
 jFjp ngw;w khztu;fspd;

vz;zpf;if

 kdpjts Kfhifj;Jt
epiwNtw;W bg;Nshkh 113 35 0 17 0 61 81 0 35 0

jpl;l Kfhifj;Jt epiwNtw;W
bg;Nshkh 31 0 0 0 0 13 0 17 0 0

 Nritfs; Kfhifj;Jt
epiwNtw;W bg;Nshkh 94 107 0 0 0 59 51 0 115 0

Rw;Wyhj;Jiw epfo;T kw;Wk;
tpUe;Njhk;gy; Kfhifj;Jt

epiwNtw;W bg;Nshkh
35 0 0 0 30 0 34 0 0 0

 cs ts MNyhrid kw;Wk;
cstpay; gw;wpa cau;

bg;Nshkh
0 0 0 49 0 0 0 0 0 0

ru;tNjr tu;j;jfj;jpy; epiwNtw;W
bg;Nshkh 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
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Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

3.1.4 bg;Nshkh ghlnewpfs;

kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpdhy; %d;W (03) tifahd bg;Nshkhf;fs; toq;fg;gLfpd;wd. 

,J Kfhikj;Jtk;> khDltpay; kw;Wk; nkhop Mfpa ghlnewpfisf; nfhz;Ls;sd. 

,g; ghlnewpfs; Muk;g kl;l gzpahsu;fSf;F mtu;fspd; Fwpj;j Jiwfspy; Nkk;gl;l 

mwpT> gFg;gha;Tr; rpe;jid> jpwd;fis fl;bnaOg;Gjy;> newpKiwj; juepiyfs; 

kw;Wk; jiyikj;Jtk; kw;Wk; nghWg;Gf;fis Nkk;gLj;Jtjw;F trjpaspf;Fk; nghUl;L 

tbtikf;fg;gLfpd;wd. ,e;j bg;Nshkhf;fs; khztu;fSf;F mtu;fspd; gy;NtW 

Njitg;ghLfis epiwT nra;tjw;F mD$ykhdjhf cs;sd. rpy rkaq;fspy; ,J 

fy;tprhu; fw;ifapd; gy;NtW mtj;ijfs; my;yJ Nkyjpf njhopy; thz;ikg; gapw;rpfs; 

kw;Wk; jfikfis toq;Ftjw;Fk; ,ilNaahd ,ilntspia epug;Gtjw;F xU ghykhf 

Nritahw;Wfpd;wJ. xU bg;Nshkh ghlnewpahdJ ngWkjpahd rpwg;gile;j jpwd;fs;> 

mwpT> kw;Wk; mDgtq;fis toq;Ffpd;wJ.

fy;tprhu; ghlnewpfis Kiwg;gLj;Jtjw;fhf tUlj;jpDs; ntspj;jug;gpdUld; rpy 

xj;Jiog;G uPjpapyhd jpl;lq;fs; ,ilepWj;jg;gl;ld. ,Ug;gpDk;> Nghijg;nghUs; ghtid 

Kfhikj;Jtk; gw;wpa bg;Nshkh ghlnewp kw;Wk; Nkyjpf nkhopahf jkpo; nkhop bg;Nshkh 

Nghd;w  2 ghlnewpfSf;F kl;LNk 2019 Mk; Mz;by; khztu;fs;; Nru;f;fg;gl;ldu;> 

Nkw;$wpa jpl;lq;fspy; nkhj;jk; 138 khztu;fs; mDkjpf;fg;gl;ldu; kw;Wk; nkhj;j 

ntspaPL 131 khztu;fs;.

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015
 Nritfs; Kfhifj;Jt bg;Nshkh 58 20 - - 0 23
 Nghijg;nghUs; ghtid Kfhikj;Jtk; gw;wpa bg;Nshkh ghlnewp50 - - - 46 -
 cs ts MNyhrid kw;Wk; cstpay; gw;wpa; bg;Nshkh34 - - 49 0 36
Nkyjpf nkhopahf jkpo; nkhop bg;Nshkh 163 124 96 90 92 124
 Kfhifj;Jt bg;Nshkh 22 34 - - 0 11
ru;tNjr tu;j;jfj;jpy; bg;Nshkh - - - - - -
 ru;tNjr njhopy;El;gk; kw;Wk; Kfhifj;Jt bg;Nshkh- - - - - -

khztu;fspd; mDkjp jFjp ngw;w khztu;fspd; vz;zpf;if

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

khztu;fspd; mDkjp
jFjp ngw;w khztu;fspd;

vz;zpf;if

 Nritfs; Kfhifj;Jt bg;Nshkh 58 20 0 0 0 23 37 0 27 11

 Nghijg;nghUs; ghtid
Kfhikj;Jtk; gw;wpa bg;Nshkh

ghlnewp
50 0 0 0 46 0 0 0 27 0

 cs ts MNyhrid kw;Wk;
cstpay; gw;wpa; bg;Nshkh 34 0 0 49 0 36 23 55 29 29

Nkyjpf nkhopahf jkpo; nkhop
bg;Nshkh 163 124 96 90 92 124 123 100 74 73

 Kfhifj;Jt bg;Nshkh 22 34 0 0 0 11 10 0 27 9

ru;tNjr tu;j;jfj;jpy; bg;Nshkh 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4

 ru;tNjr njhopy;El;gk; kw;Wk;
Kfhifj;Jt bg;Nshkh 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
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<];lu; QhapW jhf;FjYf;Fg; gpd;du; epytpa R+o;epiy fhuzkhf 2019 Mk; Mz;by; ntspaPL vJTk; ,y;iy> 

ghlnewpapd; fhyk; ePl;bf;fg;gl;lJ
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3.1.5. rhd;wpjo; ghlnewpfs;
njhopy;Kiw tsu;r;rpia Nehf;fp khztu;fis tsu;g;gjw;fhf gy;NtW 

gpupTfspy; rhd;wpjo; jpl;lq;fis I.vr;.Mu;.V toq;FfpwJ. 2019 Mk; 

Mz;by; vl;L (8) rhd;wpjo; jpl;lq;fs; elj;jg;gl;ld. kdpj ts 

Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk; %d;W jrhg;jq;fSf;Fk; Nkyhf Mq;fpyj;jpy; 

rhd;wpjo; gbg;Gfis toq;fpaJ. ,uz;lhk; nkhopahf Mq;fpyk; 

fw;gpf;Fk; Mrpupau;fs; cl;gl gy;NtW tif khztu;fis Fwpitj;J 

Ie;J ntt;NtW Mq;fpy ghlnewpfis I.vr;.Mu;.V toq;FfpwJ.

 

,Ug;gpDk;> <];lu; jhf;Fjiyj; njhlu;e;J Vg;uy; Kjy; nrg;lk;gu; 

(2019) tiu> Mq;fpy nkhopapy; rhd;wpjo;> 6. mbg;gil Mq;fpy nkhop 

ghlnewp> NgRk; Mq;fpyj;jpy; rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp Mfpatw;iwg; gpd;gw;Wk; 

khztu;fSf;F tpupTiufis elj;j I.vr;.Mu;.V thy; Kbatpy;iy.

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Mq;fpy nkhop gw;wpa rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp 2149 1321 1321 2283 1938

mbg;gil Mq;fpy nkhop rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp 187 217 - 413 429

 Mrpupau;fSf;fhd Mq;fpy nkhop gw;wpa rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp99 67 - 48 52

Mq;fpy Ngr;Rg; ghlnewp 1705 3637 1933 580 383

 ghlrhiyia tpl;Lr; nry;gtu;fSf;fhd FWfpa fhy Mq;fpyg; ghlnewp251 130 54 342 507

fzpdp gad;ghL gw;wpa rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp 354 452 - 412 423

 jkpo; nkhop rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp - mbg;gil 316 341 405 327 427

 jkpo; nkhop rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp - ,ilepiy 262 160 145 157 110

khztu;fspd; mDkjp

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

khztu;fspd; mDkjp
jFjp ngw;w khztu;fspd;

vz;zpf;if

Mq;fpy nkhop gw;wpa rhd;wpjo;
ghlnewp 2149 1321 1321 2283 1938 1688 0 986 1523 0

mbg;gil Mq;fpy nkhop rhd;wpjo;
ghlnewp 187 217 0 413 429 120 0 143 269 0

 Mrpupau;fSf;fhd Mq;fpy nkhop
gw;wpa rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp 99 67 0 48 52 62 0 55 25 0

Mq;fpy Ngr;Rg; ghlnewp 1705 3637 1933 580 383 1261 2706 1471 0 391

 ghlrhiyia tpl;Lr;
nry;gtu;fSf;fhd FWfpa fhy

Mq;fpyg; ghlnewp
251 130 54 342 507 314 0 45 101 390

fzpdp gad;ghL gw;wpa rhd;wpjo;
ghlnewp 354 452 0 412 423 246 320 336 275 347

 jkpo; nkhop rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp -
mbg;gil 316 341 405 327 427 411 242 203 0 196

 jkpo; nkhop rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp -
,ilepiy 262 160 145 157 110 200 159 109 104 115
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<];lu; QhapW jhf;FjYf;Fg; gpd;du; epytpa R+o;epiy fhuzkhf 2019 Mk; Mz;by; ntspaPL vJTk; ,y;iy> 

ghlnewpapd; fhyk; ePl;bf;fg;gl;lJ
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Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

3.2. 2019 Mk; Mz;by; gapw;rp nrayku;Tfs; gw;wpa tpguq;fs;
kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpy;> gl;lg;gpd;> ,skhzp kw;Wk; bg;Nshkh ghlnewpfisg; gapYk; khztu;fs;  

Vw;Gila fw;if ghlnewpfspd; fl;lha mq;fkhf gapw;rp nrayku;nthd;wpy; gq;Nfw;f Ntz;bapUf;fpd;wJ. 

,e;j ghlnewpfspd; Nehf;fk; khztu;fspd; njhopy;rhu; Nkk;ghlhFk;. tpupTiufs; Nghyy;yhJ> nrayku;Tfs; 

njhopy;rhu; cyfj;jpw;Fj; njhlu;ghd fye;Jiuahly;fSf;F xU fsj;jpidj; jpwg;gjw;Fk; - fye;Jiuahly;fis 

Cf;Ftpf;fpd;wd. gq;Nfw;ghsu;fSf;F xU gpur;rpidia vt;thW jPu;g;gJ vd;gJ njhlu;gpy; mtu;fsJ 

fUj;Jf;fis gfpu;e;Jnfhs;s KbAk;. Gjpa jpwd;fis Nkk;gLj;jpf;nfhs;tjw;F nrayku;Tfs;  cjtpahf 

,Ug;gJld;> mJ khztu;fspd; Kd;Ndw;wj;jpw;F  cjTk;. khztu;fs; mtu;fSila Kd;dpiyg;gLj;Jk; 

jpwd;fs> jiyikj;Jtk;> njhlu;ghly; kw;Wk; FOg; gzpj; jpwd;fs; Kjypadtw;wpid Nkk;gLj;jpf;nfhs;s 

KbAkhf ,Uf;Fk;.

,e;jj; jpl;lq;fspd; Nehf;fk;> njhlu;ghlypy; Muk;gpj;J gy;NtW #oy;fspy; Nritahw;Wjy;> czu;TG+u;tkhf 

rpe;jpf;Fk; jpwid Nkk;gLj;jy;> gilg;ghw;wy; kw;Wk; re;ju;g;gj;jpw;Nfw;g jPu;khdk; vLj;jy;> gzpahw;WtJ 

vg;gb vd;gJ rk;ge;jkhf mwpe;Jnfhs;sy; kw;Wk; nghJ kf;fSldhd fye;Jiuahly;fis Nkk;gLj;jy;> 

kd mOj;jk; kw;Wk; Nkhjy;fis jtpu;j;jy; Nghd;w tpupthd tPr;rpy; gue;jpUf;Fk; nkd;jpwd;fis tpUj;jp 

nra;tjhFk;. 

 

2019 Mk; Mz;L fhyg; gFjpapy; kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpdhy; khzt> khztpfspd;> mur / jdpahu; 
Jiwapy; gzpahw;Wgtu;fspd; mwpT> jpwd;fs;> kdg;ghq;Ffis tpUj;jp nra;Ak; Nehf;fpy;  gl;lg;gpd;> ,skhzpg; 

gl;l> kw;Wk; bg;GNshkh ghlnewpfspy; gjpT nra;ag;gl;Ls;s khztu;fSf;F 11 gapw;rp nrayku;Tfs; (ru;tNjr 

nrayku;Tfs; cl;gl)  elhj;jg;gl;lJ.

gpupT jpl;lj;jpd; jiyg;G gq;Fgw;wpNahupd; 

vz;zpf;if

gq;Nfw;Nwhh;

nrayku;Tfs; Muha;r;rp fl;Liu rkh;g;gpj;jy; 

kw;Wk; fy;tprhh; vOj;Jj; jpwd;fs;

72 Nrit Kfhikj;Jt vk;.v];.

rp fw;ifapd; khztu;fs; - 04 

khzth;fs

Muha;r;rp fl;Liu rkh;g;gpj;jy; 71

Mrpupau; tpUj;jp nrayku;T 36
Mq;fpy nkhop fw;gpj;jy; 

fw;ifnewpapd; tUifjU 

gapw;Wdu;fs;

vy;.vk;.v]; tpopg;Gzu;T jpl;lk; 102 Rw;Wyh> epfo;T kw;Wk; 

tpUe;Njhk;gy; Kfhikj;Jtk; 

epiwNtw;W bg;Nshkh, 
Nghijg;nghUs; ghtid 

Kfhikj;Jt cah; bg;Nshkh 

kw;Wk; cs ts MNyhrid 

kw;Wk; cstpay; cah; bg;Nshkh 

khzth;fs;

Nfhl;ghLfs; kw;Wk; eilKiw 

Kfhikj;Jtk;

50 MBM fw;ifnewpapd;; khztu;fs; - 

07 / B2/2018

Nfhl;ghLfs; kw;Wk; eilKiw 

Kfhikj;Jtk;

53 MHRM fw;ifnewpapd;; khztu;fs; 

- 09 / 2018

Nfhl;ghLfs; kw;Wk; eilKiw 

Kfhikj;Jtk;

55 MBM fw;ifnewpapd;; khztu;fs; - 

07/ B1/2018

SPSS gapw;rp nraykh;T - gFjp I. 71 Nrit Kfhikj;Jt MSc 

fw;ifapd; khztu;fs; - 04 

khzth;fs;SPSS gapw;rp nraykh;T - gFjp II 71

fs 

nray;Kiw 

tpsf;fk;

fy;tprhh; fs gazk; - gq;Nfw;G 

Nguplu; fz;fhzpg;G

41 mdu;j;jg; gFg;gha;T> 

Kfhikj;Jtk; kw;Wk; fl;Lg;ghL 

MSc. fw;ifapd; khztu;fs; - 03 

khzth;fs;fy;tprhh; fs gazk;; - fs 

NguopT ,lu; kjpg;gPL

42

 %yk; - Nrfupf;fg;gl;l juTfs; 2019> k.t.Nk.ep.
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epfo;r;rpfs; gq;Nfw;Nwh jpfjp ,lk;

nray; jpl;lj;jpd; 

cUthf;fk; - 2019

myFfs;/ gpupT/ 
epfo;r;rpfspd; jiytu;

04.01.2019 kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L 

epWtj;jpd; kz;lgk;

jdpg;gl;l rPu;g;gLj;jy; 

kw;Wk; Rfhjhuk; 

njhlh;ghd nrayku;T 

midj;J Copau;fSk; 08.02.2019 kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L 

epWtj;jpd; kz;lgk;

nray; jpl;l tpopg;Gzu;T 

epfo;r;rp - 2019

midj;J Copau;fSk; 26.02.2019 `py;ld; FbapUg;G> 

nfhOk;G

mjpfhug;G+u;t tq;fp 

fzf;Ffs; kw;Wk;

fhNrhiyfs; epfo;r;rp

jpUkjp WASD n[auj;dh> 
Kfhikj;Jt cjtpahsu;

14.03.2019 fpuhz;l; Xupaz;ly; 

N`hl;ly;> nfhOk;G

nfhs;Kjy; eilKiw 

nrayku;T

nfhs;tid ifahSk; 

midj;J Copau;fSk; 

19.06.2019 kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L 

epWtj;jpd; kz;lgk;

epjpg; gha;r;ry; $w;W 

kw;Wk; fl;Lg;ghL 

fzf;Ffs;

jpU. Nf.vy;.b.[p upr;kz;l; 

fzf;fu;

21.06.2019 fpuhz;l; Xupaz;ly; 

N`hl;ly;> nfhOk;G

2019 f;fhd nray; jpl;l 

mKyhf;fypd; 1tJ  

kjpg;gPL 

myFfs;/ gpupT/ 
epfo;r;rpfspd; jiytu;

17.07.2019 kdpj ts Nkk;ghl;L 

epWtj;jpd; kz;lgk;

vy;.vk;.v]; gw;wpa khztu; 

tpopg;Gzu;T epfo;r;rp 

bg;Nshkh/ cau;/
epiwNtw;W 

bg;Nshkhf;fis ifahSk; 

gzpahsu;fs;

30.06.2019 kw;Wk; 07.06.2019 fzpdp Ma;tfk>;

Kfhikj;Jt kw;Wk; epjp 

gPlk;> UoC

E}yfj;ij J}a;ikahf 

guhkupj;jy; kw;Wk; 

nray;ghl;L MjuT 

njhlh;ghd nrayku;T

jpU vk;.b.vk;.A+.

rkuNrfu> 

E}yf cjtpahsu;

22 kw;Wk; 23.07.2019 fsdpg; gy;fiyf;fof 

Ma;T$lk;

mwptpy; r%fj;jpy; 

E}yfq;fspd; tfpghfk; 

njhlh;ghd fUj;juq;F

jpUkjp v];.I. kurpq;f>

E}yf jfty;

cjtpahsu;

07.08.2019 ru;tNjr Ma;TfSf;fhd 

gz;lhuehaf;f ikak;

nel;nthu;f;fpq; 

kw;Wk; mr;Rg;nghwp 

gfpu;e;Jnfhs;sypy; 

mbg;gil jpwd;fs; Fwpj;j 

nrayku;T 

midj;J Copau;fSk; 26.08.2019 kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L 

epWtj;jpd; fzpdp 

Ma;tfk;

2019 f;fhd nray; jpl;l 

mKyhf;fypd; ,Wjp 

kjpg;gPL

midj;J Copau;fSk; 09.12.2019 kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L 

epWtj;jpd; kz;lgk;

3.3. Muha;r;rp> Gj;jhf;fk; kw;Wk; ntspaPLfs; gw;wpa tpguq;fs;

Muha;r;rpahsupd; ngau; jiyg;G
ntspaplg;gl;l 

Mz;L
,lk; / ntspaPL

fyhepjp vk;.[p.[p 

N`kFkhuh

Organizational Citizenship Behaviour Among 
Public Management Assistants in the Divisional 
Secretariasts of Colombo District in Sri Lanka

2019
International Journal 
of Innovative Research 
and Knowledge

fyhepjp vk;.[p.[p 
N`kFkhuh	
(,iz Mrpupau;fs;- 
Nguhrpupau; fyhepjp.	
fhjpgp V.V.> Nguhrpupau; 
lNjh fyhepjp vk;bfghu; 
vk;b N[h`u;)

Organizational Citizenship Behaviour Among 
Administrative Staff of State Universities in Sri 
Lanka

2019 International Journal of 
Arts and Commerce

3.2.1. kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpd; gzpahl;njhFjpf;fhd gapw;rp

%yk; - Nrfupf;fg;gl;l juTfs; 2019> k.t.Nk.ep.
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Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

fyhepjp vk;.[p.[p 

N`kFkhuh

Work Life Balance Among Employed 
Undergraduate Students of the University of 
Colombo

2019 International Journal of 
Arts and Commerce

fyhepjp  lgps;A+.v];. 

re;jpuNrfu

Relationship Among Big Five Personality Traits, 
Job Performance & Job Satisfaction: A Case of 
School Teachers in Sri Lanka

2019
International Journal of 
Information, Business 
and Management

fyhepjp  lgps;A+.v];. 

re;jpuNrfu

The Effect of Transformational Leadership Style on 
Employees Job Satisfaction and Job Performance: 
A Case of Apparel Manufacturing Industry in Sri 
Lanka

2019
International Journal of 
Economics, Commerce 
and Management

fyhepjp  lgps;A+.v];. 

re;jpuNrfu

Preceived Life Stress Among Tsunami Resettles in 
Sri Lanka: Alchol Addiction Prone Personality and 
Alchol Addiction

2019

International Research 
Conference, Huazhong 
University of Science & 
Technology, China

jpUkjp rp.vy; 

vbuprpq;f

Training and Development Practices & its Impact 
on Employee Performance: A Case Study on 
Horana Industrial Estate, Sri Lanka

2019 International Journal of 
Research Publications

jpUkjp Mu;.V.v];.vd;.

uj;ehaf;f

Impact of Electronic Media on Reading Habits of 
Teenagers 2019

Asian Journal of 
Information Science 
and Technology 

jpUkjp Mu;.V.v];.vd;.

uj;ehaf;f
wjrg fmr 2019 Godage Book 

Publishers, Sri Lanka

jpU Nf.b.vd; 

n`thNf

Analysis of Lighting Strike Variations in Sweden 
from 2000 - 2014 2019

International Journal 
of New Technology and 
Research

nry;tp b.vr;.b ejPrh
An Empirical Study on Corporate Governance 
Structure and Performance of Sri Lankan Listed 
Financial Services Copmanies

2019
International Journal of 
Scientific Research and 
Publications

jpU. Nf. v .v vd;  

jpyfuj;d
Recognition of States: The Matters Still Unresolved 2019

International Journal 
of Research and 
Innovation in Social 
Sciences

jpU. Nf. v .v vd;  

jpyfuj;d

Environmental Protection through Judicial 
Review: The Sri Lankan Experience 2019 Sabaragamuwa 

University Journal

jpU. Nf. v .v vd;  

jpyfuj;d

A Critique on the Durkheimain Concept of 
Solidarity 2019

International Journal 
of Research and 
Innovation in Social 
Sciences

jpU. Nf. v .v vd;  

jpyfuj;d

Naturalistic and Positivistic Debates on 
Implementing the Capital Punishment 2019 The Lex-Warrier: On-

line Law Journal

jpU. Nf. v .v vd;  

jpyfuj;d

Rights of Shareholders under the Companies Act 
No. 07 of 2007 2019 IHRA Journal

jpU. Nf. v .v vd;  

jpyfuj;d

Finnis and Religion a Critical View of Religion as a 
Basic Good: Does it have a hierachy? 2019

Manurawa Law 
Journal, Sri Lanka Law 
College Human Rights 
Students Union

jpU. Nf. v .v vd;  

jpyfuj;d

The Paradox of Diplomatic Immunity: A 
Comparative Approach with Practices from Sri 
Lanka, South Africa and India

2019 Rajarata International 
Research Conference

jpU. Nf. v .v vd;  

jpyfuj;d

Classical School of Criminology and Its Application 
in the Sri Lankan Criminal Justice System 2019 US-China Law Review

jpU. Nf. v .v vd;  

jpyfuj;d

Right to Strike: A Critical Appraisal of the Sri 
Lankan Law 2019 Junior Bar Law Journal

%yk; - Nrfupf;fg;gl;l juTfs; 2019> k.t.Nk.ep.



72

3.4. fy;tprhu; gzpahl;njhFjpapd;> epu;thfk; kw;Wk; epu;thfk; rhuhj gzpahl;njhFjp gw;wpa 

   tpguq;fs;

3.5. E}yfk;
kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpd; E}yfk;> njhopyhsu; fy;tp 

,skhzp gl;l fw;ifnewp> kdpj ts Kfhikj;Jtj;jpy; epiwNtw;W 

bg;Nshkh fw;ifnewp kw;Wk; kdpj ts Kfhikj;Jtj;jpy; 

KJkhzp> tzpf Kfhikj;Jtj;jpy; KJkhzp> kw;Wk;  Nrit 

Kfhikj;Jtj;jpy; tpQ;Qhdkhzp (rpq;fsk; kw;Wk; Mq;fpyk;) 

gapYk; khztu;fspd; Kf;fpa tsnkhd;whFk;.  ,J fpl;lj;jl;l 

6400 E}y;fisf; nfhz;bUf;fpd;wJ. E}yf trjpfs; kdpj 

ts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpd; gzpahsu;fSf;Fk; $l mtu;fspd; 

mwptpid Nkk;gLj;Jtjw;F fpilf;ff; $bajhf cs;sJ.

  

khjhe;jk;; E}yfj;ijg; gad;gLj;Jk; mq;fj;jtu;fspd; ruhrup 

vz;zpf;if 89 MFk;. fle;j tUlk; ,t; vz;zpf;if 138 

Mf ,Ue;jJ. 70 E}y;fs; khjhe;jk; Gof;fkilfpd;wd. fle;j 

tUlk; ,t; vz;zpf;if 95 Mf ,Ue;jJ.  2018 Mk; Mz;Lld; 

xg;gpLifapy; mq;fj;jtu;fs; E}yfj;ijg; gad;gLj;Jjy; 35%  

,dhy; Fiwtile;Js;sJld;> E}y;fspd; Gof;fj;jpy; 26%  

FiwTk; Rl;bf;fhl;lg;gl;Ls;sJ. 

<];lu; QhapW jhf;FjYf;Fg; gpd;du; ehl;by; epytpa R+o;epiy 

fhuzkhf 2019 Vg;uy; Kjy; [_iy tiuapyhd fhyg;gFjpapy; 

E}yfj;jpd; gad;ghL ntFthff; Fiwe;jpUe;jJ. muR 

gy;fiyf;fofq;fspy; fy;tprhuh NtiyepWj;jk; fhuzkhf E}yfk; 

,uz;L khjq;fSf;F (nrg;lk;gu; kw;Wk; mf;Nlhgu;) %lg;gl;lJ 

kw;Wk; E}yf nray;ghLfspd; jd;dpaf;fthf;fk;; fhuzkhf 

brk;gupy; Gj;jfq;fs; toq;fg;gltpy;iy.,it E}yf gad;ghl;il 

Neubahf ghjpj;jJ.

Nrit tFjp gjtpg; ngau;

mq;fPfupf;fg;gl;l gjtpfspd; 

vz;zpf;if

jw;NghJ epug;gg;gl;Ls;s 

gjtpfspd;

epue;ju xg;ge;j mbg;gil epue;ju xg;ge;j mbg;gil

fy;tprhu;

gzpg;ghsu; 01 –  01 –  
Nguhrpupau;

11 –  08 –  Jizg; Nguhrpupau;

rpNul;l tpupTiuahsu; / tpupTiuahsu; 
/ tpupTiuahsu; (gapYdu;) 

rpNul;l cjtp E}yfu; 01 –  01 –  

epu;thfk; kw;Wk; epjp

gpujpg; gjpthsu; 01 –  01 –  
rpNul;l cjtp epjpahsu; 01 –  01 –  
rpNul;l cjtpg; gjpthsu; 01 –  01 –  
cjtp epjpahsu; 01 –  01 –  
cjtpg; gjpthsu; 01 –  01 –  

mwptpay;rhu
mwptpay; cjtpahsu; 01 –  01 –  
jfty; njhopy;El;g MNyhrfu; 01 –  – –  

njhopy;El;g Nritfs;
njhopy;El;g mYtyu; (jfty; kw;Wk; 

njhlu;ghly; njhopy;El;gk;) 
06 –  - –  

Kfhikj;Jt cjtpahsu;

Kfhikj;Jt cjtpahsu; 25 –  21 –  
Kfhikj;Jt cjtpahsu; (fzf;Fg; gjpT) 01 –  01 –  
Kfhikj;Jt cjtpahsu; (rpwhg;gu;) 01 –  01 –  
Kfhikj;Jt cjtpahsu; (fsQ;rparhiyg; 

nghWg;ghsu;)
01 –  01 –  

E}yf jfty; cjtpahsu; 03 –  02 –  
jpizf;fs kag;gLj;jg;gl;l mYtyf ,ae;jpuq;fs; ,af;Fdu; 01 –  01 –  
rhujp rhujp 03 –  03 –  
jpizf;fs kag;gLj;jg;gl;l Jtpr;rf;fu tz;b J}J nfhz;L nry;gtu; 01 –  01 –  
mYtyf cjtpahsu; Nrit mYtyf cjtpahsu; 07 –  06 –  
jpizf;fs kag;gLj;jg;gl;l E}yf cjtpahsu; 02 –  01 –  

xg;ge;j mbg;gil

jw;fhypf mwptpay; cjtpahsu; –  01 – -
fUj;jpl;l cjtpahsu; –  25 – 18
mYtyf cjtpahsu; –  03 – 01
vz;zpf;if 71 29 53 19

njhlu;Gila 

Nritfs;

nra;jpg; 

gj;jpupif  

Nritfs;

gUt 

rQ;rpiffs;

Ma;Tf; 

fl;Liufs; 

E}y;fs; 

,uty; Nrit 

Nghl;Nlh gpujp 

Nrit 

thrpg;Gf;fhd 

trjpfs; 

E}yfq;fSf;fpilapyhd 

fld; 

Nritfs;

gupe;Jiu 

Nritfs;

%yk; - Nrfupf;fg;gl;l juTfs; 2019> k.t.Nk.ep.
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Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

 
1. epWtdk;rhu; jfty;fs;

1.1 mwpf;ifg;gLj;Jk; epWtdk; - epue;juk; kw;Wk; rl;l uPjpahd khjpup 
nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofj;jpd; kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk; 1978 ,d; 16 Mk; 

,yf;f gy;fiyf;fofq;fs; rl;lk; kw;Wk; 1979 ,d; 11 Mk; ,yf;f fl;lisr; 

rl;lj;jpd; fPo; jhgpf;fg;gl;Ls;s murhq;fj;jpw;Fr; nrhe;jkhd cau;fy;tp epWtdkh-

Fk;. ,e;j epWtdk; nfhOk;G 07> ngsj;jhNyhf;f khtj;ijapy; ,yf;fk; 275 ,y; 

mike;Js;sJ.

1.2. gpujhd nraw;ghLfs; kw;Wk; nraw;ghLfspd; jd;ik
murhq;f kw;Wk; jdpahu; Jiw Mfpa ,U JiwfspYk; njhopy; Gupgtu;fSf;F 

mtu;fSila epfo;fhy kw;Wk; vjpu;fhy njhopy; Njitfs; kPJ kpfTk; rhjfkhd 

gq;fspg;ig ngw;Wf;nfhLg;gjw;fhd cau;fy;tpf;fhd tha;g;ig Vw;gLj;jy;. 

1.3. epjpf; fhyg; gFjp
epWtdj;jpd; epjpf; fhyg; gFjp 2019 [dtup 01 Mk; jpfjp Kjy; 2019 brk;gu; 31 

tiuapyhd fhyg; gFjpiaf; nfhz;Ls;sJ.

2. jahupj;jy; mbg;gil 

2.1. jahupj;jy; mbg;gil
NtW tpjkhff; Fwpg;gplg;glhjpUg;gpd; epWtdj;jpd; epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; 

ml;LW mbg;gilapy; kw;Wk; tuyhw;W uPjpapyhd fpua ,zf;fg;ghl;bd; fPo; 

jahupf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ.

2.2. rku;g;gpg;G kw;Wk; nraw;ghl;L ehzak;
epWtdj;jpd; nraw;ghl;L ehza myF ,yq;if &ghthf ,Ug;gJld; midj;Jg; 

ngWkjpfSk; fpl;ba &ghTf;F kjpg;gplg;gl;L epjpf;$w;Wf;fs; rku;g;gpf;fg;gLfpd;wJ.

2.3. ,zf;ff; $w;W
epjp epiyikf; $w;W> ,yhgk; my;yJ el;lk; gw;wpa $w;W> kw;Wk; NtW tpgukhd 

tUkhdk;> cupik khw;wy; $w;W> kw;Wk; fhRg; gha;r;ry; $w;W Mfpatw;Wld; kdpjts 

Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpd; fzf;fpay; nfhs;if kw;Wk; gha;r;ry; $w;Wf;fs; (epjpf; 

$w;Wf;fs;) nghJthf Vw;Wf;nfhs;sg;gl;l Nfhl;ghLfs; kw;Wk; ,yq;if gl;laf; 

fzf;fhsu; epWtdj;jpdhy; mwpKfQ; nra;ag;gl;l fzf;fPl;Lj; juq;fSf;F mika 

jahupf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ.  epWtdj;jpd; nfhLf;fy; thq;fy;fs; kw;Wk; fzf;F kPjpfs;  

(account balances) rk;ge;jkhf mYty; Nkw;nfhs;tjw;F mur Jiw fzf;fPl;Lj; 

juq;fs; mwpKfQ; nra;ag;glhjtplj;J ,yq;if epjp mwpf;ifg;gLj;jy; juq;fs; (Sri 
Lanka Financial Reporting Standards)  kw;Wk; ,yq;if fzf;fPl;L juq;fspd; (Lanka 
Accounting Standards) Vw;Gila Vw;ghLfs; epjpf; $w;Wf;fis jahupf;Fk;NghJ 

kw;Wk; Kd;itf;Fk;NghJ me;j kPjpfs; njhlu;gpy; gad;gLj;jg;gl;Ls;sd.

2.4. epjpf; $w;Wf;fSf;fhd nghWg;G 
epjpf; $w;Wf;fis jahupj;jy; kw;Wk; rku;g;gpg;gjw;fhd nghWg;ig kdpjts 

Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpd; Kfhik nfhz;Ls;sJ.

 

2.5. epWtdj;jpd; njhlu;r;rpahd ,Ug;G
epjpf; $w;Wf;fis jahupf;Fk;NghJ KfhikahdJ epWtdj;ij njhlu;e;J 

Kd;ndLj;Jr; nry;tjid kjpg;gPl;Lf;Fl;gLj;jpAs;sJ. kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L 

epWtdj;jpw;F mjpfhuk;kpf;f vjpu;fhynkhd;Wf;fhf nraw;ghl;Lldhd ,Ug;Gf;Fg; 

NghJkhdsT tsq;fs; ,Uf;fpd;wd vDk; epahakhd vjpu;ghu;g;G Kfhikj;Jtj;jpw;F 

cz;L. vjpu;fhyk; njhlu;ghf epyTk; midj;Jj; jfty;fisAk; ftdj;jpw;nfhz;L 

fiyj;JtpLtjw;fhd Njit my;yJ nraw;ghl;il epWj;Jtjw;fhd Njitia 

kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk; Kd;dNu fhztpy;iy. mjw;fika> kdpjts 

Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk; epjpf; $w;Wf;fis jahupf;Fk;NghJ njhlu;r;rpahd ,Ug;ig 

gad;gLj;jpAs;sJ. 

tUlhe;j 

epjpf; 

$w;Wf;fs;

2019
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2.6. mwpf;ifg;gLj;Jk; jpfjpapd; gpd;duhd epfo;Tfs;
epjpf; $w;Wf;fis khw;wpaikg;gjw;F my;yJ ntspg;gLj;jpf; nfhs;tjw;Fj; Njitahd Kf;fpa tplaq;fs; 

mwpf;ifg;gLj;Jk; jpfjpapd; gpd;du; mwpag;gltpy;iy.

         
2.7. xg;gPl;L uPjpapyhd vz;zpf;if
jw;Nghija rku;g;gpg;ig cWjp nra;tjw;fhf> Njitahd re;ju;g;gq;fspy; xg;gPl;L uPjpapyhd vz;zpf;iffs; 

kPz;Lk; jahupf;fg;gl;Ls;sd. 

2.8. nghUl;fs; kw;Wk; mtw;iw jpul;Ljy
rkkhd cUg;gbfspy; (nghUl;fspy;) rfy nghUl;fs; tiffSk; epjpf;$w;Wf;fspy; jdpj;jdpahf Kd;itf;fg;gLk;. 

xd;Wf;nfhd;W Ntwhd jd;ikiaf;nfhz;l nghUl;fs; my;yJ mYty;fs; mit nghUl;fshf ,y;yhtpl;lhy; 

jdpj;jdpahf Kd;itf;fg;gLk;.

2.9. Fwpg;gplj;jf;fstpyhd fzf;fPl;Lj; jPu;g;Gf;fs;> kjpg;gPLfs; kw;Wk; mDkhdq;fs;
epWtdj;jpd; epjpf; $w;iwj; jahupg;gjw;F Kfhikj;Jtj;jpdhy; epjpahz;bd; ,Wjpapy; tUkhdk;> nryTfs;> 

nrhj;Jf;fs;> nghWg;Gf;fs; msTfs; kPjhd jPu;g;Gf;fs;> kjpg;gPLfs; kw;Wk; mDkhdq;fis Nkw;nfhs;Sjy; 

mtrpakhFk;. fzf;fPl;Lf; nfhs;iffisg; gad;gLj;jpf; nfhs;Sk;NghJ vjpu;fhy kjpg;gPLfs; kw;Wk; Vw;Gila 

gpujhd mDkhdq;fs; kw;Wk; Vida gpupTfs;> Fwpg;gplj;jf;f fzf;fPl;Lf; nfhs;iffspd; nghopg;gpd; fPo; 

fye;Jiualg;gl;lJ. 

3. Fwpg;gplj;jf;f fzf;fPl;Lf; nfhs;iffspd; nghopg;G

3.1. tupfs;
m. tUkhd tup

epyTk; tup tpjpKiwfSf;fiak nghJthd tu;j;jf eltbf;iffspypd; Clhff; fpilf;Fk; tUkhdj;jpd; 

mbg;gilapy; tUkhd tupiar; nrYj;Jtjw;F epWtdk; fl;Lg;gltpy;iy.

M. ciog;Gf;fhd tup

gy;fiyf;fofr; nryTfspd; xU gFjpahf my;yhj tUkhd tup nrYj;Jtjw;F fl;Lg;gLfpd;w Copau;fspd; 

khjr; rk;gsj;jpypUe;J Fiwj;Jf;nfhs;sg;gLk; ciog;Gf;fhd tup gy;fiyf;fofj;jpdhy; jw;NghJ 

mDg;gg;gLfpd;wJ. vdNt ciog;Gf;fhd tupgy;fiyf;fof; fzf;Ffspy; fzf;F itf;fg;gLtjpy;iy.

,. Njrj;ijf; fl;bnaOg;Gk; tup

2009 ,d;  09 Mk; ,yf;f Njrj;ijf; fl;bnaOg;Gk; tupr; rl;lj;jpd; fPo; Rakhd epjpr; nraw;ghLfspd; 

Clhff; fpilf;Fk; tUkhdj;jpd; mbg;gilapy; epWtdj;jpdhy; jw;NghJ Njrj;ijf; fl;bnaOg;Gk; tup 

nrYj;jg;gLfpd;wJ. 

3.2. epiyahd nrhj;Jf;fs

 •     nrhj;Jf;fs; nghwpj; njhFjpfs; kw;Wk; cgfuzq;fs;

2017 Mk; Mz;by; epWtdj;jpd;  nrhj;Jf;fs;> ,ae;jpu rhjdq;fs; kw;Wk; cgfuzq;fis kPz;Lk; 

kjpg;gPl;Lf;Fl;gLj;jp 2017 epjpf; $w;Wf;fspy; fhz;gpf;fg;gl;lJ. gy;fiyf;fof khdpaq;fs; Mizf;FOtplk; 

tpdtp epWtdj;jpd; nrhj;Jf;fs;> nghwpj;njhFjpfs; kw;Wk; cgfuzq;fs; kPz;Lk; kjpg;gPl;Lf;Fl;gLj;jg;gl;l 

jpfjpapy; epahakhd ngWkjpapy; kPz;Lk; kjpg;gPL nra;ag;gl;Ls;sJ. me;jr; nrhj;Jf;fis kpz;Lk; 

kjpg;gPl;Lf;Fl;gLj;Jk; jw;Nghija Njwpa ngWkjp epjp epiyikf; $w;wpy; kPz;Lk; kjpg;gPl;Lf;Fl;gLj;Jk; 

,Ug;Gf;F Neubahf tuT itf;fg;gLk;.

•     Nja;khdk; 
Nja;khdk;> epjp nrayhw;Wif $w;wpy; nrhj;Jf;fs; nghwpj; njhFjp kw;Wk; cgfuzq;fspd; kjpg;gPl;L 

nra;ag;gl;l gaDs;s MAl;fhyj;jpd; mbg;gilapy; vspa Neu;Nfhl;by; ,dq;fhzg;gl;Ls;sJ. nrhj;njhd;wpd; 

Nja;khdk; mjid gad;gLj;jpa fhyk; Kjy;    Muk;gkhdhYk; nrhj;njhd;wpd; Nja;khdk; mjid 

tpw;gid nra;tjw;Fj; jPu;khdpf;fg;gl;l jpdj;jpy; my;yJ mfw;Wtjw;fhd gpuptpw;Fs; cs;slf;fg;gl;l 

jpdj;jpy; epWj;jg;gLfpd;wJ. 
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  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

3.3. FWfpa fhy KjyPLfs;
epWtdk; tUkhdkhfg; ngw;w gad;gLj;jg;glhj epjp mur tq;fpfspy; jtiz itg;Gf;fshf (Term deposit) 
jw;fhypfkhf itg;gpyplg;gl;Ls;sJ. mjd; %yk; fpilf;Fk; tl;b Fwpg;gpl;l gjpNtl;Lf; fzf;Ffspy; 

rPu;gLj;jg;gl;Ls;sJld; epjpr; nrayhw;Wif $w;wpy; tUkhdkhf Fwpg;gplg;gl;Ls;sJ.

3.4. jfty; njhopy;El;gj;Jld; njhlu;Gila nrhj;Jf;fs    
•     nkd;nghUs;fs;	

epWtdj;jpdhy; nfhs;tdT nra;ag;gl;l nkd;nghUs;fs; SLPSAS 20 ,w;fika njhl;Lzu Kbahj nrhj;-

Jf;fshf ,dq;fhzg;gl;L jdpahd nrhj;Jf;fshf Rl;bf;fhl;lg;gl;Ls;sJ.  

3.5. tu;j;jfk; kw;Wk; Vida mwtplg;gl Ntz;baitfs;
Kw;gzk;> nrYj;jy;fs; kw;wk; Vida mwtplg;gl Ntz;ba njhiffs; SLPSAS 01 ,w;fika mwpf;ifg;gLj;Jk; 

jpfjp Kjy; 12 khj fhyj;jpw;Fs; mwtplg;gly; Ntz;Lnkd kjpg;gPl;by; Fwpg;gplg;gl;Ls;sJ.  mwtpLtjw;F 

rpukkhd kw;Wk; fpilf;fg;ngWkh? vd re;Njfj;jpw;Fupa njhiffs; njhlu;ghf ve;jtpjkhd Vw;ghLfSk; 

,y;iy.

3.6. gzpf;nfhil	
Ie;njhifapy; (Balance sheet) ,dq;fhzg;gl;Ls;s nghWg;G vd;dntdpy;> epjp epiyikf;$w;W 

ntspaplg;gLk; jpfjpad;W 1983 ,d; 12 Mk; ,yf;f gzpf;nfhilr; rl;lj;jpd; Vw;ghLfSf;fika 

tiutpyf;fzg;gLj;jg;gl;Ls;s mD$yq;fs;> nghWg;Gf;fs; kw;Wk; fzf;fplg;gl;l vjpu;ghu;g;gpd; 

jw;Nghija ngWkjpahFk;.

3.7. gy;fiyf;fof Nrkyhg epjpak; kw;Wk; Copau; ek;gpf;if epjpak;
epWtdj;jpd; Copau;fs; Vw;Gila fl;lisr; rl;lk; kw;Wk; xOq;F tpjpKiwfSf;fpzq;f gy;fiyf;fof 

Nrkyhg epjpak; (UPF)  kw;Wk; Copau; Nrkyhg epjpak; (ETF) vd;gtw;wpd; gq;fspg;Gf;fhd cupikiag; 

ngWfpd;wdu;. epWtdk;> ntsp epWtdj;jpdhy; eilKiwg;gLj;jg;gLk; gy;fiyf;fof Nrkyhg epjpaj;jpw;F 

(UPF) kw;Wk; Copau; Nrkyhg epjpaj;jpw;F (ETF) Copau;fspd; nkhj;j rk;gsj;jpd; mbg;gilapy; KiwNa 

(15%) kw;Wk; (3%) mstpyhd tPjq;fspy; gq;fspg;ig toq;Ffpd;wJ. 

3.8. nryTfis ,dq;fhzy;
nryT kw;Wk; tUkhdk; Fwpg;gpl;l nghUl;fspd; nryT kw;Wk; tUtha; Mfpatw;Wf;F ,ilNaahd Neub 

njhlu;gpd; mbg;gilapy; tuT nryT $w;wpy; mq;fPfupf;fg;gLfpd;wd. epWtdk; ,aq;Ftjw;Fk; nrhj;Jf;fis 

jpwikahd epiyapy; guhkupg;gjw;Fk; Vw;gLk; midj;J nryTfSk; tuT nryT $w;wpy; tR+ypf;fg;gLfpd;wd.

3.9. eilKiw nghWg;Gf;fs;
epjp epiyikf; $w;W ntspalg;gl;l jpfjpapypUe;J xU tUl fhyj;jpw;Fs; nrYj;jg;gl Ntz;ba nghWg;G-

f;fs; eilKiwg; nghWg;Gf;fshf epjp epiyikf; $w;wpy; tifg;gLj;jg;gl;Ls;sJ. midj;J ,dq;fhzg;gl;l 

nghWg;Gf;fSk; epjpf; $w;Wf;fis jahupf;Fk;NghJ fzf;fplg;gl;Ls;sJ. 

nrhj;Jf;fs; tif
kjpg;gPL nra;ag;gl;l 

gaDs;s MAl;fhyk;

fl;blq;fs; 20 tUlq;fs;

nghwpj; njhFjp> ,ae;jpu rhjd-

q;fs; kw;Wk; fUtpfs;
10 tUlq;fs;

thfdq;fs; 05 tUlq;fs;

jsghlq;fs; kw;Wk; cjpupg; 

ghfq;fs;
10 tUlq;fs;

mYtyf kw;Wk; Vida cg-

fuzq;fs; 
5 tUlq;fs;

kpd;rhu cgfuzq;fs; 5 tUlq;fs;

E}yfg; Gj;jfq;fs; kw;Wk; 

gUtfhy rQ;rpiffs;
5 tUlq;fs;

gl;ljhup mq;fp 5 tUlq;fs;
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3.10. fld; toq;Fdu;fs; kw;Wk; ml;LW nryTfs;
fld; toq;Fdu;fs; kw;Wk; ml;LW nryTfs; epahakhd ngWkjpfspd; mbg;gilapy; fzf;fplg;gLtJld; 

nghJthf tl;biaf; nfhz;buhj nghWg;Gf;fshFk;.

3.11. njhlu;r;rpahd nghWg;Gf;fs;
tof;FfspypUe;J ntspNaWk;tiu ,e;j nghWg;Gf;fs; rk;ge;jkhf fzf;Ffspy; ve;jtpjkhd Vw;ghLfSk; 

toq;fg;gltpy;iy. SLPSAS 08  ,w;fika njhlu;r;rpahd nghWg;Gf;fs; ,dq;fhzg;gLk;.

3.12. %yjd cjtpfs; (khdpaq;fs;)
murhq;fj;jplkpUe;J fpilf;fg;ngWk;  %yjd cjtpfs; mtw;wpd; nghJthd ngWkjpapy; ,dq;fhzg;gl;Ls;sJld; 

mq;F cjtpfs;  fpilf;fg;ngWnkdTk;> ghjpg;Gr; nrYj;Jk; midj;J epge;jidfSk; Vw;ghL nra;ag;gLtjhfTk; 

epahakhd rhd;wspg;G cz;L.  epWtdj;jpw;F fpilf;Fk; %yjd cjtpfis  ,dq;fz;L nrytplg;gl;l 

kw;Wk; nrytplg;glhj %yjdf; fzf;fpd; Clhf %yjdqf; fzf;Ffspy; fzf;F itf;fg;gLtJld; mjd; 

jhf;fk; Neubahf epjp epiyikf; $w;wpy; cs;slf;fg;gLk;.

3.13. kPz;nlOk; nryT epjp Vw;ghL
fhR mbg;gilapy; epjp nrayhw;Wiff; $w;wpy; kPz;nlOk; cjtpfs; ,dq;fhzg;gLk;.

3.14. tiuaWf;fg;gl;l epjp
tiuaWf;fg;gl;l epjp tpNrlkhd my;yJ mu;g;gzpf;fg;gl;l mYtnyhd;Wf;fhf xJf;fPL nra;ag;gl;Ls;sJld; 

me;j mYtYf;fhf khj;jpuk; gad;gLj;jg;gLk;.

	
3.15. tUkhdq;fis ,dq;fhzy;
	 epWtdj;jpw;F nghUshjhu ed;ikfs; fpilg;gjw;fhd tha;g;G kw;Wk; tUkhdk; my;yJ Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;l 

my;yJ Nkw;nfhs;sg;gltpUf;Fk; njhlu;Gila nryTfis ek;gfkhd Kiwapy; mstpl KbAkhf 

,Ug;gpd; vg;NghJ ngwg;gl;lJ vd;gjid ftdj;jpw;nfhs;shky; tUkhdk; ,dq;fhzg;gLk;. ngwg;gl;l 

kw;Wk; ngwg;gl Ntz;ba tUkhdj;jpd; epahakhd  ngWkjpapd; mbg;gilapy; tUkhdk; mstplg;gLk;.   

	 tUkhdj;ij ,dq;fz;Lnfhs;Stjw;fhf fPo; Fwpg;gplg;gLk; tpNrl msTNfhs;fs; gad;gLj;jg;gLfpd;wd. 

	 Nrit toq;fg;gLk; fy;tp Mz;bw;fhd ghlnewpf; fl;lzk; ,dq;fz;Lnfhs;sg;gLtJld; kPjp ghlnewpf; 

fl;lzq;fs; epWj;jpitf;fg;gLk;.

 

   •	gjpTf; fl;lzk;>guPl;irf; fl;lzk;> E}yff; fl;lzk;> gl;lkspg;G tpohTf;fhd fl;lzk; Nghd;w khzt 

khztpfsplkpUe;J mwtplg;gLk; fl;lzq;fs; fhR mbg;gilapy; ,dq;fz;Lnfhs;sg;gLk;.

   •	tUkhdk; my;yJ nryTf;fhf Nru;f;fg;gLtjdhy; gaDs;s tl;b Kiwiag; gad;gLj;jp tl;b tUkhdk; 

,dq;fhzg;gLk;.

3.16. fhRg; gha;r;ry; $w;W
fhRg; gha;r;ry; $w;W rk;ge;jkhf SLPSAS 02  ,w;fika fhRg; gha;r;ry; $w;W jahupf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ. fhR kw;Wk; 
fhRf;Fr; rkkhditfs;> NjitahdNghJ fhrhf khw;wpf;nfhs;s KbAkhd kw;Wk; ngWkjp khw;wkiljiyf; 

ftdj;jpw;nfhs;shjpUf;f KbAkhd Mgj;jpw;Fl;gl;l ifapUg;G gzk; kw;Wk; tq;fpapypUf;Fk; gzj;ij 

cs;slf;fpajhFk;.
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                    2019 brk;gu; khjk; 31 jpfjpad;W epjp epiyik gw;wpa $w;W 
(njhiffs; fpl;ba &ghTf;F rPu; nra;ag;gl;Ls;sJ) 

  Fwpg;Gfs; 2019   &. 2018   &. 
nrhj;Jf;fs;           
eilKiwr;nrhj;Jf;fs;           

fhRk; fhRf;Ff;F rkkhditfSk; 4 14,200,040   42,600,104   
,ju Kw;gzKk; ngwj;jf;fitfSk;   78,248   24,467   
Copau; fld; 5 1,613,800   1,358,901   
gz;biff; fhy Kw;gzk;   6,250   6,250   
;Kw;nfhLg;gdTfs;   1,073,309   898,046   
,idza ngwj;jf;fitfs;   11,176,656   8,470,257   
itg;Gf;fs; (ngwNtz;baitfs; )   223,750   226,750   
nghUl;fs; kw;Wk; ,Ug;G       1,888,046   1,530,156   
 nrhj;J tpw;gid tUkhdk;    - 30,260,099 960,000 56,074,931 
            

eilKiway;yhr; nrhj;Jf;fs;           
KjyPLfs; 6 389,712,858   316,916,252   
Copau;fld;fs; 5 4,087,179   4,258,419   
njhl;LuzKbah nrhj;Jf;fs; 7 276,000   511,212   
nghwpj;njhFjp kw;Wk; cgfuzq;fs;;  8 98,191,396 492,267,433 87,662,204 409,348,087 

nkhj;j nrhj;Jf;fs;     522,527,532   465,423,019 
            
nghWg;Gf;fs;           
eilKiwg;nghWg;Gf;fs;           

xj;jpitf;fg;gl;l tUkhdk; 12 99,738,314   93,884,328   
,ju nrYj;j Ntz;baitfs; 9 2,815,932   791,966   
Ml;LW nrytfs; 10 7,299,820   3,703,720   
itg;Gf;fs;  (nrYj;jNtz;baJ) 11 4,443,033   2,521,768   
gpbj;J itj;jy; itg;Gf;fs;   766,107 115,063,206 112,962 101,014,744 
            

eilKiway;yhr; nghWg;Gf;fs;           
fzf;fha;T fl;lzj;jpw;fhd Vw;ghL 13 784,080   1,527,670   
gzpf;nfhilf;fhd xJf;fPL  14 27,872,960 28,657,040 13,900,587 15,428,257 

nkhj;jg; nghWg;Gf;fs;      143,720,245   116,443,002 
nkhj;j Njwpa nrhj;Jf;fs;      378,807,287   348,980,017 
            
nkhj;j Njwpa nrhj;Jf;fs;/cupikahd;ik           
%yjdk;            
     nrytplg;gl;l %yjd epjp Vw;ghL    112,940,447 112,940,447 97,264,936 97,264,936 

            
jpu ;lg;gl;l %yjd epjp Vw;ghL            

nghJ xJf;fk;    162,402,659   146,858,380   
kW kjpg;gPl;L ,Ug;G   10,431,390   10,431,390   
md;gspg;Gf;fs; kw;Wk; ed;nfhilfs;   240,000 173,074,049   157,289,769 
      286,014,496   254,554,705 

,Ug;G kw;Wk; tiuaWf;fg;gl;l epjpak;           
                IHRA mgptpUj;jp epjpak;   88,367,628   91,775,570   

  tiuaWf;fg;gl;l epjpak; 15 4,425,163 92,792,791 2,649,742 94,425,312 
nkhj;j Njwpa nrhj;Jf;fs;/cupikfs;     378,807,287   348,980,017 

 
1971 ,d; 38 Mk; ,yf;f epjpr; rl;lj;jpd; Vw;ghLfSf;fika ,e;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; jahupf;fg;gl;Ls;sjhf  

cWjpg;gLj;Jfpd;Nwd;.  
 

……………………………………………………….                               -  
B.[P.rP.vd;.gz;lhu  
cjtp epjpg; nghWg;ghsu;  

 
nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofj;jpd; kdpj ts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpd; fy;tpf; FO mq;fj;jtu;fs; epjpf; $w;Wf;fis 
jahupj;J rku;g;gpf;Fk; nghWg;igf; nfhz;Ls;sdu;. 
 

………………………………………… 
Nguhrpupau; N[.V.v];.Nf. [anfhb 
gzpg;ghsu;/ kdp.ts.Nk.ep. 

……………………………………… 
B.vk;.v];.mkurpq;f  
fy;tpf; FO mq;fj;jtu; 

……………………………………… 
Nf.gP.khj;njhl;lMur;rp  
fy;tpf; FO mq;fj;jtu; 

 
,yf;fk; 1 Kjy; 21 tiu rku;g;gpf;fg;gl;Ls;s fzf;fPl;Lf; nfhs;iffs; kw;Wk; Fwpg;Gf;fs; epjpf;$w;Wf;fspd; xU 
gFjpahFk;. 
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2019 brk;gu; 31 Mk; jpfjpAld; Kbtile;j epjpahz;by; epjpr; nrayhw;Wiff; $w;W 

            (njhiffs; fpl;ba &ghTf;F rPu; nra;ag;gl;Ls;sJ) 
 

  
  Fwpg;Gf;fs; 2019   &. 2018   &.. 

njhopw;ghl;L tUkhdk;       
kPz;nlOk;; epjp Vw;ghL   80,000,000 42,500,000 
mur epjp Vw;ghL ngWkjp Nja;T   9,333,429 5,053,522 
tpupthf;fy; jpl;lq;fs; %ykhd 
tUkhdk; 16 77,234,155 116,528,947 

tUkhdk; - Vida tUkhdq;fs; 17 47,262,663 43,047,391 
cs;sf epjpaj;jpd; %ykhd 
tUkhdk;   17,166,624 21,304,295 
nrhf;J mfw;wypUe;jhd ,yhgk;    1,552,000                           - 
nkhj;j tUkhdk;   232,548,872 228,434,156 
       
nryTfs;       
jdpg;gl;l Cjpaq;fs; 18 99,476,737 64,232,208 
Vida kPz;nlOk; nrytpdq;fs;       
gpuahzr; nryTfs; 18                           - 21,764 
toq;fy;fs; 18 6,985,701 5,047,739 
guhkupg;G eltbf;iffs; 18 2,390,423 3,536,454 
xg;ge;j Nritfs; 18 7,765,072 4,980,841 
mgptpUj;jp epjpaj;jpd; %ykhd 
kPz;nlOk; nrytpdq;fs;   17,166,624 21,304,295 

Vida njhopw;ghl;Lr; nrytpdq;fs; 18 7,243,469 6,589,712 
Nja;khdk   15,419,348 12,435,846 
njhiyJ}u fy;tp jpl;lq;fSf;fhd 
nryTfs; 19 61,309,441 80,155,964 

nrhj;J mfw;wypUe;jhd el;lk;   941,629 793,453 
nkhj;jr;nrytpdq;fs;   218,698,444 199,098,276 
Mz;bw;fhd Njwpa Nkyjpfk;/ 
(FiwT) 

  13,850,428 29,335,880 
$l;Lf   148,552,231 117,522,500 
Kd;nfhz;L nrd;w kPjp   162,402,659 146,858,380 



79

M
z
;l
w
pf
;i
f
 
k
w
;W
k
; 
t
U
l
he
;j
 
e
pj
pf
; 
$
w
;W
f
;f
s
; 
- 
2019

 
 
k
d
pj
t
s
 
N
k
k
;g
hl
;L
 
e
pW
t
f
k
; 
n
f
hO

k
;G
g
; 
g
y
;f
i
y
f
;f
o
f
k
;

 

 

 2019.12.31 jpfjpAld; Kbtile;j Mz;bw;fhd cupikfs;$ Njwpa nrhj;Jf;fs; khw;wk; gw;wpa $w;W 

Tpguk; 

 

%yjd 
 
khdpak; 

 Gpw 
epjpapypUe;jhd 
%yjd 
khdpak md;gspg;Gf;fs; 

kw;Wk; 
ed;nfhilfs 

 nghJ 
xJf;fk;  

 kW 
kjpg;gPl;L 
,Ug;G  

mgptpUj;jp 
epjpak;  

 gapw;rp 
kw;Wk; 
mgptpUj;jp 
epjpak;  

 

Muha;r;rp 
epjpak;  

 

 
eyNdhk;Gif 
kw;Wk; 
r%fg; 
nghWg;Gf;fs; 
epjpak;  

 

nkhj;jk;  

 

31.12.2018 jpfjpad;W kPjp  
 

 

    97,264,936                     - 
 

   146,858,380   10,431,390         91,775,570       622,532      700,737 
            
1,326,474 

   
348,980,017 

gupkhw;wq;fs;     
(44,772,390) 

  44,772,390            300,000    (300,000)                         - 

Mz;Lf;fhd gq;fspg;G        6,000,000   19,673,315      300,000        (22,756,557)        981,032      700,737    1,401,474       6,300,000 
Ke;jija Mz;Lfspd; fPo; 
Vw;ghl;Lf;fhd Nja;khdk; 

    
          (3,214) 

                        
(3,214) 

Mz;Lf;fhd ngw;;w epjp           36,515,239     
Ke;jija Mz;Lfspd; 
Vw;ghl;Lf;F Nkyhd Nja;khdk;     

       984,856 
 

                    - 
                 -                 -                           

- 
          
984,856 

Fld; Fiwg;Gf;fhd Vw;ghL       (724,375)          724,375       
Mz;Lf;fhd fld; Fwig;G    (9,273,429)     (60,000)                    -                 -                     -                  -                 -                           

- 
   (9,333,429) 

,Ug;Gf;fspd; rPuhf;fy;fs;             (12,165)              (12,165) 
kPznlYk; nryTfs;         (17,166,624)      
Mz;bDs; gad;gLj;jg;gl;lJ  

 
                  -                      -                 -                     -   (1,142,750)      (53,070)    (112,000)    (1,307,820) 

fhyg; gFjpf;fhd Nkyjpfk;/ 
gw;whf;Fiw  

 

                  -     
 13,850,428  

                -                     -                  -                 -                           
- 

     
13,850,428 

2019.12.31 jpfjpad;W kPjp  
 

     48,494,742   64,445,705      240,000    162,402,659   10,431,390         88,367,628          760,813    1,048,403       2,615,947  378,807,288 
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2019 &. 2018 &.

njhopw;ghl;L eltbf;iffs; Clhd fhRg; gha;r;ry

nghJthd nraw;ghLfs; %ykhd epjp Nkyjpfk/FiwT 13,850,428       29,335,880      

epjp rhuhj mirTfs/ rPu;gLj;jy;fs;
Nja;khdq;fs; 15,419,348       12,435,846       
gzpf;nfhilf;fhd xJf;fPLfs; 18,168,565       884,353            
fzf;fha;Tf; fl;lzq;fSf;fhd epjp Vw;ghL 834,440            280,000            
KjyPLfs; %ykhd tl;b (38,672,302)      (31,270,563)     
mur epjp Vw;ghLfs; ngWkhdj; Nja;T (9,333,429)        (5,053,522)       
Kd;nfhz;L nrd;w tUkhdk; -                         (19,518,875)     
,Ug;Gf;fhd Ke;ija rPuhf;fk; (12,165)             -                        
Mjdq;fis ePf;Fjy; (610,371)           793,453            
njhopw;ghl;L %yjdk; khw;wkila Kd;du; njhopw;ghl;L Nkyjpfk;/  
FiwT (355,486)           (12,113,430)     

njhopw;ghl;L %yjd khw;wq;fs; 
ehdhtpj Kw;gzq;fs; (mjpfupg;G)/ FiwT (53,781)             218,332            
Mszpf;fhd fld; mjpfupg;G/ FiwT (83,659)             (1,383,834)       
gz;bif Kw;gzk; (mjpfupg;G)/ FiwT -                         -                        
vjpu;fhyj;jpw;fhd nrYj;Jiffs; (mjpfupg;G/FiwT) (175,263)           (531,078)          
tl;b ngWtdTfs;(mjpfupg;G)/ FiwT -                         -                        
itg;Gf;fs; (mjpfupg;G)/ FiwT 3,000                 -                        
nghUl;fs; my;yJ ,Ug;Gf;fs; (mjpfupg;G)/ FiwT (357,890)           129,054            
ml;LW nryTfs; (mjpfupg;G)/ FiwT 3,596,100         (11,628)             
itg;Gf;fs; (mjpfupg;G) / FiwT (nrYj;j Ntz;ba) 1,921,265         398,603            
epWj;jp itg;Gf;fs; (mjpfupg;G)/ FiwT 653,144            554,581            
nrYj;j Ntz;ba rk;gsk; (mjpfupg;G)/ FiwT -                         (15,280,616)     
E}yfj;jpw;fhd itg;Gf;fs; (mjpfupg;G)/ FiwT -                         -                        
ehdhtpj nrYj;j Ntz;ba njhif (mjpfupg;G)/ FiwT 2,023,966         (347,319)          
Kd;nfhz;L nrd;w tUkhdk;  mjpfupg;G)/ FiwT  5,853,986         
njhopw;ghl;L %yjd khw;wq;fspd; gpd;duhd njhopw;ghl;L 
eltbf;iffspd; Njwpa epj         13,025,382      (28,367,335)

fzf;fha;Tf;fhd fl;lzq;fisr; nrYj;jy; (1,578,030)        (527,850)          
gzpf;nfhil nrYj;jy; (4,196,193)        (366,195)          
njhopw;ghl;L eltbf;iffspd; %ykhd Njwpa fhRg; gha;r;ry; 7,251,159         (29,261,380)     

epjprhu; eltbf;iffs; %ykhd fhRg; gha;r;ry;
epiyahd nrhj;Jf;fs; Fiwtiljy; / mjpfupj;jy; (25,673,315)      (37,693,250)     
KjyPLfis itg;Gr; nra;jy; / kPsg; ngwy; (56,000,000)      (9,905,914)       
KjyPl;Lf;fhd tl;b 19,169,297       18,508,556       
nrhj;J mfw;wypUe;jhd ,yhgk; 2,512,000         
KjyPl;L eltbf;iffs; %ykhd Njwpa fhRg; gha;r;ry; (59,992,018)      (29,090,608)     

epjprhu; eltbf;iffspd; %ykhd / (gad;gLj;jg;gLk;) fhRg; gha;r;ry;
%yjdj;jpw;fhd murhq;fj;jpd; khdpak; 6,300,000         17,400,000       
nrytplg;glhj khdpaq;fisg; gad;gLj;jy; -                         (6,303,980)       
mgptpUj;jp epjpaj;jpd; gq;fspg;G 19,348,615       29,884,573       
nghJ ,Ug;gpd; %ykhd gq;fspg;G -                         (1,754,610)       
gapw;rp  kw;Wk; mgptpUj;jp epjpak;         (1,142,750)            (358,500)
eyNdhk;Gif kw;Wk; r%fg; nghWg;G epjpak;            (112,000)              (75,000)
 Muha;r;rp epjpak;               (53,070)
epjprhu; eltbf;iffs; %ykhd Njwpa fhRg; gha;r;ry; 24,340,795       38,792,483      

fhR kw;Wk; fhRf;F rkkhdtw;wpd; Njwpa mjpfupg;G (28,400,064)      (19,559,506)     
Mz;bd; Muk;gj;jpy; fhR kw;Wk; fhRf;F rkkhdit 42,600,104       62,159,610       

Mz;bd; ,Wjpapy; fhR kw;Wk; fhRf;F rkkhdit 14,200,040       42,600,104      

2019 brk;gu; 31 Mk; jpfjpAld; Kbtile;j epjpahz;bw;fhd fhRg; gha;r;ry; $w;W
(njhiffs; fpl;ba &ghTf;F rPu; nra;ag;gl;Ls;sJ)
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Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

 

 

khw;wq;fs; gw;wpa $w;W 
Fwpg;G 04 - fhR kw;Wk; fhRf;Fr; rkkhdit  
brk;gu; khjk; 31 Mk; jpfjpad;W kPjp &.  

 
2019 (&.) 2018 (&.) 

fhRg; Gj;jf kPjp - 086-1-001-3-1189652                     8,094                323,850 
fhRg; Gj;jf kPjp - 086-1-001-4-1189680             2,637,434             4,258,401 
fhRg; Gj;jf kPjp - 086-1-001-2-1191306             7,199,046             1,317,555 
fhRg; Gj;jf kPjp - 086-1-002-3-1189680                800,110              (426,328) 
fhRg; Gj;jf kPjp - 086-1-001-4-0010037             1,779,717           (1,251,321) 
fhRg; Gj;jf kPjp - 086-1-002-2-1189652             1,424,139                971,033 
fhRg; Gj;jf kPjp - 086-1-003-2-1189680                351,500          37,406,915 
nkhj;jk;           14,200,040          42,600,104 
 
Fwpg;G 05 - Copau; fld;fs; (eilKiway;yhj nrhj;Jf;fs);  

brk;gu; khjk; 31 Mk; jpfjpad;W kPjp &.   2019 (&.) 2018 (&.) 
,lu; fld;               4,837,666            4,770,886 
Copau; fld;fs;                    11,050                  17,170 
thfdf; fld;                  523,691               463,868 
fzdpf; fld;                  209,000               240,500 
rk;gs Kw;gzk;                   35,000                            - 
nts;s epthuz Kw;gzk;                  119,572               124,896 
nkhj;jk;              5,735,979            5,617,320 
 
Fwpg;G 06 – KjyPfs;;  

Description 2019 (&.) 2018 (&.) 
kf;fs; tq;fp  - jpk;gpupf];aha         344,214,557        310,574,007 
Njrpa Nrkpg;G tq;fp - gk;gyg;gpl;b           45,498,301            6,342,245 
nkhj;jk; 389,712,858 316,916,252 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Fwpg;G : 07 njhl;Lzu Kbahj Mjdq;fs; - nkd;nghUs;fs; 
  

tpguk; 
 Gtpapay; jfty;     
  njhFjp  

 

 nghUl;fs; ,Ug;G 
fl;Lg;ghl;L njhFjp  

 

 fzf;fpay; 
Kiwik  

 

 epiyahd 
nrhj;Jf;fs;  

 

nkhj;jk;  

 

01.01.2019 Mk; jpfjpad;W kPjp  
 

             980,000                     531,229            730,056         345,000         2,586,285  

31.12.2019 Mk; jpfjpad;W kPjp  
 

             980,000                     531,229            730,056         345,000         2,586,285  

fopf;f:  
Nja;khdk;  
01.01.2019 Mk; jpfjpad;W kPjp  
              980,000                     467,294            627,780                      -         2,075,074  
$l;Lf:                            -  

Kd; rPu;gLj;Jif  
 

                          -  

Nja;khdk;                           -                       63,935            102,277            69,000            235,212  

31.12.2019 Mk; jpfjpad;W kPjp               980,000                     531,229            730,057           69,000         2,310,286  

31.12.2019 Mk; jpfjpad;W kPjp  
 

                         -                               -                      -        276,000          276,000 
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 Fwpg;G : 08 nrhj;Jf;fs; nghwpj; njhFjpfs; kw;Wk; cgfuzq;fs;  

Tpguk;  

 
  fhzpfs; 
kw;Wk; 
fl;blq;fs;  

mYtyf 
cgfuzq;fs;   E}yf 

cgfuzq;fs;  

thfdq;fs;  ngau;g; 
gyiffs;  

gl;ljhup 
mq;fpfs;  jsghlq;fs;   ,yj;jpudpay; 

cgfuzq;fs;   nkhj;jk;  

01.01.2019 Mk; jpfjpad;W kPjp  
 

        64,971,218         23,978,831        4,107,082        7,845,000          262,980          2,560,140        10,885,808         13,160,750      127,771,809 

nfhs;tdT         11,416,914           6,928,140               2,011,931            5,316,331        25,673,315 

nrhj;J mfw;wypd; fpuak;              (706,056)               (143,190)            (359,728)          (1,184,807)         
(2,393,781) 

31.12.2019 Mk; jpfjpad;W kPjp  
 

        76,388,132         30,200,914        4,107,082        7,845,000          262,980          2,416,950        12,538,011         17,292,273      151,051,343 

fopf;f:           
Nja;khdk;           
01.01.2019 Mk; jpfjpad;W kPjp          18,514,780           6,160,829        3,782,479        3,643,625          185,177          1,266,868           1,779,648            4,776,199        40,109,604 

$l;Lf:           
Kd;ida rPu;gLj;jy;fs;              (984,856)             (486,816)                  139               3,075            

(1,468,457) 
Mz;bw;fhd Nja;khdk;            3,388,654           5,394,240           215,546           724,375            19,950             476,381           1,614,859            3,350,130        15,184,136 

fopf;f:           
kPs;ngWkjpapl;l nrhj;J Nja;                                 - 

nrhj;J mfw;wypd; Nja;khdk;                 (102,103)            (143,206)             (720,027)            (965,336) 

31.12.2019 Mk; jpfjpad;W kPjp          20,918,579         11,068,253        3,998,164        4,368,000          208,202          1,641,146           3,251,301            7,406,301        52,859,946 

31.12.2019 Mk; jpfjpad;W kPjp          55,469,554         19,132,661           108,918       3,477,000            54,778             775,804          9,286,710           9,885,972        98,191,397 
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Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

 

 

Fwpg;G 09 - edhtpj nrYj;Jiffs;  
brk;gu; khjk; 31 Mk; jpfjpad;W kPjp &.  2019 (&.) 2018 (&.) 
ehdhtpj fld;nfhLj;Njhu;             1,442,018                            - 
rl;lj; NjitfSf;fhd fl;lzk;  

 
               268,219                268,219 

nrYj;j Ntz;ba tupfs;                250,364                374,293 
rpwhg;gu; kw;Wk; tq;fpj; jtWfs;                 838,732                132,085 
gpwUf;Fr; nrYj;Jtjw;fhd njhif                      7,200                    7,200 
nrYj;j Ntz;ba Kj;jpiuf; fl;lzk;                            8,475                         75 
epWj;jp itf;fg;gl;l tupfs;                               925                  10,095 
nkhj;jk;             2,815,933                791,966 
 

 

Fwpg;G 10 - nrYj;j Ntz;ba nryTfs;  

tpguk; 2019 (&.) 2018 (&.) 
rk;gsk; kw;Wk; Ntjdq;fs;                 301,264               102,143 
toq;fy;fs;                   58,594               181,327 
xg;ge;j Nritfs;  

 
               665,698               250,749 

guPl;irf;fhd nrYj;Jiffs;  

 
                 15,040               231,681 

Vida nraw; ghl;Lr; nryTfs;                 111,825                   1,349 
FWfpa fhy ghlnewpfSf;fhd nrYj;Jiffs;              2,026,599            1,173,262 
gl;lg;gpd; gbg;G kw;Wk; ghlnewpfSf;fhd nrYj;Jiffs;  

 
            3,435,787            1,518,172 

bg;Nshkh ghlnewpf;fhd nrYj;Jif  

 
               685,013               245,039 

nkhj;jk;             7,299,820            3,703,720 
 
Fwpg;G 11 - itg;Gf;fs; (nrYj;j Ntz;bait)  

brk;gu; khjk; 31 Mk; jpfjpad;W kPjp &.  2019 (&.) 2018 (&.) 
Nfs;tpg; gj;jpu itg;G                   60,000                  30,000 
gl;ljhup mq;fpf;fhd itg;Gj; njhif                              -               170,400 
E}yfj;jpw;fhd itg;Gf;fs;              4,035,000            1,874,400 
rpw;W}z;b ghJfhg;G itg;G                  25,000                  25,000 
uj;J nra;ag;gl;l fhNrhiy itg;G                323,033               421,968 
nkhj;jk;             4,443,033            2,521,768 
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Fwpg;G : 12 ngwg;gl;l tUkhdk;;  

tpguk; njhif 

Gtpapay;rhu; jfty;fs; tpQ;Qhd KJkhzpg; ghlnewp(2016/2017)  1,704,590 
tzpf Kfhikj;Jtg; KJkhzpg; ghlnewp ,y.05 442,500   
Nritfs; Kfhikj;Jtk; tpQ;Qhd KJkhzpg; ghlnewp Mq;fpyk; ,y.04 450,000 
kdpj tsq;fs; Kfhikj;Jtg; KJkhzpg; ghlnewp ,y.08 551,830 
tzpf Kfhikj;Jtg; KJkhzpg; ghlnewp ,y.06 

 
904,250            

tzpf Kfhikj;Jtg; KJkhzpg; ghlnewp ,y.07 16,519,528  
kdpj tsq;fs; Kfhikj;Jtg; KJkhzpg; ghlnewp ,y.09 8,821,139 
mdu;j;j Kfhikj;Jtk; kw;Wk; fl;Lg;ghL tpQ;Qhdkhzpg; KJkhzpg; ghlnewp     1,220,196                  
jkpo; nkhop bg;Nshkh ghlnewp  ,y.13 892,003 
jopo; cau; ghlnewp rhd;wpjo; ,y13 87,184               
Nritfs; Kfhikj;Jtk; tpQ;Qhd KJkhzpg; ghlnewp Mq;fpyk; ,y.05 6,891,480                  
cs ts MNyhrid gw;wpa bg;Nshkh ,y.06 606,098 
cs ts MNyhrid gw;wpa cau; bg;Nshkh 2018 936,481 
kdpj tsq;fs; Kfhikj;Jtk; epiwNtw;W bg;Nshkh ,y.07                639,715               

Rw;Wyh epfo;Tfs; kw;Wk; tpUe;njhk;gy; Kfhikj;Jt bg;Nshkh.2018 2,710,158 
Mq;fpy nkhop rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp ,y.39 14,358,672                  
Mrpupau;fSf;fhd Mq;fpy nkhop rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp ,y.17 
 

          405,615               

Nghijg;nghUs; J];gpuNahf Kfhikj;Jt rhd;wpjo; ghlnewp  2018 1,122,328 
tzpf Kfhikj;Jtg; KJkhzpg; ghlnewp ,y.08 8,266,611              
kdpj tsq;fs; Kfhikj;Jtg; KJkhzpg; ghlnewp ,y.10 5,363,047 
Mq;fpy nkhopg; ghlnewp .08 3,696,357                      
fzpdpgpuNahfj;jpy; FWq;fhyg; ghlnewp              1,500               

jkpo; cau; bg;Nshkh ,y.14   1,518,000 
Nritfs; Kfhikj;Jtk; tpQ;Qhd KJkhzpg; ghlnewp Mq;fpyk; ,y.06 2,969,008 
fzdp gpuNahf rhd;wpjo ghlnewp. ,y.11 10,176,475                  

ghlrhiy tpyfpNahu;fSf;fhd FWq;fhy ghlnewp ,y.21 574,400 
ghlrhiy tpyfpNahu;fSf;fhd FWq;fhy ghlnewp ,y.22 590,850 

ghlrhiy tpyfpNahu;fSf;fhd FWq;fhy ghlnewp ,y.23 513,700 

ghlrhiy tpyfpNahu;fSf;fhd FWq;fhy ghlnewp ,y.24 670,800               
cs ts MNyhrid gw;wpa bg;Nshkh ,y.07 2,165,000 

cs ts MNyhrid gw;wpa cau; bg;Nshkh  2019 1,620,000 
jkpo; mbg;gil bg;Nshkh ,y.15                234,000 

ghlrhiy tpyfpNahu;fSf;fhd FWq;fhy ghlnewp ,y.25             1,048,800 

ghlrhiy tpyfpNahu;fSf;fhd FWq;fhy ghlnewp ,y.26             1,003,200 
mopT mdu;j;j gFg;gha;T Kfhikj;Jtk; mdu;j;jq;fis Fiwg;gjw;fhd 
tpQ;Qhd KJkhzpg; ghlnewp  

                    2,000 

ghlrhiyia tpl;Lr; nry;gtu;fSf;fhd FWfpa fhy Mq;fpyg; 
ghlnewp,y.27 

                 60,800 

nkhj;jk;          99,738,314 
2019ypUe;J xj;jp itf;fg;gl;l tUkhdkhdJ eilKiw nghWg;gpd; fPo; tifg;gLj;g;gl;Ls;sjhy;  
jw;Nghja nghWg;gpy; fhzg;gLk; gFjpahdJ nghUz;ikAilaJ  
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Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk; 

 

Fwpg;G : 13 fzf;fha;Tf; fl;lz Vw;ghLfs;  

                                                     tpguk;  

 
njhif 

01.01.2019 kPjp            1,527,670 

 Mz;by; nrYj;Jif           1,578,030) 

 Mz;bw;fhd epjp Vw;ghL               834,440 
31.12.2019 kPjp              784,080 
 
Fwpg;G : 14 gzpf;nfhilf;fhd xJf;fPLfs;  
 

tpguk; fy;tprhu;  fy;tprhuh  nkhj;jk;; 

01.01.2019 kPjp              4,617,710           9,282,877        13,900,587 

 Mz;by; nrYj;Jif           (4,196,193)                           -        (4,196,193) 

 Mz;lf;fhd Vw;ghL              9,558,598           8,609,968        18,168,565 

31.12.2019 kPjp             9,980,115         17,892,845        27,872,960 
 
Fwpg;G :15 tiuaWf;fg;gl;l epjpak;  

 tpguk; njhif 

gapw;rp kw;Wk; mgptpUj;jp                760,813 
Muha;r;rp epjp Vw;ghl;L epjpak;             1,048,403 
eyNdhk;Gif kw;Wk; r%fg; 
nghWg;Gf;fs; epjpak;  

           2,615,947 

 njhif           4,425,163 
 
Fwpg;G :16 njhiyJ}u fw;if epfo;r;rpj;jpl;ljpyPUe;jhdapypUe;jhd tUkhdf;$w;W 2019 
 tpguk; njhif 

 
tpz;zg;gf;fl;lzk; 

                        
1,946,300 

 
ghlnewpf;fl;lzk; 

                      
63,403,855 

 
gjpTf;fl;lzk; 

                        
4,850,000 

 
guPl;irf;fl;lzk; 

                        
4,611,500 

 
E}yf fl;lzk; 

                        
1,141,000 

 
Vida tUkhdk; 

                        
1,281,500 

 nkhj;jk; 77,234,155 
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 Fwpg;G 17 - Vida tUkhdf; $w;W  
 

tpguk; njhif 

gjpTf; fl;lzk; - gl;lj; Nju;Tehb               2,407,000 
guPl;irf; fl;lzk; - gl;lj; Nju;Tehb  
 

 

                 15,300 

fld; kw;Wk; Kw;gzq;fspd; %ykhd tl;b  

 
                  245,766 

FWfpa fhy itg;Gf;fSf;fhd tl;b  

 
             38,672,302 

nrhj;Jf;fis thliff;Ftply;  

 
                    62,500 

Nfs;tpg;gj;jpuf; fl;lzk;  

 
                     34,000 

E}yf jz;lg;gzq;fs;                        3,626 
ehdhtpj ngWiffs;  

  
               3,240,644 

jfty; njhopEl;g trjpfSf;fhd fl;lzk;  

 
                   964,000 

gl;ljhup mq;fpfSf;fhd fl;lzk;  

 
                   362,525 

bg;Nshkh rhd;wpjo; toq;Fk; itgtk;  

 
               1,255,000 

nkhj;jk;             47,262,663 
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Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

 

 

Fwpg;G 18 - nryTf; $w;W - 2019 
tpguk; njhif nkhj;jk; 

rk;gsk; kw;Wk; Ntjdq;fs;  (fy;tp rhu;) 
rk;gsq;fSk; $ypfSk; 
Ckpau; Nrkyhg epjpak; 
Xa;T+jpak; 
Ckpau; ek;gpf;if epjpak; 

                   fy;tprhu; ryiffs; 
           tUif jUk; tpuptiuahsu; fl;lzk; 

gzpf;nfhil 
                  tho;f;ifr;nryT gb 
                   Ma;Tf;nfhLg;gdt 
                   tpNrl nfhLg;gdT 20%  
rk;gsk; kw;Wk; Ntjdq;fs (fy;tp rhuh) 

rk;gsq;fSk; $ypfSk; 
Ckpau; Nrkyhg epjpak  
Xa;T+jpak  

     Ckpau; ek;gpf;if epjpak  
   ,ilf;fhy nfhLg;gdT 

khjhe;j ,yg;gPl;L nfhLg;gdT 
    Vida nfhLg;gdTfs; 

gzpf;nfhil 
                                         tho;f;ifr;nryT gb 

khjhe;j ,yg;gPl;L nfhLg;gdT epyitfs; 
                 Ma;Tf;nfhLg;gdt  

 tpNrl nfhLg;gdT 20%  
NkyjPf Neu nfhLg;gdT 

                       
9,521,108 

                    2,488,775 
                     1,155,963                            

766,243                      
14,170,185                            

797,908 
                    9,558,598 
                       908,826 
                    3,094,072 
                    1,822,114 

                  20,210,807                        
2,913,940 

                    2,140,019 
                       973,813 
                       565,053                        

8,690,174                              
60,000 

                    8,609,968 
                    4,113,724 
                       272,615 
                       682,697 
                    3,986,196 
                    1,973,938 

        
99,476,737 

toq;fy;fs;  
                        vOJnghUs; kw;Wk; mytyf cgfuzq;fs; 

vupnghUs; kw;Wk; caTg;nghUs; 
rPUilfs; kw;Wk; ijay; $yp 
Vida toq;fy;fs; 

                       
3,988,342 

          1,108,774                                   
                73,405 

  1,815,180 
          

6,985,701  
guhkupg;G 

thfdq;fs; 
             Miy kw;Wk; ,aqe;jpuq;fs; 

      fl;llq;fs; kw;Wk; mikg;G 
Vidaitfs; 

                                 
              492,047 
              747,100 
              863,750 
              287,525 

          
2,390,423  

Xg;ge;j Nritfs; 
Nghf;Ftuj;J 

                 njhiyj;njhlu;ghly; 
jghy; nrytfs; 
kpd; fl;lzk; 
ghJfhg;gr;Nrit 
ePu; fl;lzk; 
Jg;guT Nrit 

                   Thliff;nfhLg;gdT 
          Cs;Su; mjpfhu rigf;fhd tup kwWk; ,iw fl;lzk; 
             mr;rply; kw;Wk; tpsk;gug;gLj;jy; nryTfs; 

33,462                        
1,558,991 

                      205,500 
                    2,292,421 
                     1,165,518                              

88,047                            
852,463 

                       155,479 
                       498,960 
                       914,232 

          
7,765,072  

Vida kPz;nlYk; nryTfs; 
tpNrl Nrit-MSif rig kw;Wk; FO 
Copah; Nkk;ghL 

     tpLKiwfhd Gifapuj gUtfhy rPl;L 
                 fspahl;lr;nryTfs; 

gl;lkspg;g tpoh 
  gupl;irf;fhd nryTfs; 

      gj;jpupiffs; kw;Wk; rQ;rpiffss; 
    eyd;Gup fhg;gPl;Lr;nryT 

                nrhj;J fld; kPjhd tl;b 

                           
837,370                              

28,000                            
195,430 

                    759,117 
                       344,660 
                   1,622,227 
                    2,541,921                            

877,053                              
37,692 

          
7,243,469  

Nja;khdk; - fhzp kw;Wk; fl;llk; 
                   fhzp kw;Wk; fl;llk; 

MyTYF 
cgfuzq;fs; 

             E}yf Gj;jfq;fs; kw;Wk; FWq;fhy rQ;rpiffs; 
Nkhl;lhu; thfdq;fs; 
Ngau;g;gyif 
Gl;ljhup mq;fpfs; 
jsghlq;fs; 

                 kpd; cgfuzq;fs; 
nkd;nghUl;fs; 

                          
 3,388,654 
 5,394,240 
     215,546 

      724,375                                   
        19,950                               
      476,381 
   1,614,859 
   3,350,130 
       235,212 

        
15,419,348 

nkhj;jk; 139,280,749 
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Fwpg;G 19 - njhiyJ}u fw;if epfo;r;rpj;jpl;ljpyPUe;jhd apypUe;jhd nryTfs; - 2019 
tpguk; njhif 

Muk;g nrytfs;                   
4,924,364 

njupTf;fhd nrytfs;                   
1,086,705 

mq;Fuhg;gz tpoh nryTfs;                   
1,180,107 

gbg;gpj;jy ; nrytfs;                
27,237,055 

guPl;irf;fhd nrytpdq;fs;                   
6,347,324 

ghlnewp Kifhikj;Jtk;                
15,528,440 

toq;fs;fSk; Nke;jiyfSk;                   
1,935,808 

mgptpUj;jpf;fhd epjp                      
181,080 

epr;rakpd;idapdhy; Cw;gl;l nrytfs;                   
2,888,558 

nkhj;jk; 61,309,441 

 
 

 
Fwpg;G 20 - ,iltplhj nghWg;Gf;fs;                                
ntspg;gLj;jy;fs; 
 

tof;F vz;. 08/177/2017 
A+.vk;.gP.ypadNf vd;gtuhy; ,e;j epWtdj;jpw;F vjpuf njhopyhsu; epaha rigapy; tof;nfhd;W 
jhf;fy; nra;ag;l;Ls;sJ 
 
 
Fwpg;G 21 – njhlg;Gila fl;rp ntspg;ghL 

SLPSAS f;F mikthf njhlu;Gila fl;rp ntspg;ghlhdJ gpujhd Kfhikj;Jt egu;fshdtu;fs; 
epWtdj;jpd; nray;ghLfis jpl;lkpLgtu;fshf ,af;Fgtu;fshf fl;Lg;gLj;Jgtu;fshf 
itj;jpUf;Fk; mjpfhuKk; nghWg;GilikAk; nfhz;ltu;fs;;. mjd;gb fy;tpf;FO mq;fj;jtu;fs; 
epWtdj;jpd; Kf;fpa Nkyhz;ik egu;fs; vd tifg;gLj;jg;gl;Ls;sdu;. ,e;j Mz;by; gpujhd 
Kfhikj;Jt egu;fshdtu;fSld; ve;j nfhLf;fy; thq;fy;fSk; ,y;iy 

 

Fwpg;G 20 - ,iltplhj nghWg;Gf;fs;                               

ntspg;gLj;jy;fs;

tof;F vz;. 08/177/2017
æ.vd;.gP. ypadNf vd;gtuhy; ,e;j epWtdj;jpw;F vjpuf njhopyhsu; epaha rigapy; tof;nfhd;W 

jhf;fy; nra;ag;l;Ls;sJ

Fwpg;G 21 – njhlg;Gila fl;rp ntspg;ghL
SLPSAS f;F mikthf njhlu;Gila fl;rp ntspg;ghlhdJ gpujhd Kfhikj;Jt egu;fshdtu;fs; 

epWtdj;jpd; nray;ghLfis jpl;lkpLgtu;fshf ,af;Fgtu;fshf fl;Lg;gLj;Jgtu;fshf itj;jpUf;Fk; 

mjpfhuKk; nghWg;GilikAk; nfhz;ltu;fs;;. mjd;gb fy;tpf;FO mq;fj;jtu;fs; epWtdj;jpd; 

Kf;fpa Nkyhz;ik egu;fs; vd tifg;gLj;jg;gl;Ls;sdu;. ,e;j Mz;by; gpujhd Kfhikj;Jt 

egu;fshdtu;fSld; ve;j nfhLf;fy; thq;fy;fSk; ,y;iy



89

Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

1. mwpKfk;
ehd;F jrhg;jq;fSf;F fpl;ba tuyhw;iwf;nfhz;l kdpjts 

Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk;> 1979 ,d; 11 Mk; ,yf;f rl;lj;jpd; Clhf 

Copau; fy;tp epWtdk; vDk; ngaupy; jhgpf;fg;gl;Ls;sJld; mJ 

2006 ,d; 01 Mk; ,yf;f rl;lj;jpd; Clhf jpUj;jg;gl;Ls;sJ.  

2006 Mk; Mz;by;  Copau; fy;tp epWtdkhdJ kdpjts 

Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk; vdg; ngauplg;gl;lJ.  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L 

epWtdk; ehl;bd; goikahd gy;fiyf;fofkhd nfhOk;Gg; 

gy;fiyf;fofj;jpw;Fupa fy;tp epWtdnkhd;whFk;. nfhOk;Gg; 

gy;fiyf;fofj;jpd; fy;tp epWtdnkhd;whf ,Ug;gjd; 

fhuzkhf fy;tp eltbf;iffs; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofj;jpd; 

jPtpu Nkw;ghu;itf;Fl;gLj;jg;gLfpd;wJ. ve;jnthU cau;fy;tp 

epWtdKk; Ngzp tu Ntz;ba fy;tp eltbf;iffspd; cau; 

juj;ijg; Ngzp tuy; kw;Wk; rpwe;j rk;gpujhaq;fis njhlu;e;Jk; 

Ngzp tUtjw;fhd flg;ghl;il kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdk; 

nfhz;Ls;sJ.

mur gy;fiyf;fofj;jpd; fPo; ,aq;Fk; fy;tp epWtdnkhd;W 

vd;w tifapy; kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdKk; 2018 - 2022 

fhyg; gFjpf;fhd epWtdj;jpd; $l;Lj; jpl;lj;ij jahupj;jy; 

Kjy; nray; jpl;lj;jpd; Clhf vjpu;ghu;f;fg;gLk; ,yf;fpid 

Nehf;fpg; gazpf;Fk;NghJ midj;J mur epWtdq;fisg; 

Nghd;Nw If;fpa ehLfs; mikg;gpd; 2030 epfo;r;rp epuYf;fika 

Ngz;jF mgptpUj;jp ,yf;Ffis mile;Jnfhs;tjw;fhf 

epWtdk;rhu; Nehf;fk; kw;Wk; ,yf;Ffis ikakhff; 

nfhs;sg;gl;Ls;snjd;gjid kfpo;r;rpAld; njuptpj;Jf;nfhs;s 

tpUk;Gfpd;Nwhk;.

jukhd fy;tp, Muha;r;rp trjpfis tYg;gLj;Jjy; kw;Wk;  

ntspehl;L gy;fiyf; fofq;fSld; cwTfis mjpfupj;jy; 

Nghd;w Nehf;fq;fis ika;akhf nfhz;L kdpj ts Nkk;ghl;L 

epWtdj;jpdk; xd;gJ (9) ,yf;Ffis cUthf;fpaJ.

kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtdj;jpd; 2018 - 2022 Ie;J tUl fhyg; 

gFjpf;fhd epWtdj;jpd; $l;Lj; jpl;lj;ij jahupf;Fk;NghJ 

fy;tp epWtdnkhd;W vd;w tifapy; gpujhdkhf Ngz;jF 

mgptpUj;jp Nehf;fq;fspdhy; vjpu;ghu;f;fg;gLk; jukhd fy;tp> 

#oy; ghJfhg;G kw;Wk; Rfhjhuk; kw;Wk; cly; MNuhf;fpak; 

Nghd;w gpupTfs; kPJ vkJ mbg;gilf; ftdk; nrYj;jg;gl;Ls;sJ.

mjw;fika> fle;j 2019 Mk; Mz;by; epWtdj;jpd; 

nray; jpl;lj;jpd; Clhf tYg;ngwr; nra;ag;gl;l  #oy; 

ghJfhg;Gf;fhf Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;l nraw;ghLfs; kw;Wk; #oYf;F 

VNjDk; vjpu;kiwahd jhf;fk; Vw;gLj;jg;gLkhapd; mjidf; 

Fiwj;Jf;nfhs;Sjy; rk;ge;jkhd tpguq;fs; kw;Wk; Njitahd 

re;ju;g;gq;fspy; #oypay; kw;Wk; mdu;j;j jhf;fq;fis 

kjpg;gPLfs; cs;slf;fg;gl KbAkhd Ngz;jF mgptpUj;jpia 

mbg;gilahff;nfhz;l vjpu;fhy vjpu;ghu;g;Gf;fs; njhlu;ghd 

mwpf;ifia ,t;thW ntspapLfpd;Nwhk;.

2018 ,d; 19 

Mk; ,yf;f 

Njrpa 

fzf;fha;Tr; 

rl;lj;jpd;  

III Mk; 

gpuptpd; ,yf;fk; 

17 (<) ,d; fPo; 

Fwpg;gplg;gl;Ls;s 

Ngz;jF 

mgptpUj;jpia 

mbg;gilahff;nfhz;l 

vjpu;fhy 

vjpu;ghu;g;Gf;fs; 

njhlu;ghd mwpf;if - 

2019
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2. kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epwtdj;jpd; 2018 - 2022 fhyg; gFjpf;fhd $l;Lj; jpl;lj;jpw;fika 
epWtdk; rhu;e;j Nehf;fq;fs;

2019 Mk; Mz;by; epWtdj;jpd; nray; jpl;lj;jpd; %d;W Nehf;fq;fspd; cgha top (%Nyhghaq;fs;) 

clhf #oiyg; ghJfhj;jy; kw;Wk; #oYf;F VNjDk; vjpu;kiwj; jhf;fk; Vw;gLkhapd; mjidf; 

Fiwj;Jf;nfhs;tjw;F Nkw;nfhs;s Ntz;ba eltbf;iffs; rk;ge;jkhf ftdk; nrYj;jg;gl;Ls;s 

Nehf;fshtd>

Nehf;fk; 03 - Muha;r;rp> Gjpa fz;Lgpbg;Gf;fs; kw;Wk; njhopy; Kaw;rpfisg; gyg;gLj;jy;

Nehf;fk; 06 - ngsjPf kw;Wk; mofpay; #oiy Nkk;gLj;Jtjd; Clhf gq;fhspj; jug;gpdupilNa 

           jpUg;jpia Vw;gLj;jy;

Nehf;fk; 07 - epu;thf Kiwik kw;Wk; nraw;ghl;il Nkk;gLj;jy;

2019 Mk; Mz;by;> epiyahd mgptpUj;jp ,yf;Ffis mile;Jnfhs;tJ njhlhghf tpopg;Gzu;it 

mjpfupf;f eltbf;if vLf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ mJ njhlu;ghf epWtdj;jpd; Copau;fSf;F tpopg;Gzu;it 

Vl;gLj;j 23/01/2020 k; jpfjp nrayku;T xd;W elj;jg;gl;lJ kyhah gy;fiyf;fofk;. fy;tp gPlj;jpy; 
%j;j tpupTiuahsuhf ,Uf;Fk; Nguhrpupau; tprhyhr;rp ghyfpUr;zd; mtu;fshy; ,t; tpupTiu 

epfo;j;jg;gl;lJ.

  
3. Muha;r;rp> Gjpa fz;Lgpbg;Gf;fs; kw;Wk; njhopy; Kaw;rpfisg; gyg;gLj;jy
Muha;r;rp> Gjpa fz;Lgpbg;Gf;fs; kw;Wk; njhopy; Kaw;rpfisg; gyg;gLj;Jk; ,yf;if 

mile;Jnfhs;tjw;fhf mwpQu;fs; kw;Wk; khztu;fsplj;jpy; Muha;r;rpf; fyhrhuj;ij tpUj;jp 

nra;jy; kw;Wk; Muha;r;rp kw;Wk; mgptpUj;jpf;fhd cl;fl;likg;G trjpfs; mgptpUj;jp Mfpa 

,uz;L Nehf;fq;fis 09 Kf;fpa nray;jpwd; Fwpfhl;bfs;; Clhf mile;Jnfhs;tjw;F eltbf;if 

Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;bUe;jJ. 

mtw;wpd; Kd;Ndw;wk; gpd;tUkhW;
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Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

%Nyhghak; eltbf;if Kf;fpa nray;jpwd; 

Fwpfhl;bfs;

Kd;Ndw;wk;

khztu; Muha;r;rpapd; 

juj;ij Nkk;gLj;jy;

Muha;r;rpf;F 

topfhl;LjiyAk; 

MjuitAk; toq;Fjy;

elj;jg;gl;l MjuT 

mku;Tfspd; vz;zpf;if

njhopyhsu; fy;tpapay; 

gl;lg; ghlnewp 

khztu;fSf;F 2 

MjuT mku;Tfs; 

elj;jg;gl;Ls;sJ.

Nritfs; 

Kfhikj;Jtj;Jt 

tpQ;Qhd KJkhzp 

- 2018 njhFjp 

khztu;fSf;fhf SPSS 

nraykh;T ntw;wpfukhf 

elj;jg;gl;lJ. Muha;r;rp 

fl;Liufs; vOj 

topfhl;lg;gl;lJld; 

khztu;fs;; 13 

fl;Liufis 2 

tJ nraykh;tpy; 

rkh;g;gpf;fg;gl;lJ.

 

mwptpay; KJkhzp 

- 2018 njhFjp 

khztu;fSf;fhf 

Muha;r;rp fl;Liufs; 

vOJk; ehs; 

elhj;jg;gl;lJ.

Muha;r;rp ikaj;jpw;F 

khztu;fs; tutpd; 

rjtPjk;

Muha;r;rp ikak; epWTk; 

Ntiy ele;J tUfpwJ.

NeUf;F Neu; mku;Tfis 

elj;Jjy;

xU khztUf;fhd 

Ma;twpf;iff;fhd 

njhlu;G mku;Tfspd; 

vz;zpf;if

Muha;r;rp ikak; epWTk; 

Ntiy ele;J tUfpwJ.

Ma;twpf;if 

topfhl;Ljypd; gb> 

Nkw;ghu;itahsUld; 

Fiwe;jJ 10 

mku;Tfis elj;j 

Ntz;Lk;. ,y;iynadpy;> 

Nkw;ghu;itahsu; 

Ma;twpf;ifia 

rku;g;gpf;f mDkjpf;f 

khl;lhu;. mjd;gb> 246 

khztu;fs; jq;fs; 

Ma;twpf;ifia rupahd 

Neuj;jpy; rku;g;gpj;jdu;.
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vnyf;l;uhdpay;; tsq;fs; 

/ cw;gj;jpj;jpwd; 

Nkk;ghl;L fUtpapd; 

gad;ghL njhlh;ghf 

khztu;fSf;F 

tpopg;Gzu;T epfo;r;rpfis 

elj;Jjy;

elj;jg;gl;l epfo;r;rpfspd; 

vz;zpf;if

njhopyhsu; fy;tpapay; 

gl;lg; ghlnewp - gFjp 

I kw;Wk; njhopyhsu; 

fy;tp bg;Nshkh 

khztu;fSf;fhd 

2 tpopg;Gzu;T 

jpl;lq;fis ntw;wpfukhf 

elj;jg;gl;lJ.

epfo;r;rpfs; 09/09/2019 
kw;Wk; 11/10/2019 md;W 

kzpj ts Kfhikj;Jt 

epWtd E}yf 

tshfj;jpy; eilngw;wJ. 

,e;j epfo;r;rpapy; 116 

khztu;fs; gq;Nfw;wdu;.

Muha;r;rpAldhd 

KJepiy 

fw;ifnewpfis 

Muk;gpj;jy;

Muha;r;rpAldhd 

KJepiy 

fw;ifnewpfis 

elj;Jjy;

mwpKfg;gLj;jg;gl;l 

epfo;r;rpfspd; 

vz;zpf;if

nfhOk;G gy;fiyf;fof 

fTd;rpypd; 

mDkjpia ngw;wJld;   

gy;fiyf;fof khdpaq;fs; 

Mizf;FOtpd; 

mDkjpf;fhf tpz;zg;gk; 

rku;g;gpf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ.

Muha;r;rpf;fhd 

nfhs;if fl;likg;ig 

cUthf;Fq;fs;

,sq;fiy 

kw;Wk; KJepiy 

fw;ifnewpfspd;  

ghlj;jpl;lj;jpd; xU 

Kf;fpa gFjpahf 

Muha;r;rp / nraw;jpl;l 
mwpf;iffis 

,izj;jy;

epfo;r;rpfspd; 

vz;zpf;if

nraw;jpl;l mwpf;iffs; 

/ Ma;twpf;if

,sq;fiy 

kw;Wk; KJepiy 

fw;ifnewpfspd; 

ghlj;jpl;lj;jpd; 

mj;jpahtrpa gFjpahf 

Muha;r;rp / nraw;jpl;l 
mwpf;iffis 

,izg;gjw;fhd 

eltbf;iffs; 

vLf;fg;gl;Ls;sd.,jw;fhf 

gy;fiyf;fof khdpaq;fs;   

Mizf;FOtpd; mDkjp 

vjph;ghh;f;fg;gLfpwJ.

Muha;r;rpf;fhd 

nfhs;if fl;likg;ig 

cUthf;Fq;fs

ntspehl;L 

Mrpupau;fSld; 

khehL / $l;L 
Muha;r;rpia ntspapl 

/ fye;Jnfhs;s 
Copau;fSf;F 

tsq;fisAk; 

rYiffisAk; 

toq;Ftjd; %yk; 

Muha;r;rpia 

Cf;Ftpj;jy

xt;nthU tUlKk; 

Muha;r;rpf;fhf 

xJf;fg;gl;l 

khdpaq;fspd; njhif

nkhj;jk; &. xU 

tpupTiuahsUf;F 25>000 

/ - gad;gLj;jg;gl;Ls;sJ

Muha;r;rp ntspaPl;bd; 

gue;j gutiy cWjp 

nra;jy;

Fwpg;gplg;gl;l Ma;tpjopy; 

ntspaplg;gl;l 

fl;Liufspd; vz;zpf;if

4 tpupTiuahsu;fshy; 

11    Muha;r;rpfs; 

Fwpg;gplg;gl;l Ma;tpjopy; 

ntspapl;Ls;sJ.

kzpj ts Kfhikj;Jt 

epWtdk; Ma;tpjio 

ntspapLjy;

xt;nthU tUlKk; 

ntspaplg;gl;l 

Ma;tpjo; njhFjpfspd; 

vz;zpf;if

2019 Mk; Mz;by; 1 

,jo; ntw;wpfukhf 

ntspaplg;gl;lJ

,q;F gpujhdkhf mgptpUj;jpf;fhd cl;fl;likg;G trjpfs; mgptpUj;jp vDk; Nehf;fj;ij 

mile;Jnfhs;Sk;NghJ Ngz;jF mgptpUj;jp ,yf;FfSf;fika #oy; kPJ Vw;gl KbAkhd 
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Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

vjpu;kiwahd jhf;fj;ijf; Fiwj;Jf;nfhs;tjw;F kw;Wk; tsg; gad;ghl;bd;NghJ tpidj;jpwd; 

kw;Wk; Rj;jk; kw;Wk; #oy; uPjpapy; rpwe;j njhopy;El;gq;fis gad;gLj;Jtjw;F fPo; Fwpg;gplg;gLk; 

%d;W topKiwfs; nraw;gLj;jg;gl;ld.    

- Muha;r;rpf; fl;LiufSf;fhf ,yj;jpudpay; fsQ;rpag;gLj;jy; Kiwiknahd;iw mgptpUj;jp 

  nra;jy;

- E}yf Nritfis toq;Fk;NghJ ,yj;jpudpay; fsQ;rpag;gLj;jy; kw;wk; ,yj;jpudpay; 

  trjpfs; gad;ghl;il Nkk;gLj;jy;

- E}yfq;fis jd;dpaf;fkag;gLj;jy;

Nkw;fz;l eltbf;iffspd; Kd;Ndw;wk; gpd;tUkhW;
			 
kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtd E}yfj;jpy; ,Ue;j 20>000 ,w;Fk; mjpfkhd gioa E}y;fs;> rQ;rpiffs; 

kw;Wk; Muha;r;rpf; fl;Liufs; vd;gtw;iw ,yj;jpudpay; fsQ;rpag;gLj;jy; nraw;ghl;bw;F 

cl;gLj;jpaik fhuzkhf mtw;iw epWtd tstpypUe;J mfw;wg;gl;lJld; gad;gLj;j Kbakhd 

gy E}y;fis ,yq;ifapd; ghlrhiyfs;> fy;tp epWtfq;fspd; Nfhupf;ifapd; mbg;gilapy; 

gad;ghl;bw;fhf toq;fg;gl;lJ. NkYk; epWtd tstpypUe;J mfw;wg;gl;l gy E}yfj; jsghlq;fisAk; 

Nky; Fwpg;gpl;l Kiwapy; kPs; ghtidf;fhf toq;fg;gl;lJ. 

4. ngsjPf kw;Wk; mofpay; #oiy Nkk;gLj;Jtjd; Clhf gq;fhspj; jug;gpdupilNa 

jpUg;jpia Vw;gLj;jy
ngsjPf kw;Wk; mofpy; #oiy Nkk;gLj;Jtjd; Clhf jug;gpdu;fsplj;jpy; jpUg;jpia Vw;gLj;Jtjw;fhf 

epWtdj;jpdhy; 2019 Mk; Mz;by; gy eltbf;iffs; Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;Ls;sJ. mjdpilNa 2019 

Mz;bw;fhd nray; jpl;lj;jpy; cs;slf;fg;gl;l fPo; Fwpg;gplg;gLk; cgha topKiwfs; Kf;fpakhFk;.

	 •  jw;NghJs;s; fl;bl trjpfis tpupTgLj;jy;
             •  Rw;Wr;R+oy;; Nea #onyhd;iw cUthf;Fjy;

             • cly;eyk; kw;Wk; Rfhjhu epiyikfis Nkk;gLj;Jjy;

2019 Mk; Mz;by; kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtd tstpd Gjpa ePl;bg;ghf  epWtd myFfspd; trjpfis 

Nkk;gLj;Jk; kw;Wk; epWtdj;jpd; fl;likg;ig kPsj; jpl;lkpLtjw;F eltbf;if Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;lJ. 

,jd; ngWNgwhf epWtd tstpypUe;j mjpfstpyhd nghUl;fis kPsg; gad;gLj;j Kbakhd 

tifapy; jhgd tpjpf; Nfhitf;fika mDkjpngw;w jug;gpdUf;F toq;fpaJ. cupa gpufhuk; 

mtw;iw epWtd tstpypUe;J mfw;wg;gl;likapd; fhuzkhf #oYf;F Vw;gl $ba ghjpg;Gf;fis 

Fiwj;Jf;nfhs;tjw;F epWtdj;jpdhy; KbAkhfpaJ. 

#oy;Nea #onyhd;iw cUthf;Ftjw;fhf epWtdj;jpdhy; vLf;fg;gl;l eltbf;iffspilNa epWtd 

tstpDs; gpsh];bf; kw;Wk; nghypj;jPd; ghtidia Fiwg;gjw;F eltbf;if vLj;jy;> ,q;F czT 

nfhz;Lnry;Yk;NghJ nghypj;jPd; ciwfSf;Fg; gjpyhf czTg; ghj;jpuq;fis nfhz;L tUtjw;F 

epWtd Copau;fis mwpTWj;jpaJld; mjd; kpfTk; eilKiwr; rhj;jpakhd Kaw;rpahf epWtd 

Copau; eyd;Gup rq;fj;jpd; gq;fspg;Gld; midj;J Copau;fSf;Fk; gfYzTg; nghjpnahd;iw 

,ytrkhf toq;Ftjw;F eltbf;if Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;lJ. 

NkYk;> tpupTiuahsu;fSf;F ,Jtiu gad;gLj;jg;gl;l gpsh];bf; Nghj;jy;fisg; gad;gLj;Jtjw;Fg; 

gjpyhf ePz;lfhyj;jpw;F gad;gLj;jf;$ba ePu; Nghj;jy;fisg; gad;gLj;Jtjw;F eltbf;if 

Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;lJ. epWtdj;jpy; mr;rply; mYty;fspd;NghJ Vw;gLk; ghjpg;Gf;fisf; 

Fiwj;Jf;nfhs;tjw;fhf mtw;iw epu;tfpg;gjw;F Ra fl;Lg;ghl;L Cf;Ftpg;ig Nghd;Nw 

ghupastpyhd mr;rply; eltbf;iffspd;NghJ mtw;iw epiwNtw;W Mszpapd; xOq;FgLj;jYf;F 

fPo; Nkw;nfhs;tjw;F eltbf;if Nkw;nfhs;sy;.

,Jtiu epytpa kpd;rhug; gad;ghl;Lj; Kiwik rPu;nra;ag;gl;L kw;Wk; epwtdj;jpw;F kpd;Fkpo;fs;> 

Fsp&l;b ,ae;jpuq;fs; Mfpatw;iw nfhs;tdT nra;Ak;NghJ kpd;rhur; rpf;fdkhd ,yj;jpudpay; 

fUtpfis nfhs;tdT nra;Ak; Kiwnahd;iw jahupj;jy;> epWtdj;jpDs; kpd;rhug; ghtidia 

Fiwj;Jf;nfhs;tjw;fhf epWtdj;jpdiu mwpTWj;Jtjw;Fk; mtu;fis Cf;Ftpg;gjw;Fk; eltbf;if 

Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;lJ. 
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Fb ePu; tPz;tpuaj;ijf; Fiwj;Jf;nfhs;tjw;fhf Rj;jpfupf;fg;gl;l ePu;g; ghj;jpuq;fisg; 

gad;gLj;Jtjw;F eltbf;if Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;lJld; cupa gpufhuk; ePiug; gad;gLj;Jtjw;F 

Copau;fis Cf;Ftpg;gjw;F eltbf;if vLf;fg;gl;lJ. Rfhjhu - cly;eyg; ghJfhg;G epiyikfis 

Nkk;gLj;Jtjw;fhf epWtdj;jpdhy; Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;l eltbf;iffspilNa Copau;fs; kw;Wk; 

epWtdj;jpy; fw;if eltbf;iffspy; <Lgl;Ls;s khztu;fspd; ghtidf;fhf Rj;jkhd FbePiug; 

ngw;Wf;nfhLg;gjw;F eltbf;if Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;Ls;sik Kf;fpakhdnjhU eltbf;ifahFk;.

 

epWtdj;ij kWrPuikf;Fk;NghJ epWtdj;jpd; gad;ghl;bw;F kyry$lj; njhFjpnahd;W 

epu;khzpf;fg;gl;lJ. etPd cgfuzq;fisf;nfhz;L epu;khzpf;fg;gl;Ls;s ,e;j kyry$lj; njhFjp 

fhuzkhf epWtd Copau;fspd; cly;ey MNuhf;fpaj;ij Nkk;gLj;Jtjw;F tha;g;Gf; fpilj;jJld; 

mjD}lhf tpidj;jpwd;kpf;f Nritnahd;iw toq;f KbAkhf ,Ug;gJld; MNuhf;fpakhd 

tho;f;ifnahd;Wf;Fk; ,e;j trjpfs; cWJizahf ,Ue;jJ. cly; MNuhf;fpaj;ij NkYk; 

Nkk;gLj;Jk; tifapy; Nkirf; iff;Fl;ilfs; (Nrtpal;)> iffisf; fOTk; fpUkp ePf;fpj; jputk; 

Nghd;w trjpfisAk; toq;Ftjw;F eltbf;if Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;Ls;sJ. 

Rfhjhuk; kw;Wk; cly; MNuhf;fpaj;ij NkYk; cWjp nra;Ak; tifapy; epWtdj;jpd; fopTfis 

mfw;Wk;NghJ mtw;iw cupa Kiwapy; NtWgLj;jp #oYf;F tpLk; Kiwnahd;W mwpKfg;gLj;jg;gl;lJ. 

mjw;fika cf;Fgit> cf;fhjit vd NtWgLj;jp fopTfis mfw;Wtjw;F epWtd Copau;fSf;F 

mwpTWj;jg;gl;Ls;sJ.

5. epu;thf Kiwik kw;Wk; nraw;ghl;il Nkk;gLj;jy;
Ngz;jF mgptpUj;jpapd; epkpj;jk; epWtdj;jpd; epu;thff; fl;likg;G kw;Wk; mjd; nraw;ghl;il 

Nkk;gLj;Jtjw;fhd eltbf;iffs; Muk;gpf;fg;gl;Ls;sd. mjw;fika> epWtdj;jpd; epu;thfk;> guPl;irfs;> 

khztu; fw;if Kfhikj;Jt Kiwikfs; gad;ghl;bw;fhd eltbf;iffs; jpl;lkplg;gl;Ls;sJld; 

jw;NghJ khztu; fw;if Kfhikj;Jt Kiwik rpwg;ghd tifapy; gad;gLj;jg;gLtJld; epu;thfk; 

kw;Wk; guPl;irfs; Kfhikj;Jt Kiwikiag; gad;gLj;Jtjw;fhd eltbf;iffs; Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;L 

tUfpd;wJ. ,e;j Kiwikfs; Clhf epWtdj;jpDs; jhs;fs; gad;ghl;ilf; Fiwj;Jf;nfhs;s 

KbAkhf ,Ug;gJld; mYtyf ,ltrjpfs; Kfhikj;Jtj;jpw;Fk; ,J kpfTk; Kf;fpakhdjhFk;.

eltbf;iffspd; Kd;Ndw;wk; gpd;tUkhW;
%Nyhghak; eltbf;if Kf;fpa 

nray;jpwd; 

Fwpfhl;bfs;

Kd;Ndw;wk;

fl;lz Eiothapy; 

cld; Md;iyd; 

khztu; Nru;f;if 

Kiwia 

mwpKfg;gLj;Jjy;

fl;lz Eiothapy; 

cld; Md;iyd; 

khztu; Nru;f;if 

Kiwia njhlq;Fjy;

epiwTnra;j 

rjtPjk;

nfhs;Kjy; gzpfs; ele;J 

nfhz;bUf;fpd;wd

tUq;fhy 

khztu;fs; kw;Wk; 

gpw Mu;tKs;s 

jug;gpdUf;F 

,yj;jpudpay; 

-khztu; kWnkhop 

Kiwia 

mwpKfg;gLj;jy;

,yj;jpudpay; 

-khztu; kWnkhop 

Kiwia 

mwpKfg;gLj;jy;

epiwT

nra;j 

rjtPjk;

ntw;wpfukhf nray;gLj;jg;gl;lJ

fzpdpkakhf;fg;gl;l 

guPl;ir jfty; 

Kiwia 

mwpKfg;gLj;jy;

guPl;ir jfty; 

Kiwia njhlq;Fjy;;

epiwTnra;j 

rjtPjk;

guPl;ir tpz;zg;gq;fisg; ngWt-

Jk; nrayhf;FtJk; Md;iydpy; 

nra;ag;gLk;
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Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

ruf;F> epiyahd 

nrhj;J gjpNtL 

kw;Wk; kdpjts 

Kiwik 

Nghd;w epu;thf 

nray;ghLfSf;fhd 

jfty; Kiwikia 

epWTjy;

epu;thf jfty; 

Kiwiaj; 

njhlq;Fjy;

epiwTnra;j 

rjtPjk;
•	 nray;gLj;jy; ele;J tUfpwJ.

•	 epiyahd nrhj;J 

gjpNtl;bid fzpdpkakhf;fy; 

epiwTngw;wJ.

•	 gpupTfSf;fhd epiyahd 

nrhj;J mwpf;iffs; epiwT 

nra;ag;gl;lJ 

•	 midj;J gpupT> 

myFfSf;fhd Ntiy tptuk; 

jahu;nra;ag;gl;lJ

•	 TEC kw;Wk; DPC $l;lq;fs; 
kw;Wk; eilKiwfs; 

xOq;FgLj;jg;gl;lJ

epu;thf / fy;tprhuh 
Copau;fSf;fhd 

gapw;rpj; jpl;lq;fis 

elj;Jjy;

gq;Nfw;w  

Copau;fspd; 

vz;zpf;if

,e;j Mz;L fpl;lj;jl;l 6 

nrayku;Tfs; ntw;wpfukhf 

elj;jg;gl;ld.

6. kPsha;T
nkhj;jkhf epWtdj;jpd; $l;Lj; jpl;lj;jpy; fhzg;gLk; ,yf;Ffis jukhd fy;tpj; jpl;lnkhd;wpd; 

Clhf ,yq;ifapy; ‘mwpT - nghUshjhuk;’ ,w;F jhf;fnkhd;iw Vw;gLj;j KbAkhd gq;fspg;ig 

fhl;Ltjw;F cau; kl;l kdpj tsq;fs; $l;likg;ghf “mwpT – Ntiyg; gpupTfs;” ; cUthf;Ftjid 

mbg;gilahff; nfhs;sg;gl;Ls;sJ. epiyahd mgptpUj;jp ,yf;Ffspy; Kf;fpa ,yf;fhd 

midtUf;Fk; jukhd fy;tpia toq;Ftjw;fhd nghWg;ig kpfr; rpwg;ghd tifapy; epWtdj;jpd; 

$l;Lj; jpl;lj;jpd; Clhf Kiwahd tpUj;jpAld; Kd;ndLj;Jr; nry;y KbAkhd midj;J 

eltbf;iffisAk; vLg;gjw;F epWtdk; Kidg;Gld; eltbf;if Nkw;nfhz;L tUfpd;wJ. me;j 

,yf;Ffis mile;Jnfhs;tjw;fhd nraw;ghl;bd;NghJ ehl;bw;Fg; nghUj;jkhd (jFjpAila) 

fy;tp epWtdnkhd;whf; ,Jtiu #oy; ghJfhg;G kw;Wk; #oYf;F Vw;gl KbAkhd vjpu;kiwahd 

jhf;fq;fs; rk;ge;jkhd tpguq;fs; kw;Wk; Njitahd re;ju;g;gq;fspy; #oypay; kw;Wk; mdu;j;jj; 

jhf;fq;fs; cl;gl;l ,e;j epiyahd mgptpUj;jpf;F mbg;gilahd ,e;j mwpf;if ,t;thW 

rku;g;gpf;fg;gLfpd;wJ.   	
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gzpg;ghsu; 

kdpj ts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; 

 

2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f Njrpa fzf;fha;Tr; rl;lj;jpd; 12 MtJ ge;jpapd; 

gpufhuk;> nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofj;Jld; ,izf;fg;gl;Ls;s kdpj tsq;fs; Nkk;ghl;L 

epWtfj;jpd; 2019 brk;gu; 31 Mk; jpfjpapy; Kbtile;j Mz;bw;fhd epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; 

kw;Wk; Vida rl;luPjpahd kw;Wk; xOq;FgLj;jy; Njitfs; rk;ge;jkhd  fzf;fha;thsu; 

jiyik mjpgjpapd; mwpf;if 

 

Nkw;gb mwpf;if ,j;Jld; mDg;gg;gLfpd;wJ.  

 

 

lgps;A+gPrP. tpf;ukuj;d 

fzf;fha;thsu; jiyik mjpgjp 

 

gpujpfs;: 

01. nrayhsu;> fy;tp mikr;R 

02. nrayhsu;> epjp mikr;R 

03. jiytu;> gy;fiyf;fof khzpaq;fs; Mizf;FO 

04. cgNte;ju;> nfhOk;G  gy;fiyf;fofk; 

 

 

 

                   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

fzf;fha;T mwpf;if
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Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

 
 

 

gzpg;ghsu; 

kdpj ts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; 

 

2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f Njrpa fzf;fha;Tr; rl;lj;jpd; 12 MtJ ge;jpapd; 

gpufhuk;> nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofj;Jld; ,izf;fg;gl;Ls;s kdpj tsq;fs; Nkk;ghl;L 

epWtfj;jpd; 2019 brk;gu; 31 Mk; jpfjpapy; Kbtile;j Mz;bw;fhd epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; 

kw;Wk; Vida rl;luPjpahd kw;Wk; xOq;FgLj;jy; Njitfs; rk;ge;jkhd  fzf;fha;thsu; 

jiyik mjpgjpapd; mwpf;if 

 
1. epjpf; $w;Wfs; 

1.1 jFjpngw;w fUj;Jiu 

2019 brk;gu; 31 Me; jpfjp tiuahd epjp epiyf; $w;W> me;j Mz;L kw;Wk; me;j 

jpfjpapy; Kbtilfpd;w Mz;Lf;fhd fhRg; gha;r;ry;> nghopg;Gf; Fwpg;G> Kf;fpakhd 

fzf;fPl;Lf; Nfhl;ghLfs; vd;gdtw;iwf; nfhz;bUf;fpd;w 2019 brk;gu; 31 Me; jpfjp 

Kbtilfpd;w Mz;Lf;fhd nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofj;Jld; ,izf;fg;gl;Ls;s kdpj ts 

Nkk;ghl;L epWtfj;jpd; epjpf; $w;W ,yq;if rdehaf Nrhryprf; FbauR murpayikg;gpd; 

154(1) cWg;Giu kw;Wk; 1978 Mk; Mz;bd; 16 Mk; ,yf;f gy;fiyf;fof rl;lj;jpd; gpupT 

18 kw;Wk; 107(5) Mk; cg gpupT kw;Wk; kw;Wk; gy;fiyf;fof rl;lj;jpd; 108(1) Mk; cg 

gpupT vd;gdtw;wpd; fPo; Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;l 2003 Mk; Mz;bd; 01 Mk; ,yf;f kdpj ts 

Nkk;ghl;L epWtfj;jpd; 1 Mk; tpjpapd; 17 Mk; ,yf;f tpjpAld; Nru;j;J thrpf;fg;gLk; 2018 

Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f fzf;fha;Tr; rl;lk; vd;gtw;wpd; gpufhuk; VNjDk; 

gzpg;Giuapd; fPo; fzf;fha;T nra;ag;gl;lJ. murpayikg;gpd; 154 (6) Mk; cWg;Giuapd; 

gpufhuk; cupa Neuj;jpy; ghuhSkd;wj;jpw;F ,t;twpf;if mDg;gg;gLk;. ,yq;ifg; nghJj; 

Jiwapy; cs;s fzf;fPl;L epakq;fSf;F ,irthf 2019 Mk; Mz;L brk;gu; 31 Me; 

jpfjpad;W cs;s gbahd epWtfj;jpd; epjpf; $w;W mjd; epjpj; njhopw;ghLfs; mj;jpfjp 

KbtilAk; Mz;Lf;fhd mjd; epjpj; njhopw;ghLfs; kw;Wk; fhRg; gha;r;ry;fs; vd;gd 

vdJ mwpf;ifapy; cs;s jFjpngw;w fUj;Jiuf;fhd mbg;gilapd; fPo; 

tpsf;fg;gl;Ls;stw;wpd; tpisTf;Ff; fl;Lg;gl;L cz;ikhadJk; epahakhdJkhd 

epiyia toq;Ffpd;wJ vd;w mgpg;gpuhaj;ij ehd; nfhz;bUf;fpd;Nwd;.  

 

1.2 jFjp ngw;w fUj;Jiuf;fhd mbg;gil 

(m) ,e;epWtfj;jpdhy; gad;gLj;jg;gl;l nkhj;jkhf &gha; 8,048,226 njhifAs;s mira 

Kbahj nrhj;Jfs; ,yq;if nghJj; Jiw fzf;fPl;L epakk; 7 ,d; 65 Mk; 

ge;jpapd; gpufhuk; nkhj;jj;jpy; Nja;khdkile;jpUe;jJ. Mdhy;> vQ;rpapUf;fpd;w 

ngWkjpiaAk; mj;jifa nrhj;Jfspd; gaDWjpkpf;f MAl; fhyj;ijAk; kPsha;T 

nra;tjw;F eltbf;if vLf;g;gl;bUf;ftpy;iy. 

(M). 2019 [{d; khj 5/2019 Mk; ,yf;f gy;fiyf;fof khzpaq;fs; Mizf;FO 

Rw;wwpf;iff;F ,zq;f gzpahsu; gzpf;nfhiliaj; jPu;khdpg;gjpy; khjhe;j 

gjpyPl;Lg; gbfs; rupg;gLj;jg;gl;lbUf;fhjjd; fhuzkhf Mz;Lf;fhd 

gzpf;nfhilf;fhd Mz;L xJf;fPL &gha; 1,481,462 f;F Nkyjpfkhd 

njhifapidf; nfhz;bUe;jJ. 
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(,) 2019 Mk; Mz;by; G+uzg;gLj;jg;gl;l ,uz;L epUkhd xg;ge;jfhuu;fs; kw;Wk; 2 fl;ll 

GJg;gpg;G Ntiy vd;gdtw;Wf;F nrYj;jg;gl Ntz;ba nkhj;jk; fzf;fPL 

nra;ag;gl;;bUf;ftpy;iy. 

 

1.3 epjpf; $w;WfSf;fhd Kfhikj;Jtg; nghWg;GfSk; MSiff;Fg; nghWg;ghdtu;fSk;  

murhq;fj;Jiwf; fzf;fPl;L epakj;jpw;F ,zq;f jahupf;fg;gLk; epjpf; $w;Wfs; 

epahahkhfkhfTk; Nkhrbfs; my;yJ gpiofspd; tpisthfj; Njhd;Wk; mstwpuPjpahd 

gpioahd $w;Wfsw;wjhfTk; epahakhfTk; rku;g;gpf;fg;gLtjw;F cjTk; tifapy; 

cs;sff; fl;Lg;ghLfis cupa ,lj;jpy; itj;jpUg;gJ Kfhikj;Jtj;jpd; nghWg;ghFk;. 

 

epjpf; $w;Wfisj; jahupf;Fk; NghJ epWtfj;ijj; jPu;j;Jf;fl;Ltjw;F my;yJ NtW VJk; 

khw;wPL ,y;yhj NghJ mjd; njhopw;ghLfis epWj;Jtjw;Fg; gjpyhf epWtfj;jpd; 

epiyf;Fk; jd;ikiaj; jPu;khdpg;gJ Kfhikj;Jtj;jpd; nghWg;ghFk;. epWtfj;jpd; 

fzf;fPl;L kw;Wk; mbg;gilj; njhlu;r;rp vd;gdtw;iw Nkw;nfhs;tjw;Fk; epWtfj;jpd; 

epiyf;Fk; jd;ik njhlu;gpy; fhz;Gfis ntspg;gLj;JtJk; Kfhikj;Jtj;jpd; 

nghWg;ghFk;.  

 

epWtfj;jpd; epjp mwpf;ifr; nrad;Kiw njhlu;gpyhd nghWg;G MSfpd;w jpwj;jtu;fSld; 

fhzg;gLfpd;wJ.  

 

2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f Njrpa fzf;fha;T rl;lj;jpd; 16(1)Mk; cg gpuptpd; 

gpufhuk;> mjd; tUkhdk;> nrytpdk;> nrhj;Jfs; kw;Wk; fld;nghWg;Gfs; njhlu;ghd 

VLfSk; mwpf;iffSk; 2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f Njrpa fzf;fha;T rl;lj;jpd; 

16(1)Mk; cg gpupTf;F ,zq;f epWtfj;jpd; jahu;gLj;jy;fs; kw;Wk; Mtu;j;jd fhy epjp 

mwpf;ifapd; jahupg;Gfis ,yFthfj; jahupf;Fk; tifapy; Kiwahfg; Ngzg;gl 

Ntz;Lk;.  

 

1.4 epjpf; $w;Wfspd; fzf;fha;Tf;fhd fzf;fha;thsu; nghWg;Gfs; 

Nkhrbfs; kw;Wk; jtWfspd; tpisthfj; Njhd;Wk; mstwpuPjpahd gpioahd 

$w;WfspypUe;J tpLgl;ljhf epjpf; $w;Wfs; nkhj;jj;jpy; fhzg;gLfpd;wJ vd;w epahakhd 

cWjpnkhopapid toq;FtJ vdJ Nehf;fkhFk;. epahakhd cWjpnkhop vd;gJ ,yq;if 

fzf;fPl;L epakq;fSf;F ,irthf fzf;fPl;il Nkw;nfhs;tjpy; cs;s xU cau;kl;l 

cWjpnkhopahFk;. mj;Jld; jdpg;gl;luPjpapy; my;yJ ,ize;j tifapy; Nkhrbfs; kw;Wk; 

jtWfspd; jhf;fk; fhuzkhf mstwpuPjpahd jtwhd $w;Wfs; kw;Wk; epr;rakw;wjd;ik 

vd;gdtw;iwf; nfhz;l xU cWjpnkhopay;y. mstwpuPjpahd jtwhd $w;W Njhd;w 

KbtJld; epjpf; $w;Wfspd; mbg;gilapy; gad;gLj;Jgtu;fspdhy; vLf;fg;gLk; 

nghUshjhu uPjpahd jPu;khdk; njhlu;gpy; mitfs; jhf;fk; nrYj;j KbAk; vdTk; 

vjpu;ghu;f;fg;gLfpd;wJ.  

 

,f;fzf;fha;T ,yq;if fzf;fha;T epakq;fSf;F ,zq;f njhopy;rhu;uPjpahd jPu;g;G 

kw;Wk; njhopy;rhu;uPjpahd xJf;fPLfSk; vd;dhy; Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;lJ. 

 



99

Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

 
 

 Nkhrb my;yJ jtW fhuzkhf epjpf; $w;Wfspy; Vw;glf; $ba rupahd $w;wpYs;s 

mstwpfis milahsq; fz;L mDkhdpg;gjpy; ,yq;iff;Fg; nghUj;jkhd 

fzf;fha;T eilKiwfisj; jpl;lkpLtjd; %yk; Nkhrbfs; kw;Wk; jtWfspd; 

tpisthfj; Njhd;Wk; ,lu;fisj; jtpu;f;Fk; nghUl;L NghJkhdJk; nkr;rj;jf;fJkhd 

rhd;Wfisg; ngWtij mbg;gilahf nfhz;L vdJ mgpg;gpuhak; mike;jpUf;fpd;wJ. 

Nkhrbapdhy; cz;Lgz;zg;gLk; jhf;fk; Nkhrbf;F toptFf;fpd;w cs;sff; fl;Lg;ghL 

,d;ik my;yJ Ntz;Lnkd;w jtpu;g;G> Nkhrb> jtwhd njhlu;ghly;> mstwpuPjpahd 

gpioahd $w;Wfs; vd;gdtw;wpdhy; cz;Lgz;zg;gLk; jhf;fj;ij tpl mjpfkhFk;.  

 Fwpg;gpl;l re;ju;g;gj;jpw;F nghUj;jkhd fzf;fha;T eltbf;ifKiwiaj; jpl;lkpLk; 

Nehf;Fld; epWtfj;jpd; cs;sff; fl;Lg;ghl;bidg; gw;wpa Gupe;Jzu;T ngwg;gl;lJ. 

Mdhy;> mJ tpidj;jpwd;kpf;f cs;sff; fl;Lg;ghLfisg; gw;wpa mgpg;gpuhaj;ij 

ntspg;gLj;Jtjid Nehf;fkhf nfhz;bUf;ftpy;iy. 

 Kfhikj;Jtj;jpduhy; Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;l fzf;fPl;Lf; nfhs;iffspd; epahaj;jd;ik> 

fzf;fPl;Lg; gjpTfs;> ,iaGila kPsr; nry;Ygbahf;fg;gl;ljd; nghUj;jkhd jd;ik 

vd;gd kjpg;gPL nra;ag;gl;ld. 

 Fwpg;gpl;l epfo;TfspYk; #o;epiyfspYk; mstwpuPjpahd epr;rakw;w jd;ik 

fhzg;gLfpd;wjh vd;gJ njhlu;gpy; fhzg;gLk; rhd;wpid mbg;gilahff; nfhz;L 

fzf;fPl;Lf;fhd epWtfj;jpd; njhlu;r;rpahd ,Ug;gpd; mbg;gilapidg; 

gad;gLj;Jtjw;Fj; jPu;khdpf;fg;gl;lJ. NghJkhd cWjpaw;w jd;ik fhzg;gLfpd;wJ 

vd ehd; jPu;khdpf;fpd;w NghJ epjpf; $w;Wfs; njhlu;ghd vdJ fzf;fPl;L 

mwpf;ifapYs;s kPs;nry;YgbahFe;jd;ik Fwpj;J ftdk; nrYj;jg;gl Ntz;Lk;. 

,k;kPs;nry;Ygbahjy;fs; NghJkhdjhff; fhzg;glhJtpbd; vdJ fUj;Jiu kPsf; 

Nfhug;gl Ntz;Lk;. vt;thwhapDk;> njhlu;r;rpahd ,Ug;gpd; jd;ik vjpu;fhy 

epfo;Tfs; kw;Wk; #o;epiyfisg; nghWj;J xU KbTf;F tu KbAk;.  

 kPs;nry;YgbahjYld; njhlu;Gila epjpf; $w;Wfspd; rku;g;gdk;> fl;likg;G> 

cs;slf;fk; vd;gd kjpg;gPL nra;ag;gl;lJld; gupkhw;wk; kw;Wk; mJ njhlu;ghd 

mf;fiwfs; vd;gd epjpf;$w;Wfspy; nghUj;jkhfTk; epahakhfTk; 

cs;slf;fg;gl;Ls;sjh vd;gijg; ghu;g;gjw;fhf mitfs; kjpg;gPL nra;ag;gl;ld. 

 MSfpd;w jpwj;jtu; vdJ fzf;fha;tpYs;s Kf;fpakhd fzf;fha;Tf; fhz;Gfs;> 

gpujhd cs;sff; fl;Lg;ghl;L gytPdk;> Vida fhz;Gfis mwpe;Jnfhs;sr; 

nra;ag;gl;ldu;. 

 

2.  gpw rl;luPjpahd kw;Wk; xOq;FgLj;jy; Njitg;ghLfs; njhlu;ghd mwpf;if 

2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f Njrpa fzf;fha;T rl;lk; gpd;tUk; Njitg;ghLfisg; 

gw;wpa tpNrl Vw;ghLfisf; nfhz;bUf;fpd;wd.  

- 2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f Njrpa fzf;fha;T rl;ljpd; 12 (m) gpuptpy; 

Njitg;gLj;jg;gl;lthW> vdJ mwpf;ifapYs;s jFjp ngw;w fUj;Jiuf;fhd 

mbg;gilapd; fPo; tpgupf;fg;gl;Ls;s fhuzpapd; jhf;fk; jtpu midj;J jfty; kw;Wk; 

tpsf;fq;fisAk; ngw;Ws;Nsd;. vdJ tprhuizapy; ntspg;gLj;jg;gl;l gb> Fwpj;j 

epWtfk; Kiwahd epjp mwpf;iffisg; NgzpapUe;jJ.  
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- Njrpa fzf;fha;T rl;lj;jpd; gpupT 6(1) (,) (iii) gpuptpy; Njitg;gLj;jg;gl;l gb> 

Ke;jpa Mz;by; vd;dhy; Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;l tpjg;Giu epjpf; $w;Wfspy; 

cs;slf;fg;gl;Ls;sd.  

- gpd;tUk; $w;Wfspy; Njitg;gLfpd;w vJTk; iff;nfhs;sg;gl;l tiuaiwfs;> 

ngwg;gl;l rhd;Wfs; kw;Wk; mstPl;Lf; fhz;GfspDs; vdJ ftdj;ijg; ngw;wJ. 

- Njrpa fzf;fha;T rl;lj;jpd; 12(<) gpuptpd; fPo; Ntz;lg;gl;Ls;s gb> Fwpj;j 

epWtfj;jpd; MSfpd;w rigapd; VNjDk; cWg;gpdu; Fwpj;j epWtfj;jpd; 

gzpg;GWj;JifAld; VNjDk; cld;ghl;bd; fPO; my;yJ nghJtd fUkr; #o;epiyf;F 

ntspNa VNjDk; gpw topapd; fPo; cs;s VNjDk; mf;fiwapidf; nfhz;bUf;f 

Ntz;Lk;. 

- 2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f Njrpa fzf;fha;T rl;lj;jpd; 12 (C) gpuptpy; 

Njitg;gLj;jg;gl;l gb> gpd;tUk; mtjhzpGiuf;Ff; fl;Lg;gl;L> epWtfjj;jpd; 

MSfpd;w rigapdhy; Ntz;lg;gLk; VNjDk; gpw nghJthd my;yJ tpNrl 

gzpg;GWj;Jif njhlu;ghd ,iaGila rl;lj;jpid ,e;epWtfk; kPwp 

nraw;gl;bUf;ftpy;iy.  

 

rl;lq;fs;> tpjpfs; my;yJ 

xOq;FtpjpfSf;fhd Fwpg;gPL 

tpguzk; 

m. ,yq;if rdeha Nrhryprf; Fbaurpd; 

epjp xOq;Ftpjpfs; 

(i) epjp xOq;Ftpjp 371 

Vw;ghl;L epjp 46 re;ju;g;gq;fspy; ,iaGila 

,yf;fpidg; G+uzg;gLj;jpa gpd;du; 

cldbahf nrYj;jg;gl Ntz;Lk; vdpDk; 

nkhj;jkhf &gha; 4,789,867/- 

Kw;gzj;ijr; nrYj;Jtjw;F 30 ehl;fs; 

kw;Wk; 180 ehl;fSf;fpilapyhd jhkjk; 

xd;W fhz;gl;Ls;sJ.  

(ii)  epjp xOq;Ftpjp 1646 ehshe;j thfd ,af;f ml;ltiz 2019 

Mk; Mz;by; fzf;fha;Tf;fhfr; 

rku;g;gpf;fg;gl;bUf;ftpy;iy.  

(M) gy;fiyf;fof jhgdtpjpf;  

Nfhitapd; mj;jpahak; 9gpupT 7  
Nkyjpf Neuf; nfhLg;gdTfs; gzpahsupd; 

mbg;gilr; rk;gsj;jpd; kPJ Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl 

Ntz;Lk;. Mdhy;> 2019 Mk; Mz;bd; Kjy; 

miuahz;Lf; fhyg; gFjpapy; ,t; Vw;ghl;L 

tpjpf;F Kudhf epWtfj;jpdhy; 

jPu;khdpf;fg;l;l Fwpj;j tPjq;fspd; Ngupy; 

&gha; 140,977/-  kpifahf 

Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;Ls;sJ.  

(,) 2015 [{iy 14 Me; jpfjpaplg;gl;l 

03/2005 Mk; ,yf;f murhq;f epjpr; 

Rw;wwpf;if   

&gha; 152,280/- Kw;gzf; nfhLg;gdT 

Kw;gzq;fSf;fhd &gha; mjp$ba 

tiuaiwia tpQ;Rk; tifapy; 

Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;Ls;sJ.   
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Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; tUlhe;j epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; - 2019

  kdpjts Nkk;ghl;L epWtfk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf;fofk;

 
 

 2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f Njrpa fzf;fha;T rl;lj;jpd; 12 (C) gpuptpy; 

Njitg;gLj;jg;gl;l gb> Fwpj;j epWtfk; mjd; jj;Jtq;fs;> njhopw;ghLfs; kw;Wk; 

nraw;ghLfSf;F Kuzhd tifapy; nraw;gl;Ls;sJ. 

 

 2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f Njrpa fzf;fha;T rl;lj;jpd; 12 (v) gpuptpy; 

Njitg;gLj;jg;gl;l gb> Fwpj;j epWtfk; Fwpj;j Neu tiuaiwfspDs;  

rpf;fdkhfTk;> tpidj;jpwd;kpf;f tifapYk; cw;gj;jpj;jpwd;kpf;f tifapYk; 

epWtdj;jpd; tsq;fisf; nfhs;tdT nra;J gad;gLj;jpAs;sJ. 

 

3. Vida fzf;fha;T mtjhzpg;Giufs; 

(m) 2018 Mk; Mz;L mwpf;ifapy; fsQ;rpa fzf;fha;tpy; cs;s ngWkjpahd 11 

nghUl;fis mfw;Wtjw;fhf tpjg;Giu nra;ag;gl;bUe;jJ vdpDk;> ,g;nghUl;fis 

mfw;Wtjw;F 2019 Mz;Lf;fhd msitr; nraw;ghL tiu vj;jifa eltbf;ifAk; 

vLf;fg;gl;bUf;ftpy;iy. NkYk;> 2014 Mk; Mz;by; kbf; fzzp ,og;G njhlu;gpyhd 

Muk;g fl;l tprhuizia Kiwahf Nkw;nfhs;tjw;fhd vj;jifa eltbf;ifAk; 

vLf;fg;gl;bUf;ftpy;iy. mj;Jld;> fzf;fpy; ,og;gpid mwpf;if nra;tjw;Fk; mjid 

mwtPL nra;tjw;Fk; vj;jifa eltbf;ifAk; vLf;fg;gl;bUf;ftpy;iy. 

(M) 2019 Mk; Mz;by;> Fwpj;j epWtfk; 05 tFjpfspy; ,skhdp> KJkhdp> bg;Nshkh> 

kw;Wk; rhd;wpjo;fs; Nghd;w 28 NtWgl;l epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fis elj;jpapUe;jJ. mj;jifa 

13 epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fSf;fhf khztu;fs; gjpT nra;ag;gl;bUf;ftpy;iy. NkYk;> 04 

epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fSf;fhd khztu; gjpT Ke;jpa Mz;Lld; xg;gpLifapy; 

Fiwtile;Js;sJ.  

(,) 2015 Mk; Mz;by; Njrpa uapy;Nt tiyaikg;Gf; fUj;jpl;lj;jpw;fhd crhTeu; 

Nritfis toq;Ftjw;fhd Nghf;Ftuj;J kw;Wk; rptpy; tpkhz Nrit mikr;rplkpUe;J 

tUk;gbahfTs;s Ugha; 4,710,900/- njhifia mwtPL nra;tjw;F ve;j eltbf;ifAk; 

me;j Mz;bd; brk;gu; 31 Me; jpfjp tiu vLf;fg;gl;bUf;ftpy;iy.  

 

 

lgps;A+.gP.rP. tpf;ukuj;d 

fzf;fha;thsu; jiyik mjpgjp     
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2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f Njrpa fzf;fha;Tr; rl;lj;jpd; 12 Mk; ge;jpapd; gpufhuk;> nfhOk;G gy;fiyf;fofj;Jld; 
,izf;fg;gl;Ls;s kdpj tsq;fs; Nkk;ghl;L epWtfj;jpd; 2019 brk;gu; 31 Mk; jpfjpad;W Kbtile;j Mz;bw;fhd epjpf; $w;W kw;Wk; 

Vida rl;luPjpahd kw;Wk; xOq;FgLj;jy; Njitg;ghL rk;ge;jkhd  fzf;fha;thsu; jiyik mjpgjpapd; mwpf;if 
epjpf; $w;Wfs; kPjhd tpisTfs;  fzf;fha;thsu; jiyik 

mjpgjpapd; mtjhzpg;Giufs;  
Kd;itf;fg;gLk; gjpy;fs; 

 
2019 Mk; Mz;by; 

vLf;fg;gl;l 
eltbf;iffs;> 
jw;Nghja epiy 

kw;Wk; Nkk;ghLfs; 
1. 
 

1.2 
 

(m) epjpf; $w;Wfs;;  
jFjpngw;w 
fUj;Jiuf;fhd 
mbg;gil 

,yq;if nghJj; Jiw fzf;fPl;L 

epakk; 07 ,d; 65 Mk; ge;jpapd; 

gpufhuk;>   ,e;epWtfj;jpdhy; 

gad;gLj;jg;gLk; nkhj;jkhf &gha; 

8,048,226 mirahr; nrhj;Jfs; 

Nja;khdk; mile;Js;sd. Mdhy;> 

mj;jifa nrhj;Jfspd; kPjKs;s 

ngWkjpiaAk; mjd; gaDWjpkpf;f 

MAl; fhyj;ijAk; rupahf 

kPsha;T nra;tjw;F eltbf;if 

vLf;fg;gl;bUf;ftpy;iy. 

2019.12.31 Me; jpfjpad;Ws;s gb 
epWtfj;jpdhy; gad;gLj;jg;gLk; epiyahd 
nrhj;Jfs; njhlu;gpy;> Kw;whfj; 
Nja;khdkile;Js;s nghUl;fspy; 
fhzg;gLk; jsghlk;> mYtyf cgfuzk; 
kw;Wk; kpd; cgfuzq;fspd; kPjKs;s 
ngWkjp kw;Wk; gad;ghLkpf;f MAl; fhyk; 
2020 ngg;utupapy; kPsha;T nra;ag;gl;L 
fy;tprhu; Nguitf;F rku;g;gpf;fg;gl;lJ. 
mjd;gb> tplg;gl;Ls;s gad;ghLkpf;f MAl; 
fhyj;ijf; nfhz;Ls;s epiyahd 
nrhj;Jf;fs; jw;NghJ epiyahd nrhj;Jfs; 
gjptplhg;gpy; gjpTnra;ag;gl;Ls;sd.  

2020 Mk; Mz;L 
njhlu;ghd midj;J 
nrhj;JfspdJk; 
vQ;rpAs;s ngWkjp 
kw;Wk; mfw;wj;jf;f 
MAl; fhyj;ij kPsha;T 
nra;tjd; %yk; 
fzf;Ffspy; 
rku;g;gpg;gjw;F 
eltbf;if 
vLf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ.  

  (M)  gy;fiyf;fof khzpaq;fs; 
Mizf;FOtpd; 2019 [{d; khj 
5/2019 Mk; ,yf;f Rw;wwpf;ifapd; 
gpufhuk; gzpahsu; 
gzpf;nfhiliaj; jPu;khdpg;gjpy; 
khjhe;jg; gjpyPl;Lg; gbfs; 
rPu;gLj;jg;gl;bUf;fhjjd; fhuzkhf 
Mz;Lf;fhd gzpf;nfhilf;fhd 
Mz;L xJf;fPL; &gha; 1,481,462 
ia tpl mjpf njhifahf 
,Ue;jpUe;jJ.   

mLj;j epjpahz;by; ,jidj; jpUj;Jtjw;F 
eltbf;if vLf;fg;gLk;. 

2020 Mk; Mz;by; 
cs;s fzf;FfSf;fhd 
rupahd ngWkjpiar; 
Nru;g;gjw;F eltbf;if 
vLf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ.  

  (,)  2019 Mk; Mz;by; 
G+uzg;gLj;jg;gl;l 2 epUkhz 
xg;ge;jf;fhuu;fs; kw;Wk; 2 fl;ll 
GJg;gpj;jy; gzpfSf;F 
nfhLg;gdthf toq;fg;gl Ntz;ba 
&gha; 3.422.067 nkhj;jj; njhif 
fzf;fPL nra;ag;gl;bUf;ftpy;iy.  

mitfspdJ nrytpdq;fs; njhlu;ghd 
gl;bay; 2019 Mk; Mzby; jpfjpaplg;gl;ld 
vdpDk; ,iaGila nghUl;fSk; 
NritfSk; [PMu;vd; jpfjpapd; gpufhuk; 
2020 Mk; Mz;by; epWtfj;jpw;Ff; 
fpilf;fg;ngw;wd. Mjyhy;> mitfs; 2020 
Mk; Mz;by; ,lk;ngw;w nrytpdkhf 
fzf;Ffspy; cs;slf;fg;gl;Ls;sd.  

midj;J jpuz;l 
nrytpdq;fspdJk; 
fzf;Ffspy; 
fhl;Ltjw;F eltbf;if 
vLf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ.  

2. (m)  
 
 

gpw rl;l kw;Wk; 
xOq;Ftpjp 
Njitg;ghLfs; 

,iaGila ,yf;Fg; gzp 
G+uzkile;jTld; Vw;ghl;Lf;Fupa 
epjp cldbahfr; nrYj;jg;gl 

jpiwNrup epjpak; 

 gz cWjpg;gj;jpu ,y.: uPvg;-0310> 
njhif: 91,000.00 

Fwpj;j ,ilf;fhy 
gzf;nfhLg;gdit 
nrYj;Jtjw;fhd 
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njhlu;ghd mwpf;if 
rl;lq;fs;> 

tpjpfs;/xOq;FtpjpfS

f;fhd Fwpg;gPL 
,yq;if rdehaf 
Nrhryprf; Fbaurpd; 
epjp xOq;Ftpjpfs; 

i. epjp xOq;Ftpjp 371  
 

 

Ntz;Lk;. vdpDk;> nkhj;jkhf 
&gha; 4,789,867  Kw;gzj;ijr; 
nrYj;Jtjpy; 30 ehl;fSf;Fk; 180 
ehl;fSf;Fkpilapyhd 
jhkjnkhd;W 46 re;ju;g;gq;fspy; 
fhzg;gl;Ls;sd.  
 
 
 
 

2019.03.13 Me; jpfjp Nfhug;gl;l ,k;Kw;gzk; 
1910919 Mk; ,yf;fj;jpd; fPo; 2019.03.22 Me; 
jpfjp nrYj;jg;gl;ls;sJ.   
 gz cWjpg;gj;jpu ,y.:uPvg;-0369> njhif: 

14,750.00 
 gz cWjpg;gj;jpu ,y.:uPvg;-0437> njhif: 

18,000.00 
 gz cWjpg;gj;jpu ,y.:uPvg;-0507> njhif: 

17,500.00 
 tTr;ru; ,y.:uPvg;-0694> njhif: 16,900.00 
 gz cWjpg;gj;jpu ,y.:uPvg;-0692> njhif: 

8,600.00 
 gz cWjpg;gj;jpu ,y.:uPvg;-0908> njhif: 

20,000.00 
 
,k;Kw;gzq;fis nrYj;jpa 
cj;jpNahfj;ju;fs; epjp xOq;Ftpjpfspd; gb 
Kiwahfg; gzpahw;WkhW MNyhrid 
toq;fg;gl;ldu;.  
 
Vida Kw;gzq;fspy; ngUk;ghyhdit 
Fwpg;gpl;l nraw;ghL G+uzkile;J 14 
ehl;fspDs; nrYj;jg;gl;Ls;sd. 
mgptpUj;jp epjpak; 
 &gha; 140,000.00 fhNrhiy Kw;gzk; 

2019.02.08 Me; jpfjpad;W ,yq;if 
kpd;rhu rigf;Fr; nrYj;jg;gl;Ls;sJ. 
(nfhLg;gdT 8 ehl;fspDs; 
Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;Ls;sJ.)  

 gz cWjpg;gj;jpu ,y.: bvg;-0025, 
njhif: 344,400.00 
,f;fhNrhiy Kw;gzk; 2019.02.28 Me; 
jpfjpad;W me;epWtfj;jpw;F 
nrYj;jg;gl;Ls;sJ. vt;thwhapDk;> gzf; 
fpisf;F Mtzq;fis mDg;Gtjpy; 
jhkjk; xd;W fhzg;gl;Ls;sJ.  

 gz cWjpg;gj;jpu ,y.: bvg;- 0071> 
njhif: 3,500.00 
Fwpj;j Kw;gzj;ijr; nrYj;jpa 
cj;jpNahfj;j;u;fSf;F epjp 
xOq;FtpjpfSf;F ,zq;f 
ele;Jnfhs;SkhWk; mj;jifa 
epfo;Tfs; kPz;Lk; ,lk;ngwhjpUg;gjid 
cWjp nra;AkhWk; MNyhrid 
toq;fg;gl;lJ.  

mwpTWj;jy;fs; 
toq;fg;gl;Ls;sd.  
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   ii. epjp xOq;Ftpjp     
1646 

ehshe;j thfd ,af;f 
ml;ltizfs; 2019 Mk; 
Mz;Lf;fhd fzf;fha;Tf;Fr; 
rku;g;gpf;fg;gltpy;iy.  

khjhe;j nghopg;gpd; cz;ik gpujpAld; 
ehshe;j thfd ,af;f ml;ltizfis 
jpizf;fsj; jiytu; Clhf fzf;fha;Tj; 
jiyik mjpgjp mtu;fSf;F mDg;gp 
itg;gjw;F eltbf;if vLf;fg;gLk;.  
 
gpd;tUk; fhyg;gFjpf;fhd thfd ,af;f 
ml;ltizfs; fpilf;fg;ngw;Ws;sd. 
thfd 
,yf;fk;   

fhyg;gFjp 

VVI - 1137 

2019.05.22-2019.06.29 
2019.07.01-2019.08.15 

2019.08.16-2019.11.03 

2019.11.04-2019.12.19 

2019.12.20-2020.01.25 

rPVvk;– 8246 
2019.08.16-2019.11.19 

2019.11.21-2020.01.09 

vd;rP - 9806 

2019.02.14 - 2019.05.10 

2019.05.13 - 2019.07.25 

2019.07.26 -2019.11.20 

2019.11.21-2020.01.24 

[PB - 8862 
2019.01.21 - 2019.05.17 

2019.05.22-2019.09.05 

Fwpj;j rhujp jw;NghJ ehshe;j thfd 
,af;f ml;ltiziag; NgDfpd;whu;.  

rku;g;gpf;fg;gl;Ls;sd.  

 (M)  gy;fiyf;fof 
jhgdtpjpf;Nfhitapd; 
mj;jpahak; 9 gpupT 7 

Nkyjpf Neuf; nfhLg;gdTfs; 
gzpahsu;fspd; mbg;gilr; 
rk;gsj;jpid mbg;gilahff; 
nfhz;L Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl Ntz;Lk;. 
Mdhy;> 2019 Mk; Mz;bd; Kjy; 
miuahz;Lf; fhyg; gFjpapy; ,t; 
Vw;ghLfSf;F Kuzhf 
epWtfj;jpdhy; jPu;khdpf;fg;gl;l 
Fwpj;j tpfpjj;jpd; mbg;gilapy; 
&gha; 140,977 kpifahf 
Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;Ls;sJ.      

Fwpg;gplg;gl;Ls;s nfhLg;gdTfs; Nkyjpf 
Neuf; nfhLg;gdTfs; my;y. mitfs; 
epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fspy; Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;l 
Nkyjpf NtiyfSf;fhd 
nfhLg;gdTfshFk;. mitfs; vq;fshy; 
jPu;khdpf;fg;gl;l Fwpj;j tPjj;jpw;F ,dq;f 
Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;l nfhLg;gdTfshFk; 
vd;gijf; Fwpg;gpLtjw;F tpUk;Gfpd;Nwd;. 
Fwpj;j tPjq;fis mbg;gilahff; nfhz;l 
,f;nfhLg;gdTfs; epWtfj;jpdhy; 
elj;jg;gl;l gzk; mwtpLk; 
epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fspy; Nkyjpf Ntiyf;fhf 
<LgLj;jg;gl;l gjtpapdUf;F toq;fg;gl;lJ. 

Fwpj;j flikfSf;F 
tpjpf;fg;gl;l 
nfhLg;gdTfs; fy;tprhu; 
Nguitahy; 
mq;fPfupf;fg;gl;l 
tPjq;fSf;F ,zq;f 
Nkw;nfhs;sg;gLk;.   
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,f;nfhLg;gdTfs; epjpf; FO kw;W fy;tprhu; 
Nguitahy; mq;fPfupf;fg;gl;l nfhLg;gdT 
tPjq;fSf;Ff; fl;Lg;gl;L toq;fg;gl;Ls;sd. 
NkYk;> jpiwNrup epjpapd; fPohd Nkyjpf 
Neuf; nfhLg;gdTfs; midj;Jk; 
jhgdtpjpf; Nfhit kw;Wk; epjp 
xOq;Ftpjpfspy; toq;fg;gl;Ls;s tPjj;jpw;F 
,zq;f Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;Ls;sd vdf; 
Fwpg;gplg;gl Ntz;Lk;. 

 
 
 
 

  (,) 2015 [{iy 14 Me; 

jpfjpaplg;gl;l 03/2015 
Mk; ,yf;f nghJ 
epjpr; Rw;wwpf;if  

Kw;gzq;fSf;fhd Mff;  $ba 
vy;iyahd &gha; 100,000 ia 
tpQ;Rfpd;w &gha; 152,280 Kw;gzf; 
nfhLg;gdT xd;W 
Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;Ls;sJ.    

&gha; 100,000 ia tpQ;Rfpd;w Kw;gzk; xNu 
xU re;ju;g;gj;jpy; khj;jpuk; 
Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;Ls;sJ. midj;Jg; gz 
Kw;gzq;fSk; ,g;NghJ &gha; 100,000 w;F  
tiuaWf;fg;gl;L tUfpd;wd.  

Kw;gzf; nfhLg;gdT 
toq;fg;gl Ntz;ba 
mjp$ba tiuaiwf;Ff; 
,zq;f 
Nkw;nfhs;sg;gLk;.  

3.  (m) gpw fzf;fha;T 
mtjhzpg;Giufs;  

2018 Mk; Mz;by; fsQ;rpa 
cWjpg;gLj;jy; mwpf;ifapy; &gha; 
138,887 ngWkjpahd 11 
nghUl;fis mfw;WkhW tpjg;Giu 
Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;bUe;jJ vdpDk;> 
mg;nghUl;fis mfw;Wtjw;F 2019 
Mk; Mz;Lf;fhd nghUl; 
fzf;nfLg;G tiu vj;jifa 
eltbf;ifAk; 
vLf;fg;gl;bUf;ftpy;iy. mj;Jld;> 
2014 Mk; Mz;by; Vw;gl;l 
kbf;fzpzp ,og;G njhlu;gpy; 
Kiwahd Muk;g tprhuiz 
elj;Jtjw;Fk; fzf;fpy; 
mt;tpog;ig mwpf;ifapLtjw;Fk; 
,og;ig mwtpLtjw;Fk; vj;jifa 
eltbf;ifAk; 
Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;bUf;ftpy;iy.  
 
 

,iaGila ifapUg;Gfis mfw;Wtjw;F 
eltbf;if Nkw;nfhs;sg;gLk;.  
 
jtwtplg;gl;l kbf;fzzp njhlu;gpy; Muk;g 
Muk;g tprhuiz xd;iw elj;Jtjw;F 
fhyj;jpw;Ff; fhyk; FOf;fs; 
epakpf;fg;gl;ld. ,f;FOf;fspd; tpjg;Giufs; 
fy;tprhu; Nguitapdhy; 
mq;fPfupf;fg;gltpy;iy.   
 
,jid tprhuiz nra;tjw;fhf xUtu; 
nfhz;l FOnthd;W mikf;fg;gl;lJ. 
vdpDk;> mtuJ tpjg;Giufs; ,J tiu 
fpilf;fg;ngwtpy;iy.  
 
,e;epiy fy;tprhu; Nguitapdhy; fUj;jpy; 
vLf;fg;gl;L tpjg;Giuf;fhf fzf;fha;Tf; 
FOTf;F mJ Fwpg;gPL nra;ag;gltpy;iy. 
 
kbf; fzzpapd; ,og;G njhlu;gpy; 
fye;JiuahLtjw;F fzf;fha;Tf; FO gy 
re;ju;g;gq;fspy; re;jpj;jJ vdpDk; 
,f;fye;Jiuahly;fs; ,Wjpj; jPu;khdkpd;wp 
Kbtile;jJ. 
 
fzf;fha;Tf; FO mJ njhlu;gpy; vLf;fg;gl 
Ntz;ba eltbf;if iag; gw;wp ,d;Dk; 
fye;Jiuahbf;nfhz;bUf;fpd;wJ. mj;Jld;> 
epjp xOq;FtpjpapDs; eltbf;if vLf;fg;gl 
Ntz;Lk; vd mtu;fs; czu;fpd;whu;fs;.  

,iaGila ,Ug;Gfis 
mfw;Wtjw;fhd 
eltbf;if 
vLf;fgLfpd;w 
mNjNtis> 
jtwtplg;gl;l 
kbf;fzzp njhlu;gpyhd 
njhopw;ghLfs; 
eilngw;Wnfhz;bUf;fp
d;wd.  
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  (M) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Fwpj;j epWtfk; 05 tFjpfspd; fPo; 
,skhdp> KJkhdp> bg;Nshkh> 
kw;Wk; rhd;wpjo; 
epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fSf;fhd 28 
epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fis 
elj;jpapUe;jJ. vdpDk;> mj;jifa 
13 epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fSf;fhf 
khztu;fis mJ gjpT 
nra;jpUf;ftpy;iy. NkYk;> 04 
epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fSf;fhd khztu; 
gjpT Ke;jpa Mz;Lld; 
xg;gpLifapy; Fiwtile;jpUe;jJ.    

tFjp I  - gl;ljhup fy;tp epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk; 
njhopy; fy;tp gl;ljhup 
epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lj;jpw;fhd 677 tpz;zg;gq;fs; 
fpilf;fg;ngw;wpUe;jd. mJ fle;j Mz;Lld; 
xg;gpLifapy; xU mjpfug;ghFk;. mitfspy; 
618 tpz;zg;gq;fs; khj;jpuNk jFjpfhd; 
guPl;irf;Fj; Njhw;Wtjw;Fj; jFjp 
ngw;wpUe;jd. vt;thwhapDk;> 211 
guPl;rhu;j;jpfs; khj;jpuNk njhopw; fy;tp 
epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lj;jpw;F gjpT nra;ag;gl;ldu;. 
Fwpj;j vz;zpf;ifia mjpfupg;gjw;F 
mjpfsthd tpz;zg;gjhupfs; gjpT 
nra;tjw;F mDkjpf;fg;gl;bUf;fyhk;. 
mjpfsthd tpz;zg;gjhupfs; xNu 
Gs;spapidg; ngw;wpUe;jhy;> midtUk; 
gjpT nra;ag;gl;bUf;f Ntz;Lk;. ,J 
tpupTiu kz;lgq;fspy; ,lg; gpur;rpidiaj; 
Njhw;Wtpj;jpUf;Fk;.  
 
bg;Nshkh epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fSf;fhf 152 
guPl;rhu;j;jpfs; njupT nra;ag;gl;ldu;. 
vt;thwhapDk; mtu;fspy; 89 guPl;rhu;j;jpfs; 
mtu;fisg; gjpT nra;jpUf;fpd;whu;fs;.  
nkhj;jkhf 300 khztu;fs; njhopw; fy;tpg; 
gl;ljhupf; fw;ifnewp kw;Wk; njhopw; fy;tp 
bg;Nshkh fw;ifnewpf;fhf jq;fisg; gjpT 
nra;jdu;. ,J fle;j Mz;il tpl 
mjpfkhdjhFk;.   
 
vq;fsJ epWtdk; 
,e;epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fSf;fhd khztu; 
mDkjpg;Gfspd; vz;zpf;ifia 
mjpfupg;gjw;F kpfTk; tpUk;Gfpd;wJ. 
vdpDk;> ,e;Nehf;fj;jpw;fhd tpupTiu 
kz;lgq;fis mJ nfhz;bUf;ftpy;iy. 
mj;Jld;> tpupTiufs; Vida gPlq;fspy; 
cs;s tpupTiu kz;lgq;fspy; 
elj;jg;gLfpd;wd. mg;gPlq;fSf;F mtu;fsJ 
tpupTiu kz;lgk; Njitg;gLfpd;w NghJ> 
mitfisg; gad;gLj;Jtjw;F ehq;fs; 
mDkjpf;fg;gLtjpy;iy. me;j tifapy; 
khztu;fspd; vz;zpf;if mjpfupg;gjpy; 
gpur;rpidnahd;W fhzg;gLfpd;wJ. 
 
 
 

jw;NghJ Fwpj;j 
epWtfk; gpd;tUk; 
fw;ifnewpfis 
elj;jpf;nfhz;bUf;fpd;w
J: 
 04 gl;l gpd; gbg;G 

epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fs;   
 gl;ljhup xUtUf;fhd 

,skhdpf; 
epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk; xd;W 

 03 epiwNtw;Wj;ju 
bg;Nshkh 
epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fs; 

 04 bg;Nshkh 
epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fs; 

 08 rhd;wpjo; 
fw;ifnewpfs;  
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tFjp II - gl;lg; gpd;gbg;Gg; gl;ljhupf; 
fw;ifnewp epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fs;  
i. ,e;epfor;rpj;jpl;lj;jpw;fhd gjpTfspd; 
vz;zpf;if Fiwtile;J Njhd;Wfpd;wJ. 
ehl;by; jw;NghJ fhzg;gLk; epiyik 
fhuzkhfTk; mjd; tpisthfj; 
Njhd;wpAs;s nghUshjhuf; f];lq;fs; 
fhuzkhfTk; mJ mt;thW 
fhzg;gLfpd;wJ vd 
mtjhzpf;fg;l;Ls;sJ. NkYk;> 
fzf;fha;Tj; jpfjpad;W> ,uz;L ghl 
newpfs; khj;jpuNk Muk;gpf;fg;gl;bUe;jd. 
Mifahy;> cq;fSila xg;gPL kpfTk; 
nghUj;jkhdjhf ,Uf;fpd;wJ.   

ii. Nrit Kfhikj;Jtj;Jt 
fw;ifnewpf;fhd tpz;zg;gk; 2019.06.23 
Me; jpfjp Nfhug;gl;lJld; mdu;j;j 
Kfhikj;Jtj;Jtf; fw;ifnewpf;fhd 
tpz;zg;gk; 2019.12.25 Me; jpfjpad;Wk; 
Nfhug;gl;lJ.  

iii. ,Wjp [pIv]; fw;ifnewpf;fhd 
khztu;fs; 2016.03.13 Me; jpfjp 
Nruf;fg;gl;ldu;. ,e;epWtfj;jpy; 
tpupTupahsu;fspd; tUifapd;ik 
gpur;rpidfis cz;Lgz;zpd. ,f;fw;if 
newp ,r;#o;epiyfspy; KbTf;F 
nfhz;Ltug;gl;lJ. Vida gPlq;fspd; 
xj;Jiog;gpidg; ngWtjw;F 
vjpu;ghu;f;fg;gl;lJ. Mdhy;> mtu;fsJ 
gjpy; Cf;fk; jUtdthf 
fhzg;gltpy;iy. ,f;fw;if newpapd; 
Kf;fpaj;Jtj;jpid fUj;jpy; vLj;J 
Vida gPlq;fspd; xj;Jiog;Gld; mjid 
kPz;Lk; Muk;gpg;gjw;F 
vjpu;ghu;f;fg;gLfpd;wJ. vt;thwhapDk;> 
csts MNyhrid kw;Wk; cstpay; 
bg;Nshkh ghlnewpf;fhd khztu;fs; 2019 
Mk; Mz;by; Nru;f;fg;gl;ldu;. mj;Jld;> 
2019 Mk; Mz;Lf;fhd Nkw;gb %d;W 
fw;ifnewpfSf;Fk; Rw;Wyh ifj;njhopy; 
epfo;T cgruid Kfhikj;Jt 
epiwNtw;Wj; ju bg;NshkhTf;Fk; 
tpz;zg;gq;fisf; NfhUtjw;F Vw;fdNt 
eltbf;if vLf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ. 
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tFjp III - epiwNtw;Wj; ju bg;Nshkh 

epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fs;  
i. ,t;thz;by; fy;tprhu; gzpf;fhff; 
fpilf;fg;ngWk; ,uz;L khjq;fs; 
capu;j;j QhapW jhf;Fjy; kw;Wk; 
gy;fiyf;fof Kiwikapy; fhzg;gl;l 
NtiyepWj;jk; vd;gd fhuzkhf 
,of;fg;gl;ld. mjd; tpisthf> 
jw;NghJs;s fw;ifnewpfs; jpl;lkpl;l gb 
Kbf;fg;gltpy;iy. mj;Jld;> khztu; 
Nru;g;Gk; Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl Kbatpy;iy.  

ii. Nrit Kfhikj;Jt epiwNtw;Wj; ju 
fw;ifnewp kw;Wk; kdpj ts 
Kfhikj;Jt epiwNtw;Wj; ju fw;if 
newpia ehsJtiug;gLj;Jtjw;fhd 
Njitg;ghL fhzg;gl;lJ.   

  
tFjp – III epiwNtw;Wju bg;Nshkh 
epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fs;    
i.  ,e;j Mz;Lf; fhyg; gFjpapy;  fy;tprhu; 
nraw;ghLfSf;fhf fpilf;fg;ngw 
Ntz;ba ,uz;L khj Neuk; capu;j;j 
QhapW jhf;Fjy; kw;Wk; gy;fiyf;fof 
Kiwikapy; fhzg;gl;l Ntiy epWj;jg; 
Nghuhl;lk; fhuzkhf ,of;fg;gl;lJ. ,jd; 
tpisthf> jw;NghJs;s fw;ifnewpfs; 
jpl;lkpl;lgb Kbf;fg;gltpy;iy. mjd; 
fhuzkhf> khztu; Ml;Nru;g;Gk; 
Nkw;nfhs;sg;gltpy;iy.    

ii. Nrit Kfhikj;Jt epiwNtw;Wj;ju 
bg;Nshkh fw;ifnewp kw;Wk; kdpj ts 
Kfhikj;Jtj;Jt epiwNtw;Wj;ju 
bg;Nshkh fw;ifnewp vd;gdtw;iw 
ehsJtiug;gLj;Jtjw;fhd Njit 
fhzg;gl;lJ. fy;tprhu; Nguitapdhy; 
,f;fw;ifnewpfis mq;fPfupg;gjw;fhd 
Muk;gr; nraw;ghlhf 2019.02.19 Me; 
jpfjpad;W Nguitf;F 
Kd;nkhopnthd;iwr; rku;g;gpjw;fhd Muk;g 
eltbf;iffs; vLf;fg;gl;ld. mtrpakhd 
mq;fPfhuk; nfhOk;Gg; gy;fiyf; 
fofj;jpd; epiwNtw;Wr; rigapd; 2019.05.06 
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Me; jpfjp eilngw;w 439 MtJ 
$l;lj;jpy; rku;g;gpf;fg;gl;lJ. mjd; gb> 
tpz;zg;gq;fs; kpf md;ikapy; 
Nfhug;gLk;. 

  ,f;fw;if newpia xUq;fpizj;J 
elj;Jtjw;Fk; tpupTiufis 
elj;Jtjw;Fk; nghUj;jkhd 
tpupTiuahsu;fs; ,d;ikahy; mdu;j;j 
Kfhikj;Jt epiwNtw;Wj; ju bg;Nshkh 
fw;ifnewpf;fhd mDkjp epWj;jg;gl;lJ. 

   csts MNyhrid kw;Wk; cstpay; 
cau; bg;Nshkhf; fw;ifnewpf;fhd 2019 
Mk; Mz;Lf;fhd tpz;zg;gq;fs; 
2019.09.08 Me; jpfjp Nfhug;gl;ld. 
mj;Jld; khztu; gjpTk; jw;nghOJ 
Nkw;nfhs;sg;gLfpd;wJ.    

   
iii. XbNah tPbNah cUthf;fy; kw;Wk; 

Clfj; njhopy;El;gtpay; cau; 
bg;Nshkhf; fw;if newpia 
xUq;fpizj;J elj;Jtjw;Fk; 
tpupTiufis elj;Jtjw;Fk; 
nghUj;jkhd tpupTiuahsu;fs; 
fhzg;gltpy;iy. Mjyhy;> mdu;j;j 
Kfhikj;Jt epiwNtw;Wj; ju bg;Nshkh 
fw;ifnewpf;fhd mDkjp epWj;jg;gl;lJ. 

  
tFjp IV – bg;Nshkh epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fs;  

i. ,e;epWtdj;jpdhy; elj;jg;gLk; bg;Nshkh 
fw;ifnewpapypUe;J khztu;fs; 2019 
Mk; Mz;by; Rw;Wyh epfo;Tfs; kw;Wk; 
cgruiz epiwNtw;Wj; ju 
bg;NshkhTf;F mDkjpf;fg;gl;ldu;. 
mj;Jld; 2019.08.08 Me; jpfjp csts 
MNyhrid kw;Wk; cstpay; bg;Nshkhf 
fw;ifnewpf;fhd tpz;zg;gq;fSk; 
Nfhug;gl;ld. mj;Jld; khztu;fs; 
jw;NghJ gjpT 
nra;ag;gl;Lf;nfhz;bUf;fpd;wdu;. 

 
iii. Nrit Kfhikj;jt bg;Nshkhf; 

fw;ifnewpapid 
ehsJtiug;gLj;Jtjw;fhd Njitg;ghL 
fhzg;gl;lJ. ,J njhlu;gpy; 2019.02.19 
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me; jpfjp fy;tprhu; Nguitf;F 
rku;g;gdq;fisr; nra;tjd; %yk; Muk;g 
eltbf;if Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;lJ. mJ 
nfhOk;G gy;fiyf;fofj;jpd; %jitf;F 
2019.05.06 Me; jpfjp eilngw;w mjd; 439 
tJ $l;lj;jpy; rku;g;gpf;fg;gl;lJ. 

 
tFjp v – rhd;wpjo; fw;ifnewpfs; 

2018 Mk; Mz;Lf;fhd Mq;fpy nkhopf; 
fw;ifnewpf;fhd khztu;fisj; njupT 
nra;tjw;F 2017.06.25 Me; jpfjp 
tpz;zg;gq;fs; Nfhug;gl;ld. mj;Jld;> 2283 
khztu;fs; 2019 Mk; Mz;Lf;nfdg; gjpT 
nra;ag;gl;ldu;. 2018.09.16 Me; jpfjp 2019 
Mk; Mz;Lf;fhd tpz;zg;gq;fs; 
Nfhug;gl;lJld; 1935 khztu;fs; gjpT 
nra;ag;gl;ldu;. mq;F 2018 Mk; Mz;Lld; 
xg;gpLifapy; 2019 Mk; Mz;by; khztu; 
gjptpy; Fiwnthd;W fhzg;gl;lJ. 
,f;FiwTf;fhd fhuzq;fspy; xd;W 
2018.02.28 Me; jpfjpapypUe;J 2018.04.16 Me; 
jpfjp tiuahd Rkhu; xd;iw khjfhyg; 
gFjpapy; epytpa NtiyepWj;jk; fhuzkhf 
jpl;lkpl;lgb Fwpj;j fw;ifnewpia Kbf;f 
Kbahky; NghdjhFk;.  
Mq;fpyf; fw;ifnewpfs; fh.ngh.j. cau;ju 
guPl;irf;Fj; Njhw;Wfpd;w khztu;fis 
gpujhdkhf ,yf;fhff; nfhz;bUg;gjdhy;> 
Fwpj;j fw;ifnewpfs; cupa Neuj;jpy; 
Muk;gpf;fg;glhjpUf;fpd;w NghJ mtu;fs; 
Vida fw;ifnewpfspd; gf;fk; 
nry;fpd;wdu;.  
gyu; jkpo; nkhopf; fw;ifnewpf;fhf 
tpz;zg;gpf;fpd;wdu;. mj;Jld;> mtu;fs; 
mtu;fsJ njhopy;fspy; gjtp cau;Tfisg; 
ngWtjw;F mtu;fSf;F nkhopj; Nju;r;rpr; 
rhd;wpjo; xd;W Njitg;gLfpd;wJ. Mjyhy;> 
mtu;fspy; ngUk;ghyhdtu;fs; jkpo; nkhopf; 
fw;ifnewpapd; gpd;du; mtu;fsJ 
fw;ifnewpfis Kbj;JtpLfpd;wdu;. 



111

M
z
;l
w
pf
;i
f
 
k
w
;W
k
; 
t
U
l
he
;j
 
e
pj
pf
; 
$
w
;W
f
;f
s
; 
- 
2019

 
 
k
d
pj
t
s
 
N
k
k
;g
hl
;L
 
e
pW
t
f
k
; 
n
f
hO

k
;G
g
; 
g
y
;f
i
y
f
;f
o
f
k
;

 

mjd; tpisthf> ,ilepiy rhd;wpjo; 
fw;ifnewp kw;Wk; bg;Nshkh fw;ifnewpf;F 
njhlu;e;jpUf;fpd;w khztu;fspd; 
vz;zpf;ifapy; xU FiwT 
fhzg;gLfpd;wJ. Mrpupa epakdq;fSf;F 
tpz;zg;gpf;fpd;w Nehf;fj;Jld; jkpo; nkhopf; 
fw;ifnewpf;F tpz;zg;gpd;w khztu;fs; 
khj;jpuNk bg;Nshkh rhd;wpjiog; 
ngWtjw;fhf bg;Nshkh fw;ifnewpfspy; 
,Uf;fpd;wdu;.  

  (,)  Njrpa uapy;Nt tiyaikg;G 
fUj;jpl;lj;jpw;fhd crhTeu; 
Nritfis toq;Ftjw;fhf 
Nghf;Ftuj;J kw;Wk; rptpy; 
tpkhzj;Jiw mikr;rplkpUe;J 
tUkjpahfTs;s &gha;. 4710900 
ia mwtpLtjw;F kPsha;tpy; 
cs;s Mz;bd; brk;gu; 31 Me; 
tiu vj;jifa eltbf;ifAk; 
vLf;fg;gltpy;iy.  

Vw;Wf;nfhs;fpd;Nwd;. fzf;fha;T 
mwpTWj;jy;fSf;F ,zq;f 2020 Mk; 
Mz;by; ngwNtz;ba njhifahf ,Wjpf; 
fzf;Ffspy; cs;s ,iaGila 
njhifahff; fhl;Ltjw;F eltbf;if 
vLf;fg;gLk;.   

ඇ 
 

,iaGila njhifia 
Nrfupg;gjw;fhd 
eltbf;if vLf;fg;gl;L 
tUfpd;wJ.  
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Freedom of Education                                                                                                                                       
While continuing free education for 
non-managerial employees who dropped out 
from their formal higher education, we value 
developing managerial employees and 
professionals for whom higher learning is 
beyond their reach. 

Progressive Thoughts                                                                                                                                      
We value working together for the 
advancement of society doing each one’s 
part with the highest commitment, sharing 
results of our collective effort equitably and 
sustaining and advancing what we achieve 
for our future generations within and outside 
the IHRA.

Diversity and Inclusion                                                                                                                                       
Not only we appreciate diversity, we value 
inclusive work culture that accept and 
promote differences in our values, beliefs, 
backgrounds, talents and work orientations in 
order to ensure that our institute and   society 
benefit from the diversity.

Community Spirit                                                                                                                                        
We value becoming a group of people with 
shared aspirations, a cause and a “self” 
thus we value building ourselves as 
community. 

Transference in What We do                                                                                                                                       
We encourage morally correct conduct in the IHRA 
community and beyond while actively encouraging 
unrestricted access to knowledge and information to 
the extent that it does not violat the confidentiality that 
we need to maintain as an Institute of higher learning. 

Value 
01

Value 
02

Value 
03

Value 
04

Value 
05
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We believe that our society can and must progress. The progress 
that we are looking for is continues and gradual. The progress 
that we aim is holistic embracing our own economic, social, 
cultural and political aspirations. We believe that the progressive 
society is the society that makes social, cultural and political 
aspirations of people of that society a reality. 

It is with great pleasure that I present the Annual Report for 
the year 2019. During the said year, IHRA continued to serve 
the nation as a leading academic institute providing a wide 
range of academic programmes in a range of disciplines and 
at different levels, namely Masters, Bachelors, Diplomas and 
Certificates. What is noteworthy in the year is our commitment 
to continue with our change initiatives, reflected in investment 
in development of our human resources. 

2019 marked several significant achievements indicating 
contineous growth of IHRA and its preparedness to face 
with the future. First, it launched its restructured academic 
programmes such as Masters Degrees, Executive/Higher 
Diplomas and Diplomas. Second, it continued with restructuring 
with organization creating new units, training its employees and 
working with external stakeholders to obtain the approval to 
change its ordinance. Furthermore, we could complete several 
physical improvement projects that we had already started in 
the previous year. 

In 2019, we focused on improving internationalization of the 
Institute working closely with foreign universities to have student 
exchange programmes and third-party training programmes 
which we will continue in 2019. We established a separate unit 
to coordinate our internationalization activities and initiated to 
sign MOUs with selected foreign universities.

In the year 2019, approximately 211 new students registered in 
the Bachelor of Labor Education (BLE) Programme - the flagship 
programme of IHRA totaling around 589 students in that 
programme. Furthermore, around 887 students who were at 
senior management level or professionals were reading for their 
respective postgraduate programmes, namely Masters Degree 
in Business Management, Masters Degree in Human Resource 
Management, Masters Degree in Service Management, Master 
of Science in Geoinformatics and Master of Science in Disaster 
Analysis Management and Mitigation.

During the academic year 2019, there was a total number of 
372 students enrolled for the Diploma Courses to enhance 
their subject-related knowledge and also a total number of 
5,065 students were enrolled for the Certificate Courses. During 
the year IHRA conducted 11 workshops and a number of 664 

Director’s 
Review
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students participated in these workshops to augment their 
learning experience at IHRA.

We, the Institute of Human Resource Advancement, University of 
Colombo who are  focus on people to live in a progressive society 
has embarked on two noble goals; development of human talent 
in required quantity and quality and educating both workers and 
managers to make collective choices and a collective effort. We, 
IHRA-UoC, invite all of you whose dream is to live and let others 
live in a progressive society, to join with us to make that dream 
a reality.

Professor JASK Jayakody, PhD
Director And the Chairman of the Academic Syndicate
Institute of Human Resource Advancement
University of Colombo
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The history of the Institute of Human Resource Advancement 
(IHRA) runs into morethan four decades when predecessor; 
Institute of Workers Education (IWE) was established in 1975 
under the Ordinance No.11 of 1979 which was amended by 
Ordinance No. 01 of 2006. In 2006 the Institute of Workers 
Education was renamed as Institute of Human Resource 
Advancement. The ordinance was amended and published in 
Extra- Ordinary Gazette notification No. 2033/10 August 22, 
2017 enabling IHRA to confer degrees, diplomas, certificates and 
other academic distinctions. The IHRA is one of the institute of 
the University of Colombo, the oldest university in the country.

During its more than four decades’ history, IHRA has seen many 
changes and new developments within its environment to name 
few-growth of the private sector, emergence of knowledge 
economy and globalization of workforce are noteworthy. 
In its attempts to embrace these developments, IHRA has 
continuously evolved and its original purpose “educating 
work-groups” has gained a new meaning. As at present ‘work-
group’ means ‘managerial/professional workgroup’, and, IHRA 
is committed to developing human talent of ‘managerial/
professional workgroups’ as well.

Being an Institute, its academic activities are subject to the 
close scrutiny of the University of Colombo, Thus IHRA is bound 
to maintain high standards in its all-academic affairs and to 
continue all good traditions that any higher learning institute 
has to preserve.

IHRA was initially started with the purpose of providing facilities 
for comprehensive higher- level education of accepted quality 
to all categories of workers, enabling them to develop skills, 
leadership qualities and understand their responsibilities as a 
worker, so that they can make an effective contribution in their 
work place and mainly offered Bachelor of Arts (BA) degree 
until 1983 however, in1986 Institute of Workers Education (IWE) 
started to offer degree programme namely Bachelor of Labour 
Education (BLE). During 2007 IHRA expanded its academic 
activities and also began to offer Masters degrees.

1.1. IHRA AT A GLANCE
In 2019, IHRA taught almost 7,000 students including 850 
postgraduates and 550 undergraduates students. IHRA offers 
dynamic academic programms considering the objective it was 
established. Our undergraduate programme is designed caters 
to the working community to uplift their skills, capabilities and 
leadership skills fitting to their working environment. which is 
during of 3 years. During the year 2019, we were able to 
cater for students under 4 categories of programmes. Students 

History of 
the IHRA



114

Annual Report and Annual Financial Statements - 2019
Institute of Human Resource Advancement   University of Colombo

were allocated in the following manner: 5 postgraduate 

programmes, one Bachelor programme, 3 Higher / Executive Diploma programmes, 4 Diploma 
programmes, and 8 certificates programmes aligning with corporate plan for the period of 2018 - 
2022.

13%

5%

9%

73%

Postgraduate 
Programmes

Bachelors
Programme

Execu�ve / Higher
Diploma
Programmes

Cer�ficate 
Programmes

Student Enrollment - 2019

During the year 2019, total of 6,913 students were following difference courses of study 
as shown above.

Source: Collected Data, 2019 - IHRA  

1.2. ACADEMIC PROGRAMMES CONDUCTED BY THE IHRA IN 2019

 Postgraduate 
Programmes

•	 Master of Science in Service Management
•	 Master of Science in Geoinformatics
•	 Master of Business Management
•	 Master of Human Resource Management
•	 Masters of Disaster Analysis, Management and Mitigation

•	 Bachelor of Labour Education
 Bachelors Programme

•	 Executive Diploma in Human Resource Management 
•	 Executive Diploma in Tourism, Events and Hospitality Management 
•	 Higher Diploma in Counseling and Psychology
•	 Diploma in Drug Abuse Management
•	 Diploma in Counseling and Psychology
•	 Diploma in Tamil as an Additional Language
•	 Diploma in Labour Education

Executive / Higher 
Diploma and Diploma 

Programmes 

•	 Certificate Course in Computer Applications
•	 Certificate Course in English Language
•	 Certificate Course in English for Teachers
•	 Short Course in English Language for School Leavers
•	 Certificate Course in Spoken English
•	 Foundation Certificate Course in English
•	 Certificate Course in Tamil Language - Basic
•	Certificate Course in Tamil Language – Intermediate

Certificate Programmes 
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IHRA is looking forward to becoming an institute of excellence totally committed the advancement of 
human resource as mature, intelligent ‘knowledge-users’, equipped to face challenging global situations 
and to fortify the foundation of our national development. Towards this end, IHRA is going through a major 
transformation while consolidating rich academic traditions and high academic standards inherited from the 
University of Colombo. This transformation aims at obtaining local and global accreditations for its academic 
programmes, meeting standards of good governance, to become the most sought after employee brand 
and a socially responsible public Institute.

1.3. MANAGEMENT OF THE IHRA
The Director of the Institute, its Administrative & Academic Head, who is a full time officer, shall be 
appointed by the Vice Chancellor with the concurrence of the Council of the University of Colombo on the 
recommendation of the Academic Syndicate of the Institute of Human Resource Advancement. The Director 
is the Chairman of the Academic syndicate, an ex-officio member of the Boards of Studies. He is the Chief 
Accounting Officer of the institute and is responsible for the maintenance of discipline within the Institute. 
Prof. JASK Jayakody, Professor attached to the Department of Management and Organizing Studies, Faculty 
of Management and Finance, University of Colombo has been appointed as the permanent Director for a 
period of three years with effect from 25th January 2018. 

The organizational Structure of the Institute is shown below.

1.4. ADMINISTRATIVE ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE OF THE IHRA (2019)

Board of Study on 
Extension Programmes 

Board of Study on 
Postgraduate Studies & 

Research 

Board of Study on 
Bachelors Programme 

Board of Study on 
Language Teaching 

Director

Exam & Evaluation
Committee 

Quality 
Assurance Cell Audit

Committee
Finance 

Committee

Academic Sta�LibraryUnitsAdministration 
& Finance Division

O�ce of Deputy Registrar

O�ce of Snr. Asst. Bursar

O�ce of Snr. Asst. Registrar

O�ce of Asst. Registrar

Postgraduate Unit

Research Unit

Labour Education Unit

Student Support Unit

 Executive Development Unit

Language Training Unit 

Computer Lab

Academic Syndicate

O�ce of Asst. Bursar

This organization structure was designed aligning with the corporate plan and action plan of the Institute.
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1.5. ACADEMIC SYNDICATE OF THE IHRA
According to administrative organizational structure of the IHRA, four (04) academic boards have been 
established with the approval of academic syndicate. Seven (07) units related to various academic disciplines 
have been established under guidance of director.

1.5.1. Members of Academic Syndicate (9 Meetings held)

Name Appointed Authority
Prof. JASK Jayakody Chairman
Prof. Premakumara De Silva Ex-Officio member
Prof. KRR Mahanama	 Ex-Officio member
Prof. (Mrs.) MV Vidanapathirana Ex-Officio member
Prof. Kennedy Gunawardena	 Appointed member, UGC
Prof. Jayadewa Uyangoda Appointed member, UGC
Prof. (Ms) Nayani Melagoda	 Appointed member, UGC
Prof. Mahinda Somathilaka 
(up to 12.05.2019) Appointed member, UGC

Prof. OMS Soyza (From 13.05.2018) Appointed member, UGC
Dr. (Ms) Dinuka Wijethunga Appointed member, UGC
Mr. DMS Dassanayaka	 Appointed member, UGC
Mr. N Selvakumaran	 Appointed member, UGC
Mr. HMN Warakaulle	 Appointed member, UGC

Mr. KA Vimalendrarajah	 Treasury Representative
Prof. AA Azeez Board of Study Representative
Mr. MGG Hemakumara Board of Study Representative
Ms. KP Mathotaarachchi Board of Study Representative
Ms. BKP Abeyasooriya Board of Study Representative

1.5.2. Number of Meetings conducted by the Boards of Study at the IHRA

Name of the Board Number of Meetings Conducted

Board of Study on Postgraduate Studies & Research 09

Board of Study on Bachelors Programmes 10

Board of Study on Language Teaching Programme 09

Board of Study on Extention Programmes 10

Organizational structure comprised of 4 committees directly responsible for the Academic Syndicate. Details 
of the committees are given below;

Name of the Committee Number of Meetings Conducted

Audit Committee (An Independent Body) 04
Finance Committee 11
Library Committee 02

Committee for Quality Assurance 01
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2.1. DEVELOPMENTS

–	 Actions were taken to replace existing IHRA Ordinance No 11 
of 1979 which was amended by No 01 of 2006. 

–	 Actions were taken to obtain primary approval to change the 
name of the Bachelor of Labour Education degree programme 
to Bachelor of Labour Management (Honours) and Bachelor 
of Labour Management (General) degree programmes.  
Accordingly, curricula would be changed opening up wider 
opportunities for students.

	
–	 Relocated and modernized the Directors Office, Board Room 

and Examination Branch.
	
–	 The Finance Branch was transformed into a fully fledge 

lecture hall with new facilities as proposed. 
	
–	 Installed high end server, next generation firewall system, 

and uninterrupted power supply (UPS) unit.
	
–	 Connecting data network facilities for New Examination 

Branch, Directors Office, Board Room, New Work Station, All 
lecturers’ rooms and administration branch of the IHRA were 
completed during the year.

	
2.2. ACHIEVEMENTS
2.2.1. ACADEMIC ACHIEVEMENTS
–	 Built-up a partnership with National Dangerous Drug Control 

Board. As a result, the IHRA was able to start the Diploma 
in Drug Abuse Management Studies Programme with the 
collaboration of the NDDCB. 

	
–	 The IHRA built up a partnership with Mount Lavinia Hotel 

for conducting an Executive Diploma in Tourism, Event, and 
Hospitality Management Programme. The signing of MOU is 
in progress.

	
–	 Introduced Interactive Teaching Learning method (ITL) for 

BLE programme, all Masters programmes, Executive / Higher 
Diploma/ Diploma programmes and certificate courses.

	
–	 All academic programmes except certificate Courses were 

conducted via Learning Management Systems (LMS).  
Created a paper free environment using LMS.

–	 Changed the name of the Bachelor of Labour Education 
degree programme to Bachelor of Labour Management 
and Bachelor of Labour Management (Honors) giving wider 
opportunities for students. 

–	 Blended Teaching & Learning (BTL) was introduced to 

Developments
& Achievements in 
2019
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Diploma Programmes.
–	 Reviewed Curricula of Diploma and Executive 

Diploma programmes.

WORKSHOPS CONDUCTED 
•	 Workshop on curriculum development in 

Higher Diploma and Diploma in Counseling 
Psychology, Exeacutive Diploma in Tourism, 
Event and Hospitality Management,   
Executive Diploma in Human Resource 
Management, Executive Diploma 
and Diploma in Service Management  
programmes.

	
•	 Workshop on research title development 

for academic staff and the visiting staff of 
the IHRA.

	
•	 Teacher Development Workshop for Visiting 

Instructors who facilities English Language 
Teaching Programme.

	
•	 Teacher Development Workshop for Visiting 

Instructors who facilities Basic Level Tamil 
Language Teaching.

–	 Introduced scope of Graduate attributes in 
alignment with ILO’s (intended Learning outcome 
(ILO),  TLAS’s Teaching Learning Activities (TLA), 
and AT’s  Assessment Task (AT).

        Introduced scope of Graduate attributes for 
MSc. in HRM, MSc. in Business Management, 
MSc. in Service Management, Master of 
HRM, Master of Business Management 
and Master of Service Management 
programmes. 

•	 Introduced scope of Graduate attributes for 
2 Bachelor’s programmes namely, Bachelor 
of Labour Management and Bachelor of 
Labour Management (Honours).

	
•	 Introducing graduate attributes for 

Executive/ Higher Diploma and Diploma 
programmes are in progress. These 
attributes were developed in collaboration 
with the professionals in the industry and 
university academics. 

–	 Reviewed Curricula of English and Tamil 
programmes. Published text books for Higher 
and preliminary Levels of English and Tamil 
programmes.

•	 Library information system and D-Space were 
installed.

INTERNATIONAL AWARDS PARTICIPATIONS
•	 Participated in a residential Visiting Student 

Programme conducted by the University of 
Malaya, Malaysia (5 members).

•	 Participated in capacity development 
workshop in Spain. 

•	 Represented in an International Education 
Fair (international Education and Career 
expo) held in Maldives.

2.2.2. ADMINISTRATIVE ACHIEVEMENTS
–	 The IHRA conducted nine (9) workshops, 

incuding eight (8) local and one international 
or staff members with the aim of enhancing 
quality of work standards. In addition to these 
workshops, academic & non- academic staff 
members participated in several international 
workshops. Also, Academic support and Non-
academic members participated in five (5) 
workshops for their career developments.

–	 Computerization of Fixed Assets Register was 
completed. At the same time division wise 
inventory registers were also completed.

–	 Job Descriptions for all divisions were designed.
–	 REPO System was introduced. 
–	 IHRA recruited a Lecturer (Probationary) during 

the year 2019 strengthening its Academic 
fleet.	

–	 Also, IHRA initiated a staff exchange and training 
programme with Malaya University Malaysia.

2.2.3 ACHIEVEMENT IN PHYSICAL 
FACILITY
During 2019, IHRA achieved higher level of physical 
infrastructure facilities

•	 Old Finance Branch premises was re- 
structured into a Lecture hall with all modern 
facilities, which could accommodate 77 
students. 

•	 Converted old examination branch into a 
Lecturer room and used the rest of the area 
were used to expand works station.

•	 Re- structured old Board Room as a state -of – 
the art new Board Room & built up Director’s 
room with secretariat office. 

•	 Shroff Counter and Store Room were 
        re- structured. 
•	 Also, IHRA took all actions to implement 
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government policy on Polyethene free environment within the premises.
	

2.3. DEVELOPMENT OF STUDENTS’ SKILLS
FOREIGN COLLABORATION 
The IHRA together with University of Malaya, Malaysia initiated a student exchange 
programme with the tension of improving Academic Standards of the IHRA.

MANAGERIAL AND MID MANAGERIAL SKILL DEVELOPMENT  
IHRA was able to strengthen the research performance of its Postgraduate Students 
during 2019 by conducting following workshops and field visits.
Workshops and Field visits in Msc Service Management Programme.

•	 Research Article presentation & Academic Writing Skills – 
•	 Statistical Package for Social Science (SPSS)Training workshop part 1.
•	 SPSS Training workshop part 11.

Workshops and Field visits in  Master of Business Management (MBM ) & Master of 
Human Resource Management (MHRM)   Programme.

•	 Principles and Practices of Management - MBM Programe No. 07.
•	 Principles and Practices of Management - MHRM Programe No. 09.
•	 Principles and practices of Management - MBM Programe No. 7/B1.

Academic Field Visits
•	 Participatory Disaster Monitoring. 
•	 Disaster Risk Assessment. 

2.4. Extra - Curricular Activities of Students & Staff of IHRA 
(organized & Participated)
–	 1st year Students of BLE Programmes organized a ‘Talent Show’ at New Art 

Theater, University of Colombo.
–	 A member of the Staff participated in a Badminton Tournament in India.

2.5. Corporate Social Responsibility of IHRA
–	 3rd Year students of the BLE Programme organized a “Plant Donation 

Programme “Thuruwimanata Sawiyak” at Ingiriya, Forest Department 
premises.  

	

–	 Staff of IHRA together with students of BLE organized a “Book donation 
programme” to Am/ Deghawapi Maha Vidyalaya, Ampara. Further actions 
were taken to donate library books and equipped the library with library 
furniture.
•	 Also, renovated the main hall of the same school.
•	 Renovated playground and children playground area. 

–	 The Staff together with students of MBM No. 06 organized a programme of  
“books and essential school stationaries donation” named  “Magen Theggak” 
for the students of Dikkumbura Vidyalaya, Raththota, Matale. A total of 212 
students of the school were benefited by this programme.

Successfully conducted two (02) Teacher Felicitation Programmes.

During the year 2019, IHRA donated office equipments to government instutions 
and a school. One hundred sixty-seven (167) items of office equipments were 
donated. The list was given below: 

Institution									         Office Equipment

C/Rajasinghe Maha Vidyalaya, Colombo 09						      13
Sri Palee Campus, University of Colombo						      48
15th Battalion the Sri Lanka Light Infantry, Army Camp Thissapura, Mollipothana		  84
SL Army Camp, Diyathalawa								        10
Kaduwela Culture Centre, Athurugiriya							       12

									         Total		  167Source: Collected Data, 2019, IHRA 
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3.1 ACADEMIC PROGRAMMES
In 2019, IHRA conducted 21 academic programmes under 5 main 
categories.
	 - Postgraduate degree programmes 
	 - Bachelor degree 
	 - Executive/ Higher Diploma programmes
	 - Diploma progrmmes
	 - Certificate Programmes

3.1.1 Postgraduate degree programmes
The IHRA offered five (05) dynamic Postgraduate Programmes during 
the year 2019. Main objectives of these programmes are to improve 
knowledge, skills and attitude of professionals in their relevant fields. 

Our own method of teaching styles, continuous assessments, fieldworks 
and through workshops’ students were able to gain knowledge on the 
subjects they learn. Also, through feedback from students, IHRA can 
develop further insight into future development of course Curriculum 
and students’ needs. At the same time these students make significant 
contribution to the national economy, too. 

IHRA offered four different types of Management related Postgraduate 
Programmes focusing on the needs students who perform their duties 
at different managerial levels. These programmes are: 
•	 Master Degree in Business Management (MBM)
•	 Master Degree in Human Resource Management (MHRM)
•	 Master of Science in Service Management (Msc in SMGT)
 
Also, students who are involved in management professions could 
acquire knowledge on all major disciplines of Management. These 
Postgraduate degrees also provide the conceptual and analytical 
tools necessary to tackle business problems and issues with greater 
confidence.
 
The institute conducted two Masters of Science programmes in 
subject areas of Geoinformatics and Disaster Management Analysis 
and Mitigation. These postgraduate degrees are designed for students 
who wish to specialize in the field of Geo-informatics and Disaster 
Management for assessing, monitoring, evaluating, and managing 
resources across the sector.
 
Although there were four Postgraduate programmes planned for 2019, 
IHRA was able to admit students for only two programmes namely, 
Master Degree in Business Management and Master Degree in Human 
Resource Management.  The Highest number of students were admitted 
the Master of Business Management degree programme in 2019. 

Year in 
Review 
2019
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3.1.2. Bachelor Programme
3.1.2.1 Bachelor of Labour Education (BLE)

One of the main goals of the IHRA is to “Develop Human 
talents in required quantity and quality and educating 
both workers and Managers to make collective choices and 
collective efforts”. Accordantly, BLE degree programme was 
initiated.
 
The Bachelor of Labour Education (BLE) degree programme is 
the only programme supported by State funds conducted for 
over 40 years by the IHRA. 

The duration of Bachelor of Labour Education (BLE) 
Programme is 3 years, comprised of six (06) semesters. The 
duration of the Diploma Programme in Labour Education 
Programme (DLE) is one year. Candidates who are not eligible 
to enroll in the degree programme directly could be allowed 
to pursue the one-year Diploma programme. A placement 
test and interview are applicable to both programmes as 
entry criteria. 

In the year 2019, total of 677 candidates applied for the 
Selection Test, and out of all applicants, only 31% of applicants 

Source: Collected Data, 2019, IHRA 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017
Masters Degree in Business 
Management 172 61 95 115 96 87 0 127

Masters Degree in Human 
Resource Management 135 67 54 67 65 85 93 135

Master of Science in Service 
Management 121 66 0 77 0 43 88 54
Master of Science in 
Geoinformatics 0 83 0 0 0 7 62 54

Master of Science in Disaster 
Analysis, Management and 
Mitigation

0 0 0 48 0 25 26 38

Annual Intake Graduated

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Annual Intake Graduated

Masters Degree in Business
Management 172 61 95 115 96 87 0 127 125 64

Masters Degree in Human Resource
Management 135 67 54 67 65 85 93 135 96 44

Master of Science in Service
Management 121 66 0 77 0 43 88 54 62 73

Master of Science in Geoinformatics 0 83 0 0 0 7 62 54 5 55
Master of Science in Disaster
Analysis, Management and

Mitigation
0 0 0 48 0 25 26 38 11 3
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were selected to follow Bachelor of Labour Education Degree. Two hundred 
eleven students (211) were registered for the Undergraduate Degree.

Also, IHRA received 152 applications to enroll in the Diploma in Labour 
Education. Out of this 146 sat for the Selection Test and eighty-nine (89) 
registered for the Diploma in Labour Education.

The Inauguration Ceremony was held at the New Art Theater, University of 
Colombo on 31st July 2019. The total number of registered undergraduates 
(at different levels) during the year was 589.  As of 2019, the overall graduate 
output during last five starting from 2015 year was 67 %.

It was proposed to change the name of the Bachelor of Labour Education 
degree and duration of the degree programme providing wider access 
to students. The new name of the degree programme will be “Bachelor 
of Labour Management”, a 3(-year) degree and/ Or a Bachelor of Labour 
Management (Honors) degree, 4-year degree programme. This can be 
offered either in Sinhala or English medium and the new batch of students 
will be admitted to the Institute in 2020.

3.1.3. Executive and Higher Diploma Programmes
An Executive Diploma is a unique qualification for a professionals who 
engages in the relevant field of work. The main objective of the programme 
is providing opportunities to the managers to improve and update their 
knowledge in the sectors to which they are assigned at work. These 
programmes have been designed for middle level executives who need to 
improve their knowledge. 

All Executive Diploma Programmes are focused on personal development, 
rooted in the firm belief that it is vital for participants to have personal 

Source: Collected Data, 2019, IHRA 

Annual Intake
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017

BLE 157 194 184 221 211 119 124 137
DLE 51 54 48 66 89 42 32 30

Graduted

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Annual Intake Graduted

BLE 157 194 184 221 211 119 124 137 137 119
DLE 51 54 48 66 89 42 32 30 36 35
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experience of challenging their own ingrained patterns of behavior as a 
basis for working effectively with their clients.

The duration of these programmes are one year. Hence, IHRA adopts 
its own style of teaching through continuous assessments, field works, 
workshops aiming at students to provide platform to develop their 
professionalism.

Some of the Executive and Higher Diploma programmes were suspended 
with the aim of streamlining the programmes at IHRA. 

In 2019 IHRA admitted students for three different type of Executive 
or Higher Diploma programmes, namely, Executive Diploma in Human 
Resource Management, Executive Diploma in Tourism, Event and 
Hospitality Management and Higher Diploma in Counselling Psychology. 
In 2019 no graduate output was possible due to uncertain prevailed after 
Easter Sunday attack in the country. As a result, duration of programmes 
were extended. 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016

Executive Diploma in Human Resource Management 113 35 - 17 0 61 81

Executive Diploma in Project Management 31 - - - - 13 -

Executive Diploma in Service Management 94 107 - - - 59 51

Executive Diploma in Tourism Events & Hospitality Management 35 - - - 30 - 34

Higher Diploma in Counselling Psychology - - - 49 0 - -

Executive Diploma in International Business - - - - - - -

Annual Intake No. of Students Qualified

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Annual Intake No. of Students Qualified

Executive Diploma in Human
Resource Management 113 35 0 17 0 61 81 0 35 0

Executive Diploma in Project
Management 31 0 0 0 0 13 0 17 0 0

Executive Diploma in Service
Management 94 107 0 0 0 59 51 0 115 0

Executive Diploma in Tourism
Events & Hospitality Management 35 0 0 0 30 0 34 0 0 0

Higher Diploma in Counselling
Psychology 0 0 0 49 0 0 0 0 0 0

Executive Diploma in International
Business 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
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There was no output in 2019 due to the situation prevailed after Easter Sunday attack, duration of academic
programmes were extended.

**
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3.1.4 Diploma programmes

There are three kinds of Diplomas offered by the IHRA. They consists of Management, 
Humanity and Language programmes. These programmes are designed to facilitate 
beginner level candidate to advanced knowledge, analytical thinking, build up 
capabilities, ethical standards and enhance leadership and responsibilities in their 
respective fields. These diplomas advantages allow students to fulfil their various 
requirements. Sometimes it will serve as a bridge to fill the gap between different phases 
of the academic study, or to provide additional professional training and qualifications. 
A Diploma programme more provide valuable specialized skills, knowledge, and 
experiences.

During the year certain collaborative programmes conducted with the external parties 
were discontinued in order to streamline. However, in 2019 students were admitted to 
only 2 academic programmes namely, Diploma in Drug Abuse Management, Diploma in 
Tamil as an Additional Language.
 
A total of 138 students were admitted to the above-mentioned programs and total 
output was 131 students.

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015
Diploma in Service Management 58 20 - - 0 23

Diploma in Drug Abuse Management 50 - - - 46 -

Diploma in Counseling Psychology 34 - - 49 0 36
Diploma in Tamil as an Additional
Language 163 124 96 90 92 124

Diploma in Management 22 34 - - 0 11
Diploma in International Business - - - - - -
Diploma in International Technology 
and Management - - - - - -

Annual Intake No. of Students Qualified

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Annual Intake No. of Students Qualified

Diploma in Service Management 58 20 0 0 0 23 37 0 27 11
Diploma in Drug Abuse

Management 50 0 0 0 46 0 0 0 27 0

Diploma in Counseling Psychology 34 0 0 49 0 36 23 55 29 29
Diploma in Tamil as an Additional

Language 163 124 96 90 92 124 123 100 74 73

Diploma in Management 22 34 0 0 0 11 10 0 27 9
Diploma in International Business 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4

Diploma in International
Technology and Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
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There was no output in 2019 due to the situation prevailed after Easter Sunday attack, duration of academic
programmes were extended.

**
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3.1.5. Certificate Programmes
The IHRA offers Certifcate programmes in various disciplines to 
nurture the students towards professional growth. In 2019 eight (8) 
Certificate programmes were conducted. The Institute of Human 
Resource Advancement offered certificate courses in English for over 
three decades.  IHRA offers five (5) different English programmes 
targeting different categories of students including Teachers who 
teach English as a second language.
 
However, from April to September (2019) following Easter attack, 
IHRA was not been able to conduct lectures for students who 
follow Certificate in English Language, Foundation Course in English, 
Certificate Course in Spoken English. 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Certificate Course in English Language 2149 1321 1321 2283 1938

Foundation Course in English 187 217 - 413 429

Certificate Course in English for Teachers 99 67 - 48 52

Certificate Course in Spoken English 1705 3637 1933 580 383

Short Course in English for School Leavers 251 130 54 342 507

Certificate Course in Computer Applications 354 452 - 412 423

Certificate Course in Tamil Language - Basic 316 341 405 327 427

Certificate Course in Tamil Language – Intermediate 262 160 145 157 110

Annual Intake

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Annual Intake No. of Students Qualified

Certificate Course in English
Language 2149 1321 1321 2283 1938 1688 0 986 1523 0

Foundation Course in English 187 217 0 413 429 120 0 143 269 0
Certificate Course in English for

Teachers 99 67 0 48 52 62 0 55 25 0

Certificate Course in Spoken English 1705 3637 1933 580 383 1261 2706 1471 0 391
Short Course in English for School

Leavers 251 130 54 342 507 314 0 45 101 390

Certificate Course in Computer
Applications 354 452 0 412 423 246 320 336 275 347

Certificate Course in Tamil Language
- Basic 316 341 405 327 427 411 242 203 0 196

Certificate Course in Tamil Language 
– Intermediate 262 160 145 157 110 200 159 109 104 115
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There was no output in 2019 due to the situation prevailed after Easter Sunday attack, duration of academic
programmes were extended.

**
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3.2. DETAILS OF TRAINING WORKSHOPS IN 2019
In IHRA, Students of the Postgraduate, Undergraduate and Diploma Programmes have to participate in a 
workshop as a compulsory academic compoment in their related study programme. The Purpose of these 
programmes is the Professional Development of students. Unlike lectures, workshops allow for opening the 
floor for discussion pertaining to the professional world and hearing about other ideas on the topic – in a 
setting that encourages conversation. Participants can share their insights and thoughts on how to resolve 
the problem, which can offer a fresh perspective when dealing with the problem. Workshops to help to 
develop new skills can help students progress. Students can improve their skills of presentation, leadership, 
communication and teamwork capability etc.

The focus of the programmes are to develop a wide variety of soft skills starting from communication, to 
working in different environments, developing emotional sensitivity, learning creative and critical decision 
making, developing awareness of how to work with, and negotiate with people, and to resolve stress and 
conflict in themselves and others.

During the year 2019 IHRA has been conducted nearly 11 training workshops (Including International 
workshop) for students who are enrolled in Postgraduate, Undergraduate and Diploma programmes with 
the objective of enhancing knowledge, skills, attitudes of students, public/ private sector employees.

Category Title of the Programme No. of 
Participats

Target group

Workshops Research Article Presentation & 
Academic Writing Skills

72 Students  of the MSc in Service 
Management Programme - No. 04

Research Article Presentation 71

Workshop on Teacher Development 36
Visiting Instructors of English 
Language Teaching Programme

LMS Awarness Programme 102 Students of the Executive Diploma 
in Tourism, Event and Hospitality 
Management Programme, Higher /
Diploma in Counselling Psychology 
and Diploma in Dru Abuse 
Management.

Principles and Practice of 
Management

50 Students of MBM Programme - 07/
B2/2018

Principles and Practice of 
Management

53 Students of MHRM Programme - 09 
/ 2018

Principles and Practice of 
Management

55 Students of MBM Programme - 07/
B1/2018

SPSS Training Workshop - Part I 71 Students  of the MSc in Service 
Management Programme - No. 04

SPSS Training Workshop - Part II 71

Field demonstrations Academic Field Visit - Participatory 
Disaster Monitoring

41 Students of the MSc in Disaster 
Analysis management and 
Mitigation - No. 03

Academic Field Visit - Field Disaster 
Risk Assessment

42

Source: Collected Data, 2019, IHRA 
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Program Name/ Position of 
Participant Date Venue

Formation of the Action 
Plan - 2019

Head of Units/ Division/ 
Programme

04.01.2019 IHRA Auditorium

Workshop on Personal 
Grooming and Hygiene

All staff 08.02.2019 IHRA Auditorium

Action Plan Awareness 
Programme - 2019

All staff 26.02.2019 Hilton Residence, 
Colombo

Programme on Official 
Bank Accounts and 
Cheques

Ms. WASD Jayarathna, 
Management Assistant

14.03.2019 Grand Oriental Hotel, 
Colombo

Workshop on 
Procurement Procedure

All staff who handling the 
Procurement

19.06.2019 IHRA Auditorium

Programme on Cash Flow 
Statement & Control 
Accounts

Mr. KLDG Richmand, Book 
Keeper

21.06.2019 Grand Oriental Hotel, 
Colombo

1st Progres Review 
Meeting of the Action 
Plan - 2019

Head of Units/ Division/ 
Programme

17.07.2019 IHRA Auditorium

Student Awareness 
Programme on LMS

Staff who handling the 
Diploma and Higher/
Executive Diplomas at 
IHRA

30.06. 2019 & 06.07.2019 Computer Lab, Faculty of 
Management & Finance, 
UoC

Workshop on 
LibraryHousekeeping and 
Operation Supports

Mr. MDMU 
Samarasekara, Library 
Attendant

22 to 23. 07.2019 Library, University of 
Kelaniya

Seminar on the Role of 
Libraries in Knowledge 
Society

Ms. SI Marasinghe, 
Library Information 
Assistant

07.08.2019 Bandaranayaike Centre 
for International Studies

Workshop on Basic Skills 
on Networking and 
Printer Sharing

All Staff 26.08.2019 Computer Lab, IHRA

Final Progress Review of 
the Action Plan - 2019

All Staff 09.12.2019 IHRA Auditorium

3.3. DETAILS OF RESEARCH, INNOVATION AND PUBLICATIONS
Name of the 
Researcher Topic Published 

Year
Place/ 

Publication

Dr. MGG Hemakumara

Organizational Citizenship Behaviour Among 
Public Management Assistants in the 
Divisional Secretariasts of Colombo District 
in Sri Lanka

2019
International Journal 
of Innovative Research 
and Knowledge

Dr. MGG Hemakumara 
[Co-authors - Prof. Dr. 
Khatibi A.A., Prof. Dato 
Dr. MdGaparMD Johar] 

Organizational Citizenship Behaviour Among 
Administrative Staff of State Universities in 
Sri Lanka

2019 International Journal of 
Arts and Commerce

Dr. MGG Hemakumara
Work Life Balance Among Employed 
Undergraduate Students of the University of 
Colombo

2019 International Journal of 
Arts and Commerce

3.2.1. Training for the IHRA Staff

Source: Collected Data, 2019, IHRA 
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Dr. WS Chandrasekara
Relationship Among Big Five Personality 
Traits, Job Performance & Job Satisfaction: A 
Case of School Teachers in Sri Lanka

2019
International Journal of 
Information, Business 
and Management

Dr. WS Chandrasekara

The Effect of Transformational Leadership 
Style on Employees Job Satisfaction and 
Job Performance: A Case of Apparel 
Manufacturing Industry in Sri Lanka

2019
International Journal of 
Economics, Commerce 
and Management

Dr. WS Chandrasekara
Preceived Life Stress Among Tsunami 
Resettles in Sri Lanka: Alchol Addiction Prone 
Personality and Alchol Addiction

2019

International Research 
Conference, Huazhong 
University of Science & 
Technology, China

Ms. CL Edirisinghe
Training and Development Practices & its 
Impact on Employee Performance: A Case 
Study on Horana Industrial Estate, Sri Lanka

2019 International Journal of 
Research Publications

Mrs. RASN Rathnayake Impact of Electronic Media on Reading 
Habits of Teenagers 2019

Asian Journal of 
Information Science and 
Technology 

Mrs. RASN Rathnayake wjrg fmr 2019 Godage Book 
Publishers, Sri Lanka

Mr. KDN Hewage Analysis of Lighting Strike Variations in 
Sweden from 2000 - 2014 2019

International Journal 
of New Technology and 
Research

Ms. DHD Nadeesha
An Empirical Study on Corporate Governance 
Structure and Performance of Sri Lankan 
Listed Financial Services Copmanies

2019
International Journal of 
Scientific Research and 
Publications

Mr. KAAN Thilakarathne Recognition of States: The Matters Still 
Unresolved 2019

International Journal 
of Research and 
Innovation in Social 
Sciences

Mr. KAAN Thilakarathne Environmental Protection through Judicial 
Review: The Sri Lankan Experience 2019 Sabaragamuwa 

University Journal

Mr. KAAN Thilakarathne A Critique on the Durkheimain Concept of 
Solidarity 2019

International Journal 
of Research and 
Innovation in Social 
Sciences

Mr. KAAN Thilakarathne Naturalistic and Positivistic Debates on 
Implementing the Capital Punishment 2019 The Lex-Warrier: On-

line Law Journal

Mr. KAAN Thilakarathne Rights of Shareholders under the Companies 
Act No. 07 of 2007 2019 IHRA Journal

Mr. KAAN Thilakarathne Finnis and Religion a Critical View of Religion 
as a Basic Good: Does it have a hierachy? 2019

Manurawa Law Journal, 
Sri Lanka Law College 
Human Rights Students 
Union

Mr. KAAN Thilakarathne
The Paradox of Diplomatic Immunity: A 
Comparative Approach with Practices from 
Sri Lanka, South Africa and India

2019 Rajarata International 
Research Conference

Mr. KAAN Thilakarathne
Classical School of Criminology and Its 
Application in the Sri Lankan Criminal Justice 
System

2019 US-China Law Review

Mr. KAAN Thilakarathne Right to Strike: A Critical Appraisal of the Sri 
Lankan Law 2019 Junior Bar Law Journal

Source: Collected Data, 2019, IHRA 
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3.4. DETAILS OF ACADEMIC STAFF, ADMINISTRATIVE AND NON ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

Service 
Category Designation

Approved Cadre Existing Cadre
Permanent Contract Permanent Contract 

Academic 

Director 01 –  01 –  

Professor

11 –  08 –  Associate Professor

Senior Lecturer/ Lecturer/ Lecturer (Probationary)

Senior Assistant Librarian 01 –  01 –  

UA & FS

Deputy Registrar 01 –  01 –  

Senior Assistant Bursar 01 –  01 –  

Senior Assistant Registrar 01 –  01 –  

Assistant Bursar 01 –  01 –  

Assistant Registrar 01 –  01 –  

AS
Scientific Assistant 01 –  01 –  

Instructor In Computer Technology 01 –  – –  

UTS Technical Officer (ICT) 06 –  - –  

UMAS

Management Assistant 25 –  21 –  

Management Assistant (Book Keeping) 01 –  01 –  

Management Assistant (Shroff) 01 –  01 –  

Management Assistant (Store Keeping) 01 –  01 –  

Library Information Assistant 03 –  02 –  

Dept. Office Machine Operator 01 –  01 –  

UDS Driver 03 –  03 –  

Dept. Cycle Orderly 01 –  01 –  

UWAS Works Aide 07 –  06 –  

Dept. Library Attendent 02 –  01 –  

Contract 

Temporary Scientific Assistant –  01 – -

Program Assistant –  25 – 18

Works Aide –  03 – 01

Total 71 29 53 19
Source: Collected Data, 2019, IHRA 

3.5. LIBRARY
The library of Institute of Human Resource Advancement 
is a key resource to the students who follow the Bachelor 
of Labour Education degree course, Masters Degree 
Course in Human Resource Management, Masters Degree 
course in Business Management, and MSc in Service 
Management (Sinhala & English). It consists of nearly 
6400 books. Institute of Human Resource Advancement 
staff have been provided with library facilities to improve 
their knowledge.

Monthly attendance of members were around 89 per 
month during the year. (138 per month during the last 
year) Monthly circulation of books were around 70. (95 
per month during the last year) When comparing with 
2018, the attendance of the members has decreased by 
35%, as well as the monthly circulation of books by 26% 
in 2019.

The usage of library has drastically dropped due to 
prevailed situation of the country after Easter Sunday 

attack during April to July in 2019. The library was 
closed for two months (September and October) due 
to nonacademic strike in the government Universities 
and the books were not issued in December due to 
automation of Library functions and it directly affected 
the library usage.

Reference
Services

Newspapers

Services

Periodicals

Theses 
Collection

Books

Lending 
Services

Photocopy 
Services

Reading 
Facility

Interlibrary 
 Loan Services

Referral 
Services
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
1.1. REPORTING ENTITY - DOMICILE & LEGAL FORM
Institute of Human Recourse Advancement, University of Colombo is a 
government owned higher educational institute established under the 
Universities Act No 16 of 1978 and Ordinance No. 11 of 1979. The institute 
is located at No. 275, Bauddhaloka Mawatha, Colombo 07. 

1.2. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS
Providing higher education opportunities for employees in both 
government and private sector, in order to make them better contribution 
to their current and future employment requirements.  

1.3. FINANCIAL PERIOD
The financial period of the institute represents twelve months period 
from 01st January, 2019 to 31st December, 2019.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1. BASIS OF PREPARATION
The Financial Statements of the Institute has been prepared on accrual 
basis and under the historical cost convention unless stated otherwise.

2.2. PRESENTATION AND FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY
The Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees (Rs), which 
is the Institute functional and presentation currency and all values are 
rounded to the nearest rupee value.

2.3. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss, and other 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement 
of cash flow, together with accounting policies and notes (“financial 
statements”) of the IHRA have been prepared in conformity with the 
generally acceptable principles and the public sector accounting standards 
introduced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA). 
When there are no public sector accounting standards introduced dealing 
with the transaction and the account balances of the organization, the 
relevant provisions of the Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Standards (SLFRS) 
and Lanka Accounting Standards (LKAS) have been used in respect of 
those balances in preparing and presenting of these financial statements. 
Accounting policies used have been consistent with those used in previous 
financial years.

2.4. RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The management of IHRA is responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements.

2.5. GOING CONCERN
When preparing the financial statements, the management has assessed 
the ability of the Institute to continue as a going concern. The management 

Annual 
Financial 
Statements
2019



131

has a reasonable expectation that the IHRA has adequate resources to continue in operational 
existence for the foreseeable future. IHRA does not foresee a need for liquidation or cessation 
of operations, taking into account all available information about future. Accordingly, the IHRA 
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. 

2.6. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
There were no material events after the reporting date, which require adjustment or disclosure in 
the financial statements. 
      
2.7. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
The comparative figures have been re-arranged where necessary to conform to the current 
presentation.
  
2.8. MATERIALITY AND AGGREGATION
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items or 
functions of dissimilar nature are presented separately unless they are material.

2.9. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
Preparation of the Financial Statements of the Institute requires the management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions which may affect the amounts of income, expenditure, 
assets, liabilities as at the end of the financial year. When applying the accounting policies, the 
key assumptions made relating to the future estimates and other aspects are discussed under the 
summery of significant accounting policies.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1. TAX

a. Income tax
Institute is not liable to pay income tax on its income of the ordinary course of the business 
according to the prevailing tax regulations. 

b. Payee tax
University currently remits payee tax deducted from monthly salaries of the employees who 
are liable for payment of income tax which are not a part of the University expenditure. Hence, 
payment of payee tax is not accounted in the accounts of the University. 

c. Nation Building Tax
Institute currently pay NBT based on the income received from self-financing activities 
according to the Nation Building Tax act, No. 09 of 2009. 

3.2. FIXED ASSETS
Property Plant Equipment 
Property Plant and Equipment of the Institute have been re-valued in the financial year 2017 and 
shown in the financial statements 2017. Property Plant and Equipment of the Institute have been 
re-valued at fair value on the date of revaluation by the Institute with the consultation of the 
University Grants Commission. The net carrying amount of the revaluation of such assets is credited 
directly to the revaluation reserve of the statement of the financial position.

Depreciation
Depreciation is recognized in the statement of financial performance on straight-line basis over 
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the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment. Depreciation of an asset begins when 
it is available for use whereas depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the 
asset is classified as held-for-sale or included in a disposal group and the date that the asset is 
derecognized.   

		  Class of Assets			   Estimated Useful life period
		
		  Buildings	  				    20 years
		  Plant Machinery & Tools	  		  10 years
		  Motor Vehicles	  			   5 years
		  Furniture & Fittings	  			   10 years
		  Office & Other Equipment	  		  5 years
		  Electrical  Items	  			   5 years
		  Library Books & Periodicals	  		  5 years
		  Cloaks	         					     5 years 

3.3. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Institute has invested its unutilised funds that were received as income which temporally on term 
deposits at the State Banks. The interest accrued for same has been adjusted to the respective 
ledger accounts and shown as income in the statements of financial performance. 

3.4. ASSETS IN CONNECTION WITH THE INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
Software
Software purchased by the Institute is recognized as intangible assets according to the SLPSAS 20 
that have been shown as separate assets item. 

3.5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Advances, prepayments and other receivables are stated at the estimated amount as per SLPSAS 
01 that it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date. No provision has been 
made for bad and doubtful receivables. 

3.6. GRATUITY	
The liability recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
and calculated prospectively according to the provision of the gratuity Act No 12 of 1983 at the 
date of statement of financial position.

3.7. UNIVERSITY PROVIDENT FUND AND EMPLOYEES’ TRUST FUND
Employees of the Institute are eligible for University Provident Fund (UPF) contributions and 
Employee Trust Fund (ETF) contributions in line with respective statutes and regulations. The 
Institute contributes defined percentages of (15%) and (3%) on gross emoluments of employees to 
an approved employees’ provident fund and to the employees’ trust fund respectively, which are 
operated externally.

3.8. EXPENDITURE RECOGNITION
Expenses are recognised in the income and expenditure statement on the basis of a direct 
association between the cost incurred and the earning of specific items of income. All expenditure 
incurred in running of the Institute and in maintaining the properties in a state of efficiency has 
been charged to the income and expenditure statement.
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3.9. CURRENT LIABILITIES
Liabilities classified as current liabilities in the statement of financial position are those that fall due 
for payment within one year from the date of the statement of financial position date. All known 
liabilities have been accounted for in preparing the financial statements.  

3.10. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
Creditors and accrued expenses are measured at fair value and normally non- interest- bearing 
liabilities.

3.11. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
No provision has been made in the accounts with regard to liabilities unless arising out of litigation. 
Contingent Liabilities are disclosed according to SLPSAS 08. 

3.12. CAPITAL GRANTS
Capital Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where is reasonable assurance 
that the grants will be received and all affecting conditions will be complied. The capital grant 
received by the Institute are recognised and accounted in the capital accounts via capital spent and 
unspent accounts and the effect of that are directly incorporated with the statement of financial 
position.

3.13. RECURRENT GRANTS
Recurrent Grants are recognized in the statement of financial performance on cash basis.

3.14. RESTRICTED FUNDS
Restricted Funds include funds set aside for specific or committed purpose and the funds are used 
only for that purposes. 
	
3.15. REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the institute and the revenue and the associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably 
measured, regardless of when the payment is received. Revenue is measured at the fair value of 
the consideration received or receivable. 

The following specific criteria are used for the purpose of recognition of revenue.
• Course fees for the academic year are recognized in the period in which the service are rendered 

while balance course fees are differed.
• Fees from students such as Registration fees, Examination fee, Library fees, Convocation fee 

etc. are recognized in cash basis.
• Interest income is recognized as it accrues in income or expenditure using the effective interest 

method.  

3.16. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
The statement of cash flow statement has been prepared using the ‘Indirect Method’ in accordance 
with the SLPSAS 2 on ‘Cash Flow Statement’. Cash and cash equivalent comprise cash in hand and 
cash at bank that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant 
risk of change in value.  
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Note

Cash & Cash Equivalents 04             14,200,040             42,600,104 
Sundry Advances & Receivables                     78,248                     24,467 
Loans to Staff 05               1,613,800               1,358,901 
Festival Advance                       6,250                       6,250 
Prepayments               1,073,309                  898,046 
Interest Receivable             11,176,656               8,470,257 
Deposits (Receivable )                  223,750                  226,750 
Inventories / Stocks               1,888,046               1,530,156 
Asset Held for Sale                               -             30,260,099                  960,000             56,074,931 

Investments 06           389,712,858           316,916,252 
Loans to Staff 5               4,087,179               4,258,419 
Intangible Assets 7                  276,000                  511,212 
Property Plant and Equipment 8             98,191,396           492,267,433             87,662,204           409,348,087 

          522,527,532           465,423,019 

Differed Income 12             99,738,314             93,884,328 
Sundry Payables 09               2,815,932                  791,966 
Accrued Expenses 10               7,299,820               3,703,720 
Deposits  (Payable) 11               4,443,033               2,521,768 
Retention                  766,107           115,063,206                  112,962           101,014,744 

Provision For Audit Fee 13                  784,080               1,527,670 
Retirement Benefits 14             27,872,960             28,657,040             13,900,587             15,428,257 

          143,720,245           116,443,002 
          378,807,287           348,980,017 

Capital Grant Spent           112,940,447           112,940,447             97,264,936             97,264,936 

General Reserve           162,402,659           146,858,380 
Revaluation Reserve             10,431,390             10,431,390 
Gift and Donation                  240,000           173,074,049           157,289,769 

          286,014,496           254,554,705 
Reserves & Restricted Funds

IHRA Development Fund             88,367,628             91,775,570 
Restricted Fund 15               4,425,163             92,792,791               2,649,742             94,425,312 

          378,807,287           348,980,017 

                              - 

Members of the Academic Syndicate of the Institute of Human Resource Advancement, University of Colombo are 

……………………………………… ………………………………………
Mr. D.S.Amarasinghe Ms. K.P.Mathotaarachchi
Member of the Syndycate Member of the Syndycate

The accounting policies and notes as set out under 1 to 21 are integral part of these financial Statements.

D.G.C.N.Bandara

ASSETS

Non -Current Assets

Capital

Current Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Non - Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets / Equity

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  AS AT DECEMBER 31,2019
(Figures Adjusted to the Nearest Rupee)

2018   Rs.2019   Rs.

responsible for preparation and  presentation of these Financial Statements.

……………………………………………………….
Prof.JASK Jayakody
Director

Total Net Assets

Accumulated Fund

Total Net Assets / Equity

I certify that the financial statement comply with the requirements of  the Finance Act. No 38 of 1971

……………………………………………………….

Assistant Bursar 
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Note 2019   Rs. 2018   Rs.

Revenue 

Recurrent Grants 80,000,000        42,500,000        
Amortization of Government  Grants 9,333,429          5,053,522          
Income from Extension Programmes 16 77,234,155        116,528,947      
Other Income 17 47,262,663        43,047,391        
Income from Internal Funds 17,166,624        21,304,295        
Profit from Disposal of Assets 1,552,000          -                          
Total  Revenue 232,548,872      228,434,156      

Expenditure
Personal Emoluments 18 99,476,737        64,232,208        
Other Recurrent Expenditures
Travelling 18 -                          21,764               
Supplies and Consumable 18 6,985,701          5,047,739          
Maintenance 18 2,390,423          3,536,454          
Contractual Service 18 7,765,072          4,980,841          
Recurrent Expenses from Development Fund 17,166,624        21,304,295        
Other Operating Expenses 18 7,243,469          6,589,712          
Depreciation 15,419,348        12,435,846        
Expenditures on Extension Pragrammes 19 61,309,441        80,155,964        
Loss on Disposal of Assets 941,629             793,453             
Total Expenditure 218,698,444      199,098,276      

Net Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year 13,850,428        29,335,880        

Add:
Balance Brought forward 148,552,231      117,522,500      

162,402,659      146,858,380      

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(Figures Adjusted to the Nearest Rupee)
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Description  Capital 
Grants 

 Capital 
Grants from 
Other Funds 

 Gift and 
Donations 

 General 
Reserve 

 Revaluation 
Reserve 

 Development  
fund 

 Training and 
Development  

Funds 

 Research 
Grant Fund 

 Welfare and Social  
Responsibility Fund Total

Balance as at 31st December 2018 97,264,936    -                    146,858,380   10,431,390   91,775,570       622,532      700,737     1,326,474            348,980,017   
Transfers (44,772,390)   44,772,390   300,000      (300,000)    -                       
Contribution for the year 6,000,000      19,673,315   300,000    (22,756,557)      981,032      700,737     1,401,474            6,300,000       
Dipriciation Under provision for 
previous year (3,214)          (3,214)             
Fund received for the year 36,515,239    
Dipriciation over provision for 
previous year 984,856       -                    

-                 -                -                          
984,856          

Amortization under provision (724,375)     724,375       
Amortization for the year (9,273,429)  (60,000)   -                   -                -                    -                 -                -                          (9,333,429)      
Adjustment for the stock account (12,165)        (12,165)           
Recurrent expences (17,166,624)   
Utilized during the year -                 -                   -                -                    (1,142,750)  (53,070)      (112,000)              (1,307,820)      
Surplus / (Deficit) for the period -                 13,850,428   -                -                    -                 -                -                          13,850,428     
Balance as at 31st December 2019 48,494,742    64,445,705   240,000    162,402,659   10,431,390   88,367,628       760,813         1,048,403     2,615,947                 378,807,288   

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY / NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 ST DECEMBER 2019
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2019    Rs. 2018     Rs.
Cash Flows Generated from operating activities

Surplus/Deficit from ordinary Activities 13,850,428             29,335,880            

Non Cash movements/Adjustments
Depreciation 15,419,348             12,435,846            
Provision for Gratuity 18,168,565             884,353                  
Provision for Audit Fee 834,440                  280,000                  
Interest from Investment (38,672,302)            (31,270,563)           
Amortization of Government Grants (9,333,429)              (5,053,522)             
Differed Income -                              (19,518,875)           
Previous  Adjustment to Stock Account (12,165)                   -                              
(Profit ) / Loss of Assets Disposal (610,371)                 793,453                  
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) before working capital changes (355,486)                 (12,113,430)           

Working Capital Changes
(Increase)/Decrease   Sundry Advances (53,781)                   218,332                  
(Increase)/Decrease   Loans to Staff (83,659)                   (1,383,834)             
(Increase)/Decrease   Festival Advances  -                              -                              
(Increase)/Decrease   Prepayments (175,263)                 (531,078)                
(Increase)/Decrease   Interest Receivable -                              -                              
(Increase)/Decrease   Deposits 3,000                      -                              
(Increase)/Decrease   Inventories/Stocks (357,890)                 129,054                  
Increase / (Decrease)   Accrued Expenses 3,596,100               (11,628)                  
Increase / (Decrease)   Deposits (Payable) 1,921,265               398,603                  
Increase / (Decrease)   Retention 653,144                  554,581                  
Increase / (Decrease)   Salary Payable -                              (15,280,616)           
Increase / (Decrease)   Library Deposits -                              -                              
Increase / (Decrease)  Sundry Payables 2,023,966               (347,319)                
Increase / (Decrease)  Differed Income 5,853,986               
Net Cash flows Used in Operating activities after working
capital changes

             13,025,382            (28,367,335)

Payment of Audit Fee (1,578,030)              (527,850)                
Gratuity Payment (4,196,193)              (366,195)                
Net Cash flow Used in Operating activities 7,251,159               (29,261,380)           

Cash Flows from/(Used in ) Investing Activities
Addition to Fixed Assets (25,673,315)            (37,693,250)           
(Deposit) /Withdrawal of Investments (56,000,000)            (9,905,914)             
Interest from Investment 19,169,297             18,508,556            
Sale Proceed from Assets Disposal 2,512,000               
Net Cash Flow  from investing Activities (59,992,018)           (29,090,608)           

Cash Flows from/ (Used in) Financing Activities
Government Grant for Capital 6,300,000               17,400,000            
Used from Unspent Grants-(B/F) -                              (6,303,980)             
Contribution (from) / to Development Fund 19,348,615             29,884,573            
Contribution from General Reserve -                              (1,754,610)             
 Training and Development Fund                (1,142,750)                  (358,500)
 Welfare and Social Responsibility Fund                  (112,000)                    (75,000)
 Research  Fund                    (53,070)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 24,340,795             38,792,483            

Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents (28,400,064)            (19,559,506)           
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 42,600,104             62,159,610            

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14,200,040             42,600,104            

 Statement of Cash Flows For the Year Ended 31st December 2019
(Figures Adjusted to the Nearest Rupee)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 04 - Cash & Cash Equivalents
Description 2019 (Rs) 2018 (Rs)

Cash Book Balance - 086-1-001-3-1189652 8,094                    323,850               
Cash Book Balance - 086-1-001-4-1189680 2,637,434            4,258,401            
Cash Book Balance - 086-1-001-2-1191306 7,199,046            1,317,555            
Cash Book Balance - 086-1-002-3-1189680 800,110               (426,328)             
Cash Book Balance - 086-1-001-4-0010037 1,779,717            (1,251,321)          
Cash Book Balance - 086-1-002-2-1189652 1,424,139            971,033               
Cash Book Balance - 086-1-003-2-1189680 351,500               37,406,915         
Total 14,200,040          42,600,104         

Note 05 - Loans to Staff (Current Assets)
Description 2019 (Rs) 2018 (Rs)

Distress Loan 4,837,666            4,770,886            
Staff Loan 11,050                 17,170                 
Vehicle Loan 523,691               463,868               
Computer Loan 209,000               240,500               
Salary Advance 35,000                 -                           
Flood Relief Advance 119,572               124,896               
Total 5,735,979            5,617,320           

Note 06 - Investments
Description 2019 (Rs) 2018 (Rs)

People's Bank  - Timbirigasyaya 344,214,557        310,574,007       
National Savings Bank - Bambalapitiya 45,498,301          6,342,245            
Total 389,712,858        316,916,252       

Note 07 - Intangible Assets - Software

Description  Geo Informatic 
System 

 Inventory Control 
System 

 Accounting 
System  Fixed Assets Total

Balance as at 01.01.2019              980,000                    531,229           730,056        345,000        2,586,285 
Balance as at 31.12.2019              980,000                    531,229           730,056        345,000        2,586,285 
Less:
Depreciation 
Balance as at 01.01.2019              980,000                    467,294           627,780                     -        2,075,074 
Add:                       - 
Prior Adjustment                       - 
Dep. For the Year                           -                      63,935           102,277           69,000           235,212 
Balance as at 31.12.2019              980,000                    531,229           730,057          69,000        2,310,286 

Net Book Value as at 31.12.2019 -                         -                              -                     276,000       276,000         
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Description   Building  Office 
Equipment  Library Books  Motor 

Vehicles  Name Boards  Cloaks  Furniture  Electric Items  Total 

Balance as at 01.01.2019 64,971,218        23,978,831        4,107,082       7,845,000       262,980         2,560,140         10,885,808       13,160,750        127,771,809     

Purchase 11,416,914        6,928,140          2,011,931          5,316,331           25,673,315       

Cost of the Assets Disposed (706,056)            (143,190)           (359,728)           (1,184,807)         (2,393,781)        

Balance as at 31.12.2019 76,388,132        30,200,914        4,107,082       7,845,000       262,980         2,416,950         12,538,011       17,292,273        151,051,343     

Less:

Depreciation 

Balance as at 01.01.2019 18,514,780        6,160,829          3,782,479       3,643,625       185,177         1,266,868         1,779,648          4,776,199           40,109,604       

Add:

Prior Adjustment (984,856)            (486,816)            139                 3,075             (1,468,457)        

Dep. For the Year 3,388,654           5,394,240          215,546          724,375          19,950           476,381            1,614,859          3,350,130           15,184,136       

Less:

Dep on Assets Revalued -                        

Dep. on Assets Disposed (102,103)           (143,206)           (720,027)            (965,336)           

Balance as at 31.12.2019 20,918,579        11,068,253        3,998,164       4,368,000       208,202         1,641,146         3,251,301          7,406,301           52,859,946       

Net Book Value as at 31.12.2019 55,469,554        19,132,661        108,918          3,477,000      54,778           775,804            9,286,710         9,885,972          98,191,397       

Note 09-  Sundry Payables
Description 2019 (Rs) 2018 (Rs)

Sundry Creditors 1,442,018            -                           
Legal Fees Payable 268,219               268,219               
Tax Payable 250,364               374,293               
Shroff & Bank Error Acct. 838,732               132,085               
Money Received For Payment to Others 7,200                    7,200                   
Stamp Duty Payable 8,475                            75                        
With Holding Tax Payable 925                               10,095                 
Total 2,815,933            791,966               

Note 10 -  Accrued Expenditures
Description 2019 (Rs) 2018 (Rs)

Personal Emoluments 301,264               102,143               
Supplies 58,594                 181,327               
Contractual Service 665,698               250,749               
Examination Payment 15,040                 231,681               
Other Recurrent Expenditure 111,825               1,349                   
Short Course Payment 2,026,599            1,173,262            
Masters Degree Courses Payments 3,435,787            1,518,172            
Diploma Courses Payments 685,013               245,039               
Total 7,299,820            3,703,720           

Note 11 - Deposits (Payable)
Description 2019 (Rs) 2018 (Rs)

Tender Deposit 60,000                 30,000                 
Deposit for Cloaks -                            170,400               
Library Deposit 4,035,000            1,874,400            
Security Deposit for Canteen 25,000                 25,000                 
Cancelled Cheque Deposits 323,033               421,968               
Total 4,443,033            2,521,768           
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Note 09-  Sundry Payables
Description 2019 (Rs) 2018 (Rs)

Sundry Creditors 1,442,018            -                           
Legal Fees Payable 268,219               268,219               
Tax Payable 250,364               374,293               
Shroff & Bank Error Acct. 838,732               132,085               
Money Received For Payment to Others 7,200                    7,200                   
Stamp Duty Payable 8,475                            75                        
With Holding Tax Payable 925                               10,095                 
Total 2,815,933            791,966               

Note 10 -  Accrued Expenditures
Description 2019 (Rs) 2018 (Rs)

Personal Emoluments 301,264               102,143               
Supplies 58,594                 181,327               
Contractual Service 665,698               250,749               
Examination Payment 15,040                 231,681               
Other Recurrent Expenditure 111,825               1,349                   
Short Course Payment 2,026,599            1,173,262            
Masters Degree Courses Payments 3,435,787            1,518,172            
Diploma Courses Payments 685,013               245,039               
Total 7,299,820            3,703,720           

Note 11 - Deposits (Payable)
Description 2019 (Rs) 2018 (Rs)

Tender Deposit 60,000                 30,000                 
Deposit for Cloaks -                            170,400               
Library Deposit 4,035,000            1,874,400            
Security Deposit for Canteen 25,000                 25,000                 
Cancelled Cheque Deposits 323,033               421,968               
Total 4,443,033            2,521,768           

Note 12 - Deferred Income 2019
Amount

Msc.OF GEOINFORMATICS (2016/2017) 1,704,590             
MASTER DEGREE IN BUSINESS MGT NO.05 442,500                
MSC IN SERVIICE MGT- NO.04 (ENGLISH M.) 450,000                
MA.OF HUMAN RESOURSE MGT NO.08 551,830                
MASTER DEGREE IN BUSINESS MGT NO.06 904,250                
MASTERS OF  BUSINESS MANAGEMENT  NO.07 16,519,528           
MASTERS OF HUMAN RESOURSE MGT NO.09 8,821,139             
MASTERS OF DISASTER ANALYSIS,ANAGEMENT 1,220,196             
DIPLOMA COURSE IN TAMIL NO.13 892,003                
CERTIFICATE OF HIGHER COURSE IN TAMIL NO13 87,184                  
MSC IN SERVIICE MGT- NO.05 6,891,480             
DIP.IN COUNSELING PSYCHOLOGY NO.06 606,098                
HIGHER DIP.IN COUNSELING PSYCHOLOGY 2018 936,481                
EXC.DIP.IN HRM NO.07 639,715                
DIP.IN TOURISUM, EVE & HOS. MGT.2018 2,710,158             
CERTIFICATE COURSE IN ENGLISH NO.39 14,358,672           
CERT.CO.IN ENGLISH FOR TEACHERS NO:17 405,615                
DIP.IN DRUGS ABUSE MGT STUDIES  2018 1,122,328             
MASTERS OF  BUSINESS MANAGEMENT  NO.08 8,266,611             
MASTERS OF HUMAN RESOURSE MGT NO.10 5,363,047             
CERT.CO.IN SPOKEN ENGLISH NO.08 3,696,357             
SHORT  COURSE IN  COMPUTER APPLICATIONS FOR B 1,500                    
DIPLOMA COURSE IN TAMIL NO.14  (HIGHER) 1,518,000             
MSC IN SERVIICE MGT- NO.06 2,969,008             
CERTIFICATE COURSE IN COMPUTER APPLICATION. NO.11 10,176,475           
SHORT COURSE IN ENGLISH FOR SCHOOL LEAVERS NO.21 574,400                
SHORT COURSE IN ENGLISH FOR SCHOOL LEAVERS NO.22 590,850                
SHORT COURSE IN ENGLISH FOR SCHOOL LEAVERS NO.23 513,700                
SHORT COURSE IN ENGLISH FOR SCHOOL LEAVERS NO.24 670,800                
DIP.IN COUNSELING PSYCHOLOGY NO.07 2,165,000             
HIGHER DIP.IN COUNSELING PSYCHOLOGY 2019 1,620,000             
DIPLOMA COURSE IN TAMIL NO.15  (BASIC) 234,000                
SHORT COURSE IN ENGLISH FOR SCHOOL LEAVERS NO.25 1,048,800             
SHORT COURSE IN ENGLISH FOR SCHOOL LEAVERS NO.26 1,003,200             
MSc IN DISASTER ANALYSIS,MANAGEMENT & MITIGATION 2,000                    
SHORT COURSE IN ENGLISH FOR SCHOOL LEAVERS NO.27 60,800                  

99,738,314          
Differed income has been categorized under current liabilities from 2019 onwards hence 
the current part of the liabilities is material.

Total

Description
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Note 12 - Deferred Income 2019
Amount
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MSC IN SERVIICE MGT- NO.04 (ENGLISH M.) 450,000                
MA.OF HUMAN RESOURSE MGT NO.08 551,830                
MASTER DEGREE IN BUSINESS MGT NO.06 904,250                
MASTERS OF  BUSINESS MANAGEMENT  NO.07 16,519,528           
MASTERS OF HUMAN RESOURSE MGT NO.09 8,821,139             
MASTERS OF DISASTER ANALYSIS,ANAGEMENT 1,220,196             
DIPLOMA COURSE IN TAMIL NO.13 892,003                
CERTIFICATE OF HIGHER COURSE IN TAMIL NO13 87,184                  
MSC IN SERVIICE MGT- NO.05 6,891,480             
DIP.IN COUNSELING PSYCHOLOGY NO.06 606,098                
HIGHER DIP.IN COUNSELING PSYCHOLOGY 2018 936,481                
EXC.DIP.IN HRM NO.07 639,715                
DIP.IN TOURISUM, EVE & HOS. MGT.2018 2,710,158             
CERTIFICATE COURSE IN ENGLISH NO.39 14,358,672           
CERT.CO.IN ENGLISH FOR TEACHERS NO:17 405,615                
DIP.IN DRUGS ABUSE MGT STUDIES  2018 1,122,328             
MASTERS OF  BUSINESS MANAGEMENT  NO.08 8,266,611             
MASTERS OF HUMAN RESOURSE MGT NO.10 5,363,047             
CERT.CO.IN SPOKEN ENGLISH NO.08 3,696,357             
SHORT  COURSE IN  COMPUTER APPLICATIONS FOR B 1,500                    
DIPLOMA COURSE IN TAMIL NO.14  (HIGHER) 1,518,000             
MSC IN SERVIICE MGT- NO.06 2,969,008             
CERTIFICATE COURSE IN COMPUTER APPLICATION. NO.11 10,176,475           
SHORT COURSE IN ENGLISH FOR SCHOOL LEAVERS NO.21 574,400                
SHORT COURSE IN ENGLISH FOR SCHOOL LEAVERS NO.22 590,850                
SHORT COURSE IN ENGLISH FOR SCHOOL LEAVERS NO.23 513,700                
SHORT COURSE IN ENGLISH FOR SCHOOL LEAVERS NO.24 670,800                
DIP.IN COUNSELING PSYCHOLOGY NO.07 2,165,000             
HIGHER DIP.IN COUNSELING PSYCHOLOGY 2019 1,620,000             
DIPLOMA COURSE IN TAMIL NO.15  (BASIC) 234,000                
SHORT COURSE IN ENGLISH FOR SCHOOL LEAVERS NO.25 1,048,800             
SHORT COURSE IN ENGLISH FOR SCHOOL LEAVERS NO.26 1,003,200             
MSc IN DISASTER ANALYSIS,MANAGEMENT & MITIGATION 2,000                    
SHORT COURSE IN ENGLISH FOR SCHOOL LEAVERS NO.27 60,800                  

99,738,314          
Differed income has been categorized under current liabilities from 2019 onwards hence 
the current part of the liabilities is material.

Total

Description

Note 13 - Provision for Audit Fees
Amount

01.01.2019 1,527,670          
(1,578,030)         

834,440             
31.12.2019 784,080             

Note 14 - Retirement Benefits (Provision for Gratuity)

Academic  Non Academic Total

01.01.2019 Opening Balance 4,617,710             9,282,877          13,900,587       

Payment During the year (4,196,193)           -                          (4,196,193)        

Provision For the year 9,558,598             8,609,968          18,168,565       

31.12.2019 Closing Balance 9,980,115            17,892,845        27,872,960       

Note 15 - Restricted Funds

Amount

Training and Development Fund 760,813             
Research Grant Fund 1,048,403          
Welfare and Social Responsibility Fund 2,615,947          

4,425,163          

Description

Total

Provision For the year
Closing Balance

Description

Description
Opening Balance
Payment During the year

Note 16 - Statement of Income From Extention Program 2019
Description Amount

Application Fee 1,946,300                       
Course Fees 63,403,855                     
Registration Fees 4,850,000                       
Examination Fee 4,611,500                       
Library Fee 1,141,000                       
Other Income 1,281,500                       

Total 77,234,155                    

Note 17 - Statement of Other Income  - 2019
Description Amount

REGISTRATION FEES UNDER-GRADUATES 2,407,000                       
EXAMINATION FEES (UNDER GRADUATE) 15,300                            
INTREST FROM LOANS & ADVANCES 245,766                          
INTEREST FROM SHORT TERM DEPOSIT 38,672,302                     
RENT FORM PROPERTIES A/C 62,500                            
TENDER FEES 34,000                            
LIBRARY FINES 3,626                              
MISCELLANEOUS RECEIPTS 3,240,644                       
CHARGES FOR USING IT FACILITIES 964,000                          
HIRING OF CLOAKS 362,525                          
CONVERCATION 1,255,000                       

Total 47,262,663                    
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Note 18 - Statement of Expenditure - 2019
Amount Total

PERSONEL EMOLUMENTS (ACADEMIC)
SALARIES & WAGES 9,521,108                       
E.P.F 2,488,775                       
PENSION 1,155,963                       
E.T.F 766,243                           
ACADAMIC ALLOWANCES 14,170,185                     
VISITING LECTURE FEES 797,908                           
GRATUITY 9,558,598                       
COST OF LIVING ALLOWANCE 908,826                           
RESEARCH ALLOWANCE 3,094,072                       
SPECIAL  ALLOWANCE 20% 1,822,114                       

PERSONEL EMOLUMENTS (NON ACADEMIC)
SALARIES & WAGES 20,210,807                     
E.P.F 2,913,940                       
PENSION 2,140,019                       
E.T.F 973,813                           
INTERIM ALLOWANCES 565,053                           
M.C.A 8,690,174                       
OTHER ALLOWANCES 60,000                             
GRATUITY 8,609,968                       
COST OF LIVING ALLOWANCE 4,113,724                       
ARREARS-M.C.A 272,615                           
RESEARCH ALLOWANCE 682,697                           
SPECIAL  ALLOWANCE 20% 3,986,196                       
OVER TIME 1,973,938                       99,476,737        

SUPPLIES,
STATIONERY & OFFICE REQUISITES 3,988,342                       
FUEL & LUBRICANS 1,108,774                       
UNIFORM & TAILORING CHAGES 73,405                             
OTHER SUPPLIES 1,815,180                       6,985,701           

MAINTANANCE
VEHICLES 492,047                           
PLANT,MECHINARY & EQUIPMENT 747,100                           
BUILDING & STRUCTURE 863,750                           
OTHERS 287,525                           2,390,423           

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
TRANSPORT 33,462                             
TELECOMMUNICATION 1,558,991                       
POSTAL CHAGES 205,500                           
ELECRICITY 2,292,421                       
SECURITY SERVICE 1,165,518                       
WATER 88,047                             
CLEANING SERVICE 852,463                           
RENTS & HIRE CHAGES 155,479                           
RATES & TAX TO LOCAL AUTHORITI 498,960                           
PRINTING,ADVERTISING ECT 914,232                           7,765,072           

OTHER RECURRENT EXPENSES
SPECIAL SERVICE-COUNCIL & COMMITTEE 837,370                           
STAFF DEVELOPMENT 28,000                             
HOLIDAY WARRANTS & SEASON TICKET 195,430                           
ENTERTAINMENT EXPENSES 759,117                           
CONVACATION 344,660                           
EXAMINATION EXPENSES 1,622,227                       
OTHER EXP.NEWS PAPERS,MAG 2,541,921                       
WELFERE INSURANCE 877,053                           
INTEREST SUB.ON PROP.LOAN 37,692                             7,243,469           

DEPRECIATION A/C - LANDS & BUILDINGS
LANDS & BUILDINGS 3,388,654                       
OFFICE EQUIPMENT 5,394,240                       
LIBRARY BOOKS & PERIO 215,546                           
MOTOR VEHICLES 724,375                           
NAME BOARD 19,950                             
CLOARKS 476,381                           
FURNITURE 1,614,859                       
ELECTRICAL ITEMS 3,350,130                       
SOFTWARE 235,212                           15,419,348        

139,280,749      Total

Description



143

Note 19 - Statement of Expenditures  on Extention Programmes - 2019
Description Amount

Initial Expenditures 4,924,364                  

Selection Expenditures 1,086,705                  

Inauguration Ceremony Expenditures 1,180,107                  

Teaching Expenditures 27,237,055               

Examination Expenditures 6,347,324                  

Course Management 15,528,440               

Supplies and Overheads 1,935,808                  

Development Fund 181,080                     

Contingencies 2,888,558                  

Total 61,309,441               

Note 20 - Contingent Liabilities
Disclosure
Case No. 08/177/2017
Case has been filed against the institute by UMP. Liyanage at the labour  tribunal

Note 21 - Related party disclosures
According to SLPSAS 14 - ‘Related party disclosure; key management personal are those 
having authority and responsibility  for  planning, directing, and  controlling the  activities of 
the entity.  Accordingly  Syndicate members have been classified as  Key Management 
Personal (KMP) of the Institute.  There were no transactions with KMP during the year.

Note 20 - Contingent Liabilities

Disclosure
Case No. 08/177/2017
Case has been filed against the institute by VMP. Liyanage at the labour  tribunal

Note 21 - Related party disclosures
According to SLPSAS 14- ‘Related party disclosure; key management personal are those having authority 
and responsibility  for  planning, directing, and  controlling the  activities of the entity. Accordingly  Syndicate 
members have been classified as Key Management Personal (KMP) of the Institute.  There were no 
transactions with KMP during the year.
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1. Introduction
The Institute of Human Resource Advancement, which inherits a 
history of nearly four decades, was established under the Ordinance 
No. 11 of 1979 as the Institute of Workers Education and subsequently 
amended by the Ordinance No. 01 of 2006. In 2006, the Institute of 
Workers Education was renamed as Institute of Human Resource 
Advancement (IHRA). The IHRA is one of the institutes that belong 
to University of Colombo, the oldest university in the country. Being 
an institute which comes under the purview of the University of 
Colombo, its academic activities are subject to intense supervision 
of the University of Colombo.  Similar to that every Higher Academic 
Institution should maintain, IHRA is also committed to maintain 
high standards in its academic activities and to further uphold good 
practices. 

Being an academic institution affiliated to a state university, the 
Institute of Human Resource Advancement in working towards the 
achievement of goals and targets through the process of formulating 
the Corporate Plan with the Action Plans for the period 2018 – 2022. 
2019 action plan has been designed considering goals, abjectives and 
strategies of the Institute. These goals and objectives are aligned with 
the sustainable development goals as specified in the United Nations 
Agenda 2030 similar to any other State Institution.

The IHRA developed nine (9) goals focusing on quality education, 
strengthening of research facilities and improving ties with forign 
universities. 

Of the sustainable development goals, we as an academic institution 
have mainly focused on quality education, environment protection, 
health and sanitation when formulation of the corporate plan of the 
Institute of Human Resource Advancement for the period 2018-2022.

Accordingly, we present the Future Projection Report, based on 
sustainable development which may include details of activities to 
safeguard the environment and mitigate any negative impact on the 
environment and where necessary include environment and disaster 
impact assessment analysis which has been enforced by the action 
plan of the institution in the previous year 2019.

2. The Institutional Goals as per the Corporate Plan 2018-2022 of 
the Institute of Human Resource Advancement

Future 
Projection 
Report based 
on Sustainable 
Development 
in terms of 
Section 17 (d) 
in Part III of the 
National Audit 
Act, No. 19 of 
2018 - 2019

Of the above objectives specified in the Action Plan - 2019, strategies pertinent to 

Objec�ve 01 - widen par�cipa�on and Equal access to higher educa�on

Objec�ve 02 - Improvement of quality aspects and relevance of educa�onal programmes 

Objec�ve 03 - Strengthening of research, innova�on and entrepreneurship 

Objec�ve 04 - Increase strategic partnerships in socio-economic development 

Objec�ve 05 - Increase interna�onal coopera�on and compe��veness 

Objec�ve 06 - Stakeholders' sa�sfac�on through improvement of physical and  
aesthe�c environment 

Objec�ve 07 - Upgrading the administra�ve system and process

Objec�ve 08 - Improvement of financial management and sustainability

Objec�ve 09 - Widening the good governance
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Of the above objectives specified in the Action Plan - 2019, strategies pertinent to three objectives 
have focused on the activities to safeguard the environment and mitigate any negative impact on 
the environment. They are as follows: 

Objective 03 	 - Strengthening of research, innovation and entrepreneurship. 
Objective 06 		  - Stakeholders’ satisfaction through improvement of physical and aesthetic     
                                      environment.  
Objective 07 	 - Upgrading of administrative system and process.

In the year 2019, action has been taken to enhance the awareness about the sustainability 
development goals of the staff members of the Institute. As a result of that, it has been conducted 
an Awareness Workshop on Sustainability Development Goals for all staff members of the institute. 
The workshop was held on 23rd January 2020 at the IHRA Auditorium. The guest lecturer of the 
programme was Prof.  Vishalachchi Balakrishnan who is a Senior Lecturer at the Faculty of Education, 
University of Malaya, Malaysia.  

3. Strengthening of research, innovation and entrepreneurship
In order to accomplish the objective of strengthening the research, innovation and entreneurship, 
during the year 2019 plans were set off to realize the two goals i.e. promoting research culture 
among scholars and students and improvement of infrastructure facilities towards research and 
development through 09 Key Performance Indicators. 
The progress is as follows;
	

STATERGY ACTION KPI PROGRESS
Improve the quality 
of student research

Providing guidance and sup-
port for research

No. of supportive sessions 
conducted

• It has been conducted 2 
supportive sessions for the 
BLE students. 
• Successfully conducted 
SPSS workshop for M.Sc. 
in Service Management 
- 2018 batch and Guided 
students to write research 
articles and 13 articles 
were presented at the 2nd 
workshop  
• Conducted thesis writing 
day for MSc in Service 
Management - 2018 batch.

Of the above objectives specified in the Action Plan - 2019, strategies pertinent to 

Objec�ve 01 - widen par�cipa�on and Equal access to higher educa�on

Objec�ve 02 - Improvement of quality aspects and relevance of educa�onal programmes 

Objec�ve 03 - Strengthening of research, innova�on and entrepreneurship 

Objec�ve 04 - Increase strategic partnerships in socio-economic development 

Objec�ve 05 - Increase interna�onal coopera�on and compe��veness 

Objec�ve 06 - Stakeholders' sa�sfac�on through improvement of physical and  
aesthe�c environment 

Objec�ve 07 - Upgrading the administra�ve system and process

Objec�ve 08 - Improvement of financial management and sustainability

Objec�ve 09 - Widening the good governance
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Percentage of students’ 
access to research cen-
ter

• Establishment of the 
Research Center is in 
progress.

Conducting  one to one 
session

No. of contact sessions 
for Thesis per student

• According to the thesis 
guideline, it should need 
to be conducted at least 
10 sessions with the 
supervisor. Otherwise, 
the supervisor won’t 
allow submitting their 
Thesis.  Accordingly, 
246 students were 
submitted their thesis 
on-time.

Conducting student 
awareness programmes 
on e-resources/ 
use of productivity 
enhancement tool

No. of programmes 
conducted

• Successfully conducted 
2 student awareness 
programmes for 
the BLE - Part I and 
Diploma in Labour 
Education students. 
The programmes were 
held on 09/ 09/ 2019 
and 11/10/2019 at the 
IHRA Library premises. 
Number of 116 students 
were participated for 
this programmes.

Launch Masters (with 
Research) Programme

Conducting masters with 
research

No. of Programmes 
introduced

• After obtained 
approval from the 
Council of the University 
of Colombo, applications 
have been submitted to 
the UGC for approval.

Develop policy 
framework for research

Incorporating  research/ 
project reports as an 
essential part of the 
Bachelors and Masters 
programmes curriculum

No. of Programmes 
Project Reports/Thesis

• Actions have been 
taken to incorporating 
research/ project 
reports as an 
essential part of the 
Bachelor’s and Masters 
Programmes curriculum. 
Now its awaiting 
approval from the UGC.

Develop policy 
framework for research

Encouraging research 
by providing resources 
and incentives for 
staff to publish/attend 
conference/joint 
research with foreign 
faculty

Amount of research 
grants allocated per year

• A total of Rs. 25,000/- 
has been utilized for a 
lecturer

Ensuring wider 
dissemination of 
research output

No. of articles publish in 
refereed journals

• It has been published 
11 refereed journals by 
4 lecturers.
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Publishing IHRA Journal No. of  volumes 
published per year

• Successfully published 
1 journal for the year 
2019.

The below mentioned three strategies were implemented to reach the goal of improvement of 
infrastructure facilities towards research and development in view of mitigating the negative 
impacts to the environment in terms of sustainable development goals, efficient use of resources 
and use of clean and environmental friendly technology. 
	 • Development of electronic storage system for research theses.
	 • Improvement of e-storage and e-facilities towards providing library facilities
	 • Automation of libraries 

The progress of the above activities are as follows;
STATERGY ACTION KPI PROGRESS

Improve e-resource 
facilities including 
e-repository

Developing 
E- resource System

E-Resource 
system

It has been completed tasks as; planning 
and organization of Digitizing the library 
materials containing the sub-activities Get 
the recommendation of proposal from 
TEC and PC, Get the approval of Academic 
Syndicate, Signing the agreement with the 
selected supplier, Identifying the physical 
resources with consultant of selected 
company, request for the physical resources, 
received the physical resources, Adjusted a 
library space suitable for the task.

Automation of 
library

Developing library 
automation system

Library 
automated 
system

After received the physical resources, 
adjusted a library space suitable for the task, 
installed ‘Barcode maker’ software, Trained 
the library staff, identified the information 
to be displayed on barcode labels, enter 
barcode – get print outs and stick them on 
library materials are in progress.

Establish an 
excellent digital 
collection mainly 
journals

Developing digital 
collection of 
journals

No. of 
journals

Having access to 08 databases and 
purchasing 04 laptops.

Provide reader 
friendly environment 
with in library	

Launching 
reader friendly 
environment

Reader 
satisfaction 
ratio

Out of the sub activities targeting to Launch 
user friendly environment Collection 
management and Providing access to 
E-resources completed.

			 
Further, the old books, magazines and research theses of the library of the IHRA which had over 
20,000 books were subject to the e-storage process, thereby said items were removed from 
the institutional premises and the books in a usable condition were distributed among schools, 
educational institutions etc. upon their requests for reuse. The same procedure was adapted in 
respect of the furniture items in the library and made available for reuse purposes. 

4. Stakeholders’ satisfaction through improvement of physical and aesthetic environment
IHRA has taken several steps in the year 2019 in view of realizing stakeholders’ satisfaction through 
improvement of physical and aesthetic environment. Of the steps taken, the following strategies in 
the Action Plan 2019 were of significant importance.
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	 • Expanding the existing building facilities
	 • Making an environmentally friendly surroundings 
	 • Improvement of health and sanitary conditions

During 2019, upgrading of facilities and restructuring of organization structure were implemented 
as a new extension to the IHRA. As a result, large quantities of items were dispatched from the 
premises to authorized parties in terms of the Establishment Code for reuse purposes. Through 
such planned disposals, the IHRA had been able to mitigate potential environmental impacts to 
minimum possible levels.
 
The institution had taken initiatives towards making environmentally friendly surroundings and 
one of the actions taken was to minimize the use of plastic and polythene in the institutional 
premises.  To this effect, the staff was continuously made aware to bring food in containers instead 
of using polythene sheets. One of the impressive attempts in practical terms in this endeavour was 
to provide each employee with a lunch carrying box free of charge in collaboration with the IHRA 
Welfare Society. 

Further, action was taken to provide new type of water bottles which can be used for longer terms 
instead of plastic water bottles which had so far been used to provide drinking water to the lecturers. 
In order to minimize the harmful effects during printing work carried out in the premises, incentives 
encouraging self-control have been introduced. In large scale printing works, action was taken to 
undertake such work under the supervision of the executive staff as well. 

The electricity usage system which had been used so far was renovated and a methodology has 
been introduced to purchase electricity saving equipment when purchasing electrical bulbs, air 
conditioners etc. Action was taken to make the staff aware on minimizing electricity consumption 
and they were encouraged as well towards the said purpose. 

Action was taken to use water dispensers with filtered water to minimize wastage of drinking water 
and encourage the staff towards proper water consumption as well. 
 
One of the important initiatives adapted by the institute to enhance the health and sanitary 
conditions was to provide the staff members and students with clean drinking water. 

During the institutional restructuring process, a toilet system was constructed. The new toilet 
system built with latest equipment has been useful towards enhancing the qualitative aspects of 
sanitary conditions of the staff members. Thus, it has been useful with respect to efficient service 
as well as healthy life style. This initiative has been furthered by supplying serviettes, hand wash 
liquids etc. to enhance sanitary conditions. 

A methodology has been introduced to segregate waste materials in an appropriate manner prior 
to its disposal in view of further ensuring health and sanitary concerns. Accordingly, the employees 
have been made aware on separating waste into degradable and non-degradable materials when 
disposing waste items. 

5. Upgrading of administrative system and process
Steps have been taken to upgrade administrative system and its process towards sustainable 
development. It has been planned to utilize administrative, examinations, student learning 
management systems. Whilst the student learning management system is currently being utilized 
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successfully, arrangements have been made to utilize administrative and examinations systems 
also. It will be conducive in terms of minimizing paper use and towards handling the office space. 
The progress of the activities are as follows;

STATERGY ACTION KPI PROGRESS
Introduce 
online student 
enrolment system 
with payment 
gateway	

Launching e-student 
registration system 
and payment 
gateway

Percentage of 
completion

Called procurement and progress 
at the TEC committee level.

Introduce e-student 
response system 
to prospective 
students and other 
interested parties.

Launching 
e-response 
system	

Percentage of 
completion

Successfully implemented.

Introduce 
computerized 
examination 
information system

Launching 
examination 
information system

Percentage of 
completion

Implementation is in progress. 
Exam applications are receiving 
on-line and processed on-line.

Establish 
information system 
for administrative 
functions such as 
inventory, fixed 
assets registry and 
human resource 
systems

Launching 
administrative 
information system

Percentage 
of 
completion

•	 Implementation is in progress.
•	 Completed computerization of 

Fixed Assets Register.
•	 Divisional inventory reports 

were completed.
•	 Job Description for all Division, 

Units Completed.
•	 Regularized TEC and DPC 

meetings and procedures.
Conducting training 
programmes for 
administrative/non- 
academic staff

No. of staff 
members 
participated

It has been conducted nearly 6 
workshops successfully this year.

6. Review
The goals specified in the corporate plan of IHRA is based on creating high calibre group of human 
resource as “knowledge-work groups” towards making an influential contribution to “knowledge 
economy” of Sri Lanka by means of quality education. IHRA strives hard in its way to take all 
actions towards its responsibility on providing education to all, being a primary goal of sustainable 
development goals enabling gradual progress in its attempts through the corporate plan and the 
action plan.  In its way towards accomplishing the said goals, the IHRA, as an academic institute for 
the betterment of the country indeed, endeavoured to present this report based on sustainable 
development which includes details on safeguarding the environment and negative impacts 
towards environment and also where necessary inclusive of environment and disaster impact 
evaluations.    	
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Director, 

Institute of Human Resource Advancement, 

 

 

Report of the Auditor General in term of para 12 of the National Audit Act no 19 of 2018 a Financial 
Statement and other Legal and Regulatory Requirement of the Institute of Human Resource 
Advancement affiliated to University of Colombo for the year ended 31st December 2019. 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

 

1. Financial Statements 
 

1.1 Qualified Opinion 

The Financial statement of the Institute of Human Resource Advancement attached to University of 

Colombo, for the year ending 31st December 2019, comprising Financial status Statement up to 31st 

December 2019 and Financial performance Statement, Change of ownership statement, cashflow 

statement for the year ending and that date and summary note and important accounting principles 

were Auditor under any direction in terms of the clause 154(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic 

Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka and National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018, read with the rules 17 of the 1st 

rule of the Institute of Human Resource Advancement No 01 of 2003 made under sub section 107(5) 

and section 18 of University Act, No. 16 of 1978 and sub section 108(1) of the University Act, the report 

will be presented in Parliament in due course in term of clause 154(6) of the Constitution. I am of the 

opinion that the Financial station of the Institute as at 31st December 2019 and its Financial operations 

and cash flows for the year ending that date and in conformity with Accounting Standards in the Sri 

Lanka public sector and present a true and fair Position, subject to the effect explained under basis 

for qualified opinion in my report. 

 

1.2 Basis for Qualified Opinion  

(a) Non moveable assets totally Rs. 8,048,226 used by the Institute had been depreciated in total 

in term of para 65 of Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard 7, but action had not been 

taken to review the remaining value and the effective life period of such assets accurately. 

 
(b) Annual allocation for annual gratuity had been amounted in excess of Rs. 1,481,462 due to 

monthly lieu allowances been not adjusted in the determination of employee gratuity in term 

of University Grant Commission Circular No 5/2019 of June 2019. 
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(c) A total sum of Rs. 3,422,067 payables for 2 construction contractors and 2 building renovation 

work completed in 2019 had not been accounted.   
 

1.3 Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements  

It is the responsibility of the Management to put in place internal controls to enable the Financial 

statements to be prepared in accordance with public sector Accounting Standard are presented 

fairly and devoid of quantitively incorrect Statements resulting from frauds or mistakes. 

Which it is the responsibility of the management to determine the sustainability of the Institute 

when preparing the financial statements unless the management instead to liquid are the 

Institute or to stop the operations when there is no other alternative, it in the responsibility of 

the management to carry out accounting and the basic of continuity of the Institute and reveal 

facts relating to the sustainability of the Institute. 

The responsibility with regard to the Institutes financial reporting process lies with the governing 

parties. 

In term of the sub section 16(1) of the National Audit Act no 19 of 2018 books and reports with 

regard to its income, expenditure, assets and liabilities should be duly maintained to enable 

preparations of the Institutes and annual and periodical financial statement in accordance with 

subsection 16 (1) of the National Audit Act no 19 of 2018. 

 

1.4 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
My aim is to give a reasonable assurance that the financial statement as a whole, and fee of 

quantitative inaccurate statements resulting from frauds and mistakes reasonable assurance 

is a high-level assurance but in carrying out the audit in accordance with Sri Lankan. Audit 

standards it is not and assurance that quantitative mis-statements an uncertainty due to the 

impact of frauds and mistakes individually or jointly. Quantitative misstatement can arise and 

it is expected that they can impact on the economic decision taken by users on the basis of 

these financial statements. 

 
The Audit was carried out by me with professional judgment and professional reservations 

in accordance with Sri Lanka Audit standard. 
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 My opinion is based an obtaining sufficient and appreciate audit evidence to avoid the risks 

resulting from frauds and mistakes, by planning audit procedures appropriate for the Sri 

Lankan in identifying and assuming Quantitative in accurate statement that can occur in 

financial statements due to fraud or mistake. The impact caused by fraud is greater than 

impact caused by quantitative inaccurate Statements and miscommunication, forgery, 

intentional avoidance or absence of internal control pave the way of fraud. 

  
 An understanding was obtained about the internal control of the institute in order to plan 

audit procedure appropriate for the occasion, but it is not intended to express an opinion 

about the effectiveness of the internal controls. 

 

 The justifiability of the accounting policies and accounting entries and the appropriateness 

of the relevant revalidation made by the management were evaluated.  

 

 It was decided to use the basis of the Institute continues existence for accounting based on 

evidence obtained on whether there is a quantitative uncertainty about the continued 

existence due events and situations if I conclude that there is sufficient uncertainty, attention 

should be paid to the revalidation in my audit report regarding the financial statements. If 

these revalidations are found not to be sufficient my opinion should be declaimed. However, 

the continuous existence can come to an end depending on future events or situation.   

 

 The presentation, structure and contents of financial statements relevant to revalidation 

were evaluated and the transaction and concerns were evaluated to see whether they were 

appropriately and fairly included in the financial statements. 

          The governing parting were made aware of the important audit findings in my audit, main 
internal control weaknesses and other facts.   

 

2. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements. 
 

National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 contains special provisions about the following requirements. 
 

- As required in section 12 (a) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018. I have obtained all 

information and explanation, except the impact of the factor explained under basis for the 

qualified opinion in my report and on revealed in my investigation the Institute had maintained 

proper Financial reports.  
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- As required in section 6(1) (C) (iv) of the National Audit Act the financial statements of the 

Institute are comparable to the previous year.   

- As required in section 6 (1) (C) (iii) of the National Audit Act No 19 of 2018 the recommendation 

made by me in the previous year have been included in the financial statements. 

Nothing requiring the following statements received my attention within the limitations of adopted, 

evidence obtained and quantification facts.   

 As required under section 12 (d) of the National Audit Act, any member of the governing board of 

the Institute has any interest under any agreement with the Institute directory or in any other way 

outside the general business situation. 

 As required in section 12 (f) of the National Audit Act No 19 of 2018, subject to the following 

observation, the Institute has not acted in violation of a relevant written law on any other general 

or special directive issued by the governing board of the Institute.  

 
Reference to Laws, Rules/Regulations    Description 

(a)Financial Regulations of the Democratic 
     Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka. 
 
         (i) Financial Regulation 371 Although provisional Imprest should be 

settled immediately after completing the 
relevant task in 46 instances, then has been 
a delay between 30 days and 180 days to 
settle advancement totally Rs. 4,789,867/- 

 
         (ii) Financial Regulation 1646 Daily running charts were not produced for 

audit in 2019. 
 
 

(b) Sec 7 chap ix of the    Overtime payments should be made on the       
University Establishment code. Employee’s basic salary, but in    the first half 

of the year 2019 overtime payments has 
been made Rs. 140,977 in excess on specific 
rates determined by the Institute, contrary 
to this provision 

 
(c)  Public financial circular 

No 03/2015 dated 14 July 2015 An advance payment of Rs. 152,280 has been 
made exceeding the maximum limit of Rs. 
100,000 for advances. 
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 As required in section 12(g) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 that the Institute has acted 
contrary to its power, function and activities. 
 

 As required in section (h) of the National Audit Act, that the Institute has not procured and used 
the Institution resources sparingly, efficiently and productively within the time limits. 

 
 
 

 
3. Other Audit Observations 

 
 

(a) Although it had been recommended to dispose of 11 items valued at Rs. 138,887 in the 

store verification report in 2018, no action had been taken until Board of Survey 2019 to 

dispose these items. Also, no action had been taken to carry out proper preliminary 

investigation on the loss of laptop computer in 2014 and report the loss in the account and 

recover the loss. 

 

 
(b) In 2019 the Institute had conducted 28 different programmes such as Undergraduate, 

Postgraduate, Diploma and Certificate programmes under 05 categories, students had not 

registered for 13 such programmes. Also, Student’s registration for 04 programmes had 

decreased compared to the previous year. 

 
 

(c) No action had been taken up to 31st December of the year under review to recover                 

Rs. 4,710,900 due from the transport and Civil Aviation Ministry for providing consultancy 

services for the National Railway Network project in 2015. 

 

 

WPC Wickramarathna 
Auditor General 
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Report of the Auditor General in term of para 12 of the National Audit Act no 19 of 2018 a Financial Statement and other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirement of the Institute of Human Resource Advancement affiliated to University of Colombo for the year ended 31st December 2019. 

Effects on the Financial statements Observations of the Auditor 
General 

Answers Submitted Steps taken by the year 
2019, Present Status 
and Improvements 

a)

Financial Statements 

Basis for Qualified 
Opinion 

 
Non moveable assets totally Rs. 
8,048,226 used by the Institute had 
been depreciated in total in term of 
para 65 of Sri Lanka public sector 
Accounting Standard 7, but action 
had not been taken to review the 
remaining value and the effective 
life period of such assets 
accurately. 

 
With regard to the fixed assets used by the 
Institute as at 31/12/2019 the remaining 
value and the useful life period of furniture, 
office equipment and electrical appliances 
from among the fully depreciated which 
were reviewed and submitted to the 
Academic syndicate in February 2020. 
Accordingly, fixed assets with useful life 
period left have been entered in the fixed 
assets register by now. 

The action has taken to 
produce in accounts by 
reviewing the residual 
value and disposable 
lifespan of all assets 
related to 2020. 

b  

Annual allocation for annual 
gratuity had been amounted in 
excess of Rs. 1,481,462 due to 
monthly lieu allowances been not 
adjusted in the determination of 
employee gratuity in term of 

 

Action will be taken to correct this in the next 
financial year. 

 

The action has taken to 
add the accurate value 
for the accounts in 2020. 
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University Grant Commission 
Circular No 5/2019 of June 2019. 

c
 

A total sum of Rs. 3,422,067 
payables for 2 construction 
contractors and 2 building 
renovation work completed in 2019 
had not been accounted.   

 

Although the invoice relating to their 
expenditures were dated in 2019 the 
relevant goods and services were received by 
the Institute in 2020 according to GRN date. 
Therefore, they have been included in the 
accounts as an expenditure incurred in 2020. 

 

The action has taken to 
produce in accounts of 
all the accumulated 
expenditures. 

2.

(a)

Report on Other 
Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements. 

Reference to Laws, 
Rules/Regulations  

Financial Regulations 
of the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri 
Lanka. 

Financial Regulation 
371

 
 
 
 
 

Although provisional imprest 
should be settled immediately after 
completing the relevant task in 46 
instances, then has been a delay 
between 30 days and 180 days to 
settle advancement totally Rs. 
4,789,867/- 

 
 
 

Treasury Fund
 Voucher No. TF-0310, Amount: 91,000.00 

This advance drawn on 13.03.2019 has 
been settled on 22.03.2019 under receipt 
No 1910919.  

 Voucher No. TF-0369, Amount:   
14,750.00 

The instructions have 
given to settle the 
interim imprest 
appropriately. 
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 Voucher No. TF-0437, Amount: 
18,000.00 

 Voucher No. TF-0507, Amount: 
17,500.00 

 Voucher No. TF-0694, Amount: 16,900.00 
 Voucher No. TF-0692, Amount: 8,600.00 
 Voucher No. TF-0908, Amount: 20,000.00 

The officers who settled these advances 
were advised to work properly according to 
Financial Regulation. 

Most of the other advances have been 
settled within 14 days after completing the 
activity. 

Development Fund 
 The cheque advance of Rs. 140000.00 has 

been paid to the Ceylon Electricity Board 
on 08.02.2019 (payment has been made 
within 8 days) 

  Voucher No. DF-0025, Amount: 
344,400.00 
This cheque advance has been paid to that 
Institute on 28.02.2019, however there has 
been a delay in forwarding the documents 
to the cash Branch. 

 Voucher No. DF-0071, Amount: 3,550.00 
The officers who settled the advance were 
advised to act according to financial 
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Regulations and also ensue that there would 
be no repetition of such incidents. 

Financial Regulation      
1646

 

Daily running charts were not 
produced for audit in 2019. 

 

Action will be taken to forward to Auditor 
General through Head of Department, the 
daily running charts of the month along with 
the original of the monthly summery.  
 
 

Running charts for the following periods are 
availate.  

The following Running charts are available.

Vehicle No Period

AAI - 1137 

2019.05.22-2019.06.29 
2019.07.01-2019.08.15 
2019.08.16-2019.11.03 
2019.11.04-2019.12.19 
2019.12.20-2020.01.25 

CAM – 8246 2019.08.16-2019.11.19 
2019.11.21-2020.01.09 

NC- 9806 

2019.02.14 - 2019.05.10 
2019.05.13 - 2019.07.25 
2019.07.26 -2019.11.20 
2019.11.21-2020.01.24 

GD- 8862 2019.01.21 - 2019.05.17 
2019.05.22-2019.09.05 

The relevant driver is maintaining daily 
running charts now. 

 

Presented. 

(b)
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Sec 7 chap ix of the 
University 
Establishment Code

Overtime payments should be 
made on the employee’s basic 
salary, but in    the first half of the 
year 2019 overtime payments has 
been made Rs. 140,977 in excess on 
specific rates determined by the 
Institute, contrary to this provision

The payments referred to are not overtime 
payments. They are payments for additional 
work in programmes. I wish to point out that 
there are payments made in accordance 
with specific rate determined by us. These 
payments based on specific rates were paid 
to staff involved in additional work in fee-
levying programmes conducted by the 
Institute. These payments have been made  

 
 subject to the rates being approved by the 
Financial Committee and the Academic 
Syndicate. Also it should be stated that 
overtime payments under the Treasury 
Fund have all been made according to rate 
given in the Establishments code are 
Financial Regulations

The payments subjected 
for specific duties will be 
made in accordance to 
the rates being approved 
by the Academic 
Syndicate.  

c
 

Public financial circular 
No 03/2015 dated 14 
July 2015

 

An advance payment of Rs. 152,280 
has been made exceeding the 
maximum limit of Rs. 100,000 for 
advances.

 

Advance Exceeding Rs. 100,000 has been paid 
only in one instance and all cash advances are 
being limited to Rs. 100,000 by now.

Advance payment will be 
made according to the 
maximum limit which 
can be given. 

3.

(a)

Other Audit 
Observations 

Although it had been 
recommended to dispose of 11 
items valued at Rs. 138,887 in the 
store verification report in 2018, no 
action had been taken until Board 

Action will be taken in future to dispose of 
relevant stocks. 

 
A number of committees were appointed 
from time to time to conduct a preliminary 
investigation on the laptop computer 

While the action is taking 
place for disposing of 
relevant stocks, the 
operations are going on 
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of Survey 2019 to dispose these 
items. Also, no action had been 
taken to carry out proper 
preliminary investigation on the 
loss of laptop computer in 2014 and 
report the loss in the account and 
recover the loss.

misplaced. The recommendation of these 
committees were not approved by the 
Academic Syndicate. 

 
A one-man committee was appointed to 
investigate this further, but his 
recommendation have not been received as 
yet. 

 
This situation was considered by the 
Academic Syndicate and referred it to the 
Audit Committee for recommendation.  

 

The Audit Committee met severed times to 
discuss the loss of lap top computer but these 
discussions ended without final conclusion.  

 

The Audit Committee is still discussing the 
action to be taken regarding then and they 
feel that action should be taken within 
Financial Regulation. 
 

regarding the misplaced 
laptop Computer. 

( )

 

Although the Institute had 
conducted 28 different 
programmes such as 
Undergraduate, Postgraduate, 
Diploma and Certificate 
programmes under 05 categories, 
students had not registered for 13 
such programmes Also, Student’s 
registration for 04 programmes had 

 

Category I - Graduate Academic programme  
 

677 applications were received for Bachelor 
of Labour Education (BLE) Programme and it 
is an increase compared to last year. Out of 
which only 618 applicants were qualified to 
sit for the qualifying examination. However, 
only 211 candidates were registered for the 
Bachelor of Labour Education Programme. In 
order to increase the number, more 
applicant could have been allowed to 

Currently, the Institute 
is conducting; 
 04 Post Graduate 

Degree Programmes 
 A Bachelor’s Degree 

Programme 
 03 Executive 

Diploma 
Programmes 

 04 Diploma 
Programmes 
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decreased compared to the 
previous year. 

register. In that event as there was a large 
number of applicants who had got equal 
mark, all of them should have been 
accommodated. This is the problem of space 
in lecture halls could have arisen.  

 
 

For the Diploma programme 152 candidates 
were selected. Now ever 89 candidates 
registered for the programme of them 
registered.  A total of 300 students registered 
for the Bachelor of Labour Education (BLE) 
and Diploma of Labour Education (DLE) this 
year, which is higher than the last year. 

 

Although our institution is quite willing to 
increase Enrolment for these programmes. It 
does not have lecture halls for this purpose 
and presently lectures are conducted in 
lecture halls of other faculties. When those 
faculties need their lecture hall, we are not 
allowed to use them and as such there in a 
problem in increasing the number of 
students. 
 
 

Category II – Post Graduate programmes 
 

 

i   There appears to be a decrease in the 
number of registrations for this 
programme and it is observed that it was 
due to the situation that prevails in the 
country and the resultant economic 

 08 Certificate 
Courses. 
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hardships. Further by the date of the audit 
only two courses had commenced and 
therefore your comparison is quite 
appropriate. 

 
 
 
ii Application for Service Management Course         

were called on 23.06.2019 and for 
Disaster Management Course on 
25.12.2019.   

 
iii Student for the final GIS course were 

enrolled on 13.03.2016. Absence of 
lecturers in the Institute caused 
difficulties. The course was terminated in 
these circumstances. It was expected to 
get the co-operation from other faculty 
but their response was not encouraging. 
Considering the importance of this course 
it in expected to start it again along with 
other faculty. 

 

    However, students for Diploma in 
Counselling Psychology Course were 
enrolled in 2019 also action has already 
been taken to call for application for 
above three Courses and Tourism Industry 
Events Hospitality Management Executive 
Diploma course for 2019. 
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Category III – Executive Diploma   
Programmes 

 

i  During this year about two months of the     
time available for academic work were lost 
due to Easter Sunday attack and also due to 
strike in the university system. As a result, 
existing courses could not be completed as 
planned and enrolment could not be made.  

 
ii   There was the need to update the Executive 

Diploma in service Management course 
and the Executive Diploma in Human 
Resource Management Course. These 
programmes getting approved of the 
Academic Syndicate for there was 
initiated by submission of a proposal to 
the Syndicate on 19.02.2019. Necessary 
approval was submitted to the governing 
body of the University of Colombo at its 
meeting 439 on 06.05.2019 Accordingly, 
applications will be called in the near 
further. 

  
 Admission for Executive Diploma in 
Disaster Analysis Management Course 
was stopped the Institute does not have 
suitable Lectures to co-ordinate this 
Course and to deliver lectures. 



165

 

       

  For Higher Diploma in Counselling 
Psychology Course application for the year 
2019 were called on 08.09.2019 and 
registration of students in being done 
now.    

iii There are no suitable lectures to co- 
ordinate and deliver lecturers in Audio 
Video production and Media Technology 
Higher Diploma Course and therefore the 
admission for this Course was stopped.  

   

Category IV – Diploma Programmes 
 

i     Out of the Diploma Course conducted 
by the Institute students were 
admitted in 2019 for Tourism Industry 
Events Executive Diploma in Tourism 
Events & Hospitality course. 
Application were called on 08.09.2019 
for Diploma in Counselling and 
Psychology Course for 2019, and 
students are being registered now. 

 
 

ii      There was a need to update the Diploma 
in Service Management Course and 
action was initiated in this regard by 
making submissions to Academic 
syndicate on 19.02.2019. It was 
submitted to governing council of the 
University of Colombo at its 439th 
meeting on 06.05.2019 for approval and 
applications will be called soon. 
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Course and the Diploma Course, only those 
students who apply for the Tamil Language 
Course with the intention of applying for 
teaching appointments all those who wish to 
have a Diploma Certificate can be seem to 
stay up to the Diploma Course. 

( ) No action had been taken up to 31st 
December of the year under review 
to recover Rs. 4,710,900 due from 
the transport and Civil Aviation 
Ministry for providing consultancy 
services for the National Railway 
Network project. 

Admit . Action will be taken to show the 
relevant amount in the final Accounts as a 
receivable amount in 2020 in accordance 
with Audit guidelines.  

ඇ

The action is taking place 
to collect the relevant 
amount. 




